
CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
CHESTERFIELD, VIRGINIA 23832

AGENDA
January 22, 2020

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
 

LESLIE A.T. HALEY
CHAIR
MIDLOTHIAN DISTRICT
KEVIN P. CARROLL
VICE CHAIR
MATOACA DISTRICT
JIM A. INGLE
BERMUDA DISTRICT
CHRISTOPHER M. WINSLOW
CLOVER HILL DISTRICT
JAMES M. HOLLAND
DALE DISTRICT

JOSEPH P. CASEY, Ph.D.
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

2:00 p.m. Work Session (Audio & Presentations)  Administration Building, Room 502 
 

1. Approval of Minutes 
   

2. Requests to Postpone Agenda Items and Additions, Deletions or Changes in the Order of 
Presentation 

   

3. Work Sessions 
   

  A. Every Day Excellence  Juvenile Probation 
     

  B. General Assembly Update
     

  C. Real Estate Housing Market and Regional Housing Framework Plan Updates
     

  D. Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) Update
     

  E. Environmental Stewardship Website
     

  F. FY2021 Budget Process
     

  G. Update on Public Utilities Construction Contracts
     

4. Reports 
   

  A. District Improvement Funds (DIF) Monthly Report
     

5. FifteenMinute Citizen Comment Period on Unscheduled Matters 
   

6. Closed Session 
   

 

   

Page 1 of 563



Chesterfield County Board of Supervisors Meeting
January 22, 2020

 

A. Closed Session 1) Pursuant to Section 2.23711(A)(19), Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
Amended, for Discussion of Plans and Reports Related to the Security of CountyOwned 
Buildings in the Area of the 1916 Courthouse Complex, and the Safety of Persons Using 
Such Buildings; and 2) Pursuant to Section 2.23711(A)(5), Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
Amended, to Discuss or Consider Prospective Businesses or Industries or the Expansion of 
Existing Businesses or Industries Where No Previous Announcement Has Been Made of the 
Businesses’ or Industries’ Interest in Locating or Expanding Their Facilities in the 
Community

     

7. Recess for Dinner 
   

6:00 p.m. Evening Session  Public Meeting Room 
 

8. Invocation 
   

  The Honorable Kevin Carroll, Matoaca District Supervisor
   

9. Pledge of Allegiance 
   

  Eagle Scout Chase Payne
   

10. County Administration Update 
   

11. Board Member Reports 
   

12. Resolutions and Special Recognitions 
   

 
A. Recognizing Boy Scouts Upon Attaining the Rank of Eagle Scout

1. Chase Alan Payne, Matoaca District
2. Michael Aarness Clabough, Midlothian District

     

  B. Recognizing Miss Kenley Teller for her Athletic Achievements at the U.S. Para Swimming 
National Championship

     

13. New Business 
   

  A. Appointments
     

  1. PlanRVA (Formerly Richmond Regional Planning District Commission)
     

  2. Capital Region Airport Commission
     

  3. Community Services Board
     

  4. Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission
     

  B. Consent Items
     

  1. Adoption of Resolutions
     

Page 2 of 563



Chesterfield County Board of Supervisors Meeting
January 22, 2020

  a. Resolution Recognizing Ms. Tamara J. Vest, Chesterfield County Utilities 
Department, Upon Her Retirement

     

  b. Resolution Recognizing Ms. Kelly Gregg, Emergency Communications 
Center (ECC), Upon Her Retirement

     

  c. Resolution Recognizing Corporal Joseph D. DeVivo, II, Police Department, 
Upon His Retirement.

     

 
d. Resolution Supporting Construction of the Commonwealth Apartments Using 

Proceeds from TaxExempt Bonds Issued by the Virginia Housing 
Development Authority Under Their MixedIncome Program

     

  2. Real Property Requests
     

  a. Acceptance of Parcels of Land
     

  1. Along Lucks Lane from The Grove at Lucks Lane, LLC
     

  2. Adjacent to Manchester Middle School/Fire Station 2 from R. Larry 
Turner and Katie G. Turner

     

  3. Along Jefferson Davis Highway from John Allen Reason, Jr.
     

  4. Along Interstate 95 from Sina18, LLC
     

  5. Along Courthouse Road and Newbys Bridge Road from Banner 
Christian School

     

  6. Along Center Pointe Parkway from RP2B, LLC
     

  7. Adjacent to Charter Colony Parkway from Commonwealth Foundation 
for Cancer Research

     

  b. Conveyance of Easements
     

  1. Conveyance of an Easement to Columbia Gas of Virginia, Inc. for the 
Chester Center for the Arts

     

  c. Requests to Quitclaim
     

 
1. Request to Quitclaim a Portion of a Variable Width Temporary 

Reduced Imperviousness BMP Easement Across the Property of 
Woodlands Real Estate, LLC

     

  d. Requests for Permission
     

  1. To Install a Private Water Service Within a Private Easement to Serve 
Property at 6050 Newbys Bridge Road

     

Page 3 of 563



Chesterfield County Board of Supervisors Meeting
January 22, 2020

  3. Central Virginia All Hazards Incident Management Team (CVAHIMT) 
Memorandum of Understanding

     

  4. Authorize the Receipt and Appropriation of Grant Funds from the Commonwealth of 
Virginia, Virginia 911 Services Board for the 2020 NG911 Migration Grant

     

  5. Allocate Funds for the Purchase of a Special Purpose Park at the Ware Bottom 
Church Battlefield and Approve New Conservation Easement Holder

     

  6. Authorization for 5G Air LLC to Enter Into a Leasehold Mortgage at the Chesterfield 
County Airport 

     

  7. Award of Contract for Correctional Nursing Services
     

  8. Award of Construction Contract for County Project #190006, Falling Creek 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Digesters 1 and 2 Mixing Systems

     

  9. Award of Construction Contract for County Project #160169, Johnson Creek Force 
Main, Gravity Sewer, and Waterline project

     

 
10. Award of Construction Contract for County Project #170235, AddisonEvans Water 

Treatment Plant Lime Feed System Replacement and Sodium Hypochlorite Facility 
Upgrades

     

  11. Award of Construction Contract for County Project #140222, AddisonEvans Water 
Production and Laboratory Facility Motor Control Center Replacement

     

  12. Appropriation of Funds and Authorization to Award a Construction Contract for the 
Otterdale Road and Old Hundred Road Roundabout Project

     

  13. Authorize the Receipt and Appropriation of 2019 State Homeland Security Grant 
Funds from the Department of Homeland Security.

     

  14. Acceptance of State Roads
     

  15. Set Public Hearing on Code Amendment Relating to Mailing of Written Orders
     

 
16. Approval to Terminate the Lease with the Economic Development Authority of 

Chesterfield County (Authority) of a portion of the Stonebridge Development to 
Facilitate the Sale of the Property to Shamin Hotels, Inc.

     

14. FifteenMinute Citizen Comment Period on Unscheduled Matters 
   

15. Deferred Items 
   

  A. 19SN0628  Dean L. Hawkins, LA
     

Page 4 of 563



Chesterfield County Board of Supervisors Meeting
January 22, 2020

16. Requests for Manufactured Home Permits and Rezoning Placed on the Consent Agenda to be 
Heard in the Following Order: 

 Withdrawals/Deferrals
 Cases Where the Applicant Accepts the Recommendation and There is No Opposition
 Cases Where the Applicant Does Not Accept the Recommendation and/or There is 

Public Opposition Will Be Heard at Section 18
   

  A. 19SN0597: SRBF, L.L.C. (project commonly known as Starview Village), Midlothian 
District

     

  B. 20SN0526: 29:11 Chesterfield, LLC (project commonly known as Courthouse Landing), 
Dale District

     

  C. 19SN0566:  John S. Bolton (project commonly known as Winchester Green), Bermuda 
District

     

  D. 19SN0616: Idlewood Properties Inc (project commonly known as Waterford), Clover Hill 
District

     

  E. 20SN0520: Joni Chrystle Roberts, Clover Hill District
     

  F. 20SN0521: Lisa Stinnette, Bermuda District
     

  G. 20SN0527: Emerson Companies, LLC, Bermuda District
     

  H. 20SN0546: Matthew T. Goodwin, Woodlands Real Estate, LLC and Ronald Milligan, 
Midlothian District

     

  I. 20SN0549: Columbia Gas of Virginia, Midlothian District
     

  J. 20SN0550: Chesterfield Economic Development Authority (project commonly known as 
Stonebridge), Midlothian District

     

  K. 20SN0551: Jennifer Kielb, Midlothian District
     

17. Public Hearings 
   

 
A. To Consider the Exercise of Eminent Domain for the Acquisition of Permanent Sewer 

Easements, a Water Easement, and Temporary Construction Easements for the Johnson 
Creek Force Main Project

     

  B. To Consider the Conveyance of County Property at 2900 Bermuda Hundred Road to the 
Economic Development Authority of the County of Chesterfield

     

  C. To Consider the Exercise of Eminent Domain for the Acquisition of a Permanent Water 
Easement for the Cowan Road Waterline Improvements Project

     

  D. To Consider Code Amendment Relative to Upper Swift Creek Tree Preservation 
     

Page 5 of 563



Chesterfield County Board of Supervisors Meeting
January 22, 2020

18. Remaining Manufactured Home Permits and Zoning Requests 
   

19. FifteenMinute Citizen Comment Period on Unscheduled Matters 
   

20. Adjournment 
   

  A. Adjournment and Notice of Next Scheduled Meeting of the Board of Supervisors
     

Page 6 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 3.B.
 

Subject:
General Assembly Update
 
Board Action Requested:

 
Summary of Information:
Ms. Mary Ann Curtin, Director of Intergovernmental Relations, will present an update to the Board of 
Supervisors on the status of several bills before the General Assembly.
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Sara Hall, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors
  
Approved By:

Page 7 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 3.C.
 

Subject:
Real Estate Housing Market and Regional Housing Framework Plan Updates
 
Board Action Requested:

 
Summary of Information:
Ms. Laura Lafayette, Chief Executive Officer, Richmond Association of Realtors, and Ms. Elizabeth 
Greenfield, Vice President of Government Affairs, will update the Board of Supervisors on Chesterfield's 
housing market, including trends in residential sales, and specifics relative to the Regional Housing Framework 
Plan.
 
Attachments:
1. Housing Update Presentation
 
Preparer: Sara Hall, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors
  
Approved By:

Page 8 of 563



1

Real Estate
Market Overview
Laura Lafayette
CEO, RAR & CVR MLS

Page 9 of 563



Page 10 of 563



Page 11 of 563



Page 12 of 563



5

PHARVA.com

Regional Housing 
Framework Overview
Elizabeth Greenfield 
Executive Director, PHA

Page 13 of 563



RRHF Values

6
Page 14 of 563



The Region’s Growth Isn’t Stopping Anytime Soon.

7Source: University of Virginia Weldon
Cooper Center for Public Service

The time to plan for our future is now.

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

1950 1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010
Hanover County Henrico County Chesterfield County Richmond city

Page 15 of 563



All Homes

8Central Virginia Regional MLS

Change in Median Single-Family Home Sales Price: 2009 to 2018

Page 16 of 563



Percent of Cost-Burdened Households

9Source: 2013-2017 American Community Survey,
5-year estimates (Tables B25074 and B25095) 

Page 17 of 563



Rents Are Outpacing Household Incomes

10

Source: 2005-2009 through 2013-2017 
American Community Survey, 5-year 
estimates (Tables B19013 and B25064) 

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Cumulative percent change in median gross rent and median 
household income

Chesterfield

Hanover

Henrico

Richmond

Median gross rent

Median household income

Page 18 of 563



Changing Demographics

11Source: 2008-2012 and 2013-2017 American 
Community Survey, 5-year estimates 

Increase in senior population since 2010

17%

26%
32%

36%

49%

Richmond city Henrico County Region Hanover County Chesterfield County

Page 19 of 563



Housing Cost Burdened Seniors

122000 Census; 2013-2017 American
Community Survey, 5-year estimates

The number of mortgage-burdened seniors has more than 
doubled since 2000.

7,846 

16,237 

6,940 

11,293 

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

 16,000

 18,000

2000 2017
Mortgage burdened Rent burdened

Page 20 of 563



Multi-Generational Living

13Source: 2013-2017 American Community Survey, 
5-year estimates

Seniors living with families and not the primary householder

2012

2019

Page 21 of 563



Goals & Solutions

14Source: Chesterfield County

• Reduce barriers to accessory dwelling units
• Increase the # of non-traditional homeownership units
 Co-housing, cooperatives, etc.

• Revitalize manufactured home communities
• Issue bonds to support housing & community 

revitalization efforts
• Preserve naturally occurring housing
• Where appropriate, increase the amount of land 

available for multi-family housing development in 
residential zones

Page 22 of 563



15

Explore the full 
Framework at 
PHARVA.com

• Full solutions
• Interactive data 

charts
• Glossary of terms

What’s Next?

Page 23 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 3.D.
 

Subject:
Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) Update
 
Board Action Requested:

 
Summary of Information:
Mr. Kyle Bates, P.E., Resident Engineer, will provide an update on VDOT's winter operations.
 
Attachments:
1. VDOT Presentation Chesterfield BOS
2. SHV_Chesterfield
 
Preparer: Jesse W Smith, Deputy County Administrator
  
Approved By:

Page 24 of 563



Chesterfield Residency

Kyle Bates, P.E.
Resident Engineer

Page 25 of 563



About VDOT: Quick statewide facts

• Third largest 
state maintained 
highway system 
in the country

• 7,700 employees

• About 58,000 
miles of 
pavement

Page 26 of 563



VDOT’s Nine Districts

3

Page 27 of 563



Chesterfield Residency

4

• Amelia County
Amelia AHQ

• Chesterfield County
Beach AHQ
Bethia AHQ
Bon Air AHQ
Chester AHQ
Pocahontas AHQ

• Powhatan County
Powhatan AHQ

Page 28 of 563



Chesterfield Residency 
Organization

Kyle Bates, P.E.
Resident Engineer

Adam Wilkerson, P.E
Area Land Use 

Engineer

Rebecca Worley, P.E
Asst. Residency 

Engineer, Projects

Lee McKnight, E.I.T.
Asst. Residency 

Admin, Maintenance

Bruce McFadden
Incident Management 

Coordinator

Carole Shrader
Admin Assistant

Page 29 of 563



Chesterfield County

• Maintain 4,400 Lane Miles
• Interstate – 150 Lane Miles
• Primary – 580 Lane Miles
• Secondary – 3,700 Lane Miles

• Maintain 360 Structures and 
Bridges

• 2nd Largest Road Network in 
Virginia

Page 30 of 563



VDOT  Maintenance  Services

• Highway Maintenance
• Mowing
• Sight Distance Improvements
• Drainage Improvements
• Pavement Repair
• Concrete/Sidewalk Repair
• Snow Removal
• Incident Response
• State Force Rural Rustic
• State Force Construction

Page 31 of 563



VDOT  Snow Removal

• 24/7 Operation
• Approximately 180 pieces of equipment 

(State Forces & Contractors)
• Pretreat bridges, overpasses, & critical 

Routes
• Priority Designation

• Interstates, primaries, high volume secondaries
• Low volume secondaries, subdivision streets

• Goal – Roadways passable within 48 hours 
of end of storm

Page 32 of 563



Incident Management

9

• Interstate North
• 6 total monitors

• Incident Management Coordinator
• Responsible for all incidents within Amelia, 
Chesterfield, and Powhatan

• On Call 24/7
• TRIP Program

• 90 minutes, $2,500 - $3,500 bonus

Page 33 of 563



VDOT  Paving

• Annual Resurfacing Schedule
• Prioritized by pavement ratings & field reviews 
• Funding distributed to interstates, primaries, & 

secondaries based on deficient lane miles
• Paving Schedule 

http://www.virginiadot.org/projects/paving-schedule.asp

• Pavement Ratings 
https://vdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=1318d0d04
4124500b7363fc89f74ea8b

Page 34 of 563

http://www.virginiadot.org/projects/paving-schedule.asp


VDOT  Mowing

●Contractor Mowing
○Primary & Secondary

●State Forces Mowing
○Supplement Contractor Mowing
○Sight Distance and Safety Concerns

●Plant Growth Regulator

Page 35 of 563



VDOT  Essential Contracts

• Mowing
• Asphalt Paving/Patching
• Pothole Repair
• Tree Removal/Trimming
• Incidental Concrete Work
• Sweeping
• Stormwater Basin Maintenance
• Drop Inlet & Pipe Cleaning

Page 36 of 563



VDOT  Engineering  Services

• Speed Studies
• Safety Studies
• Operational Analysis
• Pavement Marking Studies
• Hydraulic Analysis
• Land Use 

• New Entrances
• New Subdivisions
• Street Acceptance
• Site Plan Reviews

 

Page 37 of 563



VDOT  Resources

• Virginia Traffic Information
• http://www.511virginia.org/

• Board of Supervisors Manual
• http://www.virginiadot.org/business/resources/local_assistance

/BOSManual_2017.pdf

• Smart Scale
• http://smartscale.org/

• Report a Road Problem
• https://my.vdot.virginia.gov/

 

Page 38 of 563



15

VDOT  Customer Service

FOR VDOT MAINTENANCE 
ISSUES OR CONCERNS 
CALL 1-800-367-ROAD 

OR 804-674-2800
 

Page 39 of 563



Special Hauling Vehicles
Chesterfield County

Kyle Bates, P.E.
Resident Engineer

Page 40 of 563



Special Hauling Vehicles (SHV)
● Over last 20 years, commercial truck manufacturers 

have developed freight vehicles with 4+ axles, carrying 
up to 40 tons legally, depending on axel spacing

● Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) standards 
dictate that states post for SHV’s 

● VDOT must have all structures posted by Dec. 31, 2022

Page 41 of 563



Chesterfield County Structures

3

Route Feature Carried Feature Crossed

641 DUNDAS ROAD CSX TRNS & USDGSC SERVIC

Page 42 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 3.E.
 

Subject:
Environmental Stewardship Website
 
Board Action Requested:

 
Summary of Information:
Ms. Susan Pollard, Director of Communications and Media, will provide the Board of Supervisors with an 
update on the new Environmental Stewardship website.

Chesterfield has unveiled its new Environmental Stewardship web portal highlighting all the work the county is 
doing to protect the ecosystem and natural resources. 
 
In collaboration with different departments within the county and partner organizations, the Environmental 
Stewardship web portal is a one-stop-shop for all of Chesterfield's environmental initiatives, divided into four 
major categories:
Clean Water and Air 
Healthy Land and Wildlife 
Sustainability
Awards, Accreditations and Regulations
 
Each category summarizes the county’s efforts and provides links for citizens to learn more. The 
Environmental Stewardship web portal is a living resource that will be expanded alongside Chesterfield’s 
environmental efforts. 
Environmental Stewardship Web Portal
 
Attachments:
1. 3E - ESWP Presentation - Jan. 21, 2020
 
Preparer: Susan Pollard, Director
  

Page 43 of 563

https://www.chesterfield.gov/4520/Environmental-Stewardship
https://www.chesterfield.gov/4520/Environmental-Stewardship
https://www.chesterfield.gov/4520/Environmental-Stewardship
https://www.chesterfield.gov/4520/Environmental-Stewardship
https://www.chesterfield.gov/4520/Environmental-Stewardship
https://www.chesterfield.gov/4520/Environmental-Stewardship
https://www.chesterfield.gov/4520/Environmental-Stewardship


Approved By:

Page 44 of 563



Environmental Stewardship 
Web Portal

Susan Pollard, Director of Communications and Media
Lauren Henry, Public Information and Creative Content Manager

Chesterfield County

Page 45 of 563



Protecting Our Citizens by Protecting Our Natural Resources
 Four Categories: (1) Clean Water and Air, (2) Healthy Land and Wildlife, (3) Sustainability (4) 

Awards, Accreditations and Regulations

 Web portal a tool that provides holistic access to information in accessible, conversational 
language

 Topics presented with brief summaries and accompanying links
Page 46 of 563



Partner Departments 
and Organizations

 A collaborative effort driven by 
our partners’ initiatives

 A roadmap to the county’s 
environmental efforts

 Partners update content on 
their webpages, while 
Communications and Media 
updates links and descriptions 
on the web portal

Page 47 of 563



Clean Water and 
Air

Current Partner Departments:
 Environmental Engineering

 Utilities

 Cooperative Extension

 General Services

 Parks and Recreation

Page 48 of 563



The Water Quality 
Report

 Web portal provides quick access 
to county’s water conservation 
efforts

 Citizens can learn about drinking 
water safety or read Water Quality 
Report

 Web portal links to the report on 
the Utilities webpage, which 
Utilities maintains

Page 49 of 563



Page 50 of 563



Healthy Land and 
Wildlife

Current Partner Departments:
 Cooperative Extension

 Environmental Engineering

 Community Enhancement

 General Services

 Parks and Recreation

Page 51 of 563



Bumblebee 
Jamboree

 Web portal briefly describes 
Cooperative Extension’s work with 
Bumblebee Jamboree

 Citizens can click on link for a 
video and more information

 So, when Cooperative Extension 
updates page for 2020 event, the 
web portal will not be out-of-date

Page 52 of 563



Sustainability
Current Partner Departments:
 Cooperative Extension

 Environmental Engineering

 General Services

 Parks and Recreation

 Risk Management

Page 53 of 563



Environmental 
Engineering Video

 Web portal links to a YouTube 
video on County channel 
highlighting Environmental 
Engineering’s:
 Day-to-day work

 Education and outreach efforts

 Citizen involvement

 Workshops

Page 54 of 563



Awards, 
Accreditations and 

Regulations
Current Partner Departments:
 General Services

 Parks and Recreation

 Utilities

 Risk Management

 Environmental Engineering

Page 55 of 563



Green Fleet 
Awards

 Chesterfield County’s Fleet 
Services ranked 45th Best Green 
Fleet for 2019

 Links to news release announcing 
the award, as well as additional 
honors earned by Fleet Services

Page 56 of 563



Environmental Stewardship 
Web Portal

Susan Pollard, Director of Communications and Media
Lauren Henry, Public Information and Creative Content Manager

Chesterfield County

Page 57 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 3.F.
 

Subject:
FY2021 Budget Process
 
Board Action Requested:
Hold a work session on the FY2021 Budget Process.
 
Summary of Information:
A work session on the FY2021 operating and Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget process has been 
scheduled for this date. 

There is no action requested of the Board during the work session. Budget public hearings on the operating 
budget and the CIP are scheduled for March 25, 2020, followed by budget adoption on April 8th. 
 
Attachments:
1. FY21 Budget Kick Off 012220
 
Preparer: Matt Harris
  
Approved By:

Page 58 of 563



1/22/2020

1

FY21 
BUDGET 
KICKOFF
WORK 
SESSION
JANUARY 22, 2020

AGENDA

• Process Overview
• Thematic Preview for 21
• Calendar/Next Steps

FY21 BUDGET

Page 59 of 563



1/22/2020

2

FY21 BUDGET

PROCESS OVERVIEW

• Year-round exercise
• ‘Off season’ focused on priority 

setting/calibration
• Heavy focus on multi-year financial 

planning

TOP PRIORITIES FOR CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
 PUBLIC SAFETY
 EDUCATION

 INFRASTRUCTURE/MAINTAINING OUR 
EXISTING ASSETS

 TRANSPORTATION

FY21 BUDGET

PRIORITIES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

• TMDL Plan
• Career development implementation
• Enhanced public safety (Station 21 Medic, 

Body Worn Cameras, targeted staffing)
• Restoration of library hours
• Focus on economic development
• Still some items in progress, such as Fire 

minimum staffing…

Page 60 of 563



1/22/2020

3

THE FIVE-YEAR PLAN HAS EVOLVED
FY16

FY20

…WE BUDGET HORIZONTALLY

Addressing staffing/personnel challenges
• Completion of career development plans (public safety + non-public safety)
• Targeted retention efforts
• Workload supports, particularly in non-frontline areas

Evolving Community Needs
• Transportation Options
• Program and service offerings for changing demographics 

Changing technology landscape
• Subscription services
• Ongoing support/maintenance

FY21 BUDGET

OPERATING THEMES PREVIEW

Page 61 of 563



1/22/2020

4

Continued focus on care and maintenance of existing infrastructure
• MM funding in compliance w/financial policy – 2.5% reinvestment 
• Replacement/renovation of older facilities – Beulah Renovation 

Focus on Technology Improvements
• Courts AV upgrades
• Mental Health Electronic Health Record (EHR)
• GIS upgrades

Planning for the future
• Future land acquisition
• Dedicated trail/sidewalk construction funding
• Special Area Plans
• 2020 Referendum framework… 

FY21 BUDGET

CIP THEMES PREVIEW

FY21 BUDGET

REFERENDUM REVIEW

2004 2013
POTENTIAL

2020
$341.7M approved for 
schools (5 new + 13 
reno/additions), public 
safety, library, 
transportation and park 
improvements

• Initial $304M expanded 
to $402M to 
accommodate full 
school rebuilds

• $49M approved to 
replace the county’s 
emergency 
communications system

• Focusing on maintaining our 
existing assets and 
infrastructure while 
addressing the needs of a 
growing population 

• Projects to include schools, 
public safety facilities, 
libraries, parks, transportation 
and other county facilities

Page 62 of 563



1/22/2020

5

2013 Bond Referendum Status

Project Name Status

Monacan High School Renovation Completed (9/2016)

Providence Middle School Renovation Completed (1/2018)

Beulah Elementary School Replacement Completed (9/2018)

Enon Elementary School Replacement Completed (1/2019)

Old Hundred Elementary School Completed (9/2019)

Manchester Middle School Replacement In Progress (9/2020)

Matoaca Elementary School Replacement In Progress (9/2020)

Harrowgate Elementary Replacement In Progress (9/2020)

Ettrick Elementary Replacement In Progress (9/2021)

Reams Elementary School Replacement In Progress (9/2021)

Crestwood Elementary Replacement In Progress (9/2021)

Communications System In Progress (9/2022)

REFERENDUM REVIEW

FY21 BUDGET

FY21 BUDGET

REVENUE + ECONOMIC UPDATE

• Steady growth expected for real estate taxes; residential reval at 3.8% 
for TY20

• State and national economic fundamentals remain solid

• Using conservative estimates for consumer-driven revenues (personal 
property taxes, local sales and use tax, transient occupancy tax)

• Will continue to refine projections for upcoming revenue work session

Total, Projected 
YoY Growth + 3.9%

Page 63 of 563



1/22/2020

6

SCHOOLS BUDGET UPDATE
• 1/21 work session first step on their 

process
• Much closer to square one…
• Revenue estimates VERY aggressive
• Preliminary school layout uses 83% of all 

available revenue; $14M more than 
already revised target

• Though, stretched horizontally, program 
goals much more within reach

FY21 BUDGET

FY21 BUDGET

SCHOOLS BUDGET UPDATE

58.00%

59.00%

60.00%

61.00%

62.00%

63.00%

64.00%

65.00%

66.00%

67.00%

68.00%

FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020

Property Taxes Indexed to Student Population

% of Property Tax
for Schools

Indexed to Students
as % of Population

w/one-time sources
66.2%

Page 64 of 563



1/22/2020

7

FY21 BUDGET

SCHOOLS BUDGET UPDATE

$1,091 $1,104 $1,107 $1,116 $1,143 $1,142 $1,157 $1,175 $1,205 $1,264 

$3,960 $3,898 $4,018 $4,015 
$4,218 $4,388 

$4,585 $4,708 $4,779 $4,899 

 $-

 $1,000

 $2,000

 $3,000

 $4,000

 $5,000

 $6,000

FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020

Local Support for Schools and General Government, 
per Capita and per Student

per Capita per Student

COUNTY PROCESS “NEEDS BASED” AS WELL

FY18 FY19 FY20

Page 65 of 563



1/22/2020

8

CALENDAR & NEXT STEPS
• January 31st – County/School Liaison Meeting
• February 19th – “Joint” CIP Work Session, 

Revenue Work Session, Utilities Proposed 
Budget, Set Maximum Tax Rate

• March 11th – Proposed Budget Work Session, 
Schools Operating Budget Presentation

• Throughout Process; social media outreach, 
community meetings/workshops 3/12-3/24

• April 8th – Budget Adoption

FY21 BUDGET

FY21 
BUDGET 
KICKOFF
WORK 
SESSION
JANUARY 22, 2020

Page 66 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 3.G.
 

Subject:
Update on Public Utilities Construction Contracts
 
Board Action Requested:

 
Summary of Information:

 
Attachments:
1. Utilities Update on Construction Contracts BOS Work Session 012220
 
Preparer: George Hayes, Director
  
Approved By:

Page 67 of 563



Chesterfield County 
Department of  Utilities

Presented by George B. Hayes, P.E., Director

Page 68 of 563



Falling Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant

2

Falling Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant – 12 MGD

Recommended Award 
• Contractor: Waco, Inc.
• Amount: $1,378,765

Digester 1 and Digester 2 Mixing 
Systems 

Background
• Digesters were constructed in 1963.
• Last upgrade was in 2000.

Need for Project
• Vital to the solid portion of  the treatment process.  

Adequate mixing ensures that the biological treatment 
process is maintained to be in compliance with permit 
requirements and regulations.

• The existing mixing system is at the end of  its useful life 
and needs to be replaced, typical life expectancy of  this 
equipment is 15 to 20 years.

Page 69 of 563



Addison-Evans Water Treatment Plant

3

Falling Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant – 12 MGD

Proctors Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant – 27 MGD

Motor Control Center (MCC)

Background
• MCC was constructed in 1966.

Need for Project
• Existing MCC is at the end of  its useful life and needs to be 

replaced.  The typical life expectancy of  this equipment is 20 
years and a majority of  the replacement parts are becoming 
unavailable.

• Failure to replace the MCC could result in prolonged periods of  
the Addison-Evans Water Treatment Plant being out of  service 
while parts are procured. 

Recommended Award 
• Southern Building Systems, Inc.
• Amount: $3,883,804

Page 70 of 563



Addison-Evans Water Treatment Plant

4

Falling Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant – 12 MGD

Proctors Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant – 27 MGD

Lime Feed System 
Replacement

Background
• Lime feed system was constructed in 1974.
• Sodium Hypochlorite was constructed in 1999.

Need for Project
• Lime is used to adjust pH and improve water quality.
• Sodium Hypochlorite is used for water disinfection.
• The typical life expectancy of  these systems are 15 to 

20 years due to the corrosive environment.
• Failure to replace and upgrade the existing systems 

could result in prolonged periods of  the Addison-
Evans Water Treatment Plant being out of  service. 

Sodium Hypochlorite 
Facility Upgrade

Recommended Award 
• Contractor: Harlan Construction Co., Inc.
• Amount: $1,818,660

Page 71 of 563



Johnson Creek Force Main, Gravity Sewer and 
Waterline Project

5

Falling Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant – 12 MGD

Proctors Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant – 27 MGD

Johnson Creek WWPS Line Work
Background

• Johnson Creek Wastewater Pump Station was constructed in 1975.

Need for Project
• The pump station has reached the end of  its useful life, and the capacity 

of  the service area has reached the capacity of  the pump station.
• The replacement Johnson Creek Pump Station construction contract was 

awarded in August of  2019.
• Failure to upgrade the existing line to serve the new pump station could 

result in sanitary sewer overflows and violations of  the Clean Water Act. 

Recommended Award 
• Contractor: Garney Companies, Inc.
• Amount: $3,667,344
• Companion agenda item to proceed with eminent domain on remaining 

needed easements.

Page 72 of 563



Questions?

Page 73 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 4.A.
 

Subject:
District Improvement Funds (DIF) Monthly Report
 
Board Action Requested:
Accept the attached District Improvement Funds (DIF) Monthly Report.
 
Summary of Information:
The attached report details approved and proposed uses of DIF for FY2020. Acceptance of the report will serve 
as approval for staff to expend DIF funds for the proposed uses as listed. 
 
Attachments:
1. 12220 DIF report
 
Preparer: Christopher "Matt" Harris, Deputy County Administrator
  
Approved By:

Page 74 of 563



1 | P a g e          D I F  R e p o r t  1 / 2 2 / 2 0 2 0

                        CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
      Monthly Report on District Improvement Funds

Report Date:  January 22, 2020
Prepared By: Budget and Management 
The County annually budgets $33,500 in discretionary funds, referred to as District Improvement 
Funds (DIF), for each of the five magisterial districts that are used to improve the quality of life in each 
district. The DIF allocations can be used for public improvements, purchase of county-owned 
equipment, public events or programs, public school programs, and other legally allowable expenses.  
In addition, if funds remain in DIF accounts at the end of each fiscal year, up to $37,500 may be 
reserved per district at year-end to be utilized in a future year. With approval of this report, the Board 
consents to the use of available reserve balance, if needed. 

This report shows the cumulative use of District Improvement Funds for FY2020 as well as the current 
funding available for each district. Requests to use funds for the current month are detailed below and 
listed as a proposed use on the summary chart for that district. Upon Board of Supervisors acceptance 
of this report each month, staff will execute proposed DIF requests.  

There is one DIF use proposed this month. Acceptance of this report by the Board constitutes Board 
approval of these requests.

January 2020 Request: 

 Transfer up to $1,388.13 from the Bermuda District Improvement Fund to Streetlights for new 
streetlight installation in the Meadowville Landing-Riversbend subdivision.

DIF Balances To Date: 

Bermuda – Current Balance $24,917.69 (FY20 funding plus available reserves)

Request Date Use Amount

9/25/2019 Meadowville Landing-Riversbend subdivision streetlights $2,170.32
9/25/2019 Thomas Dale High School electronic sign $26,082.00

10/23/2019 Enon Volunteer Fire Department HVAC system replacement $5,000.00

10/23/2019
Falling Creek Ironworks Foundation monument in memory of Bryan 
H. Walker $900.00

11/13/2019
Marguerite Christian Athletic Association concession building at Dodd 
Park $500.00

12/11/2019 Bellwood Elementary School KaBoom  playground equipment $800.00
12/11/2019 Thomas Dale High School electronic sign $5,000.00

Proposed Meadowville Landing-Riversbend subdivision streetlights $1,388.13
Total FY2020 Bermuda uses $41,840.45

Page 75 of 563



2 | P a g e  D I F  R e p o r t  1 / 2 2 / 2 0 2 0

Clover Hill – Current Balance $27,837.88 (FY20 funding plus available reserves)

Request Date Use Amount

7/24/2019 Providence Elementary School playground equipment $3,000.00
8/28/2019 North Courthouse Road Library juvenile collection $5,000.00

10/23/2019
W. W. Gordon Elementary School teacher registration fees for "Get 
Your LEAD On" conference $1,500.00

12/11/2019 Swift Creek Middle School cross country and track uniforms $800.00
Total FY2020 Clover Hill uses $10,300.00

Dale – Current Balance $60,657.82 (FY20 funding plus available reserves)

Request Date Use Amount

7/24/2019 Lloyd C. Bird High School stadium field $2,000.00
10/23/2019 Lloyd C. Bird High School Makerspace laser cutter  replacement $1,495.00
11/13/2019 Hopkins Road Elementary School blacktop $2,000.00

Total FY2020 Dale uses $5,495.00

Matoaca – Current Balance $32,275.00 (FY20 funding plus available reserves)

Request Date Use Amount

8/28/2019 Grange Hall Elementary School Kindergarten playground equipment $3,625.00
10/23/2019 Spring Run Elementary School online Lexia® Core5® Reading program $1,000.00
12/11/2019 Matoaca High School softball dugout $5,000.00
12/11/2019 Matoaca Park press box improvements $8,550.00
12/11/2019 Ettrick Park press box improvements $8,550.00

12/11/2019 Ettrick Elementary School Early Learning Literacy Program part-time 
temporary worker $12,000.00

Total FY2020 Matoaca uses $38,725.00

Midlothian – Current Balance $59,517.00 (FY20 funding plus available reserves)

Request Date Use Amount

12/11/2019 J.B. Watkins Elementary School PBIS program book vending machine $1,596.00
12/11/2019 Robious Athletic Complex scoreboards $9,887.00

Total FY2020 Midlothian uses $11,483.00

Page 76 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 6.A.
 

Subject:
Closed Session 1) Pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(19), Code of Virginia, 1950, as Amended, for Discussion of 
Plans and Reports Related to the Security of County-Owned Buildings in the Area of the 1916 Courthouse 
Complex, and the Safety of Persons Using Such Buildings; and 2) Pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(5), Code of 
Virginia, 1950, as Amended, to Discuss or Consider Prospective Businesses or Industries or the Expansion of 
Existing Businesses or Industries Where No Previous Announcement Has Been Made of the Businesses’ or 
Industries’ Interest in Locating or Expanding Their Facilities in the Community
 
Board Action Requested:

 
Summary of Information:
Closed Session 1) Pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(19), Code of Virginia, 1950, as Amended, for Discussion of 
Plans and Reports Related to the Security of County-Owned Buildings in the Area of the 1916 Courthouse 
Complex, and the Safety of Persons Using Such Buildings; and 2) Pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(5), Code of 
Virginia, 1950, as Amended, to Discuss or Consider Prospective Businesses or Industries or the Expansion of 
Existing Businesses or Industries Where No Previous Announcement Has Been Made of the Businesses’ or 
Industries’ Interest in Locating or Expanding Their Facilities in the Community
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Jeffrey Mincks
  
Approved By:

Page 77 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 12.A.
 

Subject:
Recognizing Boy Scouts Upon Attaining the Rank of Eagle Scout
1. Chase Alan Payne, Matoaca District
2. Michael Aarness Clabough, Midlothian District
 
Board Action Requested:
Resolution Recognizing Boy Scouts Upon Attaining the Rank of Eagle Scout
 
Summary of Information:
Staff has received requests for the Board to adopt resolutions recognizing Mr. Chase Alan Payne and Mr. 
Michael Aarness Clabough, both sponsored by Mt. Pisgah United Methodist Church, upon attaining the rank of 
Eagle Scout. They will be present at the meeting, accompanied by members of their families, to accept their 
resolutions. 
 
Attachments:
1. Resolution - Eagle Scouts
 
Preparer: Sara Hall, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors
  
Approved By:

Page 78 of 563



WHEREAS, the Boy Scouts of America was incorporated by Mr. 
William D. Boyce on February 8, 1910, and was chartered by Congress 
in 1916; and

WHEREAS, the Boy Scouts of America was founded to build 
character, provide citizenship training and promote physical 
fitness; and

WHEREAS, after earning at least 21 merit badges in a wide 
variety of skills including leadership, service and outdoor life, 
serving in a leadership position in a troop, carrying out a service 
project beneficial to their community, being active in the troop, 
demonstrating Scout spirit, and living up to the Scout Oath and 
Law, Mr. Chase Alan Payne and Mr. Michael Aarness Clabough, both 
sponsored by Mr. Pisgah United Methodist Church, have accomplished 
those high standards of commitment and have reached the long-
sought goal of Eagle Scout, which is received by only four percent 
of those individuals entering the Scouting movement; and

WHEREAS, growing through their experiences in Scouting, 
learning the lessons of responsible citizenship, and endeavoring 
to prepare themselves for a role as leaders in society, Chase and 
Michael have distinguished themselves as members of a new 
generation of prepared young citizens of whom we can all be very 
proud.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chesterfield County 
Board of Supervisors, this 22nd day of January, publicly recognizes 
Mr. Chase Alan Payne, and Mr. Michael Aarness Clabough, extends 
congratulations on their attainment of Eagle Scout, and 
acknowledges the good fortune of the county to have such 
outstanding young men as its citizens.

Page 79 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 12.B.
 

Subject:
Recognizing Miss Kenley Teller for her Athletic Achievements at the U.S. Para Swimming National 
Championship
 
Board Action Requested:
Adoption of attached resolution.
 
Summary of Information:
Staff has received a request for the Board to adopt a resolution recognizing Miss Tenley Keller for her athletic 
achievements at the U.S. Para Swimming National Championship. Miss Teller is a resident of the Matoaca 
District. She will be present at the meeting, accompanied by members of her family, to accept the resolution.
 
Attachments:
1. Kenley Scout Teller Resolution
 
Preparer: Sara Hall, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors
  
Approved By:

Page 80 of 563



RECOGNIZING MS. KENLEY SCOUT TELLER FOR HER ATHLETIC ACHIEVEMENTS AT THE 
U.S. PARA SWIMMING NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP 

WHEREAS, Ms. Kenley Scout Teller was born in 2010 at Fort 
Polk, Louisiana, to Aaron C. and Mary E. Teller; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Teller has a rare genetic condition called 
popliteal-pterygium syndrome that required her to endure many 
surgeries, including a double leg amputation; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Teller is 9 years old and is a fourth-grader at 
the Steward School in Richmond, Virginia; and 

WHEREAS, her father, a member of U.S. Army, is stationed at 
Fort Lee, Virginia, while her mother serves as the Inmate Programs 
Manager for the Chesterfield County Sheriff’s Office; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Teller has had a natural attraction to water 
throughout her life, participated on her first swim team at age 6, 
and has a reputation as natural fighter who has never allowed 
immense obstacles stand in the way of achieving great success; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Teller set her first two Junior Nationals records 
at age 7, followed by six more records at age 8; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Teller, at age 9, qualified for and competed in 
the U.S. Para Swimming National Championship from Dec. 6 through 
8, 2019, in Lewisville, Texas, and became the youngest ever to 
participate in this prestigious meet hosted by USA Paralympic 
Swimming and the only Virginia athlete to compete; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Teller, medaled in the S8 50 Meter Backstroke 
and set three additional personal records, including shaving 12 
seconds off her previous best in the 100 Meter Freestyle and 11 
seconds off her 100 Meter Breaststroke; and

WHEREAS, USA Paralympic Swimming also awarded Ms. Teller with 
its 2019 Amazing Grace Award recognizing a developing athlete who 
demonstrates courage, friendliness, determination and cheer.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chesterfield County 
Board of Supervisors, this 22nd day of January 2020, publicly 
recognizes and congratulates Ms. Teller for her outstanding 
athletic achievement and, more so, for being an outstanding role 
model for all children and adults facing great personal challenges.

Page 81 of 563



AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be 
presented to Ms. Teller and that this resolution be permanently 
recorded among the papers of this Board of Supervisors of 
Chesterfield County, Virginia.

Page 82 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.A.1.
 

Subject:
PlanRVA (Formerly Richmond Regional Planning District Commission)
 
Board Action Requested:
Nominate/appoint Mr. Jim Ingle as Executive Committee Member, Ms. Gloria Freye, as the Planning 
Commission representative, and Mr. Jesse Smith, as an alternate, to PlanRVA (Formerly Richmond Regional 
Planning District Commission).
 
Summary of Information:
The terms of Mr. Jim Ingle, Ms. Gloria Freye and Mr. Jesse Smith to serve are effective immediately and will 
expire December 31, 2023.
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Sara Hall, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors
  
Approved By:

Page 83 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.A.2.
 

Subject:
Capital Region Airport Commission
 
Board Action Requested:
Nominate and appoint Mr. Chris Winslow, board member, and Mr. Jim Williams, county representative and 
nominate and reappoint Ms. Leslie Haley, board member, and Mr. Holland, board member, to serve on the 
Capital Region Airport Commission whose terms are effective immediately and will expire 12/31/23.
 
Summary of Information:
The Capital Region Airport Commission is composed of representatives of the Counties of Chesterfield, 
Hanover and Henrico and the City of Richmond, the Commission is the administrative authority which governs 
the operation of Richmond International Airport.
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Sara Hall, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors
  
Approved By:

Page 84 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.A.3.
 

Subject:
Community Services Board
 
Board Action Requested:
Nominate and appoint Mr. Gibbons Sloan and Mr. Christian Finkbeiner as At-Large Members and nominate 
and reappoint Ms. Talisha McAuley-Davis, Mr. Patrick Knightly, Mr. Nicholas Pappas, Mr. Harvey Powers 
and Mr. Ricky Russell as At-Large Members to the Chesterfield Community Services Board with terms 
effective January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022. Mr. Gibbons Sloan is filling the vacancy created by the 
resignation of Mr. Tyler Craddock, At-Large Member, Bermuda District for the duration of his term.
 
Summary of Information:
The Chesterfield Community Services Board is designated as an Administrative/Policy Board for the provision 
of public mental health, intellectual/developmental disabilities and substance use disorder services. Mr. 
Gibbons Sloan resides in the Bermuda District and would serve as a Member At-Large. Mr. Christian 
Finkbeiner resides in the Clover Hill District and would serve as a Member-At-Large. Both Mr. Sloan’s and 
Mr. Finkbeiner’s background and expertise would be valuable to the Board should the Board of Supervisors so 
choose to appoint them.  Mr. Ingle and Mr. Winslow concur with these appointments. The following are 
members of the Community Services Board who have expressed a willingness to continue for another term: 
Ms. Talisha McAuley-Davis, Member At-Large, Dale District; Mr. Patrick Knightly, Member At-Large, 
Midlothian District; Mr. Nicholas Pappas, Member At-Large, Dale District; Mr. Harvey Powers, Member At-
Large, Matoaca District; and Mr. Ricky Russell, Member At-Large, Clover Hill District. Each candidate has 
specific expertise and experience that has proven to be beneficial to the Board. Board members concur with 
these reappointments.

Under the existing Rules of Procedure, appointments to boards and committees are nominated at one meeting 
and appointed at the subsequent meeting unless the Rules of Procedure are suspended by a unanimous vote of 
the Board members present. Nominees are voted on in the order they are nominated.
 
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Kelly Fried, Executive Director
  

Page 85 of 563



Approved By:

Page 86 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.A.4.
 

Subject:
Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission
 
Board Action Requested:
Request support and approval from the respective districts for the Board of Supervisors to appoint for a 4-year 
term, individuals for the Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission (PRAC).
 
Summary of Information:
The following individuals are recommended to serve a 4-year term on the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Commission (PRAC) which serves as a liaison between the County Parks & Recreation Department and the 
County citizens whom it serves.  PRAC receives input from County citizens and provides advice to County 
staff based on citizen input.  The following individuals are requested to be reappointed by District:  Bermuda 
District – Cathy Cheely and Brenda White; Clover Hill District – Mary Ellin Arch and Shayne McDavid; 
Matoaca District – Raymond Marsh and William Pipp; Midlothian District – Robert McCurry and John 
Simpson.  The Dale District appointment recommended is Reuben Turner (replacing Mr. Harris) and one 
position would remain vacant as the other current member does not desire to be reappointed (Terrell) and no 
additional applications were received for the Dale District for consideration.  The School Board Representative 
that has been approved for reappointment is David Glass.  

Staff supports all these appointment recommendations. 
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: James Worsley, Director
  
Approved By:

Page 87 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.1.a.
 

Subject:
Resolution Recognizing Ms. Tamara J. Vest, Chesterfield County Utilities Department, Upon Her Retirement
 
Board Action Requested:
Adoption of the attached resolution
 
Summary of Information:
Ms. Tamara J. Vest retired from the Utilities Department on December 31, 2019, after providing over 21 years 
of service to the citizens of Chesterfield County.
 
Attachments:
1. Ms. Tamara J. Vest Retirement Resolution
 
Preparer: Jeff Franklin, Assistant Director
  
Approved By:

Page 88 of 563



RECOGNIZING MS. TAMARA J. VEST UPON HER RETIREMENT

WHEREAS, Ms. Tamara J. Vest retired from the Chesterfield County 
Utilities Department on December 31, 2019; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Vest began her public-service career with the 
Chesterfield County Commissioner of the Revenue on November 16, 1998, 
as a customer service representative who was responsible for answering 
inbound calls from customers and providing information about tax 
services; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Vest worked as an emergency communications officer 
and a public safety records specialist for two years, and during that 
time, she served as the primary contact for emergency and non-emergency 
requests where she assisted saving lives and protecting property by 
facilitating the flow of information between callers and Fire and EMS, 
Police, and Animal Services; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Vest returned to the Commissioner of the Revenue as a 
tax assessment specialist and then held the position as auditor for 
personal property tax and then the position of business tax assessment 
specialist from August 4, 2012, to April 30, 2019, and during that time, 
she succeeded in understanding property, licenses, and tax laws; and

WHEREAS, as a business tax assessment specialist, she ensured all 
customers’ needs were served in an expeditious, courteous, and prompt 
manner; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Vest learned to complete the DMV audit, keyed refunds 
and exonerations, completed daily address change reports and personal 
property duplicate payment reports; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Vest received complimentary emails, letters, and calls 
from customers regarding the excellent customer service that she provided 
to them; and  

WHEREAS, Ms. Vest transferred to the Utilities Department where 
she exhibited a willingness to learn new procedures and was diligent in 
answering incoming calls, establishing new service, disconnecting 
service, and providing customers with instructions on Utilities 
processes; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Vest has been an asset to the county because of her 
dedication to customer service, her high degree of integrity, and her 
willingness to learn new processes; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Vest was committed to supporting excellence in local 
government and exhibited knowledge, pride, and quality in the work she 
has performed at the Commissioner of the Revenue and Utilities 
Department. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chesterfield County Board 
of Supervisors recognizes Ms. Tamara J. Vest and extends on behalf of 
its members and the citizens of Chesterfield County appreciation for her 
more than 21 years of service to the county.

Page 89 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.1.b.
 

Subject:
Resolution Recognizing Ms. Kelly Gregg, Emergency Communications Center (ECC), Upon Her Retirement
 
Board Action Requested:
Adoption of the attached resolution.
 
Summary of Information:
Ms. Kelly Gregg will retire from the Emergency Communications Center on March 1, 2020 after 30 years of 
dedicated service to Chesterfield County.
 
Attachments:
1. Kelly Gregg Resolution
 
Preparer: Tommy Tucker, Director
  
Approved By:

Page 90 of 563



RECOGNIZING MS. KELLY GREGG UPON HER RETIREMENT

WHEREAS, Ms. Kelly Gregg began her public service with the County as a 
Dispatcher March 5, 1990 in the Emergency Communications Center, and 
faithfully served Chesterfield County for 30 years until March 1, 2020; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Gregg was able to adapt to the ever-changing environment 
and growth within Chesterfield County and the Emergency Communications 
Center, and participated in upgrades of the enhanced 9-1-1 system, county’s 
radio system, and Computer-Aided Dispatch System throughout her career; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Gregg has served in the Dispatcher Center as a Cross-trained 
Dispatcher and Trainer, Completed the Employee Leadership Institute, and 
received three official life saves; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Gregg was an active member of the Bensley-Bermuda Volunteer 
Rescue Squad and a practicing EMT prior to being hired in the Emergency 
Communications Center (ECC) and continued as a member for over 16 years 
while working in the ECC.  

WHEREAS, Ms. Gregg displayed a helpful, courteous, and caring attitude 
while working with internal and external customers; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Gregg has provided a high level of commitment to her work 
performance as a thorough and conscientious employee; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Gregg has provided the Emergency Communications Center and 
Chesterfield County with many years of loyal and dedicated service; and

WHEREAS, Chesterfield County and the Board of Supervisors thank Ms. Gregg 
for her diligent service.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chesterfield County Board of 
Supervisors, January 22, 2020 publicly recognizes Ms. Gregg, and extends on 
behalf of its members and the citizens of Chesterfield County, appreciation 
for her service to the county, congratulations upon her retirement, and best 
wishes for a long and happy retirement.

AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of the resolution be presented 
to Ms. Gregg and that the resolution be permanently recorded among the papers 
of the Board of Supervisors of Chesterfield County, Virginia.

Page 91 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.1.c.
 

Subject:
Resolution Recognizing Corporal Joseph D. DeVivo, II, Police Department, Upon His Retirement.
 
Board Action Requested:
Adoption of the attached resolution.
 
Summary of Information:
Corporal Joseph D. DeVivo, II, will retire from the Police Department on February 1, 2020 after providing over 
24 years of service to the residents of Chesterfield County.
 
Attachments:
1. Resolution - Corporal Joseph D. DeVivo, II
 
Preparer: Jeffrey Katz, Chief of Police
  
Approved By:

Page 92 of 563



RECOGNIZING CORPORAL JOSEPH D. DEVIVO, II, UPON HIS RETIREMENT

WHEREAS, Corporal Joseph D. DeVivo, II, will retire from the 
Chesterfield County Police Department on February 1, 2020 after providing 
over 24 years of quality service to the residents of Chesterfield County; 
and

WHEREAS, Corporal's DeVivo's service to the citizens of Chesterfield 
County began in 1995 as a Sheriff's Deputy with the Chesterfield County 
Sheriff's Office; and 

WHEREAS, Corporal DeVivo transferred to the Police Department and 
continued to faithfully serve in the positions of Patrol Officer, Senior 
Police Officer, Career Police Officer, Sergeant, and Corporal; and

WHEREAS, during his tenure, Corporal DeVivo has also served as a Field 
Training Officer, General Instructor, Defensive Tactics Instructor, Firearms 
Instructor, and Critical Incident Training Instructor; and

WHEREAS, Corporal DeVivo has served as various assignments to include 
Community Policing Officer, Street Drug Enforcement Unit Member, Special 
Enforcement Team Sergeant and Administrative Sergeant; and 

WHEARAS, Corporal DeVivo is a commercial pilot and serves as a member 
of the Richmond Metro Aviation Unit, where he is the only flight instructor 
for the unit; and

WHEREAS, for his devotion to duty ad his willingness to help improve 
the quality of life for the residents of Chesterfield County, Officer Devivo 
was selected as the 2001 Officer of the Year; and

WHEREAS, Officer DeVivo received a Unit Citation for dedication, 
commitment and professionalism displayed while serving as a member of the 
Ettrick Task Force, whose main goal was the reduction of crime in the Ettrick 
area; and

WHEREAS, Senior Officer DeVivo was awarded the Mason T. Chalkley Award 
for Excellence for exceptional performance, dedication and devotion to duty; 
and

WHEREAS, Senior Officer Devivo was awarded a Unit Citation as a member 
of the Police Honor Guard.  The unit was recognized for the diligence and 
professionalism displayed during funeral and memorial services held in 
multiple states following the line-of-duty death of a Chesterfield County 
Police Officer; and

WHEREAS, Sergeant DeVivo has received numerous Chief's Commendation 
awards while serving as a member of the Street Enforcement Team.  He was 
recognized for his diligence, teamwork, dedication and outstanding 
performance; and

Page 93 of 563



WHEREAS, Corporal DeVivo is recognized for his strong work ethic, 
teamwork, and excellent communications and human relations skills, all of 
which he has utilized within the Police Department and in assisting residents 
of Chesterfield County during his career; and

WHEREAS, Corporal DeVivo has received numerous letters of commendation, 
thanks and appreciation for services rendered; and

WHEREAS, Corporal DeVivo has provided the Chesterfield County Police 
Department with many years of loyal and dedicated service; and

WHEREAS, Chesterfield County and the Board of Supervisors will miss 
Corporal DeVivo's diligent service.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chesterfield County Board of 
Supervisors, this 22nd day of January 2020, publicly recognizes Corporal 
Joseph D. DeVivo, II, and extends on behalf of its members and the residents 
of Chesterfield County, appreciation for his service to the county, 
congratulations upon his retirement, and best wishes for a long and happy 
retirement.

AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be presented 
to Corporal DeVivo, and that this resolution be permanently recorded among 
the papers of this Board of Supervisors of Chesterfield County, Virginia.

Page 94 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.1.d.
 

Subject:
Resolution Supporting Construction of the Commonwealth Apartments Using Proceeds from Tax-Exempt 
Bonds Issued by the Virginia Housing Development Authority Under Their Mixed-Income Program
 
Board Action Requested:
Adoption of attached resolution that will allow construction financing through the VHDA mixed-income 
program.
 
Summary of Information:
Commonwealth Apartments is a proposed 234-unit apartment complex located at the south end of 
Commonwealth Centre Parkway next to Route 288 at 5411 Commonwealth Center Parkway. The developer for 
the apartments, Commonwealth Center Apartments, LLC, has applied for financing through VHDA’s mixed-
income program. To qualify for VHDA financing, state law requires that the Board of Supervisors pass a 
resolution supporting development of the mixed-income project.

The benefit of this program to Chesterfield County is its inclusion of affordable housing as a percentage of the 
total housing allowed. The HUD median household income for Chesterfield County for FY 2018 is $83,200. 
For this loan, the requirement is for at least 20 percent of the dwellings to be leased to persons making no more 
than $66,560 (80 percent of the County’s median income), and the remaining 80 percent of the dwelling units 
will not be restricted. 

For the developer to obtain this financing, the Chesterfield County Board of Supervisors shall by resolution 
make a determination that providing residential housing and supporting facilities that serve people of low to 
moderate income will be enhanced if a portion of the units therein are occupied or held available for occupancy 
by people who are not of low and moderate income.

Background information including location map, site plan, elevations and unit information is attached.

There are no costs to the county associated with the mixed-income project and no county debt will be created 
through the VHDA financing applied for by the developer. 

Staff recommends that the Board adopt the attached resolution.
 
Attachments:

Page 95 of 563



1. Resolution 
 
Preparer: Andrew Gillies, Director of Planning
  
Approved By:

Page 96 of 563



 

  

 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING 

THE COMMONWEALTH APARTMENTS PROJECT 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Chesterfield, 

Virginia, desires to make the determination required by Section 36-

55.30:2.B of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended, in order for the 

Virginia Housing Development Authority to finance the economically mixed 

project (the “Project”) described on Exhibit A attached hereto: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 

COUNTY OF CHESTERFIELD, VIRGINIA THAT: 

 1. the ability to provide residential housing and supporting 

facilities that serve persons or families of lower or moderate income 

will be enhanced if a portion of the units in the Project are occupied 

or held available for occupancy by persons and families who are not of 

low and moderate income; and 

 2. private enterprise and investment are not reasonably expected, 

without assistance, to produce the construction or rehabilitation of 

decent, safe and sanitary housing and supporting facilities that will 

meet the needs of low and moderate income persons and families in the 

surrounding area of the Project and this Project will induce other 

persons and families to live within such area and thereby create a 

desirable economic mix of residents in such area. 

 Adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Chesterfield, 

Virginia, on the ____ day of ____________, 2018. 

 

Page 97 of 563



 

  

                               EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 

 

              Architectural View of Proposed Apartments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

Location 
Map

 

         

GENERAL INFORMATION   

Location 
5411 Commmonwealth Centre Parkway,  
Tax ID 737-676-1223  

Existing Zoning and Land Use 
I-1 with CUPD; Vacant and adjacent to 
office uses 

Size 11.22 Acres 

Number of Apartment Units 234 Units: (138) 1-bedroom, (96) 2-bedroom 

Elevation Concept - Building 3/4 
1 

 

Page 98 of 563



 

  
 

Page 99 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.2.a.1.
 

Subject:
Along Lucks Lane from The Grove at Lucks Lane, LLC
 
Board Action Requested:
Accept the conveyance of 4 parcels of land containing a total of 0.158 acres along Lucks Lane from The Grove 
at Lucks Lane, LLC and authorize the County Administrator to execute the deed.
 
Summary of Information:

Staff requests that the Board of Supervisors accept the conveyance of 4 parcels of land containing a total of 
0.158 acres along Lucks Lane from The Grove at Lucks Lane, LLC. This conveyance is for the development of 
The Grove at Lucks Lane and has been reviewed by the site plan team.
 
Approval is recommended.                    
 
Clover Hill District
 
Attachments:
1. Grove at Lucks dedication
2. Grove at Lucks Plat
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 100 of 563



¹º

¹º

CT

CT

CT

S
W

EDGEMONT DR
PL

C A MSHIRE
PL

BRIARCRE

S T

DR
N WEDGEMONT DR

CT

CTKEWBRIDGE
CT

LN

DR

 PL

PENNWAY DR

 MILLSIDE

 CT

 CT
 OAK

 TIMBER

STETSON CT

ABINGDON RD

EASTCLIFF

DR

LUCKS LN

 PENDLETON

STONECROP P L

CRESTMOOR CT

WOODMILL PL

PINERIDGE
 LN

SW
EETWILLO

W
DR

 ABINGDON NORTHBOROUGH LN

WE
ST

CR
EE

K DR

 MCNAIR

D R

 CT

CORALBERRY
DR

CORA LBERRY DR

 MCCAULIFF

COURTHOUSE RD

HAVENS OAK

MARBLERIDGE RD

 DUXBURY CT

 CIR

 CIR

 CIR

MAY
 AP

PLE
 TE

R

 TER

W AY

TER

 ROYAL CRESENT

CRAWFOR D
WO OD

D R

W
ILS

ON
WO

OD
RD

LAUREL TOP
CIR

 EXPLORER TER

PLMO
VEN

MOVEN

MOVE N

 PL

 CT  DR

 D
R

NEVIS D R

HA
RD

WO
OD

 PL

CRAWFORD

WOOD

LOMOND
DR

LUCKS LN

PU
MP

KIN
PL

KE RNEL CT

LA NTERN
WAY

 RD
BRIARHURST

MA
NS

FIE
LD

CROS
SI

NG
RD

1

BURLINGTON RD

1. HARVEST WAY CHERYLANN RD

V OGEL CTBELLA WAY

: 1 inch = 683 feet [ DutyJ 12/13/2019 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
Acceptance of Parcels of Land Along Lucks Lane

from The Grove at Lucks Lane, LLC

Total of 0.158 Acre Dedication

Page 101 of 563



Page 102 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.2.a.2.
 

Subject:
Adjacent to Manchester Middle School/Fire Station 2 from R. Larry Turner and Katie G. Turner
 
Board Action Requested:
Accept the conveyance of a parcel of land containing 0.26 acres adjacent to Manchester Middle School/Fire 
Station 2 from R. Larry Turner and Katie G. Turner and authorize the County Administrator to execute the 
deed.
 
Summary of Information:
Staff requests that the Board of Supervisors accept the conveyance of a parcel of land containing 0.26 acres 
south of Hull Street Road and adjacent to Manchester Middle School/Fire Station 2 from R. Larry Turner and 
Katie G. Turner. This property has been recommended for acquisition by the Site Selection Team and a current 
survey and Phase I ESA have been completed.
 
Approval is recommended.                    
 
District: Midlothian
 
Attachments:
1. Turner convey sketch
2. Turner convey
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 103 of 563



¹º

I"
G

CT

MCKESSON
DR

HOLRIDGEST
STONETREE DR

IVESLN

 ACCESS R/W

 LIFSEY LN

EGAN PL

HOLRIDGE CT

VANHO

Y DR

 LAKE
 DR

NEWBYS CT

SILLIMAN DR

WAYSIDE DR

GHENT DR

 CT

ABLE RD

 CT

 JA
CO

BW
AY

WALMSLEY BLVD

LA
DY BLAIR LN

ABLE TER
OAK WATER RD

NATHAN LN

 POCOSHOCK WAY

NE

WBYS CROSSINGDR
POCOSHOCK PL

 SANDLER
 WAY

 CT

 CIR

 PL

 DR

: 1 inch = 583 feet [ DutyJ 01/02/2020 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
Acceptance of a Parcel of Land south of Hull Street 

Road from R. Larry Turner and Katie G. Turner

HULL STREET ROAD

Conveyance of 0.26 Acres

Page 104 of 563



Page 105 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.2.a.3.
 

Subject:
Along Jefferson Davis Highway from John Allen Reason, Jr.
 
Board Action Requested:
Accept the conveyance of a parcel of land containing 0.1435 acres along Jefferson Davis Highway from John 
Allen Reason, Jr. and authorize the County Administrator to execute the deed.
 
Summary of Information:
Staff requests that the Board of Supervisors accept the conveyance of a parcel of land containing 0.1435 acres 
along Jefferson Davis Highway from John Allen Reason, Jr. This conveyance is a condition of zoning case 
91SN0213 and has been reviewed by Transportation and Planning.
 
Approval is recommended.                    
 
District: Bermuda
 
Attachments:
1. john reason
2. reason rw plat
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 106 of 563



JEAN DR

PERLOCK RD

GAFFNEYCT

JEFFERSON DAVIS HWY

EXPRESS LN

PINEHURST ST

EGEE DR

KINGSDALE RD

KERWIN RD WOODFIN DR

WONDERVIEW DR

REYMET RD

RAMONA AVE

GALENA AVE

BRANDYWINE AVE
 QUAILOAKS AVE

FRIEND AVE

ELOKOMIN AVE

GENERAL BLVD

 REYMET CT

VELDA RD

BRIGHTWOOD AVE

BEAUMONTAVE

S GENERALBLVD

TREADWOOD ST

COLONY VILLAGE

W AY

 TER

 DR

: 1 inch = 583 feet [ DutyJ 12/12/2019 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
Acceptance of a Parcel of Land Along Jefferson 

Davis Highway from John Allen Reason, Jr.

0.1435 Acre Dedication

Page 107 of 563



Page 108 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.2.a.4.
 

Subject:
Along Interstate 95 from Sina18, LLC
 
Board Action Requested:

Accept the conveyance of a parcel of land containing 0.0513 acres along Interstate 95 from Sina18, LLC and 
authorize the County Administrator to execute the deed.
 
Summary of Information:

Staff requests that the Board of Supervisors accept the conveyance of a parcel of land containing 0.0513 acres 
along Interstate 95 from Sina18, LLC. This conveyance is for the development of Springhill Suites @ 
Redwater Creek Road and has been reviewed by the site plan team.
 
Approval is recommended.                    
 
District:  Bermuda
 
Attachments:
1. sina18sketch
2. sina18 plat
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 109 of 563



G

 BRANNER PL

SOUTHLAND DR

EXIT 61

REDWATER RIDGE RD

 3. GOYNE LOOP

REDWATER

 CREEK RD

CHEST N UT HILL RD

 CHESTNUT HILL LN

TO
LB

ER
T TE

R BRANNER

 WAY

DU
NLAP

CR

ES

 1. GOYNE TER
 2. GOYNE RD

MOORES LAKE RD

: 1 inch = 583 feet [ DutyJ 11/26/2019 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
Acceptance of a Parcel of Land Along Interstate 95 

from Sina18, LLC

Interstate 95

Jefferson Davis Hy

W. Hundred Rd

0.0513 Acre Dedication

Page 110 of 563



Page 111 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.2.a.5.
 

Subject:
Along Courthouse Road and Newbys Bridge Road from Banner Christian School
 
Board Action Requested:

Accept the conveyance of 4 parcels of land containing a total of 1.603+/- acres along Courthouse Road and 
Newbys Bridge Road from Banner Christian School and authorize the County Administrator to execute the 
deed.
 
Summary of Information:

Staff requests that the Board of Supervisors accept the conveyance of 4 parcels of land containing a total of 
1.603+/- acres along Courthouse Road and Newbys Bridge Road from Banner Christian School. This 
conveyance is for the development of Banner Christian School Recreation Field and has been reviewed by the 
site plan team.
 
Approval is recommended.                    
 
District: Dale
 
Attachments:
1. banner christian rw
2. Banner rwPlat-1
3. banner rw plat 3
4. banner rw plat 2
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 112 of 563



RI
CH

LA
ND

RD

COURTHOUSE RD NE
WBY

S B
RID

GE
 RD

HAGOOD LN

 BURNETT DR

 AS
IA 

WA
Y

: 1 inch = 583 feet [ DutyJ 11/26/2019 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
Acceptance of Parcels of land along Courthouse

Road and Newbys Bridge Road from Banner 
Christian School

0.019 Acre Dedication

0.028 Acre Dedication

0.056 Acre Dedication

1.5+/- Acre Dedication

Page 113 of 563



Page 114 of 563



J:
\1

5
\5

0
\5

3
1
5
0
0
7
6
.0

0
 B

A
N

N
E

R
 C

H
R

IS
T
IA

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 -

 P
H

A
S

E
 1

\S
U

R
V

E
Y

\D
ra

w
in

g
s\

5
3
1
5
0
0
7
6
 R

W
 D

E
D

 -
 F

U
T
U

R
E

 R
O

A
D

.d
w

g

PLANNERS / ARCHITECTS / ENGINEERS / SURVEYORS
ROANOKE / RICHMOND / NEW RIVER VALLEY / STAUNTON / HARRISONBURG / LYNCHBURG

DATE:
SCALE: 1" =
JOB:
DRAWN BY: JRG

53150076.00
100'

11-13-2019

CHECKED BY: CMF

SHEET      OF1 115871 City View Drive, Suite 200 / Midlothian, Virginia 23113 / Phone (804) 794-0571 / www.balzer.cc

11-13-2019

CO. SITE PLAN #18PR0191
CO. PROJECT #13-0112

Page 115 of 563

AutoCAD SHX Text
BANNER CHRISTIAN SCHOOL GPIN: 755-677-2504-00000 PART D.B. 9993, PG. 977 P.B. 215, PG. 50-51 #6050 NEWBYS BRIDGE ROAD 90.5± ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
MICHAEL L. SHAMEL AND DIANE S. BISHOP GPIN: 754-676-4609-00000 D.B. 8801, PG. 66 W.B. 419, PG. 198 #6001 COURTHOUSE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
VARIABLE WIDTH SEWER & WATER EASEMENT D.B. 11196, PG. 426

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
VARIABLE WIDTH DRAINAGE EASEMENT FOR VDOT MAINTENANCE D.B. 11131, PG. 389

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
S76°13'27"W  461.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
NEWBYS BRIDGE ROAD ROUTE 649 (VARIABLE WIDTH R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
PARCEL "A" 1.5± ACRE DEDICATED TO THECOUNTY OF CHESTERFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Scale: 1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
  ALONG   OF CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
S28°46'18"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
138.06'

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
S17°59'53"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
67.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
S33°06'07"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
74.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
N22°58'40"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
14.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
DELTA ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
16962.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
327.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
N26°13'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
327.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
1°06'19"

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
RWL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
S73°55'15"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
44' %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
RWL2

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
N73°55'15"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
48' %%P

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
RIGHT-OF-WAY CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
DELTA ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
RWC1

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
884.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
625.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
N85°48'14"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
612.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
40°33'02"

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
RWC2

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
974.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
692.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
S85°42'14"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
678.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
40°45'03"

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
RWL2

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
RWC1

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
RWC2

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
N:3,675,907.55 E:11,755,915.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
N:3,675,987.89 E:11,755,956.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
N16°04'45"W 90.00' (TIE LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
RWL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
  117' ± ALONG  OF CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
(71.57')

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
(L=240.16')

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
D.B. 11131, PG. 384 D.B. 11146, PG. 72 D.B. 11087, PG. 25 D.B. 11584, PG. 26 D.B. 11530, PG. 87 D.B. 11539, PG. 923

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
N:3,676,041.89 E:11,755,273.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
N:3,675,955.41 E:11,755,298.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
BANNER CHRISTIAN SCHOOL GPIN: 755-677-2504-00000 PART D.B. 9993, PG. 977 P.B. 215, PG. 50-51 #6050 NEWBYS BRIDGE ROAD 2.6± ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
(L=87.05')

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
(3.02')

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
0.04± MILE TOTHE N/L OF BELMONT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
N:3,675,724.68 E:11,755,423.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
NAD83

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
90'

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
(299'±)

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
(1758'±)

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
PEGGY E. ROBERGE  FRANK H. HARPER, TRUSTEE STEPHEN M. STELLS  WILLIAM R. CAWTHORN  CEAN W. CAWTHRON GPIN: 754-675-8430-00000 D.B. 10927, PG. 207 D.B. 776 PG. 67 D.B. 1994 PG. 1532 W.B. 466, PG. 638 W.B. 247 PG. 204 W.B. 277 PG. 794 #9950 BELMONT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
(17'±)

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
Christopher M. Finley Lic. No. 3375

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
COMPILED PLAT SHOWING 1.5± ACRES OF LAND TO BE  ACRES OF LAND TO BE  DEDICATED TO CHESTERFIELD COUNTY,  BEING A PORTION OF GPIN: 755-677-2504-00000 DALE DISTRICT CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
NOTE: THIS PLAT WAS COMPILED FROM DEEDS/PLATS OF RECORD WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF  THIS PLAT WAS COMPILED FROM DEEDS/PLATS OF RECORD WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF THIS PLAT WAS COMPILED FROM DEEDS/PLATS OF RECORD WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF A TITLE REPORT AND IS SUBJECT TO INFORMATION WHICH MAY BE DISCLOSED BY SUCH. NO IMPROVEMENTS AND NOT ALL EASEMENTS MAY BE SHOWN. PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY TIES ARE REPRESENTED IN SINGLE PARENTHESIS (XX.XX')



Page 116 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.2.a.6.
 

Subject:
Along Center Pointe Parkway from RP2B, LLC
 
Board Action Requested:
Accept the conveyance of a parcel of land containing 2.336 acres along Center Pointe Parkway from RP2B, 
LLC and authorize the County Administrator to execute the deed.
 
Summary of Information:

Staff requests that the Board of Supervisors accept the conveyance of a parcel of land containing 2.336 acres 
along Center Pointe Parkway from RP2B, LLC. This conveyance is for the development of Center Pointe 
Parkway Road Improvements and has been reviewed by the site plan team.
 
Approval is recommended.                    
 
District: Clover Hill
 
Attachments:
1. RP2b ded
2. RP2B Plat-1
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 117 of 563



¹º

QUEENS PL2

3

FE
RN

VIE
W

TR
L

GREY

BEAVER

BEECH RD

BROOK RD

GOOSE CT

TO
MA

HA
WK

CR
EE

K R
D

 CT

PA
RK

WEST CIR

 TER

DENBY WAY
 PAMPLIN DR

 CT

 PI
PE

RS

PIPERS

 TE
R

 TER

 CLEMONS

 DR

 ST FRANCIS BLVD

CENTER POINTE PKWY

JEFFRIES PL

 RT 288

CHARTER
COLONY PKWY

WWII VETERANS MEMORIAL HWY

LUCKS LN

BRANDERMILL PKWY

 PLACE LOOP
LEARNING

WATER

MILL
POINTE RD

 C
T

MI
NE

RS TRAIL RD
AS

TLEY TER

MINERS TRAIL RD

 CT

BR
AN

DE
RMILL

PKWY

BON SE
CO

URS DR

 CHARTER COLONY PKWY

 1
 5 4

5. PALLADIUM DR

8. STEEL AVE

3. NICKEL LN
4. COBALT AVE

1. OXYGEN DR

7. NAVY DR

2. TITANIUM AVE

9. RHODIUM DR

6
8

TURTLEROCK TER

9

6. SAPPHIRE PARK LN

7

: 1 inch = 667 feet [ DutyJ 01/07/2020 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
Acceptance of a Parcel of Land Along Center 

Pointe Parkway from RP2B, LLC

2.336 Acre Dedication

Page 118 of 563



Page 119 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.2.a.7.
 

Subject:
Adjacent to Charter Colony Parkway from Commonwealth Foundation for Cancer Research
 
Board Action Requested:

Accept the conveyance of a parcel of land containing 1.110 acres adjacent to Charter Colony Parkway from 
Commonwealth Foundation for Cancer Research and authorize the County Administrator to execute the deed.
 
Summary of Information:

Staff requests that the Board of Supervisors accept the conveyance of a parcel of land containing 1.110 acres 
adjacent to Charter Colony Parkway from Commonwealth Foundation for Cancer Research. This conveyance 
is for the development of Center Pointe Parkway Road Improvements and has been reviewed by the site plan 
team.
 
Approval is recommended.                    
 
District: Clover Hill
 
Attachments:
1. commonwealth found dedication
2. Comm Fund Plat-1
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 120 of 563



¹º

2

3

FE
RN

VIE
W

TR
L

GREY

BEAVER

BEECH RD

BROOK RD

GOOSE CT

PA
RK

WEST CIR

 TER

DENBYWAY
 PAMPLIN DR

 PI
PE

RS

PIPERS

 TE
R

 TER

 ST FRANCIS BLVD

CENTER POINTE PKWY

JEFFRIES PL

CHARTER
COLONY PKWY

WWII VETERANS MEMORIAL HWY

LUCKS LN

BRANDERMILL PKWY

 PLACE LOOP
LEARNING

WATER

MILL
POINTE RD

MI
NE

RS TRAIL RD
AS

TLEY TER

 CT

BR
AN

DE
RMILL

PKWY

BON SE
CO

URS DR

 CHARTER COLONY PKWY

 1
 5 4

5. PALLADIUM DR

8. STEEL AVE

3. NICKEL LN
4. COBALT AVE

1. OXYGEN DR

7. NAVY DR

2. TITANIUM AVE

9. RHODIUM DR

6
8

TURTLEROCK TER

9

6. SAPPHIRE PARK LN

7

: 1 inch = 583 feet [ DutyJ 01/07/2020 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
Acceptance of a Parcel of Land Adjacent to Charter
Colony Parkway from Commonwealth Foundation

for Cancer Research

1.110  Acre Dedication

Page 121 of 563



Page 122 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.2.b.1.
 

Subject:
Conveyance of an Easement to Columbia Gas of Virginia, Inc. for the Chester Center for the Arts
 
Board Action Requested:
Authorize the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors and the County Administrator to execute an agreement 
with Columbia Gas of Virginia, Inc., for conveyance of an easement for gas service to the Chester Center for 
the Arts.
 
Summary of Information:
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors and the 
County Administrator to execute an agreement with Columbia Gas of Virginia, Inc., for conveyance of an 
easement for gas service to the Chester Center for the Arts.  This request has been reviewed by county staff.

Approval is recommended.

DISTRICT:  Bermuda
 
Attachments:
1. Columbia Gas Chester Arts Center
2. Chester Arts Center Columbia Gas
 
Preparer:
  
Approved By:

Page 123 of 563



Page 124 of 563



Page 125 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.2.c.1.
 

Subject:
Request to Quitclaim a Portion of a Variable Width Temporary Reduced Imperviousness BMP Easement 
Across the Property of Woodlands Real Estate, LLC
 
Board Action Requested:
Authorize the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors and the County Administrator to execute a quitclaim deed 
to vacate a portion of a variable width temporary reduced imperviousness BMP easement across the property of 
Woodlands Real Estate, LLC
 
Summary of Information:
Woodlands Real Estate, LLC has requested the vacation of a portion of a variable width temporary reduced 
imperviousness BMP easement across its property as shown on the attached plat. This request has been 
reviewed by Environmental Engineering and is needed for the development of Virginia Physicians for Women-
Koger Center Office. 
 
Approval is recommended.
 
District:  Midlothian
 
Attachments:
1. woodlands sketch
2. Woodlands Plat-1
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 126 of 563



G

GRANADA RD

EARLY SETTLERS RD

JOHNSTO N WILLIS DR

 LA
RKHILL 

LN

DUNNBRO O K
RD

 CT

SOUTHLAKE CT

CENTER

VIEW DR

MALL DR

 HUGUENOT RD

WO
OD

MO
NT

DR
DE

NT
ON

 DR

GREENSPRING RD

SOUTHLAKE
BLVD

ALLECINGIE PKWY

MIDLOTHIAN TPKE

GR
EE

NF
IEL

D D
R

C
ARMIAWAY

 RESEARCH
 PLAZA
 WAY

NE
PT

UN
E

 DR

MALL
DR

BRIARMONT RD

5

 KOGER CENTER BLVD

 1. BELVEDERE VISTA LN

 7

 6
 2. BELLAVERDE CIR
 3. FONTANA RUN
 4. BELLAVISTA RUN
 5. IRONDALE RD
 6. GOLDEN EAGLE LN
 7. PACKER XING

8

10. S RED LION CT
11. RED LION PL

8. MARBLE HEAD CT
9. HOMESTEAD CT

MILLSAP
LN

 OLD FARM RD BR
EE

ZY
 PO

INT
 CI

R

TE
RR

AC
E VIE

W
LN

 LEAFCREST LN

 CT
SESAME ST

PL

: 1 inch = 667 feet [ DutyJ 01/07/2020 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
Request to Quitclaim a Portion of a Variable 
Width Temporary Reduced Imperviousness 

BMP Easement Across the Property of Woodlands 
Real Estate, LLC

Portion of a Temporary Reduced
Imperviousness & BMP Easement 
to be Quitclaimed

Page 127 of 563



Page 128 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.2.d.1.
 

Subject:
To Install a Private Water Service Within a Private Easement to Serve Property at 6050 Newbys Bridge Road
 
Board Action Requested:
Grant Banner Christian School permission to install a private water service within a private easement and 
authorize the County Administrator to execute the water connection agreement.
 
Summary of Information:

Banner Christian School has requested permission to install a private water service within a private easement to 
serve property at 6050 Newbys Bridge Road.  This request has been reviewed by the Utilities Department.
 
Approval is recommended.   
District: Dale
 
Attachments:
1. banner christ water exc
2. 2019-11-13 Banner Christian WATERLINE EASEMENT
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 129 of 563



ON
NI

ES
DR

RI
CH

LA
ND

RD

RI
CH

LA
ND

 R
D

COURTHOUSE RD

BELMONT RD

NE
WBY

S B
RID

GE
 RD

HAGOOD LN

 BURNETT DR

CL
AR

ID
GE

DR

: 1 inch = 667 feet [ DutyJ 11/26/2019 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
Request Permission to Install a Private Water 
Service Within a Private Easement to Serve 

Property at 6050 Newbys Bridge Road

288

Proposed Public Water 
Easement for Meter

Proposed Private Water Easement

6050 Newbys Bridge 
Road Requesting Water 
Connection Exception

Page 130 of 563



J:
\1

5
\5

0
\5

3
1
5
0
0
7
6
.0

0
 B

A
N

N
E

R
 C

H
R

IS
T
IA

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 -

 P
H

A
S

E
 1

\S
U

R
V

E
Y

\D
ra

w
in

g
s\

5
3
1
5
0
0
7
6
 V

S
M

P
 A

N
D

 C
E

M
E

T
E

R
Y

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T
.d

w
g

PLANNERS / ARCHITECTS / ENGINEERS / SURVEYORS
ROANOKE / RICHMOND / NEW RIVER VALLEY / STAUNTON / HARRISONBURG / LYNCHBURG

DATE:
SCALE: 1" =
JOB:
DRAWN BY: JRG

53150076.00
100'

11-13-2019

CHECKED BY: CMF

SHEET      OF1 115871 City View Drive, Suite 200 / Midlothian, Virginia 23113 / Phone (804) 794-0571 / www.balzer.cc

11-13-2019

CO. SITE PLAN #18PR0191
CO. PROJECT #13-0112

Page 131 of 563

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
BANNER CHRISTIAN SCHOOL GPIN: 753-677-8598 D.B. 7621, PG. 21 P.B. 137, PG. 71 #9721 BURNETT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
RICHARD R. HART, III GPIN: 754-678-3843 D.B. 11500, PG. 464 #9601 BURNETT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
BURNETT DRIVE STATE ROUTE 743 VARIABLE WIDTH R/W D.B. 1000 PG. 716

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
RICHLAND ROAD STATE ROUTE 743 VARIABLE WIDTH R/W D.B. 1000 PG. 716

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
NAD83

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
300

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
Scale: 1" = 100'

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
S45°48'21"W  1519.05' TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
N31°51'22"E  281.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
N58°07'43"W  182.22'

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
N58°09'23"W  343.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
S07°46'15"E  290.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
N11°34'59"E  362.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
N78°43'21"E  359.61' TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
N87°34'16"E  181.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
N82°09'25"E  468.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
30.14' N28°26'21"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
DELTA ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
83.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
97.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
N45°09'10"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
91.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
67°08'22"

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
2839.79'

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
5.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
N82°08'24"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
5.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
0°06'16"

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
(230.11')

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
(84.32')

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
EASEMENT LINE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
EL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
S07°50'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
300.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
EL2

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
S82°09'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
312.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
EL3

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
S11°16'39"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
499.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
EL4

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
S53°22'25"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
20.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
EL5

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
S43°22'48"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
42.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
EL6

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
N39°01'54"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
29.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
EL7

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
N52°02'36"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
27.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
EL8

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
N11°16'39"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
501.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
EL9

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
S82°09'25"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
475.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
EL10

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
S78°25'01"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
10.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
EL11

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
S11°34'59"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
10.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
EL12

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
N78°25'01"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
10.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
EL13

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
S82°17'18"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
8.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
EL1

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
VARIABLE WIDTH VSMP EASEMENT 116,287 SQ. FT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
PROPOSED 10' CEMETERY ACCESS EASEMENT 6,029 SQ. FT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
N58°09'23"W  350.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
N58°09'23"W  227.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
BANNER CHRISTIAN SCHOOL GPIN: 755-677-2504-00000 D.B. 9993, PG. 977 P.B. 215, PG. 50-51 #6050 NEWBYS BRIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
N:3,678,413.55 E:11,753,431.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
N:3,677,925.53 E:11,753,539.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
N:3,677,932.99 E:11,752,991.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
N:3,678,522.40 E:11,754,146.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
(308.39')

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
(41.22')

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
(291.85')

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
(207.77')

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
(291.25')

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
(209.78')

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
(312.07')

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
(475.12')

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
BRIAN F. JOHNSON GPIN: 753-677-3256 D.B. 12353, PG. 81 #5601 RICHLAND ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
N/F RANDALL E. KING DAWN S. KING GPIN: 753-677-5217 D.B. 11497, PG. 366 #5815 COURTHOUSE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
JOYCE & NOEL CAREY GPIN: 754-678-2438 D.B. 12477, PG. 307 #9611 BURNETT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
N/F RANDALL E. KING DAWN S. KING GPIN: 753-676-4279 D.B. 5567, PG. 793 D.B. 2632, PG. 380 P.B. 140, PG. 62 #5829 COURTHOUSE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
N:3,678,063.09 E:11,753,017.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
N:3,678,171.88 E:11,753,807.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
(384.01')

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
S09°36'53"E  319.68' TIE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
N:3,677,567.21 E:11,753,580.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
10'X10' WATER EASEMENT 100 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
VARIABLE WIDTH PRIVATE WATER EASEMENT 74,495 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
VARIABLE WIDTH VSMP EASEMENT 93,219 SQ. FT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
9720 CHELSEA PROPERTIES LLC GPIN: 753-678-6243-00000 D.B. 11955, PG. 992 #9707 BURNETT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
EL2

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
EL3 TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
EL5

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
EL6

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
EL7

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
EL8 TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
EL9

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
(113.01')

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
(9.79')

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
SEE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
EL4

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
N72°50'41"E  338.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
N17°59'02"W  207.37'

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
N71°23'46"E 95.65'

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
(119.35')

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
(555.35')

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
(844.35')

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
N:3,677,582.03 E:11,754,263.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
N:3,677,194.90 E:11,753,865.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
EL13

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
EASEMENT CURVE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
DELTA ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
EC1

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
45.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
70.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
N26°42'22"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
63.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
89°22'48"

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
EC1

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
56.23' S88°15'01"W TIE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
N58°05'39"W  1068.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
S58°05'39"E  1069.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
N11°34'59"E  362.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
(230.11')

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
N:3,678,063.09 E:11,753,017.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
10'X10' WATER EASEMENT 100 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
(113.01')

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
(10')

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
(9.79')

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
N:3,678,043.71 E:11,753,013.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
EL10

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
EL11 TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
EL12

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
(3.04')

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
DETAIL: 1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
EL9

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
BANNER CHRISTIAN SCHOOL GPIN: 753-677-8598 D.B. 7621, PG. 21 P.B. 137, PG. 71 #9721 BURNETT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
RICHLAND ROAD STATE ROUTE 743 VARIABLE WIDTH R/W D.B. 1000 PG. 716

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
VARIABLE WIDTH VSMP EASEMENT 116,287 SQ. FT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
VARIABLE WIDTH PRIVATE WATER EASEMENT 74,495 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
Christopher M. Finley Lic. No. 3375

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
COMPILED PLAT SHOWING 2 VARIABLE WIDTH VSMP EASEMENTS, A 10' WATER EASEMENT,  A VARIABLE WIDTH PRIVATE WATER EASEMENT, AND A 10' CEMETERY ACCESS EASEMENT ACROSS GPIN: 753-677-8598-00000  KNOWN AS #9721 BURNETT DRIVE DALE DISTRICT CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
NOTE: THIS PLAT WAS COMPILED FROM  THIS PLAT WAS COMPILED FROM THIS PLAT WAS COMPILED FROM DEEDS/PLATS OF RECORD WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF A TITLE REPORT AND IS SUBJECT TO INFORMATION WHICH MAY BE DISCLOSED BY SUCH. NO IMPROVEMENTS AND NOT ALL EASEMENTS MAY BE SHOWN. PROPOSED EASEMENT TIES ARE REPRESENTED IN SINGLE PARENTHESIS (XX.XX')



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.3.
 

Subject:
Central Virginia All Hazards Incident Management Team (CVAHIMT) Memorandum of Understanding
 
Board Action Requested:
Approval for the Chesterfield Police Department to join the CVAHIMT via the attached MOU.
 
Summary of Information:
The CVAHIMT exists to serve the Commonwealth of Virginia, localities within central Virginia, and when 
requested through EMAC or FEMA, any state or locality in the Country.  The team serves during time of 
disaster, significant events and large emergency situations.  The CVAHIMT is organized and trained in areas 
identified through the National Incident Management framework and is comprised of individuals, who through 
experience and training, can respond to a wide range of events. As part of Chesterfield County Public Safety, 
the Police department is seeking to partner with Chesterfield Fire and EMS and the other regional partner 
agencies who already participate on this team. The Chesterfield County Police Department is requesting Board 
approval to become a part of the CVAHIMT via MOU (see attached).

The provisions of this MOU apply to each Participating Jurisdiction/Agency of the Central Virginia All 
Hazards Incident Management Team for activities performed at the request of local jurisdictions, the 
Commonwealth of Virginia, or the Federal government provided at the option of the Participating 
Jurisdiction/Agency. These activities may be in conjunction with, or in preparation for a local, state, or federal 
declaration of disaster. 

The scope of this MOU also includes training activities mandated by the Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS), the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the Central 
Virginia All Hazards Incident Management Team to maintain operational readiness.

The Board has previously voted to approve Chesterfield Fire & Emergency Management Services to join the 
MOU with the CVAHIMT. Because the Police Department is a separate entity, the addition of another county 
department to the MOU requires Board approval.
 
Attachments:
1. 1462632311_CVAHIMT-Agency-to-Agency-Addendum
2. 1462632121_CVAHIMT-Agency-to-Agency-MOU

Page 132 of 563



 
Preparer:
  
Approved By:

Page 133 of 563



 CVAHIMT MOU ADDENDUM

DEFINITIONS

A. Activation, Planned Event: 
The process of mobilizing the CVAHIMT members to deploy for a designated disaster/event site 
with a predicted time frame of greater than six (6) hours.  The time at which the member may 
charge personnel costs to be charged to the team is when the work actually begins and ends as 
determined by the Incident Commander.

B. Activation, Unplanned Event/Incident: 
The process of mobilizing the CVAHIMT members to deploy to a designated disaster site when 
the event requires an immediate response.  When the team responds to such a mobilization 
request, the member is required to arrive with all equipment and personal gear to the 
designated Point of Assembly (POA) within two (2) hours of activation notice.  The time at which 
the member may charge personnel costs to be charged to the team is when the work actually 
begins and ends as determined by the Incident Commander.  For activations involving pre-
deployment of members in anticipation of an event, the time at which personnel costs may be 
charged to team activities shall be determined by the CVAHIMT program manager and/or his 
designee prior to the deployment.

I. PROCEDURES

A. Activation, Planned Event
1. Upon request from the locality, Commonwealth or DHS/FEMA for disaster/event 

assistance, and/or determination that pre-positioning the Team is prudent, 
Chesterfield Fire and EMS and/or the CVAHIMT shall request the activation of the Team 
to respond to a designated point of assembly (POA).

2. CVAHIMT shall communicate an alert and/or activation notice to Team members 
through the call-out system according to the current approved mobilization plan.

B. Activation, Short Term, Unplanned Event
1. Upon request from the locality, Commonwealth or DHS/FEMA for assistance, the 

Chesterfield Fire and EMS and/or the CVAHIMT will notify a member of the 
participating agency’s executive staff and members of team activation.  The activation 
of the team may be instructed to respond to the POA or directly to the scene to 
evaluate the situation.

2. Each participating agency will respond on-duty IMT resources to include, but not 
limited to, on-duty personnel, primary IMT apparatus and associated support 
equipment when available, at the sole option of the participating agencies.

C.   Mobilization and Deployment-Long term Incident 
1. CVAHIMT will notify executive staff and members of activation of the team.

2. When the CVAHIMT is activated, Team leaders will move the necessary IMT 
components and all necessary equipment to the pre-designated point of assembly 
(POA) for ground transportation or air transport.

3. The Team shall be returned to the original POA upon completion of the mission.

Page 134 of 563



2

II. TRAINING AND EXERCISES

A. DHS/FEMA-Sponsored Training and Exercises
Periodically, team members may be requested or required to attend DHS/FEMA sponsored 
functional training.  DHS/FEMA sponsored functional training may be performed at the 
direction of DHS/FEMA in order to develop the technical skills of the IMT members.

B. CVAHIMT Sponsored Training and Exercises
Periodically, members will be requested or required to attend CVAHIMT sponsored training 
or exercises.  CVAHIMT sponsored training or exercises shall be performed at the direction 
of the team in order to develop the technical skills of the members. 

C. CVAHIMT Sanctioned Training and Exercises
Periodically, members will be required and/or invited to attend team sanctioned training 
and/or exercises.  

D. Non- CVAHIMT sanctioned Training and Exercises
Non- team sponsored or sanctioned training and/or exercises may be performed at the 
direction, control and funding of Participating Agencies/Employers or individuals in order 
to develop and maintain the IMT capabilities of the members and the Team. 

E. Minimum Training Requirements
All Team members are required to maintain the skills and abilities identified in the 
CVAHIMT guidelines. 

F. Insurance 
         During the team sponsored training and exercises, members shall be covered in the 

workers’ compensation and insurance coverage provided by their respective 
agencies/employers.  

III. ADMINISTRATIVE, FINANCIAL AND PERSONNEL MANAGEMENT 

A. Reimbursement of Participating Agencies/Employers

1. Chesterfield Fire and EMS shall reimburse all amounts necessary to fund associated 
costs of state and/or federal disaster deployments when funding sources are identified. 
Upon delivery of documentation by the participating agency/employer expenditures to 
Chesterfield Fire and EMS, CFEMS shall reimburse the participating agency/employer for 
all expenses that are reimbursed through Chesterfield County as money is received by 
Chesterfield County. 

2. Chesterfield Fire and EMS will reimburse the Participating Agency/Employer for cost of 
backfilling team members while activated, if the money is received by Chesterfield 
County.  This shall consist of expenses generated by the replacement of a deployed 
Team member on their normally scheduled duty period/day.  The Participating 
Agency/Employer may choose to request backfill reimbursement based on one of two 
methods: 

a. actual cost of backfill
b. pre-determined flat hourly rate based on average hourly wages

Page 135 of 563



3

3. Chesterfield Fire and EMS will reimburse the Participating Agency/Employer for salaries 
and backfill expenses of any deployed member who would be required to return to 
regularly scheduled duty during the personnel rehabilitation period described in the 
demobilization order, if CFEMS is reimbursed.  If the deployed member’s regularly 
scheduled shift begins or ends within the identified rehabilitation period, the 
Participating Agency/Employer may give the deployed member that time off with pay 
and backfill his/her position.  If a Team member is not normally scheduled to work 
during the identified rehabilitation period, then no reimbursement will be made for that 
member.  CVAHIMT will determine the personnel rehabilitation period that will apply to 
each deployment based on the demobilization order for that deployment.

B. Reimbursement of Team Member as an Individual Resource

1. If a team member responds as an Individual Resource, the CVAHIMT will have no 
responsibility to ensure that the wages, benefits, or other expenses are paid to that 
individual member.

C. Other Reimbursements

1. Team members shall be reimbursed for reasonable personal costs associated with 
operations and maintenance of the Team during a state or federal activation.  Original 
itemized receipts are required per Chesterfield County guidelines. All original receipts 
should be submitted to the appropriate CVAHIMT Deputy Program Manager within five 
(5) business days of return.  This is to comply with VDEM reimbursement requirements.

2.   Team members shall be reimbursed for reasonable travel costs associated with 
approved training.  Reimbursement must be approved in advance by the Program 
Manager or his designee. Original receipts are required subject to Chesterfield County 
Travel Reimbursement Procedures.  Receipts should be submitted to the Chesterfield 
Fire and EMS within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the end of the trip.

3. Emergency procurement of Team materials, equipment and supplies purchased and 
consumed by Team members in providing requested assistance shall be reimbursed on a 
replacement basis.  Prior approval by Team leadership must be obtained and original 
itemized receipts for such items shall be submitted to Chesterfield Fire and EMS within 
(5) business days of return.        

4. No Team member or the participating agency/employer shall be reimbursed for costs 
incurred by activations that are outside the scope of this agreement.

5. All financial commitments herein are made subject to availability of funds from the 
state and/or DHS/FEMA.

IV.      MANAGEMENT

A. The incident commander or CVAHIMT Responsible Party will have overall management,
coordination, and control of all the CVAHIMT resources and operations. 

B. Tactical deployment of the CVAHIMT will be under the direction of the local incident 
commander and the CVAHIMT Responsible Party(s) assigned to the incident.

Page 136 of 563



Memorandum of Understanding 
Between

Central Virginia All Hazards Incident Management Team/ Chesterfield County
And

 Participating Jurisdiction/Agency 

A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) entered into this ___ day of ____________, 20__ by and 
between the Central Virginia All Hazards Incident Management Team (CVAHIMT)/ Chesterfield County and 
all Participating Jurisdictions or Agencies authorized on the signature page of this document.

I. PURPOSE

To delineate responsibilities of the Central Virginia All Hazards Incident Management Team and any 
Participating Jurisdiction/Agency that provides resources to the CVAHIMT under the authority of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia Emergency Management Plan and the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief 
and Emergency Act, Public law 93-288, as amended 42 U.S.C. § 5121, et seq.

II. SCOPE

The provisions of this MOU apply to each Participating Jurisdiction/Agency of the Central Virginia All 
Hazards Incident Management Team for activities performed at the request of local jurisdictions, the 
Commonwealth of Virginia, or the Federal government provided at the option of the Participating 
Jurisdiction/Agency.  These activities may be in conjunction with, or in preparation for a local, state, or 
federal declaration of disaster. 

The scope of this MOU also includes training activities mandated by the Department of Homeland 
Security (DHS), the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the Commonwealth of Virginia, 
or the Central Virginia All Hazards Incident Management Team to maintain operational readiness.

Nothing in this MOU shall be construed to limit or otherwise affect the independent powers, 
operations, or liabilities of any Participating Jurisdiction/Agency that provides resources to the 
CVAHIMT.  Each Participating Jurisdiction/Agency reserves the right to refuse to respond to a request 
if its resources are already committed to other activities, emergencies, or impending weather or 
disaster related events.   

III. DEFINITIONS

A. Activation, Planned Event:  The process of mobilizing the CVAHIMT members to deploy for a 
designated disaster/event site with a predicted time frame of greater than six (6) hours.  

B. Activation, Unplanned Event/Incident:  The process of mobilizing the CVAHIMT members to 
deploy to a designated disaster site when the event requires an immediate response for an 
unknown duration.

  
C. Alert:  The process of informing CVAHIMT members that an event has occurred and the CVAHIMT 

may be activated at some point within the next 24-48 hours.

Page 137 of 563



D. De-Activation:  The process of de-mobilizing the CVAHIMT members upon notification from the 
local, state, or DHS/FEMA to stand down.  

E. Program Manager:   The Director, or program manager, of the Central Virginia All Hazards 
Incident Management Team.

F. DHS/FEMA:  The Department of Homeland Security/Federal Emergency Management Agency.

G. Member:   An individual who has been formally accepted into the Central Virginia All Hazards 
Incident Management Team and meets all requirements for skills and knowledge, and is in good 
standing with regard to compliance of necessary training and fitness.

H. Participating Jurisdiction/Agency:   The team member’s jurisdiction/agency, which by execution 
of the MOU, has officially sanctioned the Central Virginia All Hazards Incident Management Team 
and supports the member’s involvement within the CVAHIMT.

I. State: Commonwealth of Virginia.

J. Team:  An integrated collection of personnel and equipment meeting standardized capability 
criteria for addressing incident management needs during disasters and planned events. 
  

K. Team Sponsored Training:  Training or exercises performed at the direction, control and funding 
of DHS/FEMA, Commonwealth of Virginia Department of Fire Programs/Department of 
Emergency Management, Virginia Division of Forestry, or the CVAHIMT.

L. Team Sanctioned Training:  Training or exercises performed at the direction, control and funding 
of a Participating Jurisdiction/Agency or Team Member in order to develop and maintain the 
capabilities of the Member and the Team.  Team sanctioned training shall be coordinated with 
the CVAHIMT staff.  Authorization to conduct such training shall be obtained prior to the start of 
the training.  

IV. RESPONSIBILITIES

A. Chesterfield County Fire and EMS is the hosting agency and fiduciary agent for the Central 
Virginia All Hazards Incident Management Team.  As the hosting agency and fiduciary agent for 
the CVAHIMT, Chesterfield County Fire and EMS, on behalf of CVAHIMT, shall be responsible for 
and have the authority to do the following:

1. Seek grant funding, follow grant purchasing guidelines, provide advance funds for 
purchases, and maintain inventory control of CVAHIMT assets.

2. Enter into agreements on behalf of the CVAHIMT with local, state, or federal jurisdictions 
who request response assistance from the CVAHIMT.

3. Recruit and organize a multi-jurisdictional, multi-disciplined Incident Management Team (IMT)
          in accordance with the FEMA Type III IMT guidelines.

 

Page 138 of 563



4. Enroll and qualify position specific personnel on the CVAHIMT.

5. Ensure administrative, financial, and personnel management procedures are utilized and 
followed as they relate to the CVAHIMT.  Fulfill all financial agreements as set forth herein 
including, but not limited to State activations, Statewide Mutual Aid responses, and EMAC 
requests.

6. Sponsor or sanction training for Team Members.  Training shall be consistent with the 
objectives of developing, upgrading, and maintaining individual skills, as identified in the 
position description requirements, necessary to maintain operational readiness. 
 

7. Ensure all equipment in the IMT cache is maintained in a ready state.

8. Maintain accountability of all equipment purchased using grant funding.

9. Coordinate between the DHS/FEMA, the State, Participating Jurisdictions/ Agencies, and 
other relevant governmental and private entities.

10. Maintain a primary contact list for all the CVAHIMT Members. 

11. Maintain personnel files on all members of the CVAHIMT for the purpose of documenting 
training records, emergency notification, and other documentation as required by 
DHS/FEMA, the Commonwealth of Virginia, and localities.

B. Each Participating Jurisdiction/Agency shall be responsible for the following:

1. Maintain a roster of all its personnel authorized to participate in the CVAHIMT.

2. Provide a primary point of contact to the CVAHIMT for the purpose of notification of Team
Activities. 

3. Provide administrative support to employee members of the CVAHIMT, i.e. “time out of 
station”, when fiscally reasonable to do so for Team activities such as training, meetings, 
and actual activations.

4. If and when a financial arrangement has been established between CVAHIMT and the 
Virginia Department of Emergency Management, the submission of personnel 
reimbursement claims must be submitted to Chesterfield County Fire and EMS within five 
(5) business days (excluding weekends and holidays) of official De-Activation of the Team 
Member.  In cases of State activation, Statewide Mutual Aid responses, and EMAC 
responses, Chesterfield County Fire and EMS, will act as the fiscal agent for the CVAHIMT.  
As such, each Participating Jurisdiction/Agency shall provide and constantly update in a 
timely manner all related costs to allow for accurate cost projections.  Responsibility for 
reporting all costs to the CVAHIMT associated with a Team Member or with a Participating 
Jurisdiction/Agency’s equipment rests solely with that Participating Jurisdiction/Agency.  

Page 139 of 563



V. DEPLOYMENT

The CVAHIMT may be activated for planned events or unplanned events and incidents.  See 
Addendum for mobilization parameters and deployment procedures.

VI. TRAINING AND EXERCISES

Periodically, Team Members may be requested or required to attend the following types of
training opportunities to develop the technical skills and proficiency expected of team members.

1. DHS/FEMA Sponsored Training and Exercises - See Addendum
2. CVAHIMT Sponsored Training and Exercises - See Addendum
3. CVAHIMT Sanctioned Training and Exercises - See Addendum
4. Non-CVAHIMT Sanctioned Training and Exercises - See Addendum
5. Minimum Training Requirements - See CVAHIMT Operations Guide and Handbook

 VII.  CONDITIONS, AMENDMENTS, AND WITHDRAWAL FROM MOU

A. This Memorandum of Understanding may be modified or amended only with the written 
agreement of all parties, and all amendments shall be attached to this MOU.

B. Any party, upon 30 day written notice to the other party, may withdraw from this Memorandum 
of Understanding. 

VIII. LIABILITY, DISABILITY, DEATH BENEFITS, AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

A. In the event of injury to or death of a Team Member sustained during CVAHIMT training or 
response activities, liability for and payment of any of these benefits shall be the responsibility 
of the Member’s Participating Jurisdiction/Agency.  

B. In the case of certain state activated deployments, insurance coverage may be provided by the 
State.  

C.   The CVAHIMT does not provide any liability, disability, death benefits or workers’ compensation 
coverage to Team Members.  Chesterfield County Fire and EMS only provides coverage to Team 
Members that are also employees of Chesterfield County.

IX. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Participating Jurisdiction/Agency hereby acknowledges that it has read and understands this entire 
Memorandum of Understanding and agrees to be bound by it until such time as the Memorandum of 
Understanding is terminated.  All oral or written agreements, including letters of intent, between the 
parties relating to the subject matter of this Memorandum of Understanding that were made prior to 
the execution of this Memorandum of Understanding have been reduced to writing and are set forth 
herein.  The Participating Jurisdiction/Agency agrees to abide by all terms and conditions specified 
herein and certifies that the information it provides to CVAHMIT is true and correct in all respects to 
the best of Participating Jurisdiction/Agency’s knowledge and belief.

Page 140 of 563



This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into by and between the following parties:

Central Virginia All Hazards Incident Management Team:

____________________________________ _______________
Signature of Authorized Representative                              Date

_Edward L. Senter, Jr., Fire Chief____________________
Printed Name of Authorized Representative 

_6731 Mimms Loop______________________________
Address

_Chesterfield, Virginia 23832______________________
City, State, ZIP

_804-751-4726_________________________________
Telephone Number

Participating Jurisdiction/Agency:

____________________________________
Name of Participating Jurisdiction/Agency

____________________________________ _______________
Signature of Authorized Representative                              Date

____________________________________
Printed Name of Authorized Representative 

____________________________________
Address

____________________________________
City, State, ZIP

____________________________________
Telephone Number

Page 141 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.4.
 

Subject:
Authorize the Receipt and Appropriation of Grant Funds from the Commonwealth of Virginia, Virginia 9-1-1 
Services Board for the 2020 NG9-1-1 Migration Grant
 
Board Action Requested:
Authorize the receipt and appropriation of grant funding up to $705,142.04 for the 2020 NG9-1-1 State 
mandated migration and implementation from the current Verizon 9-1-1 network to the AT&T ESInet 
platform.
 
Summary of Information:
All Virginia PSAP's will be mandated to migrate from the legacy TDM circuit-switched telephone and legacy 
E9-1-1 services to an all IP-based emergency services network known as NextGen 911 (NG9-1-1). The 
primary goal of NG9-1-1 is to ensure calls and information received in one locality can be transferred to any 
surrounding locality. The Virginia 9-1-1 Services Board, in conjunction with the Virginia Information 
Technologies Agency (VITA), will provide funding to cover the implementation costs and difference in the 
monthly fees of the network for two years. NG9-1-1 will cost approximately $495,600 annually, compared to 
the current emergency services network cost of nearly $193,200 annually. The Emergency Communications 
department will continue to pay the monthly fees and will be reimbursed on a quarterly basis from the Virginia 
9-1-1 Board, approximately $302,400 annually. After the two-year grant period, the Emergency 
Communications department will assume all monthly fees to maintain the 911 phone system. The additional 
annual cost of NG9-1-1 is currently factored into the County Five-Year Plan. 
 
Attachments:
1. Chesterfield NG-911 Funding Award Letter
 
Preparer: Matt Harris
  
Approved By:

Page 142 of 563



 

COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA   

Virginia 9-1-1 Services Board 
Dorothy Spears-Dean 

PSC Coordinator 
(804) 416-6201 

 
Terry D. Mayo 

Board Administrative 
Assistant 

(804) 416-6197 

Commonwealth Enterprise Solutions Center – 11751 Meadowville Lane – Chester, Virginia 23836 
(866) 482-3911 – FAX (804) 416-6353 – TTY USERS TDD #711 

Jeffrey D. Stern 
Chairman 
VDEM 

 
Hon Kevin W. Hall 

Sheriff 
Vice Chairman 

City of Covington 
 

David A. Von Moll 
Treasurer 

Comptroller 
 

Mary M. Blowe 
Chief Financial Officer 

City of Winchester 
 

Gary Critzer 
Emergency Mgmt/ EMS Dir 

City of Waynesboro 
 

Bruce Edwards 
City of Franklin 

 
Terry Ellis 
Comcast 

 
R. Scott Garber 

Fire Chief 
City of Staunton 

 
Danny Garrison 

Richmond Ambulance 
Authority 

 
Pete Hatcher 

AT&T 
 

Jeffrey T. Merriman 
Verizon Communications 

 
Lee W. Miller III 

Major 
Virginia State Police 

 
Nelson P. Moe 

CIO - VITA 
 

Seth Weise 
Sprint 

 
Kelvin Wright 
Chief of Police 

City of Chesapeake 
 

Jolena Young 
Twin County 

 
Shawn Talmadge 

Office of the Governor 
Advisor 

 

                            November 14, 2019 
 

Chesterfield PSAP: 
 
This letter serves as confirmation of the Virginia 9-1-1 Services 
Board (the “Board”) approval of the County of Chesterfield PSAP’s 
NG9-1-1 funding request for costs needed for NG9-1-1 
implementation.  The amount awarded is listed below and is based 
on estimated costs and related information contained in the version 
of your NG9-1-1 Migration Proposal (also listed below) referenced 
in your funding request:  
 

 

 
 
 

 

PSAP Name and Funding ID  Chesterfield 
NG911‐070 

Date of Award by the 9‐1‐1 Services Board  November 14, 2019 

End of funding period for your grant award  
(36 months from date of award unless 
granted an extension by the Board) 

November 14, 2022 

NG9‐1‐1 Deployment – Amount Awarded  $705,142.04 

PSAP preference for Board payment on 
behalf of PSAP for incurred eligible NG9‐1‐1 

expenses: 
Yes – Direct payment where possible 

No – Full reimbursement basis 

Yes 

Migration Proposal Date  November 1, 2018 

Migration Proposal NG9‐1‐1 Service Provider  AT&T 

Contract Vehicle upon which the Migration 
Proposal is based 

Fairfax County contract w/ 
AT&T 

Deadline for executing a contract vehicle 
with the NG9‐1‐1 Service Provider listed 

above 
(3 months after date of award) 

February 14, 2020 

Scheduled NG9‐1‐1 Deployment Window  Q3 2020 

Page 143 of 563



Chesterfield PSAP 
November 14, 2019 
Page Two 
 
Funding awards are non-binding until a locality selects an NG9-1-1 solutions 
provider by executing a contract.  The Board recognizes this is a local decision.  If 
you wish to accept this funding request using the NG9-1-1 solutions provider 
listed above, the Board expects your locality to execute a contract vehicle with the 
identified NG9-1-1 solutions provider within three months of the date of your 
award, unless the Board grants an extension.  However, if requested by the PSAP, 
ISP staff can prepare a migration proposal for a different NG9-1-1 solution 
provider and the locality can also submit a funding request using this new 
migration proposal. 
 
The Board is committed to a statewide deployment of NG9-1-1 that is consistent 
with NENA’s i3 standard and reserves the right to add subsequent conditions to 
your migration proposal and revise the funding award for this purpose.  Funding 
for any additional non-recurring costs related to these conditions will be 
considered by the Board and you will receive a revised award letter, if approved.     
   
Since NG9-1-1 deployments will be occurring by selective router regions over a 
multi-year period, portions of your funding may not be immediately available and 
may be distributed over different fiscal years.  The spending plan below is based 
on your scheduled NG9-1-1 deployment window listed above and in your 
migration proposal.  This plan lays out when approved funding for each category 
will be available.  The goal is to complete all identified NG9-1-1 ready 
implementation items (CHE equipment and GIS data) at least three months in 
advance of your PSAP’s scheduled deployment time period.    
                              
NOTE:  Before contracting for a service or committing any local funding, you 
should consult this spending plan and coordinate expenditures with your 
Regional Coordinator.  This action will ensure that you will be reimbursed 
for any local funds spent for items identified in your migration proposal.   
 
Depending on the preference you selected in your Proposal Acceptance Letter, the 
Board may pay some of your NG9-1-1 deployment costs on your behalf.  If 
applicable, the specific costs will be identified in your spending plan included in 
this letter.  Payment for the remaining NG9-1-1 deployment costs will be made on 
a reimbursement basis.   
  
 
 
 

Page 144 of 563



Chesterfield PSAP 
November 14, 2019 
Page Three 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Finally, funding for approved equipment and services may not be immediately 
available to the PSAP.  ISP staff will provide a spending plan, specific to the 
PSAP’s deployment schedule, that details in which year of the deployment period 
funding will be available to the PSAP.      
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact your Regional 
Coordinator or me via email. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Lisa Nicholson 
Public Safety Program Manager 

Fiscal Year  Category  Amount  Payer 

FY20  NG9‐1‐1 NRC   $                4,000.00  Board 

FY20  CHE i3 Services   $              30,000.00  Locality 

FY24  CHE Replacement   $                        0.00    Locality 

FY20  Text to 9‐1‐1   $                        0.00    Locality 

FY20  Voice Logging   $                        0.00    Locality 

FY20  ECaTS NRC   $                1,000.00  Board 

FY20  Rack   $                        0.00    Locality 

FY20  Diversity   $              18,305.64  Board 

FY20  GIS Data   $                        0.00    Locality 

FY20  Legacy 9‐1‐1   $              47,142.00  Board 

FY20  Monthly Delta   $            151,173.60  Locality 

FY21  Monthly Delta   $            302,347.20  Locality 

FY22  Monthly Delta   $            151,173.60  Locality 

Page 145 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.5.
 

Subject:
Allocate Funds for the Purchase of a Special Purpose Park at the Ware Bottom Church Battlefield and Approve 
New Conservation Easement Holder
 
Board Action Requested:
Authorize the County Administrator or his designee to allocate an additional $52,000 from the Future Facility 
Land Acquisition Account to cover the county's increased share of the purchase, and change the conservation 
easement holder from the Department of Historic Resources to Capital Region Land Conservancy. 

 
Summary of Information:
Staff requests that the Board of Supervisors approve changes to the purchase of 52 acres adjacent to the 
existing 10-acre Ware Bottom Church Battlefield Park. The parcel preserves Civil War earthworks and 
battlefield artifacts, a unique piece of the county’s history and a cornerstone of the county’s heritage tourism 
program. By prior action of the Board, in November 2017 and June 2018, the purchase, federal grant, 
additional funding partners and required conservation easement and designated easement holder were 
approved. The purchase is contingent on receipt of a grant from the National Park Service, American 
Battlefield Protection Program, which will provide half of the purchase costs. The remaining half was 
structured to be split three equal ways between the county, the land owners (as a donation), and the American 
Battlefield Trust. The easement holder was the Virginia Department of Historic Resources. Subsequent to those 
Board approvals, one of our funding partners, the American Battlefield Trust, reduced their funding 
commitment by $102,000. To cover the shortfall, the land owners have generously reduced the purchase price 
by $50,000 and the county will increase its share of the funding by $52,000. The purchase price is $945,000 
plus closing costs estimated at $55,000. The contract includes contingency language requiring all governmental 
approvals to be obtained prior to closing. Substantial accord approval has been obtained. Also, subsequent to 
the Board approvals, the Virginia Department of Historic Resources has decided to not hold the easement, as 
the parcel has two electrical utility Rights of Ways passing through it, that they feel limits their ability to 
enforce aspects of their easement requirements. Staff has secured a new easement holder, the Capital Region 
Land Conservancy, which can hold and administer the resource protection easement with utility easements on 
the parcel. 

The Board is requested to allocate up to $52,000 in appropriated funds from the Future Facility Land 
Acquisition Account to cover the county’s increased share of the purchase and closing costs, and accept the use 

Page 146 of 563



of the Capital Region Land Conservancy as the easement holder. Staff recommends approval. 

 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: James Worsley, Director

Matt Harris
  
Approved By:

Page 147 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.6.
 

Subject:
Authorization for 5G Air LLC to Enter Into a Leasehold Mortgage at the Chesterfield County Airport 
 
Board Action Requested:
Authorize the County Administrator to Approve a Request from 5G Air LLC to Enter Into a Leasehold 
Mortgage at the Chesterfield County Airport.
 
Summary of Information:
As part of approving Richmond Executive Aviation's (REA) application to become a Fixed Based Operator at 
the Chesterfield County Airport, the County executed a lease agreement with 5G Air LLC (5G) to allow for the 
construction of two aircraft hangars and office space in support of REA's operations.

Article 19 of the lease agreement requires 5G to gain prior written approval from the County before entering 
into a leasehold mortgage associated with construction of the hangars. 5G has requested such approval as part 
of finalizing their construction financing package. There is no financial impact to the County if this item is 
approved.

Staff recommends approval.
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Clay Bowles, Director
  
Approved By:

Page 148 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.7.
 

Subject:
Award of Contract for Correctional Nursing Services
 
Board Action Requested:
Authorize the Director of Procurement to enter into a contract with Correctional Medical Services for 
Correctional Nursing Services for the Chesterfield County Jail.
 
Summary of Information:
The Procurement Department issued a solicitation on behalf of the Sheriff’s Office for Correctional Nursing 
Services. Correctional Medical Care, Inc. submitted a comprehensive proposal for Nursing Services, and after 
review of all proposals, Correctional Medical Services was deemed to have presented the most favorable 
proposal for the County’s needs. The contract will cover maintaining existing staffing with an option to 
increase staffing in future years, funding for future years will be requested through the budget process.
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Dawn Garrett, Budget Administrator
  
Approved By:

Page 149 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.8.
 

Subject:
Award of Construction Contract for County Project #19-0006, Falling Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Digesters 1 and 2 Mixing Systems
 
Board Action Requested:
The Board of Supervisors is requested to authorize the Director of Procurement to award the construction 
contract to Waco, Inc., in the amount of $1,378,765 and execute all necessary change orders up to the full 
amount budgeted for the Falling Creek WWTP Digesters 1 and 2 Mixing Systems project.
 
Summary of Information:
This project consists of constructing mixing systems in Digesters 1 and Digester 2, replacement of gas 
collection piping and appurtenances, miscellaneous concrete repairs and repainting at the Falling Creek 
Wastewater Treatment Plant.  This project will replace existing mixing systems that are no longer operable and 
will extend the overall life of the Digesters.  Staff received a total of two bids, $1,378,765 and $2,231,000. The 
lowest responsive bid was from Waco, Inc., in the amount of $1,378,765. The County’s engineering consultant, 
Whitman Requardt and Associates, has evaluated the bids and recommends award of the contract to Waco, Inc.

 

Funds for this project are available in the current CIP.

 
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Michael Larson, Principal Engineer

Matt Harris
  
Approved By:

Page 150 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.9.
 

Subject:
Award of Construction Contract for County Project #16-0169, Johnson Creek Force Main, Gravity Sewer, and 
Waterline project
 
Board Action Requested:
The Board of Supervisors is requested to authorize the Director of Procurement to award the construction 
contract to Garney Companies, Inc. in the amount of $3,667,344 and execute all necessary change orders up to 
the full amount budgeted for the Johnson Creek Force Main, Gravity Sewer and Waterline project.

 
Summary of Information:
This project consists of the construction of approximately 8,100 linear feet of 20-inch diameter ductile iron 
force main, 1,475 linear feet of 36-inch diameter PVC gravity sewer, 1,750 linear feet of water line, and 
associated appurtenances, and roadway improvements to Hubert Lane.  The Board of Supervisors is 
considering exercising eminent domain for the remaining easements for this project under Agenda Item 17.A.  
 
The lowest responsive bid was from Garney Companies, Inc. in the amount of $3,667,344.  The County’s 
Engineering Consultant, Whitman Requardt & Associates, has evaluated the bid and recommends award of the 
contract to Garney Companies, Inc.
 
Funds for this project are available in the current CIP.
 
Attachments:
1. Project Map for Johnson Creek Pipework
 
Preparer: Anne Urenda, Principal Engineer

Matt Harris
  
Approved By:

Page 151 of 563



BERMUDA HUNDRED RD

E. HUNDRED RD (ROUTE 10)

I-2
95

ACCURACY OF INFORMATION NOT GUARANTEED
This information is being provided to you as a public service.

WE DO NOT GUARANTEE ITS ACCURACY.
By using it in any way, you are agreeing to

Release the County, its employees and
officials from responsibility for

any consequence(s) if it proves
to be inaccurate. I

Chesterfield County Department of Utilities

1 inch = 1,499 feet
0 750 1,500 2,250 3,000375

Feet
Name: morrissc
Date: 01/14/20

Page 152 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.10.
 

Subject:
Award of Construction Contract for County Project #17-0235, Addison-Evans Water Treatment Plant Lime 
Feed System Replacement and Sodium Hypochlorite Facility Upgrades
 
Board Action Requested:
The Board of Supervisors is requested to authorize the Director of Procurement to award the construction contract to Harlan Construction Co., Inc. 
in the amount of $1,818,660 and execute all necessary change orders up to the full amount budgeted for the Addison-Evans Water Treatment Plant 
Lime Feed System Replacement and Sodium Hypochlorite Facility Upgrades project.

 
Summary of Information:
This project consists of the construction of a packaged chemical feed system and storage tanks that will replace 
the existing lime storage and feed system. The new packaged chemical system will be furnished with pumps, 
control panels, storage tanks, building, a water service line.  The existing dry lime silo will be demolished.  The 
project will also consist of installing three fiberglass tanks, two feed pumps and a control panel that will replace 
the existing sodium hypochlorite tanks, pumps and control panel.  
 
The low bid was from Harlan Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $1,818,660.  The County’s Engineering 
Consultant, Whitman Requardt & Associates, has evaluated the bid and recommends award of the contract to 
Harlan Construction Co., Inc.
 
Funds for this project are available in the current CIP.
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Anne Urenda, Principal Engineer

Matt Harris
  
Approved By:

Page 153 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.11.
 

Subject:
Award of Construction Contract for County Project #14-0222, Addison-Evans Water Production and 
Laboratory Facility Motor Control Center Replacement
 
Board Action Requested:
The Board of Supervisors is requested to authorize the Director of Procurement to award the construction 
contract to Southwood Building Systems, Inc. in the amount of $3,883,804 and execute all necessary change 
orders up to the full amount budgeted for the Addison-Evans Water Production and Laboratory Facility Motor 
Control Center Replacement project.
 
Summary of Information:
This project consists of the construction of a new building to house a new motor control center for the facility. 
Work includes the installation of a new concrete pad for a new electrical transfer, installation of several new 
electrical service panels, and installation of instrumentation and controls for the new electrical service.  
 
The low bid was from Southwood Building Systems, Inc. in the amount of $3,883,804. The County’s 
Engineering Consultant, Arcadis, has evaluated the bid and recommends award of the contract to Southwood 
Building Systems, Inc.

Funds for this project are available in the current CIP.
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Anne Urenda, Principal Engineer

Matt Harris
  
Approved By:

Page 154 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.12.
 

Subject:
Appropriation of Funds and Authorization to Award a Construction Contract for the Otterdale Road and Old 
Hundred Road Roundabout Project
 
Board Action Requested:
The Board is requested to (1) appropriate $850,000 in road cash proffers (Shed 6) to the Otterdale Road and 
Old Hundred Road Roundabout project; (2) authorize the Director of Procurement to award a construction 
contract of $3,789,007 to J.R. Caskey; and (3) execute all necessary change orders, up to the full amount 
budgeted, for the project.
 
Summary of Information:
On September 17, 2014, the Board authorized staff to proceed with the Otterdale Road and Old Hundred Road 
Roundabout project. The intersection is currently a high crash location with multiple fatalities in the recent 
past. The proposed roundabout is anticipated to significantly reduce both the frequency and severity of crashes 
at the intersection.

Two bids for the project were received on December 9, 2019. J.R. Caskey submitted the lowest responsive and 
responsible bid of $3,789,000. Although the bid is higher than the engineer’s estimate of $2,576,000, it is 
proportionally comparable to recent construction bids for other similar projects in the county. Staff is of the 
opinion that re-advertising the project will not result in a significantly lower bid without significant changes to 
the project scope and schedule.  Based on current demands in the transportation industry, it is possible bids 
received may be even higher (assuming no change in scope) due to inflation and rising construction costs.

Additional funds ($850,000) are needed to award the construction contract.

The Board is requested to (1) appropriate $850,000 in road cash proffers (Shed 6) to the Otterdale Road and 
Old Hundred Road Roundabout project; (2) authorize the Director of Procurement to award a construction 
contract of $3,789,007 to J.R. Caskey; and (3) execute all necessary change orders, up to the full amount 
budgeted, for the project.

 
Attachments:
1. Map - Otterdale Road and Old Hundred Road Roundabout - Authorization to Award
2. Budget - Otterdale Road and Old Hundred Road Roundabout - Authorization to Award

Page 155 of 563



 
Preparer: Brent Epps, Asst. Director

Matt Harris
  
Approved By:

Page 156 of 563



Page 157 of 563



OTTERDALE ROAD AND OLD HUNDRED ROAD
ROUNDABOUT PROJECT 

ESTIMATE
Preliminary Engineering $515,058
Right-of-Way (including utility relocations) $1,066,035
Construction $3,789,007
Construction Contingency $378,900
Construction Engineering $401,000
Total $6,150,000

REVENUE
FY16 Revenue Sharing $1,480,000
FY17 Revenue Sharing $531,216
FY19 Revenue Sharing $1,788,784
Revenue Sharing Transfers from Completed Projects 
5/22/2019

$1,500,000

PROPOSED: Transfer from Road Cash Proffer Shed 6 $850,000
Total $6,150,000

Page 158 of 563



Page 159 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.13.
 

Subject:
Authorize the Receipt and Appropriation of 2019 State Homeland Security Grant Funds from the Department 
of Homeland Security.
 
Board Action Requested:
Authorize the Fire and EMS Department, to receive and appropriate $76,000 in 2019 State Homeland Security 
Grant funds from the Department of Homeland Security.
 

 
Summary of Information:
 
The Board of Supervisors is requested to approve the acceptance and appropriation of $76,000 in grant funds 
awarded from the Department of Homeland Security, State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP), to 
manage a regional swift-water rescue project that will support equipment purchases and related training 
course.  Chesterfield Fire & EMS serves as the sponsoring agency of the Virginia Division 1 Technical 
Rescue/Urban Search and Rescue Team. 
 
No local match of funds is required for any portion of the grant funds.
 
 
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Edward L. Senter, Jr.
  
Approved By:

Page 160 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.14.
 

Subject:
Acceptance of State Roads
 
Board Action Requested:
Adoption of resolutions for the referenced state road acceptances.
 
Summary of Information:
Bermuda District: Battery Brooke Parkway Extension
Glebe Point Estates Section 2

Clover Hill and Midlothian Districts: The Townes at Notting Place Section 1

Matoaca District: Baileys Grove Section C
Bayhill Pointe Section 22
Whittington Forest Section 1
Wynwood at Foxcreek Section 2
Wynwood at Foxcreek Section 13
 
Attachments:
1. 2020-01-22 Bermuda - Battery Brooke Parkway Extension
2. 2020-01-22 Bermuda - Glebe Point Estates Section 2
3. 2020-01-22 Clover Hill and Midlothain - The Townes At Notting Place Section 1
4. 2020-01-22 Matoaca - Baileys Grove Section C
5. 2020-01-22 Matoaca - Bayhill Pointe Section 22
6. 2020-01-22 Matoaca - Whittington Forest Section 1
7. 2020-01-22 Matoaca - Wynwood at Foxcreek Section 2
8. 2020-01-22 Matoaca - Wynwood at Foxcreek Section 13
 
Preparer: Scott Smedley, Director of Environmental Engineering
  
Approved By:

Page 161 of 563



Page 162 of 563



Page 163 of 563



Page 164 of 563



Page 165 of 563



Page 166 of 563



Page 167 of 563



Page 168 of 563



Page 169 of 563



Page 170 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.15.
 

Subject:
Set Public Hearing on Code Amendment Relating to Mailing of Written Orders
 
Board Action Requested:
Set February 19, 2020 for Public Hearing on Code Amendment Relating to Mailing of Written Orders 
 
Summary of Information:
On June 26, 2019, the Board of Supervisors instructed Staff to prepare an ordinance amendment to address a 
state law change and forward the ordinance to the Commission for public hearing. Following a public hearing, 
the Planning Commission by unanimous vote forwarded a recommendation of approval of the proposed 
amendment.

This ordinance amendment would amend the methods by which a written order is provided.  Currently the 
ordinance requires a written order be delivered via registered mail to, or be posted at, the usual place of abode 
of, either the property owner or registered agent.  This amendment provides for certified mail to also be a 
permissible method of delivery.  

 
Attachments:
1. Ordinance Amendment 19.1-5
 
Preparer: Andrew Gillies, Director of Planning
  
Approved By:

Page 171 of 563



 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE COUNTY OF CHESTERFIELD, 

1997, AS AMENDED, BY AMENDING AND REENACTING SECTION 19.1-5 OF THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE RELATING TO MAILING OF WRITTEN ORDERS  

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Supervisors of Chesterfield County: 

 

(1) That Section 19.1-5 of the Code of the County of Chesterfield, 1997, as amended, is 

amended and re-enacted, to read as follows: 

 

Sec. 19.1-5.  Administrative Written Decisions, Determinations, and Orders. Administrative 

Appeals. 

 

A. Written Decision, Determination and Order.  

 

The director of planning shall provide a written response to a person who has filed a request 

in writing for a decision or determination on zoning matters within the scope of his 

authority. The response shall be provided within 90 days of the date of the request, unless 

the requestor agrees to a longer time period. When the applicant is not the owner or the 

property owner’s agent subject to the written decision or determination, the planning 

department shall provide written notice within 10 days of the receipt of the request to the 

owner of the property at the owner’s last known address as shown by the department of 

real estate assessments. 

 

A written decision, determination or order shall include: a statement informing the recipient 

of the right to appeal the decision, determination or order within 30 days to the board of 

zoning appeals in accordance with this chapter; the appeal fee; location of information 

regarding the filing of an appeal; and a statement that the decision, determination or order 

is unappealable if not appealed within 30 days after the date of the written decision, 

determination, or order. The appeal period shall not commence until this statement is given. 

 

In addition, for a written order only, the appeal period shall not commence until the order 

is sent by registered mail or certified to, or posted at the usual place of abode of, either the 

property owner at the address shown by the department of real estate assessments, or the 

address of the registered agent shown in the records of the Clerk of the State Corporation 

Commission. 

 

OOO 

 

(2)  That this ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

1928:116019.1 

Page 172 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 13.B.16.
 

Subject:
Approval to Terminate the Lease with the Economic Development Authority of Chesterfield County 
(Authority) of a portion of the Stonebridge Development to Facilitate the Sale of the Property to Shamin 
Hotels, Inc.
 
Board Action Requested:
The Board is requested to adopt a resolution terminating the lease.
 
Summary of Information:
As part of the purchase and redevelopment of the Cloverleaf Mall, the Authority and the County entered into a 
Lease Agreement dated October 18, 2004, whereby the Authority leased to the County the Mall Site. The 
Authority has entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with Shamin Hotels, Inc. to purchase a portion of 
the remaining mall site. The Authority and the County now desire to terminate the lease to facilitate the sale of 
the Authority Property to Shamin Hotels, Inc. 
 
Staff recommends approval.
 
Attachments:
1. Lease Termination Agreement - Stonebridge_78143065_1
 
Preparer: Garrett Hart, Director
  
Approved By:

Page 173 of 563



LEASE TERMINATION AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE TERMINATION AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), made as of this 22nd 
day of January, 2020 (the “Effective Date”, by and between the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF CHESTERFIELD (formerly known as the Industrial 
Development Authority of the County of Chesterfield), a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Authority”), and the COUNTY OF CHESTERFIELD, 
VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “County”), recites and 
provides as follows:

RECITALS:

A. The Authority and the County entered into a Lease Agreement dated October 18, 
2004, as amended by a First Amendment and Partial Termination of Lease Agreement dated 
September 30, 2011 (as amended, the “Lease”) whereby the Authority leased to the County 
certain real property comprising the former Cloverleaf Mall, as more particularly described on 
Exhibit A attached to the Lease (the “Leased Property”).

B. The Authority and the County now desire to terminate the Lease in its entirety.

LEASE TERMINATION:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. Termination of Lease.  As of the Effective Date, the Authority and the County 
hereby terminate the Lease in its entirety so that from and after the Effective Date, the Lease 
shall be of no further force or effect.  In confirmation of the foregoing, the Authority and the 
County acknowledge, confirm and agree that on the Effective Date (a) all rights and privileges of 
the County to the Leased Property under the Lease (including, without limitation, any option to 
purchase the Leased Property and all rights, titles and interests of the County to possess, use 
and/or operate the Leased Property and any improvements to the Leased Property) shall 
terminate, (b) the County shall surrender the Leased Property to the Authority in its “as is, where 
is” condition, and (c) the County hereby remises, releases and quitclaims unto the Authority all 
right, title and interest of the County in and to the Leased Property by virtue of the Lease.  The 
foregoing shall not be construed as releasing or quitclaiming any existing easements granted or 
dedicated to the County by separate instrument of record.

2. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties hereto with respect to the termination of the Lease contemplated hereby and supersedes 
all prior discussions, understandings, agreements and negotiations between the parties hereto.   
The Authority and the County hereby agree to execute and deliver from time to time upon 
request by the other such documents and instruments, and take such other action, as such other 
party may reasonably request or require to more fully and completely evidence and carry out the 
transaction contemplated by this Agreement or to correct any defect, error or omission which 

Page 174 of 563



2

may be discovered in this Agreement.  To facilitate execution, this Agreement may be executed 
in as many counterparts as may be required.  It shall not be necessary that the signature on behalf 
of the parties hereto appear on each counterpart hereof, and it shall be sufficient that the 
signature on behalf of each party hereto appear on one or more such counterparts.  All 
counterparts collectively constitute a single agreement.  This Agreement may be signed and 
delivered by facsimile and/or electronically in .PDF format and such signatures shall be treated 
as original signatures for all purposes.  A facsimile and/or email/PDF copy of this Agreement 
shall have the same force and effect as an original.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.]
[Signatures Appear on Following Pages.]

Page 175 of 563



3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be signed 
by their duly authorized representatives as of the date first written above.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF
THE COUNTY OF CHESTERFIELD

By:
Name:
Title:

COUNTY OF CHESTERFIELD, VIRGINIA

By:
Name:
Title:

Approved as to Form:

Assistant County Attorney

024190.0000213 EMF_US 78143065v1

Page 176 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 19SN0628 
APPLICANT: Dean L. Hawkins, LA 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
BERMUDA DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
14.8 Acres – 3700 Bermuda Hundred Rd. 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 
Applicant’s Contacts:  

DEAN L HAWKINS (804-748-6519) 
Planning Department Case Manager:  

TYLER WALTER (804-318-8893) 
 

REQUESTS 
REQUEST I – (Rezoning). Rezoning from Agricultural (A) to General Industrial (I-2). 
 
REQUEST II – (Setbacks). Conditional Use Planned Development to permit setback reductions for 
parking (to include outside storage areas) and buildings.  
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owners may proffer conditions. 
B. Conditions, Proffered conditions, Textual Statement, and exhibits are located in Attachments 1-5. 

 

SUMMARY 
A contractor’s office and storage yard are proposed. With approval of this request, uses permitted 
by right or with restrictions in the I-2 district would be permitted. Exceptions to setbacks 
buildings, outside storage area, and parking are requested to accommodate improvements on the 
site.  A 25-foot reduction to the required 75-foot setback from Bermuda Hundred Road is 
requested with the provision of enhanced landscaping at 1.5 times the density of Landscape C, 
Option 1. Screening of outside storage areas will be provided in accordance with Zoning 
Ordinance requirements. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

REQUEST I – (Rezoning) – APPROVAL 
 

REQUEST II – (Setbacks) – DENIAL  
 

STAFF 

REQUEST I – (Rezoning) – APPROVAL 
• Proposed zoning will provide for industrial land use as suggested by the 

Comprehensive Plan 
• Compatible with existing and anticipated area industrial uses  

 
REQUEST II – (Setbacks) – DENIAL  
No unique property characteristics to warrant relief to setback requirements. 

 
 

Page 177 of 563



2  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 
  

Page 178 of 563



3  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 

Comprehensive Plan 
Classification: INDUSTRIAL 

 

The designation suggests the property is appropriate for moderate to intense manufacturing uses   
generally dependent upon the processing of raw materials and which have associated outside  
storage areas. 

 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 
 

 

 

Discovery Dr. 

Allied Rd. 

Bermuda 
Hundred Rd. 

Warehouse 
industrial use 

Bermuda 
Hundred Rd. 

Vacant 
industrial 
property 

Manufacturing 
industrial use 

Page 179 of 563



4  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Tyler Walter (804-318-8893) waltert@chesterfield.gov 

 
Zoning History 
 
 

Case Number Request 
73SN0007 
Approved 
(02/1973) 

Rezoning from Light Industrial (I-1) to Agricultural (A). 

 

Proposal 
 
Rezoning of the property from Agricultural (A) to General Industrial (I-2) is proposed. A 
contractor’s office and storage yard is planned. A Conditional Use Planned Development (CUPD) 
is requested for setback relief for parking, building, and outside storage areas from Bermuda 
Hundred Road. Development of the site will generally comply with conceptual plan in 
Attachment 4. (Condition) 
 
The applicant has offered conditions to address site security and architectural treatment for 
buildings as identified on Exhibit A, Attachment 5 (Proffered Conditions 1 and 4). 
 

Bermuda Hundred Road Setbacks and Landscaping 
 

The property is located within an Emerging Growth Design District. The Ordinance requires a 
75-foot setback for buildings, parking, and outside storage areas from Bermuda Hundred Road, 
a major arterial. Within this 75-foot setback, Perimeter Landscape B is required. The applicant is 
proposing a setback reduction to 50 feet from Bermuda Hundred Road, with the provision of 
enhanced landscaping (Textual Statement) as identified below: 
 

Setback and Landscape Requirements – Bermuda Hundred Road 
Item Ordinance (I-2) Proposed (19SN0628) 

Setback 75’ 50’ 

Landscape Landscape B Landscape C x1.5 

 

The applicant has indicated that a reduction to the setback is necessary because of site clearing 
and grading that has occurred from a 2010 site plan approval (10PR0279), and environmental 
features on the northeastern portions of the property. Specifically, the applicant has indicated 
that the wetland areas and site drainage limit the amount of buildable area on the property.  
 
Upon examining the property, staff believes that of the 14.8 acres on the property, at least nine 
(9) acres are buildable for the proposed buildings and storage without encroaching the existing 
75-foot setback or environmental features, providing adequate developable opportunity. For 
these reasons, staff cannot support the request for a setback reduction, and believes the 
existing setback requirements allow for the development of the property without hardship. 
 
 
 

Page 180 of 563



5  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 

Screening of Outside Storage 
 

Per Ordinance requirements, the views of outside storage areas must be screened from 
Bermuda Hundred Road. Screening may be accomplished by building design, berms, or durable 
architectural walls or fences of comparable materials to the principal building and designed to 
be compatible with the building.  The applicant has proffered specific treatment of the fence 
proposed for screening (Proffered Condition 5). 
 
Given the surrounding industrially-zoned properties and the recommendations of the 
Comprehensive Plan for Industrial land use, staff is supportive of the rezoning request (Request 
I). Due to the lack of unique property features, staff is not supportive the setback exception 
(Request II). 
 

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804-748-1037) adamst@chesterfield.gov 

 

The Comprehensive Plan, which includes the Thoroughfare Plan, identifies county-wide 
transportation needs that are expected to mitigate traffic impacts of future growth. This 
request will not limit development to a specific land use; therefore, it is difficult to anticipate 
traffic generation. Based on light industrial trip rates for 14.8 acres, the development could 
generate approximately 510 average daily trips (ADT). Traffic generated by development of the 
property will be initially distributed to Bermuda Hundred Road, which had a 2018 traffic count 
of 2,100 vehicles per day (between Enon Church Road and Allied Road). 
 
Section 19.1-231 of the County Code outlines the general requirements to meet the needs of 
the traffic generated by a proposed development, including acceptable levels of service. The 
applicant has offered to dedicate 45 feet of right-of-way, measured from the centerline, along 
Bermuda Hundred Road property frontage in accordance with the Thoroughfare Plan (Proffered 
Condition 6). 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (804-717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 

When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire 
protection, and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process. 
 

Nearby Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Facilities 
Fire Station The Enon Station, Company Number 6 
EMS Facility The Rivers Bend Fire Station, Company Number 18 

 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Adam Wilkerson (804-674-2384) adam.wilkerson@vdot.virginia.gov 

 
To date, no comments received on this request. 
 
 
 

Page 181 of 563



6  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Ward (804-748-1028) wardr@chesterfield.gov 

 

Geography 
 

The subject property generally drains from west to east to an existing natural channel which 
drains under Bermuda Hundred Road and into an unnamed tributary of the James River.  The 
entire property is located within the James River Watershed. 
 

Environmental Features 
 

A Resource Protection Area (RPA) Designation has been submitted to and confirmed by the 
Department of Environmental Engineering – Water Quality Section.  There are no RPAs within 
the property limits.   
 
There are areas of wetlands on the eastern side of the property.  An updated wetland 
delineation must be submitted to the Department of Environmental Engineering prior to site 
plan approval.  Wetlands and/or streams shall not be impacted without approval from the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers and/or the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.   
 

Stormwater Management 
 

The development of the property is subject to the Part IIB technical criteria of the Virginia 
Stormwater Management Program Regulations for water quality and water quantity.   
 

PARKS AND RECREATION 
Staff Contact: Janit Llewellyn (804-751-4482) llewellynja@chesterfield.gov 

 

Mission 
 

The County supports a high-quality park system to provide residents and visitors with balanced 
access to active and passive recreation opportunities. The 2018 level of service is 7.5 acres of 
regional, community and neighborhood parkland per 1,000 persons whereas the target level of 
service is 9 acres per 1,000 persons. 
 

Nearby Parks & Facilities  
 

• Brown and Williamson Conservation Area 
• Fort Wead 
• Sgt James Engle Park 
• R Garland Dodd park at Point of Rocks 
• Elizabeth Scott Elementary School 
• Enon Elementary School 
• Elizabeth Davis Middle School 

 

Public Facilities Plan  
 

The Public Facilities Plan identifies the need for two community parks in the Rivers Bend Area east 
of Interstate 95 and south of Dutch Gap Conservation Area.  

Page 182 of 563



7  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 

 
The Bikeways and Trails Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan recommends provision of 
pedestrian/bicycle facilities along all routes shown on the Plan and connections from these routes 
and existing pedestrian/bicycle facilities to adjacent developments. 
   
Recommendation 
 

Construct the trail along Bermuda Hundred Road in front of the property to Allied Road.  
 

Additional Parks Comments  
 

This project is located nearest the Bikeways and Trails planned along Bermuda Hundred Road and 
Allied Road. This location is near Discovery Drive which provides access to the Brown and 
Williamson Conservation Area. The Brown & Williamson Conservation Area was the first public 
park in Virginia to be protected with a conservation easement.   
 

UTILITIES 
Staff Contact: Matthew Rembold (804-706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 

 
Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 

 

Utility Type Currently Serviced Size of Closest 
Existing Lines 

Connection 
Required by County 

Code 
Water No 20” Yes 
Wastewater No 10” Yes 

 

Additional Utility Comments: 
 

The property is located within the mandatory water and wastewater connection areas for new 
non-residential structures and the applicant has proffered the use of these systems to serve the 
development.  Both water and wastewater systems are available for connection at the property 
line.   
 
Wastewater capacity available to this property is subject to a capacity agreement between the 
adjacent property owners and Chesterfield County.  The applicant’s engineer has indicated 
through correspondence with the Utilities Department demands of approximately 2,000 gpd 
which fits within the 5,000 gpd capacity we estimate being available to serve the property.  
Demands for this property will be evaluated at the time of site plan against the capacity 
agreement and any increases or transfers of capacity would be the responsibility of the developer.   
 
The Utilities Department supports this case.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 183 of 563



8  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
06/10 and 

11/01/2019 
Application submitted 

07/09, 
09/03, 

11/01 and 
11/06/2019 

Proffered conditions and textual statement submitted 

 

Planning Commission 
11/19/2019 Citizen Comments: 

No citizens commented on this request. 
 

Commission Discussion: 
Mr. Sloan noted the rezoning to General Industrial (I-2) was appropriate. After 
visiting the property, he agreed with staff that there were no unique site 
characteristics that would warrant a relief to setbacks. 
 
Recommendation – APPROVAL OF REQUEST I  (REZONING) AND ACCEPTANCE 
OF TO THE PROFFERED CONDITIONS IN ATTACHMENT 2. DENIAL OF REQUEST 
II (CUPD). 
 
Motion: Sloan   Second: Stariha 
AYES: Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan and Stariha     

 

Board of Supervisors 
12/11/2019 Citizen Comments: 

No citizens commented on this request. 
 
Action – DEFERRED TO JANUARY 22, 2020 ON THE BOARD’S MOTION WITH 
THE APPLICANTS’ CONSENT. 
 
Motion: Jaeckle   Second: Elswick 
AYES: Haley, Elswick, Holland, Jaeckle, Winslow     

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 184 of 563



9  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

CONDITIONS 

Note: Both the Planning Commission and Staff recommend that the following conditions not be 
accepted relative to Request II (Setbacks). 

 
1. Master Plan. The Textual Statement dated November 1, 2019 shall be considered the 

Master Plan. (P) 
 

2. Conceptual Plan. Development of the property shall generally conform to the 
Conceptual Plan prepared by Dean E. Hawkins, ASLA, dated July 8, 2019 and titled 
“Preliminary Site Masterplan”. (P) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 185 of 563



10  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 

 ATTACHMENT 2 
PROFFERED CONDITIONS 

November 6, 2019 

Note: The following conditions are recommended by both the Planning Commission and Staff.   
 

1. Security and Access Control. The security of the site shall be provided to discourage 
trespassing by the installation of the following:  
 

a. A minimum six (6) foot high chain link fence installed along the property 
boundary and/ or at the limits of the parking and storage areas located internally 
on the site, exclusive of the property frontage along Bermuda Hundred Road, 
and 

b. Gate(s) of sufficient width shall be provided within this security fencing for 
access to the public right-of way, easement areas, utilities, etc., as may be 
required by the approved site plan. (P) 

 
2. Dedication. Prior to any site plan approval, forty -five (45) feet of right-of-way on the 

north side of Bermuda Hundred Road, measured from the centerline of that part of 
Bermuda Hundred Road immediately adjacent to the Property, shall be dedicated free 
and unrestricted, to and for the benefit of Chesterfield County. (T) 
 

3. Connection to Public Water and Sewer. The Chesterfield County public water and 
wastewater systems shall be used for domestic service requirements. It is anticipated 
that the development will draw about 2,000 gallons per day (gpd) from the public water 
system, which is less than the 5,000 gpd allocated for this site by the Utilities 
Department for treatment by the public wastewater system. (U) 
 

4. Architectural Design. The exteriors of the buildings proposed for this site will be 
constructed as generally depicted on the elevations prepared by Dean E. Hawkins, ASLA 
dated July 8, 2019, and titled “A & A Express Transport”. (P and BI) 
 

5. Screening of Outside Storage.  Outside storage shall be screened by a solid fence of 
comparable materials to the principal building in accordance with Zoning Ordinance 
requirements.  Such fence shall be constructed of metal with brick pillars.  Where visible 
from public rights of way, such brick pillars shall have a maximum separation of thirty-
two (32) feet. (P) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        
 
 
 
 

Page 186 of 563



11  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 

 ATTACHMENT 3 
TEXTUAL STATEMENT 

November 1, 2019 
 
Setbacks – Bermuda Hundred Road. A minimum setback of fifty (50) feet shall be required for 
building, parking and outside storage areas from the ultimate right of way of Bermuda Hundred 
Road. Within this setback, landscaping shall comply with Ordinance requirements for 1.5 times 
Perimeter Landscape C, Option 1.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 187 of 563



12  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 

 ATTACHMENT 4 
MASTER PLAN 

July 8, 2019 

 

Page 188 of 563



13  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C 

 
 ATTACHMENT 5 

SITE ELEVATIONS 
May 15, 2019 

 
 
 

 

Page 189 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 19SN0628 
APPLICANT: Dean L. Hawkins, LA 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
BERMUDA DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
14.8 Acres – 3700 Bermuda Hundred Rd. 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 
Applicant’s Contacts:  

DEAN L HAWKINS (804-748-6519) 
Planning Department Case Manager:  

TYLER WALTER (804-318-8893) 
 

REQUESTS 
REQUEST I – (Rezoning). Rezoning from Agricultural (A) to General Industrial (I-2). 
 
REQUEST II – (Setbacks). Conditional Use Planned Development to permit setback reductions for 
parking (to include outside storage areas) and buildings.  
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owners may proffer conditions. 
B. Conditions, Proffered conditions, Textual Statement, and exhibits are located in Attachments 1-5. 

 

SUMMARY 
A contractor’s office and storage yard are proposed. With approval of this request, uses permitted 
by right or with restrictions in the I-2 district would be permitted. Exceptions to setbacks 
buildings, outside storage area, and parking are requested to accommodate improvements on the 
site.  A 25-foot reduction to the required 75-foot setback from Bermuda Hundred Road is 
requested with the provision of enhanced landscaping at 1.5 times the density of Landscape C, 
Option 1. Screening of outside storage areas will be provided in accordance with Zoning 
Ordinance requirements. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

REQUEST I – (Rezoning) – APPROVAL 
 

REQUEST II – (Setbacks) – DENIAL  
 

STAFF 

REQUEST I – (Rezoning) – APPROVAL 
• Proposed zoning will provide for industrial land use as suggested by the 

Comprehensive Plan 
• Compatible with existing and anticipated area industrial uses  

 
REQUEST II – (Setbacks) – DENIAL  
No unique property characteristics to warrant relief to setback requirements. 

 
 

Page 190 of 563



2  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

 
 
  

Page 191 of 563



3  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

Comprehensive Plan 
Classification: INDUSTRIAL 

 

The designation suggests the property is appropriate for moderate to intense manufacturing uses   
generally dependent upon the processing of raw materials and which have associated outside  
storage areas. 

 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 
 

 

 

Discovery Dr. 

Allied Rd. 

Bermuda 
Hundred Rd. 

Warehouse 
industrial use 

Bermuda 
Hundred Rd. 

Vacant 
industrial 
property 

Manufacturing 
industrial use 

Page 192 of 563



4  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Tyler Walter (804-318-8893) waltert@chesterfield.gov 

 
Zoning History 
 
 

Case Number Request 
73SN0007 
Approved 
(02/1973) 

Rezoning from Light Industrial (I-1) to Agricultural (A). 

 

Proposal 
 
Rezoning of the property from Agricultural (A) to General Industrial (I-2) is proposed. A 
contractor’s office and storage yard is planned. A Conditional Use Planned Development (CUPD) 
is requested for setback relief for parking, building, and outside storage areas from Bermuda 
Hundred Road. Development of the site will generally comply with conceptual plan in 
Attachment 4. (Condition) 
 
The applicant has offered conditions to address site security and architectural treatment for 
buildings as identified on Exhibit A, Attachment 5 (Proffered Conditions 1 and 4). 
 

Bermuda Hundred Road Setbacks and Landscaping 
 

The property is located within an Emerging Growth Design District. The Ordinance requires a 
75-foot setback for buildings, parking, and outside storage areas from Bermuda Hundred Road, 
a major arterial. Within this 75-foot setback, Perimeter Landscape B is required. The applicant is 
proposing a setback reduction to 50 feet from Bermuda Hundred Road, with the provision of 
enhanced landscaping (Textual Statement) as identified below: 
 

Setback and Landscape Requirements – Bermuda Hundred Road 
Item Ordinance (I-2) Proposed (19SN0628) 

Setback 75’ 50’ 

Landscape Landscape B Landscape C x1.5 

 

The applicant has indicated that a reduction to the setback is necessary because of site clearing 
and grading that has occurred from a 2010 site plan approval (10PR0279), and environmental 
features on the northeastern portions of the property. Specifically, the applicant has indicated 
that the wetland areas and site drainage limit the amount of buildable area on the property.  
 
Upon examining the property, staff believes that of the 14.8 acres on the property, at least nine 
(9) acres are buildable for the proposed buildings and storage without encroaching the existing 
75-foot setback or environmental features, providing adequate developable opportunity. For 
these reasons, staff cannot support the request for a setback reduction, and believes the 
existing setback requirements allow for the development of the property without hardship. 
 
 
 

Page 193 of 563



5  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

Screening of Outside Storage 
 

Per Ordinance requirements, the views of outside storage areas must be screened from 
Bermuda Hundred Road. Screening may be accomplished by building design, berms, or durable 
architectural walls or fences of comparable materials to the principal building and designed to 
be compatible with the building.  The applicant has proffered specific treatment of the fence 
proposed for screening (Proffered Condition 5). 
 
Given the surrounding industrially-zoned properties and the recommendations of the 
Comprehensive Plan for Industrial land use, staff is supportive of the rezoning request (Request 
I). Due to the lack of unique property features, staff is not supportive the setback exception 
(Request II). 
 

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804-748-1037) adamst@chesterfield.gov 

 

The Comprehensive Plan, which includes the Thoroughfare Plan, identifies county-wide 
transportation needs that are expected to mitigate traffic impacts of future growth. This 
request will not limit development to a specific land use; therefore, it is difficult to anticipate 
traffic generation. Based on light industrial trip rates for 14.8 acres, the development could 
generate approximately 510 average daily trips (ADT). Traffic generated by development of the 
property will be initially distributed to Bermuda Hundred Road, which had a 2018 traffic count 
of 2,100 vehicles per day (between Enon Church Road and Allied Road). 
 
Section 19.1-231 of the County Code outlines the general requirements to meet the needs of 
the traffic generated by a proposed development, including acceptable levels of service. The 
applicant has offered to dedicate 45 feet of right-of-way, measured from the centerline, along 
Bermuda Hundred Road property frontage in accordance with the Thoroughfare Plan (Proffered 
Condition 6). 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (804-717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 

When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire 
protection, and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process. 
 

Nearby Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Facilities 
Fire Station The Enon Station, Company Number 6 
EMS Facility The Rivers Bend Fire Station, Company Number 18 

 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Adam Wilkerson (804-674-2384) adam.wilkerson@vdot.virginia.gov 

 
To date, no comments received on this request. 
 
 
 

Page 194 of 563



6  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Ward (804-748-1028) wardr@chesterfield.gov 

 

Geography 
 

The subject property generally drains from west to east to an existing natural channel which 
drains under Bermuda Hundred Road and into an unnamed tributary of the James River.  The 
entire property is located within the James River Watershed. 
 

Environmental Features 
 

A Resource Protection Area (RPA) Designation has been submitted to and confirmed by the 
Department of Environmental Engineering – Water Quality Section.  There are no RPAs within 
the property limits.   
 
There are areas of wetlands on the eastern side of the property.  An updated wetland 
delineation must be submitted to the Department of Environmental Engineering prior to site 
plan approval.  Wetlands and/or streams shall not be impacted without approval from the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers and/or the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.   
 

Stormwater Management 
 

The development of the property is subject to the Part IIB technical criteria of the Virginia 
Stormwater Management Program Regulations for water quality and water quantity.   
 

PARKS AND RECREATION 
Staff Contact: Janit Llewellyn (804-751-4482) llewellynja@chesterfield.gov 

 

Mission 
 

The County supports a high-quality park system to provide residents and visitors with balanced 
access to active and passive recreation opportunities. The 2018 level of service is 7.5 acres of 
regional, community and neighborhood parkland per 1,000 persons whereas the target level of 
service is 9 acres per 1,000 persons. 
 

Nearby Parks & Facilities  
 

• Brown and Williamson Conservation Area 
• Fort Wead 
• Sgt James Engle Park 
• R Garland Dodd park at Point of Rocks 
• Elizabeth Scott Elementary School 
• Enon Elementary School 
• Elizabeth Davis Middle School 

 

Public Facilities Plan  
 

The Public Facilities Plan identifies the need for two community parks in the Rivers Bend Area east 
of Interstate 95 and south of Dutch Gap Conservation Area.  

Page 195 of 563



7  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

 
The Bikeways and Trails Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan recommends provision of 
pedestrian/bicycle facilities along all routes shown on the Plan and connections from these routes 
and existing pedestrian/bicycle facilities to adjacent developments. 
   
Recommendation 
 

Construct the trail along Bermuda Hundred Road in front of the property to Allied Road.  
 

Additional Parks Comments  
 

This project is located nearest the Bikeways and Trails planned along Bermuda Hundred Road and 
Allied Road. This location is near Discovery Drive which provides access to the Brown and 
Williamson Conservation Area. The Brown & Williamson Conservation Area was the first public 
park in Virginia to be protected with a conservation easement.   
 

UTILITIES 
Staff Contact: Matthew Rembold (804-706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 

 
Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 

 

Utility Type Currently Serviced Size of Closest 
Existing Lines 

Connection 
Required by County 

Code 
Water No 20” Yes 
Wastewater No 10” Yes 

 

Additional Utility Comments: 
 

The property is located within the mandatory water and wastewater connection areas for new 
non-residential structures and the applicant has proffered the use of these systems to serve the 
development.  Both water and wastewater systems are available for connection at the property 
line.   
 
Wastewater capacity available to this property is subject to a capacity agreement between the 
adjacent property owners and Chesterfield County.  The applicant’s engineer has indicated 
through correspondence with the Utilities Department demands of approximately 2,000 gpd 
which fits within the 5,000 gpd capacity we estimate being available to serve the property.  
Demands for this property will be evaluated at the time of site plan against the capacity 
agreement and any increases or transfers of capacity would be the responsibility of the developer.   
 
The Utilities Department supports this case.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 196 of 563



8  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
06/10 and 

11/01/2019 
Application submitted 

07/09, 
09/03, 

11/01 and 
11/06/2019 

Proffered conditions and textual statement submitted 

 

Planning Commission 
11/19/2019 Citizen Comments: 

No citizens commented on this request. 
 

Commission Discussion: 
Mr. Sloan noted the rezoning to General Industrial (I-2) was appropriate. After 
visiting the property, he agreed with staff that there were no unique site 
characteristics that would warrant a relief to setbacks. 
 
Recommendation – APPROVAL OF REQUEST I  (REZONING) AND ACCEPTANCE 
OF TO THE PROFFERED CONDITIONS IN ATTACHMENT 2. DENIAL OF REQUEST 
II (CUPD). 
 
Motion: Sloan   Second: Stariha 
AYES: Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan and Stariha     

 

Board of Supervisors 
12/11/2019 Citizen Comments: 

No citizens commented on this request. 
 
Action – DEFERRED TO JANUARY 22, 2020 ON THE BOARD’S MOTION WITH 
THE APPLICANTS’ CONSENT. 
 
Motion: Jaeckle   Second: Elswick 
AYES: Haley, Elswick, Holland, Jaeckle, Winslow     

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 197 of 563



9  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

CONDITIONS 

Note: Both the Planning Commission and Staff recommend that the following conditions not be 
accepted relative to Request II (Setbacks). 

 
1. Master Plan. The Textual Statement dated November 1, 2019 shall be considered the 

Master Plan. (P) 
 

2. Conceptual Plan. Development of the property shall generally conform to the 
Conceptual Plan prepared by Dean E. Hawkins, ASLA, dated July 8, 2019 and titled 
“Preliminary Site Masterplan”. (P) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 198 of 563



10  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

 ATTACHMENT 2 
PROFFERED CONDITIONS 

November 6, 2019 

Note: The following conditions are recommended by both the Planning Commission and Staff.   
 

1. Security and Access Control. The security of the site shall be provided to discourage 
trespassing by the installation of the following:  
 

a. A minimum six (6) foot high chain link fence installed along the property 
boundary and/ or at the limits of the parking and storage areas located internally 
on the site, exclusive of the property frontage along Bermuda Hundred Road, 
and 

b. Gate(s) of sufficient width shall be provided within this security fencing for 
access to the public right-of way, easement areas, utilities, etc., as may be 
required by the approved site plan. (P) 

 
2. Dedication. Prior to any site plan approval, forty -five (45) feet of right-of-way on the 

north side of Bermuda Hundred Road, measured from the centerline of that part of 
Bermuda Hundred Road immediately adjacent to the Property, shall be dedicated free 
and unrestricted, to and for the benefit of Chesterfield County. (T) 
 

3. Connection to Public Water and Sewer. The Chesterfield County public water and 
wastewater systems shall be used for domestic service requirements. It is anticipated 
that the development will draw about 2,000 gallons per day (gpd) from the public water 
system, which is less than the 5,000 gpd allocated for this site by the Utilities 
Department for treatment by the public wastewater system. (U) 
 

4. Architectural Design. The exteriors of the buildings proposed for this site will be 
constructed as generally depicted on the elevations prepared by Dean E. Hawkins, ASLA 
dated July 8, 2019, and titled “A & A Express Transport”. (P and BI) 
 

5. Screening of Outside Storage.  Outside storage shall be screened by a solid fence of 
comparable materials to the principal building in accordance with Zoning Ordinance 
requirements.  Such fence shall be constructed of metal with brick pillars.  Where visible 
from public rights of way, such brick pillars shall have a maximum separation of thirty-
two (32) feet. (P) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        
 
 
 
 

Page 199 of 563



11  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

 ATTACHMENT 3 
TEXTUAL STATEMENT 

November 1, 2019 
 
Setbacks – Bermuda Hundred Road. A minimum setback of fifty (50) feet shall be required for 
building, parking and outside storage areas from the ultimate right of way of Bermuda Hundred 
Road. Within this setback, landscaping shall comply with Ordinance requirements for 1.5 times 
Perimeter Landscape C, Option 1.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 200 of 563



12  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

 ATTACHMENT 4 
MASTER PLAN 

July 8, 2019 

 

Page 201 of 563



13  19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT 

 
 ATTACHMENT 5 

SITE ELEVATIONS 
May 15, 2019 

 
 
 

 

Page 202 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 
 

CASE NUMBER: 19SN0597 
APPLICANT: SRBF, LLC 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
MIDLOTHIAN DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
109.0 Acres – 800 Starview Ln. 

STARVIEW VILLAGE 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Contacts:  
WILLIAM H. SHEWMAKE (804-343-5035) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
DARLA ORR (804-717-6533) 

 

REQUEST 

Rezoning from Residential (R-7), General Business (C-5) and Agricultural (A) to Regional Business (C-4) 
with Conditional Use and Conditional Use Planned development to permit single family, townhouse 
and multifamily residential uses plus exceptions to ordinance requirements. 
Notes:    

A.  Conditions may be imposed or the property owners may proffer conditions. 
B. Proffered conditions, Textual Statement, SmartCode and exhibits are located in Attachments 1 – 6. 

 

SUMMARY 

The subject property is in a designated revitalization area.  A mixed-use project (known as Starview 
Village) is planned, incorporating commercial and office uses, and a maximum of 1,250 dwelling units 
(multi-family, townhouse and cluster residential).  Exceptions to Ordinance requirements are 
requested to provide an urban form-based development design (Textual Statement and Exhibit B, 
Attachments 2 and 3) as an overall community plan which addresses a specific form and scale of the 
development.     
 
The proposal offers quality design and architectural standards (pages 6 and 7) which should enhance 
the surrounding area. 
 
Under the Board’s Road Cash Proffer Policy, no road cash proffer would be accepted in a revitalization 
area. 

 
  

Page 203 of 563



2   

RECOMMENDATION 

PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

APPROVAL 

STAFF 

PLANNING – APPROVAL 

• Proposal offers an integrated mix of highly concentrated office, commercial and 
higher density residential uses as suggested by the Comprehensive Plan 

• Development offers quality design and architecture which should enhance the 
surrounding community  

TRANSPORTATION – APPROVAL 

• The development’s traffic impact will be addressed by providing road 
improvements. 

• Located within a revitalization area. Under the Road Cash Proffer Policy, no road 
cash proffer will be accepted. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING – APPROVAL 
The applicant has offered measures to address the downstream flooding impact from 
the proposed development 

 
 

 

 

SUMMARY OF IDENTIFIED ISSUES 

Department Issue 

COMMUNITY 
ENHANCEMENT 

• Use limitations pertaining to commercial retail greenhouses. 

• Development standards pertaining to foundation planting beds, and front 
porches and balconies 

SCHOOLS 
 

Post 2020, the Public Facilities Plan recommends the revitalization/replacement 
of A.M. Davis Elementary School. However, at this time a budget has not been 
developed for the acquisition of land or construction of these school facilities as 
recommended in the Plan.   

LIBRARIES 

The Public Facilities Plan suggests the Bon Air library should be expanded to 
20,000 square-feet or what the property will allow. Land for expansion of this 
facility has not been acquired. The plan additionally recommends the expansion 
of the LaPrade library to a 35,000-40,000 square-feet or what the property will 
allow to address service gap and demand issues related to increases in 
population anticipated in this area of the county.  Land for expansion or 
replacement of this facility or new facility has not been acquired.   

PARKS 

The Public Facilities Plan identifies the need for one Regional Park of 200 acres or 
multiple community parks of same aggregate acreage, in the Midlothian Area. The 
land for this park[s] has not been acquired. 

 
 

  

Page 204 of 563



3   

 

  

Page 205 of 563



4   

 

TABLE  

REQUEST PROPERTIES 

Tax Identification Number Address 

762-705-7225 401 TURNER RD 

762-705-9750 309 TURNER RD 

763-705-0418 317 TURNER RD 

763-705-1590 213 TURNER RD 

763-705-3882 300 GRANITE SPRING RD 

763-705-7089 224 GRANITE SPRING RD 

763-705-9301 500 GRANITE SPRING RD 

763-706-7503 214 GRANITE SPRING RD 

764-703-1276 7431 CLOVERLEAF DR 

764-704-8184 7200 CLOVERLEAF DR 

765-704-0028 800 STARVIEW LN 

765-704-6589 710 STARVIEW LN 

766-704-3488 725 STARVIEW LN 

766-705-1605 707 STARVIEW LN 

766-705-1843 601 STARVIEW LN 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Page 206 of 563



5   

Comprehensive Plan - Eastern Midlothian Plan 
Classification: REGIONAL MIXED USE 

 

The designation suggests property is appropriate for an integrated mixture of regional office, shopping  
center and light industrial uses where high quality and upscale integrated residential uses may be  
appropriate. 

 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 

 

 

Chippenham Pkwy 

Midlothian Tpk 

Cloverleaf Lake 
apartments 

Mixed use - 
Stonebridge Hockliffe 

Lane 

Turner Rd 

City of 
Richmond 

Commercial 

Page 207 of 563



6   

 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact:  Darla Orr (804-717-6533) orrd@chesterfield.gov 

 

Proposal 
 

Rezoning of the property to Regional Business (C-4) with Conditional Use and Conditional Use Planned 
development is proposed to permit single family, townhouse and multifamily residential uses plus 
exceptions to ordinance requirements.  A mixed use development (known as Starview Village) is planned, 
incorporating commercial and office uses, and a maximum of 1,250 dwelling units (multi-family, 
townhouse and cluster residential).  A maximum of 150 dwelling units would be permitted south of 
Cloverleaf Drive and a maximum of 1,100 dwelling units would be permitted north of Cloverleaf Drive. 
 
The Conceptual Plan divides the property into eight (8) development tracts (or “Parcels” as referenced 
in the Textual Statement and Exhibit A, Attachments 2 and 3).  A maximum of 1,250 residential dwelling 
units would be permitted.  First floor commercial and office uses would be permitted with multi-family 
residential uses.  No maximum density has been provided for non-residential uses.  Permitted uses are 
identified by “Parcel” as outlined below and certain more intense commercial uses are prohibited as 
restricted by Textual Statement Item III.C: 
 

• Parcel 1 – Multi-family residential, office and research and development facilities 

• Parcels 2, 3 and 4 – Multi-family residential, office and commercial uses 

• Parcel 5 – Commercial and office uses 

• Parcel 6 – Residential townhomes and single family cluster style homes 

• Parcel 7 – Recreational uses, residential townhomes and multi-family residential (condominiums) 

• Parcel 8 – Indoor and outdoor storage (such as recreational vehicles) and parking 
 
Mini-storage/warehouse facilities would be permitted in Parcels 4 and 5 (on floors above first floor) and 
Parcel 8, provided in Parcel 8, such facility would be limited to serving residents and businesses of the 
development.  In addition, outdoor commercial recreational establishments would be permitted on 
Parcel 7 and in an aggregate of 1 acre for the entire remainder of the development. 
 

Ordinance Exceptions and Form Based Code 
 
Conditional Use Planned Development is requested to permit exceptions to ordinance requirements.  
Exceptions are requested to development standards, including minimum parcel size, setbacks, buffers, open 
space/recreational areas, parking, number of attached townhome units in a row, number of multi-family 
residential units per floor, building height, and access drive widths (Textual Statement, Attachment 2).  The 
applicant proposes a form based (or “SmartCode”) to provide standards to serve as the framework for the 
development and public spaces (Exhibit C, Attachment 4).  The applicant provides that the SmartCode would 
create walkable places and help to establish a sense of place.  The SmartCode includes standards for street 
design, lighting, landscaping, building configuration, location and function, and community open spaces.  
 
Textual Statement III.A. allows, at the applicant’s request, modification of the SmartCode standards by the 
Planning Commission at the time of site plan review provided any modification made by the Commission 

Page 208 of 563



7   

would maintain a sense of place in keeping with the intent of the SmartCode.  The exact layout of the 
development would be governed by the proffered conditions, SmartCode and Textual Statement.   
 

Design 
 
High quality residential development addresses the Comprehensive Plan goals for strong and sustainable 
neighborhoods that are visually attractive, well-planned and well-maintained. Further, the purpose and 
intent of the zoning ordinance to promote the health, safety, convenience and general welfare of the 
public includes the creation of convenient, attractive and harmonious communities, protection against 
overcrowding of land, and protection of the natural environment.  As such, developments that promote 
unique, viable and long lasting places and enhance the community are encouraged. 
 

The following provides a general overview of design requirements offered as part of this request 
(Attachments 1 - 4 – Proffered Conditions, Textual Statement and Exhibits B and C): 
 

• Community 
o SmartCode – form based community design  
o Conceptual Plan (Exhibit A) 
o Open space/recreational amenities   
o Public bike and trail system 
o Supplemental yard trees 

• Lots/Parcels 
o Screening of mechanical equipment 
o Paved driveways and walkways 

• Buildings 
o Any multi-family buildings greater than 3 floors will include elevators 
o Exterior building treatment (no vinyl) 
o Exposed CMU (cementitious masonry unit) foundations prohibited 
o Architectural variation between adjacent buildings for cluster homes 
o Roof treatment for townhomes and cluster homes 

 
As suggested by the Comprehensive Plan goals and the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal include quality 
design and architectural elements that should enhance the surrounding community. 

 
 

COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT 
Staff Contact: Carl Schlaudt (804-318-8674) schlaudtc@chesterfield.gov 

 

The project site is located in a revitalization area, consistent with the criteria-based approach of Road 
Cash Proffer Policy Section B.5 (as amended by the Board of Supervisors on April 26, 2017). 
Comprehensive Plan Chapter 7 (Revitalization) provides guidance for reviewing zoning cases in 
revitalization areas. The Plan states: “Zoning should encourage substantial improvement compared to 
current conditions. Each project should promote development quality and long-term sustainability that 
is, on balance, superior to existing surrounding development conditions” (RE 15).  
 

Page 209 of 563



8   

The Department of Community Enhancement supports development in revitalization areas that 
represents a substantial improvement above current area conditions. This review process affirms the 
immediate and short-term benefit of new investment, while also seeking to ensure community benefits 
of long-term project sustainability through quality materials, design, and amenity.  
 
On balance, this proposal (as reflected in the textual statement dated 12/5/19, proffers and SmartCode 
dated 12/5/19, and current code requirements), represents a substantial improvement above conditions 
of residential development in the vicinity of the project site. The proposal, if developed, could provide 
significant positive investment and amenity to this revitalization area.  
 
Development Quality 
 
This project would be a substantial improvement above surrounding area conditions in terms of: 
common recreational area, paved drives, foundation treatment, front walks, homeowner’s association 
(which is required by code for R-TH projects containing common space), sidewalks, siding material, and 
street trees. The project would be generally equivalent to surrounding development in terms of: front 
porches (not specified), garages (not specified), HVAC screening, landscaping, roof materials (specified 
for cluster homes and townhouses only), and yard trees (not specified). The project would be generally 
less equivalent to surrounding development in terms of architectural variation (specified for cluster 
homes only) and foundation planting beds (not specified). 
 
Given the project site’s location at a community gateway area that includes a major county revitalization 
initiative (Stonebridge), and in view of the sheer size of the project (109.5 acres), careful consideration 
was given to how proposed conditions of zoning and underlying code requirements would promote 
development quality. Three aspects of the proposal should be noted where development to the 
minimum standard would not contribute to revitalization goals of long-term sustainability. 
 

• Land Uses: The project proposal would allow one use that could potentially be developed to a scale 
incompatible with the vision of an integrated pedestrian oriented, mixed-use project. This use is 
“greenhouse, commercial retail” (a C-4 district permitted use). As proposed, a commercial retail 
greenhouse would have no size limitations in any T-5 transect areas.  

 

• Foundation Planting Beds: The proposal would not require landscaping adjacent to building 
foundations along public streets. The Zoning Ordinance also does not currently require this 
landscaping feature. The proposed minimum building setbacks will result in undeveloped areas 
located between the sidewalk and the buildings, ranging from at least two (2) feet in T5 transect 
areas and six (6) feet in T4 transect areas. These areas could be left without plant cover. In contrast, 
development in the surrounding area has a range of planting treatments, many of which include 
foundation planter beds or planting strips. 

 

• Front Porches and Balconies: The proposal would not require front porches on townhouse or cluster 
homes, or balconies for multifamily structures. The Zoning Ordinance likewise does not currently 
require these features, which are typical and common for newer intensive mixed-use developments 
(including the nearby Element at Stonebridge apartment project) and are important to provide 
private open space for each unit. 

 

Page 210 of 563



9   

The Department of Community Enhancement encourages improvement of the three project elements 
discussed above; and supports the proposal. 
 

 

BUDGET & MANAGEMENT 
Staff Contact: Natalie Spillman (804-318-8767) spillmann@chesterfield.gov 

 

County finance staff is responsible for managing the finances of the County and making recommendations 
to the County Administrator regarding the allocation of available resources for the provision of services and 
capital facilities to serve the citizens of the County. Finance staff will advise the County Administrator if 
changed economic circumstances require adjustments to the County’s budget or capital improvement 
program. 
 
 

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804-748-1037) adamst@chesterfield.gov 

 

The applicant is requesting to rezone approximately 109 acres to Regional Business (C-4) with a 
conditional use and conditional use planned development to permit single family, townhouse and multi-
family residential uses.  The property has frontage along the following public (state maintained) roads:  
Turner Road, Cloverleaf Drive, and Starview Lane.  
 
The applicant has provided a maximum density of 1,250 residential dwelling units (Textual Statement 
III.M.).  No maximum density has been provided by the applicant for other uses (i.e. office, 
commercial/retail).  In addition to residential uses, office uses are permitted on Parcel 1 (approximately 
11 acres) and commercial/retail uses are permitted on Parcels 2, 3, 4, and 5 (approximately 55 acres).  
This request will not limit development to a specific land use; therefore, it is difficult to anticipate trip 
generation.  Based on the Concept Plan (Exhibit A), maximum residential units, and using various trip 
rates for multi-family mid-rise units and shopping center, the development could generate 
approximately 8,800 average daily trips (ADT).  Traffic generated by development of the property will be 
distributed to Midlothian Turnpike (Route 60) and Turner Road via Cloverleaf Drive, Starview Lane, and 
Stonebridge private road network. 
 
Route 60 is identified on the County’s Thoroughfare Plan as a major arterial with a recommended right 
of way width of 120 to 200 feet.  Route 60 various from a six and eight lane divided road from 
Chippenham Parkway (Route 150) to Providence Road. In 2018, the VDOT traffic count was 61,037 
vehicles per day (Level of Service “D”). 
 
Turner Road is identified on the County’s Thoroughfare Plan as a major arterial with a recommended 
right of way width of 90 feet. Turner Road is a five-lane undivided section (two lanes in each direction 
with a center turn lane).  In 2018, the VDOT traffic count was 12,479 vehicles per day (Level of Service 
“B”). 
 
Section 19.1-231 of the County Code outlines the general requirements to meet the needs of the traffic 
generated by a proposed development, including acceptable levels of service. This proposed residential 
development would contribute to an identifiable need for transportation improvements. The applicant 
has offered the following: 

Page 211 of 563



10   

 
Dedications (Proffered Condition 6): 

• Forty-five (45) feet of right of way along the east side of Turner Road. 
 
Vehicular Access (Proffered Condition 7): 

• One (1) entrance/exit to Turner Road. 
 
Road Improvements (Proffered Condition 8): 
 

• Connect Starview Lane to Stonebridge Shopping Center (with Parcel 1 development). 

• Improve Starview Lane to two (2) ten (10) foot wide lanes and provide on-street parking along 
both sides from Cloverleaf Drive to approximately 1,600 feet north. 

• Improve Cloverleaf Drive to two (2) eleven (11) foot wide lanes and four (4) foot paved shoulders 
along both sides from Turner Road to the Dominion Energy easement. 

• Improve Cloverleaf Drive to two (2) twelve (12) foot wide lanes and provide on-street parking 
along both sides from the Dominion Energy easement to the Starview Lane intersection. 

• Construction of a three (3)-lane typical section (i.e. two (2) westbound lanes and one (1) 
eastbound lane) along Cloverleaf Drive at the Turner Road intersection. 

• Construction of additional pavement along the northbound lanes of Turner Road to provide a 
separate right turn lane at the Cloverleaf Drive and Site Road A intersections.  

• Traffic signal modifications at the Cloverleaf Drive/Turner Road intersection. 

• Sidewalk along the east side of Turner Road for the entire property frontage. 

• Ten (10) foot shared use path along Cloverleaf Drive from Turner Road to the proposed North 
South Pedestrian pathway. 

 
Noise from the traffic along Chippenham Parkway (Route 150), a limited access facility per the County’s 
Thoroughfare Plan, may impact the proposed multi-family development on Parcel 1.  Parcel 1 permits 
office, research and development, and R-MF (residential multi-family) uses.  The applicant has proffered 
if Parcel 1 is developed for residential uses, then all the residential buildings shall have a 200-foot setback 
from the existing Chippenham Parkway right-of-way. 
 
According to the Department of Community Enhancement, the property is located within a revitalization 
area. Under the Road Cash Proffer Policy, no road cash proffer will be accepted for development in these 
areas. 
 
Staff supports this request. 
 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Adam Wilkerson (804-674-2384) adam.wilkerson@vdot.virginia.gov 

 

The applicant has submitted a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for the Starview Village, received by VDOT on 
May 1, 2019.  VDOT provided comments to the County regarding the TIA on June 10, 2019.  The applicant 
has requested the use of a mixed-use urban planning design criterion, the SmartCode, to govern the 
proposed roadway and intersection geometrics for the site.  VDOT will require that the development 
comply with the current Secondary Street Acceptance Requirements (SSAR), unless the developer 

Page 212 of 563



11   

follows the process for multi-modal design standards for mixed-use urban centers detailed in Appendix 
B(2) of the VDOT Road Design Manual. VDOT recommends that the zoning case not advance to the 
Planning Commission until all VDOT and CDOT comments on the TIA have been fully addressed. VDOT 
does not support the on-street parking within the functional area of any intersection. 
 

 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (804-717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 

Mission 
 

The mission of Fire and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) is to protect life, property and the 
environment through a comprehensive fire and life safety program that ensures an adequate and timely 
response to emergencies.  

 
Response Times 
 

The proposed development is located in the urban response zone for which Fire & EMS has a goal of 
responding to at least 90% of the calls for service in under seven (7) minutes. Fire and EMS is currently 
unable to meet that goal.  
  
Nearby Fire/EMS Facilities 
 

• The Buford Fire Station, Company Number 9 

• The Forest View Volunteer Rescue Squad 
 
Anticipated Fire & EMS Impacts/Needs 
 

Based on an average of .418 calls per dwelling, it is estimated that this development will generate 371 
annual calls for Fire/EMS services.   
 
Additional Fire and EMS Comments 
 

Buildings or facilities exceeding 30 feet in height or three stories shall have at least two means of fire 
apparatus access for each structure. 
 
When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire protection, 
and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process. 
 
 

SCHOOLS 
Staff Contact: Atonja Allen (804-318-8740) atonja_allen@ccpsnet.net 

 

Mission 
 

High performing, high quality public schools contribute to the quality of life and economic vitality of the 
County. The comprehensive plan suggests a greater focus should be placed on linking schools with 

Page 213 of 563



12   

communities by providing greater access, flexible designs and locations that better meet the needs of 
the communities in which they are located.  
 

Capital Improvements 
 

The School Board FY2020 adopted Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) continues to support the 2013 voter 
approved school revitalization program that will replace or renovate ten schools and construct one new 
elementary school to add capacity in the Midlothian area of the county.  The ten existing facilities that 
are part of the revitalization program are Beulah Elementary School, Crestwood Elementary School, Enon 
Elementary School, Ettrick Elementary School, Harrowgate Elementary School, Matoaca Elementary 
School, Reams Elementary School, Manchester Middle School, Providence Middle School, and Monacan 
High School.  A replacement Manchester Middle School is planned for construction on the existing school 
site, and the Beulah Elementary School, Enon Elementary School, Providence Middle School, and 
Monacan High School projects are complete.  Additional school construction projects include a Matoaca 
Middle School addition on the east campus site, and the new Matoaca Elementary School will be 
constructed on the existing west campus site.  Upon completion of the east campus addition, the current 
west campus building will be demolished and Matoaca Middle School will operate as a single, unified 
campus.  Information on the CIP and School Board approved construction projects can be found in the 
financial section of the CCPS Adopted Budget for FY2020. 
 

Anticipated School Impacts 
 Elementary 

(PK to 5) 
Middle 
(6 to 8) 

High 
(9 to 12) 

Total (1) 

Anticipated Student Yield by 
School Type 

135 81 89 305 

 

Schools Currently Serving Area A.M. Davis Providence James River  
 

2019-20 
School Year 

Current Enrollment 739 1,100 1,904 
Design Capacity (2) 780 1,101 2,208 
Enrollment Percent of Design 
Capacity 

95% 100% 86% 

Program Capacity (3) 727 1,152 2,164 
Enrollment Percent of Program 
Capacity 

102% 95% 88% 

Total Number of Trailers  10 0 2 
Number of Classroom Trailers 8 0 2 
Note: 
(1) Based upon the average number of students per dwelling unit for each of the school attendance zones where the proposal 
is located. Student Generation Factor (2017) is the actual total number of students by grade level divided by the actual total 
number of housing units by housing type. 
(2) Design capacity is the maximum number of students the building can accommodate based on the Virginia Department of 
Education Standards of Quality and the architectural program design of the existing building including all interior and 
exterior renovations to date and an inventory of all available space.  Design capacity does not include site-based initiatives 
and is thus not subject to frequent change and represents prototypical design capacity using VDOE standards. 
(3) Program capacity is the maximum number of students the building can accommodate based on the Virginia Department 
of Education Standards of Quality and the current school programming that may adjust the number of rooms used for core 
or grade-level classrooms in the overall building design capacity.  

 

 

Page 214 of 563



13   

Public Facilities Plan 
 

Post 2020, the Public Facilities Plan recommends the revitalization/replacement of A.M. Davis 
Elementary School. However, at this time a budget has not been developed for the acquisition 
of land or construction of this school facility as recommended in the Plan.  
 

Additional School Comments 
 

Over time, this case combined with other tentative residential developments, infill 
developments, and approved residential zoning cases in the area may cause these schools to 
reach or exceed their capacity.  
 
 

LIBRARIES 

Staff Contact: Jennifer Stevens (804-751-4998) stevensj@chesterfield.gov 
 

Countywide Library Needs 
 

The public library system’s role in the county has expanded beyond its traditional function as a resource 
for information and materials, and now serves as a community gathering place for educational, cultural 
and informational services; community support during emergencies; economic development; and 
revitalization activities.  

 
Anticipated Libraries Impacts 
 

• Bon Air Library 

• LePrade Library 
 
 

Additional Library Comments: 
 

The Public Facilities Plan suggests the Bon Air library should be expanded to 20,000 square-feet or what 
the property will allow. Land for expansion of this facility has not been acquired. The plan additionally 
recommends the expansion of the LaPrade library to a 35,000-40,000 square-feet or what the property 
will allow to address service gap and demand issues related to increases in population anticipated in this 
area of the county.  Land for expansion or replacement of this facility or new facility has not been 
acquired.   
 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION 
Staff Contact: Janit Llewellyn (804-751-4482) llewellynja@chesterfield.gov 

 

Mission 
 

The County supports a high-quality park system to provide residents and visitors with balanced access 
to active and passive recreation opportunities. The 2018 level of service is 7.5 acres of regional, 

Page 215 of 563



14   

community and neighborhood parkland per 1,000 persons whereas the target level of service is 9 acres 
per 1,000 persons. 

 

Nearby Parks Facilities  
 

• Davis Athletic Complex 
• Providence Athletic Complex 
• Manchester Middle School 
• Stonebridge Recreation Center 
 

Public Facilities Plan  
 

The Public Facilities Plan identifies the need for one Regional Park of 200 acres or multiple community parks 
of same aggregate acreage, in the Midlothian Area. The land for this park[s] has not been acquired. 
 
The Bikeways and Trails Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan recommends provision of pedestrian/bicycle 
facilities along all routes shown on the Plan and connections from these routes and existing 
pedestrian/bicycle facilities to adjacent developments.  The Plan shows a route adjacent or within this 
property connecting to the Stonebridge Recreation Center and Neighborhood Park.  
 

Recommendation  
 
The Applicant, in their proffered conditions, has addressed the recommendations of the Bikeways and Trails 
Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan and broad general goal of pedestrian connectivity within the 
community. The current Stonebridge area is a highly walkable, bikeable community. Their master plan 
connects the project area to the Chesterfield Bikeways and Trails system along the Powerline and/or 
throughout the development along Cloverleaf drive and the east-west pedestrian trail and sidewalk along 
Turner Road. Additional community open space, as proposed by the applicant would support Stonebridge 
Recreation Center and broader Turner Road service area.     
 

 Summary Of Identified Issues  
 

None 
 

Additional Parks Comments  
 

This project will generate demand for development of additional public recreation which could be 
accomplished by enhancing the future proposed neighborhood park associated with the Stonebridge 
Recreation Center. 
 
Outdoor recreation opportunities to complement Stonebridge Recreation Center may include: 

• Open fitness areas to include outdoor gym and fitness opportunities 

• Unscheduled pen play area for informal sports, yoga in the park and meditation classes 

• Space to accommodate evening programming including outdoor movies 

  

Page 216 of 563



15   

 

Page 217 of 563



16   

 

UTILITIES 
Staff Contact: Matthew Rembold (706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 

 
 

Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
 

Utility Type 
Currently 
Serviced 

Size of Closest Existing 
Lines 

Connection Required by County Code 

Water No 12”                              Yes 

Wastewater No 18”, 15”, 12”                              Yes 
 
 

Additional Utility Comments: 
 
The applicant requests a mixed-use development consisting of multi-family, townhouses, cluster housing, 
condominiums, office, retail, and other commercial uses using form-based Smart Code design guidelines.  
The textual statement indicates a maximum density of 150 dwelling units south of Cloverleaf Drive, and 
1,100 dwelling units north of Cloverleaf Drive.   
 
The subject properties are located within the mandatory water and wastewater connection areas for new 
residential and non-residential structures.  The applicant has proffered the use of county water and county 
wastewater for this project.  The subject parcels have access to both county water and county wastewater, 
with an 18”, 15”, and 12” wastewater line running through the property along Pocosham Creek, and a 12” 
water lines traversing the properties along Turner Road, Cloverleaf Drive, and Michael Gray Way. 
 

Based on the number of proposed units, the Utilities Department will require multiple water line feeds to 
ensure reliable service to these customers.  Additionally, water and wastewater lines will be designed to 
allow for extension towards properties without access to county water and wastewater along Starview 
Lane.  To address the size and complexity of this project on the county’s utility system, the applicant has 
proffered completion of an overall utilities master plan, to include hydraulic analysis of the county’s water 
and wastewater systems, with the first site plan or tentative subdivision plan on the property.  Further, the 
applicant has proffered to address any capacity related improvements identified on the overall utilities 
master plan necessary to support the development of this project. 
 
The Utilities Department supports this case. 
 

Page 218 of 563



17   

Page 219 of 563



 

 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Ward (804-748-1028) WardR@chesterfield.gov 

 

Geography 
 

The majority of the subject properties drains into an unnamed stream which traverses through the 
properties.  The stream drains from northwest to southeast, under Cloverleaf Drive and Starview 
Lane to the existing ponds at the Cloverleaf Lake Apartments, and then under Chippenham Parkway 
to Pocoshock Creek.  A small portion of properties drains from west to east to an existing ditch along 
Chippenham Parkway, then directly under Chippenham Parkway and to Pocoshock Creek.   All of 
the subject properties are located within the Falling Creek Watershed. 
 

Natural Resources 
 

A Resource Protection Area (RPA) Designation has been submitted to and confirmed by the 
Department of Environmental Engineering – Water Quality Section.  RPA exists along the stream 
which traverses through most of the proposed development, as well as two small tributaries of the 
stream.  A Water Quality Impact Assessment must be submitted to and approved by the Department 
of Environmental Engineering and/or the Board of Supervisors for any improvements which 
encroach into the RPA.   

 
Additionally, there are areas of wetlands associated with the streams on the properties.  
Wetlands and/or streams shall not be impacted without approval from the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers and/or the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.   
 

Drainage 
 
The majority of the subject properties drains via an unnamed stream to the existing ponds at the 
Cloverleaf Lake Apartments, which were developed prior to the adoption of the Floodplain 
Ordinance in 1983.  Since the mid-1970s, these apartments have experienced flooding of several 
of the units within at least one of the buildings.  
 
With the proposed development, any increase in the runoff peak rate or volume from the 
development in this watershed upstream of the apartment complex will result in an increase in the 
amount and duration of the flooding of the existing apartments.  The applicant has offered to 
address the downstream flooding impact from the proposed development.  (Proffered Condition 
4) 
 

Stormwater Management 
 
The development of the subject properties will be subject to the Part IIB technical criteria of the 
VSMP Regulations for water quality and quantity.  Any areas of forest/open space used for 
stormwater quality compliance must be outside the limits of the residential lots, unless otherwise 
approved by the Department of Environmental Engineering. 
 
 

Page 220 of 563



19  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

 

CASE HISTORY 
 

Applicant Submittals 
2/18/19 Application submitted 

4/12 & 6/7/19 Application amended 

6/4, 6/26, 8/7, 
8/12, 9/3, 

11/8, 11/18 
and 12/5/19 

Revised proffered conditions, Textual Statement and exhibits submitted 

 

Community Meeting 
9/5/19 Issues Discussed: 

• Existing traffic concerns and impact of development (Future 
improvements to Midlothian Turnpike/Chippenham Parkway 
interchange; traffic, speeding and curves on Schloss Road from Hull 
Street Road to Starview Lane; connectivity/access to Kingsport Lane) 

• Anticipated housing prices and impacts on area schools 

• Enhancement to Corridor; attracting residents back to area and 
maintaining business growth 

 

Planning Commission 
09/17/19 Action – DEFERRED TO November 19, 2019 ON THE COMMISSION’S OWN 

MOTION WITH THE APPLICANT’S CONSENT. 

11/19/19 Action – DEFERRED TO December 17, 2019 ON THE COMMISSION’S OWN 
MOTION WITH THE APPLICANT’S CONSENT. 

12/17/19 Citizens Comments: 

• Consideration should be given to sidewalk and streetscape 
improvements along Midlothian Turnpike and Turner Road 

• Open space/recreational area to be retained 
 

Applicant’s Comments: 
The applicant’s agent noted that approximately 40 percent of the property 
will be in open space which includes Resource Protection Areas (RPAs) and 
wetlands.  Recreational amenities and trails will be located within these 
areas as permitted.  He added that the proposal includes pedestrian 
interconnectivity.  
 

Commission Discussion: 
In response to questions from the Bermuda District Commissioner, staff 
confirmed that re-evaluation of criteria to determine revitalization areas 
has begun, and, that overtime, areas such as Stonebridge, may longer be 
considered revitalization areas due to reinvestment projects. 
 

Recommendation – APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROFFERED 
CONDITIONS IN ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Motion:  Jones    Second:  Freye 
AYES:  Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan and Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 

Page 221 of 563



20  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

PROFERRED CONDITIONS 
December 5, 2019 

Note: Both the Planning Commission and staff recommend acceptance of the following 
proffered conditions, as offered by the Applicant. 

 
1. Master Plan. The Textual Statement dated December 5, 2019, and all referenced 

exhibits shall be considered the Master Plan. (P) 
 

2. Public Water and Sewer. Public water and wastewater will be used. (U) 
 

3. Utilities Master Plan.   
A. The Developer will submit to the Utilities Department an overall utilities master 

plan for the development. The utilities master plan will be submitted with the first 
site plan or tentative subdivision plan on the Property.   

B. The Developer will perform and submit a hydraulic analysis of the county’s water 
and wastewater system to quantify the existing capacity as part of the overall 
utilities master plan. Any capacity related improvements required to support the 
demands of this development will be reflected on the overall utilities master plan. 

C. To the extent existing capacity of sewer and water lines cannot support the 
demands of this development, the developer shall be responsible for the 
necessary water and/or sewer line improvements. (U) 
  

4. Stormwater.  
The post-development peak discharge rates for the 1, 2, and 10-year storm events shall 
not exceed the pre-development peak discharge rates for the 1, 2 and 10-year storm 
events, respectively.  The post-development 100-year peak discharge rate shall not 
exceed the 50-year pre-development peek discharge rate.  Provided, however, in lieu of 
providing  onsite detention/retention of the 100-year storm, if stormwater improvements 
per a watershed drainage study approved by the Department of Environmental 
Engineering are implemented prior to the commencement of the development, then the 
100-year post-development peak discharge rate condition is satisfied if the discharge rate 
is consistent with the implemented improvements. (EE) 

 
5. Parks and Trails. 

A. North South Path Dedication. Prior to any site plan approval, the developer shall 
dedicate to the County a public easement for the County’s Comprehensive Plan 
bike and trail system as generally shown on Exhibit A to the Textual Statement. 
The minimum width of the easement shall be 20 feet, and the exact location of 
the easement shall be determined at time of site plan approval for any of the 
parcels. 

B. East West Pedestrian Path. To the extent permitted by Environmental Engineering 
and Planning, a path with a minimum width of 6 feet shall be provided generally 
as depicted on Exhibit A. The exact location shall be determined and designed in 
conjunction with site plan approval for Parcel 4. (P&R) 
 

Page 222 of 563



21  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

6. Dedication. In conjunction with recordation of the initial subdivision plat, prior to any 
site plan approval or within ninety (90) days from a written request by the Chesterfield 
Department of Transportation, whichever occurs first, forty-five (45) feet of right-of-way 
along the east side of Turner Road, measured from the centerline of that part of Turner 
Road immediately adjacent to the property, shall be dedicated, free and unrestricted, to 
and for the benefit of Chesterfield County. (T) 
 

7. Access. Direct vehicular access from the Property to Turner Road shall be limited to one 
(1) entrance/exit. The exact location of the access shall be approved by the 
Transportation Department. (T) 
 

8. Road Improvements. To provide an adequate roadway system, the developer shall be 
responsible for the following road improvements and shall be completed, as determined 
by the Transportation Department.  The exact design, length, and/or modifications of 
these road improvements shall be approved by the Transportation Department.  If any of 
the road improvements identified below are provided by others, as determined by the 
Transportation Department, then the specific road improvement shall no longer be 
required. 

 
A. Connecting Starview Lane to the Stonebridge Shopping Center with the 

development of Parcel 1. 
 

B. Improving Starview Lane to provide two (2) ten (10) foot wide travel lanes and two 
(2) seven (7) foot parking lanes from the Cloverleaf Drive/Starview intersection to 
approximately 1,600 feet north of the Cloverleaf Drive/Starview intersection, as 
generally shown on Exhibit C. 

 
C. Improving Cloverleaf Drive from Turner Road to the eastern edge of the Dominion 

transmission line easement to provide two (2) eleven (11) foot wide travel lanes 
and a four (4) foot wide paved shoulder on both sides of the road, as generally 
shown on Exhibit C. 

 
D. Improving Cloverleaf Drive, from the eastern edge of the Dominion transmission 

line easement to the Cloverleaf Drive/Starview Lane intersection to provide two 
(2) twelve (12) foot wide travel lanes and two (2) seven (7) foot parking lanes, as 
generally shown on Exhibit C. 

 
E. Construction of a three-lane typical section (i.e. two westbound turn lanes and 

one eastbound lane) along Cloverleaf Drive at the intersection with Turner Road. 
 

F. Construction of additional pavement along the northbound lanes of Turner Road 
at its intersection with Cloverleaf Drive to provide a separate right turn lane.  

 
G. Bearing the full cost of traffic signalization modifications at the Cloverleaf 

Drive/Turner Road intersection to accommodate the required road 
improvements.  

 

Page 223 of 563



22  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

H. Constructing additional pavement along the northbound lanes of Turner Road at 
its intersection with Site Road A to provide a separate right turn lane 
 

I. Constructing a VDOT standard sidewalk along the east side of Turner Road for the 
entire Property frontage. 
 

J. Construction of a ten (10) foot wide shared use path along Cloverleaf Drive from 
Turner Road to the proposed intersection with the North South Path, as generally 
shown on Exhibit A as “E.” At time of site plan, the shared use path alignment and 
construction limits may be modified as determined by the Planning Department. 
Provided however, the exact location shall be determined at time of site plan to 
ensure consistency with the County Bikeway and Trails Plan. 
 

K. Dedicating to Chesterfield County, free and unrestricted, of any additional right-
of-way (or easements) required for the improvements identified above.  In the 
event the Applicant is unable to acquire the “off-site” right-of-way that is 
necessary for the road improvements identified in 8.C., 8.E., 8.F., 8.G., 8.H., and 
8.J., the Applicant may request, in writing, that Chesterfield County acquire such 
right-of-way as a public road improvement. All costs associated with the 
acquisition of the right-of-way shall be borne by the Applicant. In the event 
Chesterfield County chooses not to assist the Applicant in acquisition of the “off-
site” right-of-way, the Applicant shall be relieved of the obligation to acquire the 
“off-site” right-of-way and shall provide the road improvements to the extent they 
can be constructed within available right-of- way, as determined by the 
Transportation Department. (T) 

 
9. Phasing Plan. Prior to any tentative subdivision plan, construction plan, or site plan 

approval, whichever occurs first, a phasing plan for the required road improvements, as 
identified in Proffered Condition 8, shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Transportation Department. (T) 
 

10. Elevator. Any multifamily residential building with more than 3 floors shall contain 
elevator(s). (P and BI) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

Page 224 of 563



23  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

 ATTACHMENT 2 

EXHIBIT A - TEXTUAL STATEMENT 
December 5, 2019 

 

 
I. REZONE. Rezone approximately 109.5 acres (the “Property”) from C-5, R-7, and A to C-

4 with a Conditional Use Planned Development and Conditional Uses to allow use and 
standards exceptions as described herein, and as provided in the proffered conditions. 

 
II. EXHIBITS. Below are listed the Exhibits incorporated as part of the Textual Statement. 

 
A. Starview Village Concept Plan by Timmons Group dated August 30, 2019 

 
B. Starview Village SmartCode dated August 30, 2019 

 
C. Starview Village Public Roads Plan by Timmons Group dated August 30, 

2019 

 
D. Starview Village Pedestrian Shed Plan by Timmons Group dated August 

30, 2019 
 

III. GENERAL CONDITIONS. 

 

A. SmartCode. The intent of the Starview Village SmartCode (“SmartCode”) is to 
provide a framework for the development of public spaces in Starview Village. 
The SmartCode is not aspirational, but an enforceable document that, when 
followed in design, creates walkable places and helps establish a sense of place. 
Unless otherwise provided herein, or unless modified at the request of the 
developer by the Planning Commission at the time of site plan approval, all lots, 
building, and development standards and conditions shall be governed by and be 
consistent with the SmartCode. Any modification by the Planning Commission 
should maintain a sense of place in keeping with the intent of the SmartCode. 
To the extent the SmartCode addresses a standard or condition, the SmartCode 
controls over other Zoning Ordinance requirements.  Provided, however, to the 
extent that the SmartCode may be inconsistent or conflict with an express 
requirement in the Textual Statement, then the language of the Textual 
Statement controls. Further, unless addressed by the Textual Statement, 
Proffered Conditions, or SmartCode, R-TH uses shall comply with County 
Ordinances that at time of zoning currently govern the R-TH Zoning District and 
R-MF uses will comply with County Ordinances that at time of zoning currently 
govern the R-MF Zoning District. To the extent applicable, the Emerging Growth 
District Standards that exist at time of zoning will apply instead of Post 
Development District Standards. The exact layout of the development shall be 
governed by the Proffered Conditions, the language of the Textual Statement 
and the SmartCode. 

 
B. Minimum Parcel Size. There shall be no minimum parcel size. 

Page 225 of 563



24  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

 

 
C. Prohibited Uses. Unless further restricted for a particular parcel as set forth 

herein, all C-4 uses by right or with restrictions shall be permitted, except the 
following shall be prohibited: 

i. All restricted uses identified as R(2) uses in the Zoning Ordinance with 
the exception of the following uses:  

a) fabric goods manufacturing,  
b) mini-storage/mini-warehousing facility  
c) research development facility 

ii. Automobile repair 
iii. Automobile sales  
iv. Automobile self service station  
v. Automobile self service station, unmanned, but charging stations for 

electric vehicles are permitted  
vi. Automobile service station 
vii. Automobile wash  
viii. Check cashing incidental use 
ix.  Clock manufacturing 
x. Columbarium  
xi. Conference center 
xii. Contractor’s office and display room  
xiii. Crematorium 
xiv. Electric power Wind Energy System (WES)  
xv. Feed sales 
xvi. Flea market, indoor 
xvii. Funeral hone 
xviii. Heating supply sales, service and display room 
xix. Hospital 
xx. Intercom accessory to permitted use  
xxi. Kennel, commercial 
xxii. Mass transportation station/terminal 
xxiii. Mortuary 
xxiv. Motorcycle, go-cart, all-terrain vehicle or similar type vehicle 

operation  
xxv. Parking lot, commercial 
xxvi. Parking lot, park and ride  
xxvii. Recycling receiving center, excluding recycling drop off bins 
xxviii. School, private School, public 
xxix. Telegraph service Telephone exchange 
xxx. Warehouse, accessory to permitted use 
xxxi. Warehouse, principal use  

 
D. Restricted Uses. 

i. Mini-storage/mini-warehouse facility. Prohibited on all parcels except on 
Parcels 4 and 5 (on floors above first floors) and Parcel 8. Provided however, 
mini-storage/mini-warehouse facility on Parcel 8 is limited to serving residents 
and businesses in the development.  

Page 226 of 563



25  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

ii. Recreational establishments, commercial – outdoor. Limited to one (1) acre in 
the aggregate for all parcels in the development, except for Parcel 7, where there 
shall be no area limitations. 
 

E. Buffers. There shall be no buffers between uses, and no buffers to adjacent 
properties except for the eastern property line of Parcel 6. 
 

F. Open Space, Common Area, and Recreational Uses. Unless otherwise provided, 
the parcels with R-TH or R-MF uses combined shall have an aggregate minimum 
of eight (8) acres of open space, exclusive of wetlands and resource protection 
areas. A minimum of four (4) acres of common area, in the aggregate, shall be 
provided for parcels with R-TH and R-MF residential uses, and each parcel with R-
TH or R-MF residential uses shall have access to active recreation. 

 
G. Building Materials. All buildings shall have exterior wall surfaces constructed of 

brick, stone or cultured stone, architectural masonry, E.I.F.S., siding or trim, or 
cementitious board paneling, siding or trim, architectural metals, or other 
materials comparable in quality as approved by the Planning Department, all 
exclusive of windows, doors, cornices, accent bands, and architectural 
treatments which may be constructed of metal, fiberglass, E.I.F.S., stucco, or 
other materials comparable in quality as approved by the Planning Department. 
No vinyl products shall be permitted, with the exception of windows, which may 
be vinyl clad.  All roofing materials for cluster homes and townhouses shall have 
a minimum thirty-year manufacturer’s warranty, and the following materials 
may be used for roofing on townhouses and cluster homes: 
- Dimension shingles 
- Natural Slate 
- Synthetic slate or shake 
- Standing seam metal (including copper) 

 
H. Quality. 

i. HVAC Equipment shall be screened from public view. 
ii. Foundation. Exposed CMU foundations are prohibited.  
iii. Driveways. Driveways and private walkways shall be paved. Exposed 
aggregate driveways are prohibited. 

 
I. Parcels. The numbered parcels identified on Exhibit A are comprised of the  

respective property tax IDs: 
 

i. Parcel 1: 766-705-1843 and 766-705-1605.  
 
ii. Parcel 2: 765-704-6589. 
 

iii. Parcel 3: 764-704-8184. 
 
iv. Parcel 4: 763-705-9301, 763-705-0418, 762-705-7225, and 762-705-

9750. 
 

Page 227 of 563



26  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

v. Parcel 5: 763-705-1590, 763-705-3882, 763-706-7503, 763-705-7094, 
and 763-703-7089. 

 
vi. Parcel 6: 764-703-1276. 

 
vii. Parcel 7: 765-704-0028. 
 
viii. Parcel 8: 766-704-3488. 

 
 

J. Parking. In calculating required minimum parking spaces, parking spaces on 
immediately adjacent parcels may be aggregated. Provided further, parking 
spaces located on Parcel 8 may be included in calculating minimum parking 
spaces for parcels 1, 2, and 7. Each site plan shall address minimum parking 
requirements for that site and may incorporate existing available parking 
allocated as shared parking. An overall development parking calculation shall be 
provided with each site plan submission.  On-street parking shall be calculated 
as part of the required parking. Parking requirements are set forth in Table 11 
of the SmartCode. 

 
K. R-TH. The number of attached townhouses in any R-TH building shall not 

exceed 8. 
 

L. Height. Height shall be limited as set forth in the SmartCode.  Buildings in T5 
shall be limited to a maximum of 5 stories and 3 stories in T4. 

 
M. Density. There shall be a maximum density of 150 dwellings units south of 

Cloverleaf Drive. There shall be a maximum density of 1,100 dwelling units north 
of Cloverleaf Drive. 

 
N. Parking Setbacks.  There shall be a 5-foot minimum setback of all parking spaces 

from public rights of way. The minimum setback of parking spaces from any 
building shall be governed by the Uniform Building Code. 

 
O. T5 Parcel Floor and Height Requirements and Limitations: 

 
i. There shall a  maximum of forty (40) dwelling units per floor of any 
multifamily use building. 

 
ii. R-MF Buildings. All multifamily buildings shall have a minimum of 
4 stories, except condominium buildings may have a minimum of 3 
stories. 

 

P. Access Drives. Access drives shall be a minimum of 20 feet in width. 
 

Q. Parcel 1. Parcel 1 shall be governed by SmartCode T5. Permitted uses include 
office, research and development facilities, and R-MF. If residential uses are 
developed on Parcel 1, then Parcel 1 shall be developed as R-MF with accessory 
uses, including rental and management offices. Provided, however, restaurants, 

Page 228 of 563



27  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

bars, and entertainment uses shall be permitted on roof tops of R-MF buildings. 
Provided further, if Parcel 1 is developed with residential uses, then all 
residential buildings shall have a 200-foot setback from the existing Chippenham 
Parkway right of way. A maximum of five (5) percent of all apartment units may 
have more than two (2) bedrooms, and no apartment unit will have more than 
three (3) bedrooms. 

 

R. Parcel 2. Parcel 2 shall be governed by SmartCode T5. Permitted uses include C-
4 and accessory uses allowed herein and R-MF uses. If residential uses are 
developed on Parcel 2, then uses on Parcel 2 shall be limited to R-MF and accessory 
uses, which may include a sales, rental, or management office. Provided 
however, there may be retail uses on the first floor of a multi-story building and 
that restaurants, bars, and entertainment uses shall be permitted on roof tops 
of R-MF buildings. A maximum of five (5) percent of all apartment units may have 
more than two (2) bedrooms, and no apartment unit will have more than three 
(3) bedrooms. 

 
S. Parcel 3. Parcel 3 shall be governed by SmartCode T5. Permitted uses include C-

4 and accessory uses allowed herein and R-MF uses.  If residential uses are 
developed on Parcel 3, then uses on Parcel 3 shall be limited to R-MF and accessory 
uses, which may include a sales, rental, or management office. Provided 
however, there may be retail uses on the first floor of a multi-story building and 
restaurants, bars, and entertainment uses shall be permitted on roof tops of R-
MF buildings. A maximum of five (5) percent of all apartment units may have 
more than two (2) bedrooms, and no apartment unit will have more than three 
(3) bedrooms.  

 
T. Parcel 4. Parcel 4 shall be governed by SmartCode T5. Permitted uses include C-

4 and accessory uses allowed herein and R-MF uses. There shall be a minimum 
of 10 acres of open space, including wetlands and resource protection areas. 
Provided further that any retail uses, other than mini-storage/mini-warehouse 
facilities, shall be limited to the first floor of any building, which must be a 
multistory building. A maximum of five (5) percent of all apartment units may 
have more than two (2) bedrooms, and no unit apartment will have more than 
three (3) bedrooms. 

 
U. Parcel 5. Parcel 5 shall be governed by SmartCode T5. Permitted uses include C-4 

and accessory uses allowed herein. Provided however, no residential uses shall 
be permitted. 

 

V. Parcel 6. Parcel 6 shall be governed by SmartCode T4. Parcel 6 shall be limited to 
R-TH uses, cluster homes, and accessory uses, including sales offices, model 
townhouses and model cluster homes. Provided further, any cluster home lots 
shall be a minimum of 5,000 square feet. Any townhouse on Parcel 6 shall be 
north of the parcel division line as generally shown on the Master Plan. There 
shall be a minimum of 3 acres of open space, which may include wetlands and 
resource protection areas.  There shall be architectural variation of front 
elevations among the cluster homes, and adjacent cluster homes and cluster 

Page 229 of 563



28  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

homes directly across the street from each other shall be architecturally varied.  
Variation in the front elevation may not be achieved by simply mirroring the 
façade but may be accomplished by providing at least two (2) of the following 
architectural changes: 

i. adding or removing a porch or covered entry or increasing or decreasing 
the length of the porch or entry 

ii. varying the location and/or style of a front facing gable(s) 

iii. alternating the location of the garage 

iv. providing different materials and/or siding types on at least 50% of the 
elevation 

v. providing a different roof type/roof line. 

 
W. Parcel 7. Parcel 7 shall be governed by SmartCode T4 and shall be limited to active 

recreation uses, R-TH uses or condominiums and accessory uses, including sales 
and management offices. Provided further, Parcel 7 shall have a minimum of 10 
acres of open space, which may include wetlands and resource protection areas. 

 
X. Parcel 8. Parcel 8 shall be governed by SmartCode T5. Parcel 8 may be used for 

parking for other parcels. It may also be used for indoor storage or outdoor 
storage, including recreational vehicle, non-commercial equipment, and vehicle 
storage for residents of any parcel, provided such vehicles and equipment are 
screened from view from public roadways. Any indoor or outdoor storage shall 
only be for the use of residents and businesses of the development and not 
available for general public use. The exact treatment of the screening shall be 
approved at time of site plan for any development of Parcel 8. 

 
Y. Minimum Retail and Office Gross Floor Area. There shall be no minimum gross 

floor area requirement for retail and office uses. 
  

Page 230 of 563



29  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

 

 ATTACHMENT 3 

EXHIBIT B: CONCEPT PLAN 
August 30, 2019 

 

Page 231 of 563



30  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

 

 ATTACHMENT 4 

EXHIBIT C: SMARTCODE 
August 30, 2019 

 
 

Page 232 of 563



31  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 233 of 563



32  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 234 of 563



33  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 235 of 563



34  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 236 of 563



35  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 237 of 563



36  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 238 of 563



37  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 239 of 563



38  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 240 of 563



39  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 241 of 563



40  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 242 of 563



41  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 243 of 563



42  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 244 of 563



43  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 245 of 563



44  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 246 of 563



45  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 247 of 563



46  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 248 of 563



47  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 249 of 563



48  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 250 of 563



49  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 251 of 563



50  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 252 of 563



51  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 253 of 563



52  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 254 of 563



53  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 255 of 563



54  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 256 of 563



55  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 257 of 563



56  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 258 of 563



57  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 259 of 563



58  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 260 of 563



59  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

Page 261 of 563



60  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

 
 
 
  

Page 262 of 563



61  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

 ATTACHMENT 5 

EXHIBIT D: PUBLIC ROADS PLAN 
August 30, 2019 

 
  

Page 263 of 563



62  19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS 

 ATTACHMENT 6 

EXHIBIT E: PEDESTRIAN SHED PLAN 
August 30, 2019 

 

Page 264 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 16.B.
 

Subject:
20SN0526: 29:11 Chesterfield, LLC (project commonly known as Courthouse Landing), Dale District
 
Board Action Requested:

 
Summary of Information:
20SN0526: In Dale Magisterial District, 29:11 Chesterfield, LLC requests a rezoning from Agricultural (A) 
and General Business (C-5) to Community Business (C-3), with conditional use  and conditional use planned 
development to permit multi-family and townhome uses plus to permit exceptions to ordinance requirements 
and amendment of zoning district map on 123.9 acres located at the northeast quadrant of Iron Bridge and 
Courthouse Roads, also fronting the south line of Route 288.  Density will be controlled by zoning conditions 
or ordinance standards. The Comprehensive Plan suggests the property is appropriate for Corporate Office 
uses. Tax IDs 768-666-9817, 769-667-9512, 770-664, -Part of 0099, 773-665, - Part of 2424.
 
Attachments:
1. 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT
 
Preparer:
  
Approved By:

Page 265 of 563



CASE NUMBER: 20SN0526
APPLICANT: 29:11 Chesterfield, LLC

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA
DALE DISTRICT

STAFF’S ANALYSIS
AND RECOMMENDATION

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Public Hearing: 
 JANUARY 22, 2020

BOS Time Remaining: 

              365 DAYS

Applicant’s Agent:
ANDREW CONDLIN (804-977-3373)

Planning Department Case Manager:
HAROLD ELLIS (804-768-7592)           123.9 Acres – 9201 Iron Bridge Road

COURTHOUSE LANDING

REQUEST
Rezoning from Agricultural (A) and General Business (C-5) to Community Business (C-3) with 
conditional use and conditional use planned development to permit multi-family and townhome 
uses plus exceptions to ordinance requirements.
Notes:  A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffer conditions.
              B. Proffered conditions, Textual Statement, and exhibits are located in Attachments 1-4

SUMMARY
A mixed-use project is planned, incorporating commercial and office uses, and a maximum of 600 
dwelling units (multi-family and townhouse).  Exceptions to ordinance requirements are requested 
to provide for residential uses and flexibility in overall development design.

The traffic impact of this development could be valued at $3,468,600 (a road cash proffer of 
$5,922 for each of the townhome units and $5,640 for each of the multifamily units).  The 
applicant has proffered to construct specific off-site road improvements along Route 10 and 
Courthouse Road, identified in Proffered Conditions 6.a.i - 6.a.i.i.i and 6.b, prior to issuance of any 
final occupancy permit.  These improvements are estimated at $6,686,180 in value.

The proposal offers quality design and architectural standards (pages 5-7) which should 
complement the surrounding area.

Page 266 of 563



2 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

RECOMMENDATION

PLANNING 
COMMISSION

DENIAL
            Concerns pertaining to transportation impacts, airport proximity (safety and  
            noise), location and visibility of uses, and assurances relative to a 
            guaranteed mix of uses and development phasing not resolved.

STAFF

PLANNING - APPROVAL
 Proposed office uses comply with the recommendations of the 

Comprehensive Plan.  Further, the Plan supports mixed use projects at key 
intersections when providing land aggregation, use integration, and land 
use transition.  

 The Plan identifies this site as being within the airport operational and 
runway approach areas. Appropriate agencies provided review and input 
pertaining to this request.  In accordance with development regulations, 
detailed FAA review will occur at time of plans review.

 Quality design and architecture offered by the applicant provide for a 
convenient, attractive and harmonious community that should 
complement the surrounding development.

TRANSPORTATION – CANNOT SUPPORT
 Proposal fails to address its impact on the increased volume of traffic on the 

road network based upon a 20-year traffic projection.
 Proposal fails to address its impact on the safety of the roads on which the 

increased volume of traffic will be traveling based upon a 20-year traffic 
projection.

Page 267 of 563



3 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

SUMMARY OF IDENTIFIED ISSUES

Department Issue

SCHOOLS

Post 2020, the Public Facilities Plan recommends a new middle school in the 
vicinity of Chester and West Hundred Roads and a new high school in the 
vicinity of Chester Road and Route 288, north of Route 10. However, at this 
time, a budget has not been developed for the acquisition of land or 
construction of these school facilities as recommended in the Plan. 

The proposed project is accessed through Courthouse Road, which is also the 
main thoroughfare for O.B. Gates ES, L.C. Bird HS, Chesterfield Career and 
Technical Center (CTC) at Courthouse and CCPS offices for Pupil Transportation 
(Main Office, Area 1 and Area 5), Fleet Garage, Training Office and ESOL-
Prekindergarten Welcome Center. This could impact traffic and school bus 
operations, especially during drop-off and pick-up of students.

CDOT

Proposal fails to address its impact on the increased volume of traffic on the 
road network based upon a 20-year traffic projection.

Proposal fails to address its impact on the safety of the roads on which the 
increased volume of traffic will be traveling based upon a 20-year traffic 
projection.

AIRPORT

Stormwater management facilities should be designed as a detention pond(s) 
rather than retention ponds.  Water features may attract birds, which can be 
significantly hazardous to safe operation of aircraft. 

Page 268 of 563



4 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 269 of 563



5 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Comprehensive Plan
Classification: CORPORATE OFFICE 

This designation suggests appropriate uses as professional and administrative offices, or similar uses.  Under 
certain circumstances, within larger tracts developed for office use, integrated supporting retail and services uses 
may be appropriate.  The subject property is also within the Chesterfield County Airport Operational and Runway 
Approach areas.

Surrounding Land Uses and Development

State 
Highway288 Cranbeck Rd

Single-family uses-
Cranbrook

Grace Brethren Church

State 
Highway288

Ironbridge Road

Courthouse 
Road

Rt 288

Single family residential-
Deerfield Estates 

Single family residential-
Huntingcreek Hills 

 Gates Elementary & Bird 
High Schools; Chesterfield 
Technical Center

Chesterfield County 
Government Complex 

Page 270 of 563



6 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

PLANNING
Staff Contact: Harold Ellis (804-768-7592) ellish@chesterfield.gov

Zoning History

Case Number Request
6600097C
Approved
7/13/66

 Rezoning to General Business (C-2) (now C-5)
 Uses limited to oil or allied oil business, excluding asphalt plants.

7200097C
Approved
12/13/72

Rezoning to General Business (C-2) (now C-5)

Proposal

A mixed-use development, known as Courthouse Landing, is planned, incorporating commercial and 
office uses, and residential dwelling units.  The residential units will consist of 300 multi-family and 300 
townhouse and condominium units.  The development is planned with tree lined streets, cohesive and 
architecturally-attractive buildings, recreational amenities and open space, and pedestrian connectivity 
throughout.  

The Conceptual Plan divides the property into four development areas “Tiers” with permitted uses 
identified for each Tier, as depicted on Page 20 of Attachment 3, and as follows:

Tier 1 – Commercial
 Community Business (C-3) 

o Excluding land uses listed in II A i of Textual Statement
 Automobile self service station with convenience store 

o Limitations in II A iii of Textual Statement, including a limit of one station
 Hotel (a hotel may be placed in Tier 1 or Tier 2)

o Limitations in II A iv of Textual Statement
 Self-storage facility

o Limitations in II A v of Textual Statement, including a limit of one facility

Tier 2 – Office
 Corporate Office (O-2)
 Neighborhood Business (C-2)

Tier 3 – Multi-Family Residential
 Maximum of 300 units

Tier 4 – Townhouse and Condominium Residential  
 Maximum of 300 units (may include a mixture of townhouse and condominium uses)

Page 271 of 563



7 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Ordinance Exceptions

Conditional Use Planned Development is requested to permit exceptions to ordinance requirements.  
Exceptions are requested to development standards, including a reduction in setbacks from interior 
streets and exterior property boundaries, reduction in required recreation area for multi-family units, and 
reduction in parking requirements in order to allow flexibility in design.

Design

High quality residential development addresses the Comprehensive Plan goals for strong and 
sustainable neighborhoods that are visually attractive, well-planned and well-maintained. Further, the 
purpose and intent of the zoning ordinance is to promote the health, safety, convenience and general 
welfare of the public.  This includes the creation of convenient, attractive, and harmonious 
communities, protection against overcrowding of land, and protection of the natural environment.  
Developments that promote unique, viable and long-lasting places and enhance the community are 
encouraged.  

The following provides a general overview of design requirements offered as part of this request, as 
described in Attachments 1 – 3, Proffered Conditions, Textual Statement and Design Guidelines:

 Development Design

o   Integrated development with architectural styles, building types, colors, features, and 
materials, with commonality throughout the development

o   Minimum of 10 acres of common and open space, including “The Landing” area as detailed 
in the Design Guidelines with a minimum of 3 acres

o   Internal system of sidewalks, paths, trails and walks to provide overall pedestrian 
connectivity within the development, with pedestrian scale lighting 

o   Decorative street lights along Courthouse and Iron Bridge Roads, and along internal 
Roadways A, B, and C 

 Commercial and Office Design

 Tier 1 (Commercial):
o Minimum of 50% masonry (brick, stone, or brick veneer)
o No single tenant shall exceed 56,000 square feet (excluding office and self-storage)  
o Enhanced architectural standards for convenience store with gasoline sales (Design 

Guidelines)
o Required hotel amenities, and maximum height of 4 stories
o Enhanced architectural standards and restricted sign standards for self-storage facility 

(Design Guidelines)

 Tier 2 (Office, to include commercial uses):
o Limited to uses permitted in O-2 and C-2 Districts
o Provides for a minimum of 100,000 square feet of office space (may also be provided in 

Tier 1)
o Building height limited to 5 stories and 75 feet

Page 272 of 563



8 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

o Minimum of 50% masonry (brick, stone, or brick veneer)

 Residential Design

 Tier 3 (Multi-family):
o Maximum of 300 multi-family units permitted; maximum 15% containing up to 3 

bedrooms
o On-street and garage parking to satisfy minimum parking requirements
o Minimum of 50% masonry (brick, stone, or brick veneer), for all facades facing a public 

or private roadway
o Enhanced entry roadway featuring design element such as pedestrian plaza, traffic 

circle/roundabout, or water feature
o Written airport proximity notification provided to all tenants at time of lease
o Recreational amenities including a minimum of 5,000 square feet of clubhouse with 

fitness center, as well a minimum of .5 acre of amenity space

 Tier 4 (Townhome/Condominium):
o Maximum of 300 dwelling units permitted
o Sound suppression for units backing to Route 288 requiring units be designed so that   

average interior decibel level shall not exceed 45 DBA
o On-street or drive aisle and garage parking spaces permitted to satisfy minimum parking 

requirements
o Minimum of a 1 car garage
o Varied elevations for adjacent townhouse units, with a porch or stoop
o Minimum of 30% masonry (brick, stone, or brick veneer), for all front facades, measured 

in the aggregate of the building, and 20% for sides, measured in the aggregate of the 
building, and 40% for rear elevations which are identified as “Landing Units”, measured 
in the aggregate

o Written airport proximity notification provided to all purchasers 

As suggested by the Comprehensive Plan goals and the Zoning Ordinance, the proffered conditions 
offered with this request include high quality design and architectural elements that will serve to 
complement the surrounding community.

COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT
Staff Contact: Matt Becker (804-751-2368) beckerm@chesterfield.gov

The proposed project presents an opportunity for re-investment in an area in which investment activity 
and home values are below the County average. Although many of the neighborhoods surrounding the 
project have median assessment values below the County average, these neighborhoods also feature 
direct access to major transportation corridors, a major employment center at the Chesterfield County 
government complex, and multiple public facilities. Additionally, these neighborhoods are also within 
close proximity to a regional amenity and Pocahontas State Park. The area has many of the assets that 
are critical to attracting the re-investment this area would benefit from.

The Department of Community Enhancement supports this proposed project as it provides re-
investment in the area’s housing market by increasing the supply of a various housing types.

Page 273 of 563



9 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

BUDGET & MANAGEMENT
Staff Contact: Karen Bailey (804-751-4327) baileykl@chesterfield.gov

County finance staff is responsible for managing the finances of the County and making 
recommendations to the County Administrator regarding the allocation of available resources for the 
provision of services and capital facilities to serve the citizens of the County.  Finance staff will advise 
the County Administrator if changed economic circumstances require adjustments to the County’s 
budget or capital improvement program.  

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804-748-1037) adamsSt@chesterfield.gov

EXCEUTIVE SUMMARY

In accordance with Section 19.1-231 of the County Code, the applicant submitted a traffic study for an 
examination of the development’s impact on the transportation network for various scenarios as noted 
below.  Staff requested the applicant analyze the Ironbridge Road (Route 10)/Courthouse Road 
intersection and the site intersections along Courthouse Road.  Staff did not request the applicant 
address the Route 288 off-ramp to Courthouse Road weave as part of this analysis.  The following is a 
summary of the results:

 Existing (2019) overall intersection level of service (LOS) at the Route 10/Courthouse Road 
intersection is an “E” during the morning peak hour and a “D” during the afternoon peak hour.

 At development build-out (2024), acceptable overall level of service (“D” or better) is anticipated 
at the Route 10/Courthouse Road intersection and the Courthouse Road site intersections.  This 
analysis includes Route 10 (Frith Lane to Whitepine Road) Widening Project (“Route 10 Widening 
Project”) and all proffered road improvements.

 In 2039, without the development, unacceptable overall LOS (“F” during morning and afternoon 
peak hours) is anticipated at the Route 10/Courthouse Road intersection.

 In 2039, with the development, unacceptable overall LOS (“F” during peak hours) is anticipated at the 
Route 10/Courthouse Road; however, with the proffered road improvements, the LOS is slightly 
improved over the 2039 scenario without the development.

 In August 2017, the Board appropriated $15,200,000 in anticipated VDOT reimbursements to 
proceed with the Route 10 Widening to six (6) lanes between Frith Lane and Whitepine Road.  
Construction is anticipated to begin in late 2020 with completion in early 2022.  This project will 
not modify the Route 288 interchange or modify existing intersection movements.  Staff anticipates 
an additional public project would be needed to analyze and provide alternative intersection 
modifications along Route 10 to better accommodate 2039 traffic volumes with or without the 
development.  To date, there is no funding identified or appropriated for these 
interchange/intersection modifications.

Page 274 of 563



10 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

The following chart summarizes the overall intersection levels-of-service:
2019

EXISTING
2024

DEVELOPMENT 
BUILD-OUT

(includes Rt 10 
Widening & Proffered 

Improvements)

2039 
BACKGROUND 

WITHOUT 
DEVELOPMENT 
(includes Rt 10 

Widening)

2039 
BACKGROUND 

WITH 
DEVELOPMENT 
(includes Rt 10 

Widening & Proffered 
Improvements)

INTERSECTION AM PM AM PM AM PM AM PM
Route 10 & 
Courthouse Rd E (59) D (53) D (47) D (45) F (127) F (115) F (93) F (98)

Courts Complex & 
Courthouse Not applicable C D Not applicable C D 

Govt Center & 
Courthouse Not applicable A A Not applicable B B

(##): Value represent delay in seconds per vehicle at signal or roundabout controlled intersection.

Per the County Code, the development does not maintain a minimum “D” level of service based upon a 20 
year traffic projection and the resulting level of service with the development and proffered road 
improvements is lower (“F” during the morning peak hour and ”F” during the afternoon peak hour) than 
that which currently exists (“E” during the morning peak hour and ”D” during the afternoon peak hour).  
Staff cannot support this request; however, the development would adequately address its traffic impact 
at build-out in 2024 (“D” during the morning peak hour and ”D” during the afternoon peak).

TRIP GENERATION

As evaluated in the traffic study, the applicant has proffered a maximum density (or equivalent) of 
265,000 square feet (sf) of shopping center/retail, 150,000 sf of medical/dental office, 100,000 sf of 
mini-warehouse, 120 room hotel, and 600 residential multi-family units (Proffered Condition 3).  The 
proposed development is anticipated to generate approximately 22,916 average daily trips 
(approximately 930 of these trips will occur in the morning peak hour and approximately 2,000 trips 
will occur in the evening peak hour).  Traffic generated by development of the property would initially 
be distributed along Courthouse Road and Ironbridge Road (Route 10).

THOROUGHFARE PLAN & PUBLIC PROJECTS

Courthouse Road is a major arterial with a recommended right of way width of 90 feet, as identified on 
the County’s Thoroughfare Plan. Courthouse Road is a four-lane road from Route 10 to Courts Complex 
Road and a two-lane road from Courts Complex Road to the eastern terminus. In 2018, the VDOT 
traffic count on this section of Courthouse Road was 8,200 vehicles per day.

Route 10 is a major arterial with a recommended right of way width of 120 to 200 feet, as identified on 
the County’s Thoroughfare Plan. Route 10 is a four-lane divided road. In 2018, the VDOT traffic count 
on Route 10 between Route 288 and Beach Road was 45,320 vehicles per day (Level of Service “D”).  As 
previously noted, staff is managing the Route 10 Widening Project from Frith Lane to Whitepine Road.

Page 275 of 563



11 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

South of this proposed development, staff is managing the Nash Road Extension Project. The project 
will extend Nash Road as a two-lane facility from Beach Road to Route 10.  An alignment has been 
determined and the design of the project is underway. Construction is anticipated in 2022.

PROFFERED ROAD IMPROVEMENTS

Section 19.1-231 of the County Code outlines the general requirements to meet the needs of the traffic 
generated by a proposed development, including acceptable levels of service. This proposed mixed-use 
development would contribute to an identifiable need for transportation and access improvements.  
The applicant has offered the following:

Vehicular Access (Proffered Condition 4):
 One direct access to Route 10 limited to right-in only, if approved by VDOT.
 Courthouse Road access based on an approved access plan at time of plan of development.

Dedication (Proffered Condition 5):
 Dedication of all right-of-way and easements as shown on the construction plans for the Route 10 

Widening Project.

Road Improvements (Proffered Condition 6):
 Off-site Road Improvement at the Route 10/Courthouse Road Intersection:

o Construction of an additional westbound left turn lane (6.a.i., estimated cost $500,000)
o Construction of replacement eastbound right turn lane (6.a.ii., estimated cost $400,000)
o Construction of northbound Route 10 right turn lane to Courthouse Rd (6.a.iii., estimated cost 

$500,000)
 Off-site Road Improvement: Widen Courthouse Road to four (4) lane divided road from Route 10 to 

Government Center Pky. (6.b., estimated cost $5,286,180)
 Route 10/Courthouse Road intersection improvements as follows:

o Seven (7) lane section at westbound approach (5 westbound lanes, 2 eastbound lanes).
o Five (5) lane section at eastbound approach (4 eastbound lanes, 1 westbound lane).
o Traffic signal modifications

 Construction of left and right turn lanes along Courthouse Road at each approved access
 Construction of dual left turn lanes along eastbound Courthouse Road at the Road A/Courts 

Complex Road intersection
 Construction of traffic signal or other intersection control at the Courthouse Road/Courts Complex 

Road/Road A and Courthouse Road/Government Center Parkway/Road B intersections.
 Construction of additional pavement along the eastbound lanes of Courthouse Road to provide a 

separate right turn lane at the Government Center Parkway intersection.
 Construction of a ten (10) foot VDOT standard shared use path along Courthouse Road for the 

entire property frontage.
 Relocation of the stormwater management facility for the Route 10 Widening Project and 

restoration of the area.
 All proffered road improvements will be completed prior to issuance of any final certificate of 

occupancy, as determined by the Transportation Department.  In the event the Route 10 Widening 
Project impacts the completion of the proffered road improvements, staff may permit issuance of 
occupancy permit(s) if the developer provides assurance that the improvements are completed in a 
timely manner (i.e. phasing plan with appropriate surety/bonding).

Page 276 of 563



12 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

ROAD CASH PROFFERS

The property is within Traffic Shed 13, which encompasses the area south of Route 288, north and east 
of Route 10, and west of Chester Road. Many roads in this part of the county have little or no 
shoulders, fixed objects (trees) adjacent to the edge of the pavement and poor vertical and horizontal 
alignments. The traffic volume generated from this proposed residential development will contribute 
to an identifiable need for transportation facility improvements to these roads in excess of existing 
transportation facility capacity. Roads in this shed or which serve this shed need to be improved or 
widened to address safety and accommodate increased traffic, including the increased traffic from the 
proposed development.

An applicant may choose to address the development’s impact on the county’s road transportation 
network through dedication of property, construction of road improvements, or a cash proffer. If an 
applicant elects to offer cash to address the impact on the county’s road transportation network, 
Transportation staff has calculated the average impact of a single-family dwelling unit on the road 
network to be $12,652; however, the Board of Supervisors has adopted a policy establishing that it 
would accept a maximum cash proffer of $9,400 per dwelling unit as addressing the traffic impacts of 
residential development, with all of the funds to be dedicated towards improvements to the 
transportation network.  The Policy allows the county to consider mitigating circumstances about a 
proposed development. In this case, the residential development is limited to townhome and multi-
family (apartment/condominium) uses, which generate approximately 63% and 60% of the traffic of 
single-family dwelling units, respectively. Because of this, the traffic impact could be addressed with 
$5,922 (63% of $9,400) per townhome dwelling unit and $5,640 (60% of $9,400) per multi-family dwelling 
unit.  The traffic impact of the proposed development could be valued at $3,468,600 (300 x $5,922 + 
300 x $5,640).

As previously noted, the applicant has proffered to construct specific off-site road improvements along 
Route 10 and Courthouse Road (Proffered Conditions 6.a.i., 6.a.ii., 6.a.iii., and 6.b). The condition 
requires the applicant to complete all road improvements prior to issuance of any final occupancy 
permit. The applicant has provided information that the estimated cost of the off-site road 
improvements is $6,686,180. Staff agrees with the developer’s evaluation. It should be noted, 
however, that the actual cost to provide these improvements could be more or less than this amount. 

Page 277 of 563



13 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 278 of 563



20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Staff Contact: Willie Gordon (804-674-2907) willie.gordon@vdot.virginia.gov

As the proposed site will generate over 5,000 vehicle trips per day, and Chapter 527 Traffic 
Impact Analysis (TIA) is required.  The original TIA was submitted to VDOT for review, with 
VDOT comments provided to the County dated September 13, 2019.  The applicant revised the 
TIA and provided an updated report for review on November 14, 2019.  VDOT is currently 
reviewing the updated report for compliance with the Chapter 527 TIA regulations.  In the 
event a signal is warranted by the proposed site traffic, VDOT will require the applicant to 
submit a Signal Justification Report (SJR) to the department to analyze appropriate alternative 
intersection treatments in order to determine the appropriate traffic control measures 
necessary at the intersection.  The applicant has requested a right-in only access off of Route 10 
that will require a VDOT Access Management Exception for not meeting the minimum spacing 
requirements from the on-ramp to eastbound Route 288 and the signalized intersection of 
Route 10 and Courthouse Road.  Specific features of the proposed site will be addressed during 
the County Site Plan Review Process.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (804-717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov

Mission

The mission of Fire and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) is to protect life, property and the 
environment through a comprehensive fire and life safety program that ensures an adequate 
and timely response to emergencies. 

Response Times

The proposed development is located in the urban response zone for which Fire & EMS has a 
goal of responding to at least 90% of the calls for service in under seven (7) minutes. Fire and 
EMS is currently unable to meet that goal. 
 
Nearby Fire/EMS Facilities
    
The Airport Fire Station, Company Number 15

Anticipated Fire & EMS Impacts/Needs

Based on an average of .374 calls per dwelling, it is estimated that this development will 
generate 281 annual calls for Fire/EMS services.  

Additional Fire and EMS Comments

When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire 
protection, and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process.

Buildings greater than 3 stories in height will require a second access when developed.

Page 279 of 563



15 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

To satisfy the requirements of Section 17-76 of the Subdivision Ordinance, when the cumulative 
total of homes in a proposed development exceeds fifty (50), a second public road access to all 
dwellings should be provided.  This requirement is necessary to provide emergency vehicle a 
second access to the homes should the other entrance become blocked.  

SCHOOLS
Staff Contact: Atonja Allen (804-318-8740) atonja_allen@ccpsnet.net

Mission

High performing, high quality public schools contribute to the quality of life and economic 
vitality of the County. The comprehensive plan suggests a greater focus should be placed on 
linking schools with communities by providing greater access, flexible designs and locations that 
better meet the needs of the communities in which they are located. 

Capital Improvements

The School Board FY2020 adopted Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) continues to support the 
2013 voter approved school revitalization program that will replace or renovate ten schools and 
construct one new elementary school to add capacity in the Midlothian area of the county.  The 
ten existing facilities that are part of the revitalization program are Beulah Elementary School, 
Crestwood Elementary School, Enon Elementary School, Ettrick Elementary School, Harrowgate 
Elementary School, Matoaca Elementary School, Reams Elementary School, Manchester Middle 
School, Providence Middle School, and Monacan High School.  A replacement Manchester 
Middle School is planned for construction on the existing school site, and the Beulah 
Elementary School, Enon Elementary School, Providence Middle School, and Monacan High 
School projects are complete.  Additional school construction projects include a Matoaca 
Middle School addition on the east campus site, and the new Matoaca Elementary School will 
be constructed on the existing west campus site.  Upon completion of the east campus 
addition, the current west campus building will be demolished and Matoaca Middle School will 
operate as a single, unified campus.  Information on the CIP and School Board approved 
construction projects can be found in the financial section of the CCPS Adopted Budget for 
FY2020.

Page 280 of 563



16 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Anticipated School Impacts

Elementary
(PK to 5)

Middle
(6 to 8)

High
(9 to 12)

Total (1)

Anticipated Student Yield by
School Type

51 26 41 118

Schools Currently Serving Area O.B. Gates Salem Church L.C. Bird
Current Enrollment 682 919 1,795
Design Capacity (2) 1,020 1,216 2,454
Enrollment Percent of Design 
Capacity

67% 76% 73%

Program Capacity (3) 874 993 2,311
Enrollment Percent of Program 
Capacity

78% 93% 78%

Total Number of Trailers 0 5 5
Number of Classroom Trailers 0 2 2

2019-20 
School Year

Note:
(1) Based upon the average number of students per dwelling unit for each of the school attendance zones where the 
proposal is located. Student Generation Factor (2017) is the actual total number of students by grade level divided by the 
actual total number of housing units by housing type.
(2) Design capacity is the maximum number of students the building can accommodate based on the Virginia Department 
of Education Standards of Quality and the architectural program design of the existing building including all interior and 
exterior renovations to date and an inventory of all available space.  Design capacity does not include site-based 
initiatives and is thus not subject to frequent change and represents prototypical design capacity using VDOE standards.
(3) Program capacity is the maximum number of students the building can accommodate based on the Virginia 
Department of Education Standards of Quality and the current school programming that may adjust the number of rooms 
used for core or grade-level classrooms in the overall building design capacity.

Public Facilities Plan

Post 2020, the Public Facilities Plan recommends a new middle school in the vicinity of Chester 
and West Hundred Roads and a new high school in the vicinity of Chester Road and Route 288, 
north of Route 10. However, at this time, a budget has not been developed for the acquisition 
of land or construction of these school facilities as recommended in the Plan. 

Additional School Comments

The proposal is adjacent to O.B. Gates Elementary School.  For safety and security of schools, 
access (such as pedestrian paths and connections) should be from the front or main entrance of 
the school. The developer indicated that the initially proposed northernmost trail connector 
along “Road B” would not be made. Any proposed road improvements or pedestrian 
access/connectivity in front of the school property should be in accordance with VDOT’s and 
CDOT’s regulations within school zones.

The portion of the school property closest to this proposal may be redeveloped to a more 
intense school use over time. 

Page 281 of 563



17 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

The proposed project is accessed through Courthouse Road, which is also the main 
thoroughfare for O.B. Gates ES, L.C. Bird HS, Chesterfield Career and Technical Center (CTC) at 
Courthouse and CCPS offices for Pupil Transportation (Main Office, Area 1 and Area 5), Fleet 
Garage, Training Office and ESOL-Prekindergarten Welcome Center. This could impact traffic 
and school bus operations, especially during drop-off and pick-up of students.

LIBRARIES
Staff Contact: Jennifer Stevens (804-751-4998) stevensj@chesterfield.gov

Countywide Library Needs

The public library system’s role in the county has expanded beyond its traditional function as a 
resource for information and materials, and now serves as a community gathering place for 
educational, cultural and informational services; community support during emergencies; 
economic development; and revitalization activities.  

Anticipated Libraries Impacts

While all county libraries could be potentially impacted by the proposed development, the 
following library is nearby:

Central Library

PARKS AND RECREATION
Staff Contact: Janit Llewellyn (804-751-4482) llewellynja@chesterfield.gov

Mission

The County supports a high-quality park system to provide residents and visitors with balanced 
access to active and passive recreation opportunities. The 2018 level of service is 7.5 acres of 
regional, community and neighborhood parkland per 1,000 persons whereas the target level of 
service is 9 acres per 1,000 persons.

Nearby Parks Facilities 

 Cogbill Park  & Harry G. Daniel Park at Ironbridge
 Fairgrounds Event Park
 Bird Athletic Complex & Chesterfield Technical Center – Courthouse
 L. C. Bird High School & O. B. Gates Elementary School

Public Facilities Plan 

The Public Facilities Plan identifies the need for a neighborhood park. Cogbill Park meets this need 
in the area and is planned for development.  
 

Page 282 of 563



18 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

The Bikeways and Trails Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan recommends provision of 
pedestrian/bicycle facilities along all routes shown on the Plan and connections from these routes 
and existing pedestrian/bicycle facilities to adjacent developments.  
The Plan shows a route on or along the Courthouse Road. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Proposed development sidewalks and trails should connect to the Bikeways and Trails located 
on Courthouse Road and the existing and proposed trails near the Government Center. 

SUMMARY OF IDENTIFIED ISSUES 

None

Additional Parks Comments 

The Plan addresses connection of the development to the Bikeways and Trails both existing and 
planned on Courthouse Road. The Bikeways and Trails routes throughout the Chesterfield County 
Government Complex and along Ironbridge Road will also provide pedestrian and bicycle 
connectivity to this community. 

 See attached Bikeways and Trails Plan (Pages BT1-BT21 - https://www.chesterfield.gov/mwg-
internal/de5fs23hu73ds/progress?id=SwnDyiT70vfqILT1k7TZEy5Md3xR8_cGf2hYwI2u9EQ,&dl)  & 
Fairgrounds Park Master Plan (see attached concept plan).

Internal recreation amenities and open space should be planned to incorporate areas not 
restricted to development (e.g. Resource Protection Areas, Wetlands and steep slopes). 

Page 283 of 563

https://www.chesterfield.gov/mwg-internal/de5fs23hu73ds/progress?id=SwnDyiT70vfqILT1k7TZEy5Md3xR8_cGf2hYwI2u9EQ,&dl
https://www.chesterfield.gov/mwg-internal/de5fs23hu73ds/progress?id=SwnDyiT70vfqILT1k7TZEy5Md3xR8_cGf2hYwI2u9EQ,&dl


19 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 284 of 563



20 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

UTILITIES
Staff Contact: Matthew Rembold (706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov

Existing Water and Wastewater Systems

Utility Type
Currently 
Serviced Size of Closest Existing Lines Connection Required by County 

Code
Water Yes & No 16” Yes
Wastewater Yes & No 18”                              Yes

Additional Utility Comments:

The applicant is proposing a development that includes up to 265,000 square feet (sf) of shopping 
center/retail, 150,000 sf of medical/dental office, 100,000 sf of mini-warehouse, 120 room 
hotel, and 600 residential multi-family units (Proffered Condition 3).  

The subject properties are located within the mandatory water and wastewater connection areas 
for new residential and non-residential structures.  The existing gas station along Iron Bridge Road 
is currently served by County water and wastewater.  The applicant has proffered use of County 
water and wastewater to support this development.  (Proffered Condition 10)

Due to the size and scope of the project the applicant has proffered to submit an overall utilities 
master plan for review and approval by the Utilities Department (Proffered Condition 11).  Further, 
the applicant has proffered to analyze the hydraulic capacity of the county’s water and 
wastewater systems as part of that plan and make any related capacity improvements to the 
systems necessary to support the development of the project.

County wastewater is available at the intersection of Iron Bridge Road and Courthouse Road to 
serve this development.  Due to grade and the gas transmission main that bisects the property, 
staff anticipates an offsite wastewater extension will be necessary to serve the development from 
south of Courthouse Road from the area behind the Smith-Wagner building and Public Works 
Road.  This extension will cross property owned by the County, and coordination with various 
County departments will be required prior to approval of the wastewater alignments to verify the 
County’s future use of these lands will not be adversely impacted by this extension.  

County water is available at the intersection of Iron Bridge Road and Courthouse Road to serve this 
development.  Due to the number of units proposed, a looped water system will be required.  This 
will involve construction of a waterline through the development along Courthouse Road and 
interconnecting with a waterline stub along Courthouse Road in front of Gates Elementary School.  

All extensions of the County water and wastewater systems will be subject to formal review and 
approval of the Utilities Department.  The Utilities Department supports this case.

Page 285 of 563



21 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 286 of 563



22 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Rochet (804-748-1028) rochetr@chesterfield.gov

Geography

The subject properties are generally very flat and contain a large area of wetlands in the center 
of the proposed development.  The properties drain from southwest to northeast to an existing 
natural stream which crosses under Route 288 and into Proctors Creek.  All of the properties 
are located within the Proctors Creek Watershed.

Environmental Features

A Resource Protection Area (RPA) Designation must be submitted to the Department of 
Environmental Engineering – Water Quality Section prior to the submittal of any site plans 
and/or preliminary plats.  A Water Quality Impact Assessment must be submitted to and 
approved by the Department of Environmental Engineering and/or the Board of Supervisors for 
any improvements which may encroach into the RPA.  

Additionally, there are areas of wetlands within the drainageways located on the properties.  
Wetlands and/or streams shall not be impacted without approval from the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers and/or the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.  

Drainage

The subject properties currently drain to an existing natural stream which crosses under Route 
288 and into Proctors Creek.  Proctors Creek drains through several existing subdivisions which 
contain homes currently located within the FEMA 100-year floodplain; therefore, any increase 
in the 100-year discharge rate from the development of the subject properties may result in 
increased flooding of these homes.   As a result, the maximum post-development discharge rate 
for the 100-year storm shall be based on the maximum capacity of the existing facilities 
downstream, and shall not increase the recorded 100-year backwater and/or floodplain.  On-
site detention of the post-development discharge rate for the 100-year storm to below the pre-
development discharge rate may be provided to satisfy this requirement.  The applicant has 
offered Proffered Condition 9 to address this impact.

A portion of the County Complex currently drains through an existing ditch which will be 
impacted with the proposed development.  A new alignment of the stormwater conveyance 
system, within a permanent drainage easement, shall be provided through the subject 
properties to an adequate receiving channel, as determined by the Department of 
Environmental Engineering at the time of site plan review.  The applicant has offered Proffered 
Condition 9 to address this impact.

Page 287 of 563



23 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Stormwater Management

The development of the subject properties will be subject to the Part IIB technical criteria of the 
Virginia Stormwater Management Program Regulations for water quality and quantity.  Any 
areas of forest/open space used for stormwater quality compliance must be outside the limits 
of the residential lots, unless otherwise approved by the Department of Environmental 
Engineering.

AIRPORT
Staff Contact: Clay Bowles (804-748-1373) bowlesc@chesterfield.gov

The property is within the Chesterfield County Airport Operational and Runway Approach areas 
per the Comprehensive Plan.  The property, however, is outside the boundary of the Runway 
Protection Zone (RPZ), an established area off the end of the runway with limitations on 
obstructions.  The property also falls within a 50:1 Surface Approach Zone (Glide Slope Ratio) 
which establishes the maximum building height across the property (reference Attachment 4).

The county airport consulting engineer, Delta Airport Consultants, reviewed the proposed 
project and offered the following comments. Based on these comments, General Services 
defers to Community Development to determine the appropriate time in the site plan review 
process to address the following items.  General Services views these following items as 
requirements and not merely options.

Compliance with all applicable FAA Requirements 7460 Review

Once final building plans are determined, the developer should be required to demonstrate 
compliance with all applicable FAA restrictions (e.g., Runway Protection Zone, building height 
requirements, etc.). We believe this is best accomplished by completing a FAA 7460 review, 
whereby the specifics of planned construction are evaluated for hazards to air navigation. This 
is a pass/fail type of review and documentation of compliance should be required before site 
plan approval. Further, if changes are made, a new review should be required.

Aesthetic Water Features & Proposed Stormwater Management

The concern is the likelihood of these items to attract birds, which can be significantly 
hazardous to safe operation of aircraft. Any water feature proposed purely for aesthetics 
should not be allowed. Stormwater management should be designed as a detention pond(s) 
(i.e., not a retention pond) that will drain quickly.

Noise

The development must comply with the FAA-mandated 65 DNL sound requirement as detailed 
in the Airport Master Plan.  In addition to utilization of noise-mitigating construction materials, 
a buyer-signed disclosure statement should be required to notify buyers that they are 
purchasing property in an airport landing approach pattern where jet aircraft regularly operate.

Page 288 of 563



24 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

CASE HISTORY

Applicant Submittals
8/20/19 Application submitted

9/10, 9/11,
9/12, 9/17, 
9/27, 9/30, 

10/16, 
11/7, 11/27 
& 12/4/19

Proffered conditions, Textual Statement and exhibits submitted

Community Meetings
9/23/19 Issues Discussed:

 Timing of public hearings for case
 Potential site impediments such as gas easement and wetlands 
 Proximity to airport and potential structure height limitations
 Quantity and long-term quality of proposed apartments and potential 

impact to schools
 Multiple variations in proposed architectural treatment
 Need for a hotel 
 Widening of Courthouse Road and its impact on nearby pedestrian facilities
 Timeline of Route 10 widening project
 Impact on existing traffic conditions on Iron Bridge and Courthouse Roads 

and proposed site access
 Development impact on first responders
 Development density 
 Project completion/timeline
 Public outreach

11/21/19 Issues Discussed:
 Widening of Courthouse Road and its impact on nearby pedestrian facilities
 Timeline and details of Ironbridge Rd widening project and aesthetic impact 

widening project may have on surrounding area
 Impact of roadway projects and traffic from development on nearby schools
 Impact on existing traffic conditions on Iron Bridge and Courthouse Roads 

and proposed site access
 Vehicular cut-thru traffic impact on Deerfield Estates
 Architectural details
 Proximity to airport and potential structure height limitations
 Impact of Chesterfield County Public Schools 

Page 289 of 563



25 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Planning Commission
10/15/19 Action – DEFERRED TO DECEMBER 17, 2019 ON THE COMMISSION’S OWN 

MOTION, WITH THE APPLICANTS CONSENTING TO THE FIRST 34 DAYS (NOVEMBER 
19) AND THE REMAINING 28 DAYS COUNTED AGAINST THE CPC’S 100 DAYS.

12/18/19 Citizen Comments: Citizens spoke in favor and opposition to the request.  Those in 
favor noted:

 Need for mixed-use development in area, including medical office and 
hotel

 Future residents would become accustomed to aircraft noise
 Satisfaction with proposed higher development standards 
 Resulting traffic would be mitigated with proposed roadway improvements

Citizens who spoke in opposition to the request noted concerns relative to:
 Proposed development too large and out of scale with the area
 Resolution of outstanding traffic details with VDOT prior to approval
 Increase in traffic and impact on challenged roadway networks and 

adjacent school traffic.  Anticipated problems with proposed roundabout. 
Traffic impacts on Deerfield Estates.

 Wet ponds attractive to water fowl and hazardous for aircraft
 Residential units located in runway approach path; posing noise and safety 

concerns
 Residential impact on nearby schools
 Compliance with the Comprehensive Plan
 Need for additional open space and area parks
 Lack of development phasing may result in more desirable uses, such as 

medical office and hotel, never being constructed
 Reservation of space for future government use

Applicant’s comments:
The applicant indicated the following:

 Fencing between the site and O.B. Gates proposed
 Preference for traffic signal at access; roundabout supported by CDOT
 Off-site roadway improvements completed prior to certificates of 

occupancy 
 Proposed development would not address regional site traffic but would 

provide significant tax revenue for the County 
 Compliance with all FAA regulations. 
 Development details evaluated through site plan review process
 No anticipated changes to proposal to warrant deferral of case 

Page 290 of 563



26 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Commission Discussion:
The Commission noted the following:

 Consideration for deferral to provide applicant time to work with VDOT on 
remaining traffic issues, to include traffic weave from Route 288/Route 10 
to Courthouse Road (east), and access (right-in) from northbound Iron 
Bridge Road

 Concerns pertaining to current and future levels of service for area roads; 
need for Route 10 Corridor study and phasing of associated road 
improvements

 Lack of development phasing plan (commercial with residential) and 
guarantees for medical/office and hotel uses

 Airport safety concerns, including use of wet detention ponds (water fowl)
 Completion of FAA application process and approvals
 Limiting noise levels for residential based on airport proximity and the 

flight approach path 
 Insufficient screening for proposed gas station at highly-visible corner of 

Iron Bridge and Courthouse Roads  

Recommendation – DENIAL

Motion:  Jackson   Second:  Sloan
AYES:  Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan and Stariha

Page 291 of 563



27 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

ATTACHMENT 1
PROFFERED CONDITIONS

December 4, 2019

1. Master Plan. The Textual Statement last revised December 4, 2019, shall be considered the 
Master Plan.  (P)

2. Burning ban.  The Developer shall not use burning to clear or timber the Property. (F)

3. Density.  The maximum density of this development shall be 265,000 square feet of shopping 
center/retail, 150,000 square feet of medical/dental office, 100,000 square feet of mini-
warehouse, 120 room hotel, and 600 multi-family units; or equivalent density as approved by 
the Transportation Department.  At the request of the Developer, higher densities may be 
approved by the Planning Commission if the other requirements of zoning are met. (T)

4. Access.

a. Direct vehicular access from the Property to Ironbridge Road (Route 10) shall be limited 
to one (1) entrance/exit, if approved by the Virginia Department of Transportation 
(VDOT).  

b. Prior to any tentative subdivision plan, site plan, or construction plan approval, 
whichever occurs first, an access plan for Courthouse Road shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Transportation Department.  Vehicular access from the Property to 
Courthouse Road shall conform to the approved access plan. (T)

5. Dedication. Prior to any site plan approval, in conjunction with recordation of the initial 
subdivision plat, or within thirty (30) days from a written request by the Transportation 
Department, whichever occurs first, all rights of way and easements as shown on the 
construction plans for the widening of Ironbridge Road (Route 10 Widening from Frith Lane to 
Whitepine Widening Project) from the Property, as determined by the Transportation 
Department, shall be dedicated, free and unrestricted, to Chesterfield County.  (T)

6. Road Improvements.  To provide an adequate roadway system, prior to the issuance of any final 
certificate of occupancy, the following road improvements shall be completed as determined by 
the Transportation Department.  The exact alignment, design, and length of these road 
improvements shall be approved by the Transportation Department.

a. Ironbridge Road (Route 10) and Courthouse Road intersection:

i. Construction of additional pavement along the western approach of Courthouse 
Road to provide a seven (7) lane typical section [i.e., five (5) westbound lanes 
(dual lefts, one thru, and dual rights) and two (2) eastbound lanes].

Page 292 of 563



28 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

ii. Construction of additional pavement along the eastern approach of Courthouse 
Road to provide a five (5) lane typical section [i.e., four (4) eastbound lanes (left, 
two (2) thrus, and right) and one (1) westbound lane].

iii. Construction of additional pavement along northbound lanes of Route 10 at the 
Courthouse Road intersection to provide a separate right turn lane.

iv. Full cost of traffic signal modifications at the Route 10/ Courthouse Road 
intersection to accommodate road improvements identified above.  

b. Construction of Courthouse Road to a four (4) lane divided road section from Route 10 
to the Government Center Parkway intersection, with modifications approved by the 
Transportation Department.

c. Construction of additional pavement along Courthouse Road to provide separate right 
turn lanes and adequate left turn lanes (where left turn movements are permitted) at 
each approved access.  These improvements may be modified based on intersection 
control at the Courts Complex/Road A and Government Center Parkway/Road B 
intersections, as determined by the Transportation Department and approved by VDOT.

d. Construction of additional pavement along the eastbound lanes of Courthouse Road to 
provide dual left turn lanes at the Courts Complex Road/Road A intersection, unless 
otherwise approved by the Transportation Department.  This improvement may be 
modified based on approved intersection control, as determined by the Transportation 
Department and approved by VDOT.

e. Construction of traffic signal or other intersection control at the Courthouse 
Road/Courts Complex Road/Road A and Courthouse Road/Government Center 
Parkway/Road B intersections, if warranted by the Transportation Department and 
approved by VDOT.

f. Construction of additional pavement along the eastbound lanes of Courthouse Road to 
provide a separate right turn lane (slip lane) at the Government Center Parkway 
intersection, with modifications approved by the Transportation Department.

g. Construction of a 10 foot VDOT standard shared use path along the north side of 
Courthouse Road (“Courthouse Shared Use Path”) for the entire Property frontage, 
unless otherwise approved by the Transportation Department.  This path may be 
located within the Courthouse Road buffer.

h. Relocation of the stormwater management facility as shown on the construction plans 
for the Route 10 Widening (Frith Lane to Whitepine Road) Project (labeled as “SWM 17” 
on the construction plans) and restoration of the area as determined by the Planning 
Department.  On-site stormwater system shall be designed and constructed to 
accommodate the relocated stormwater management facility drainage, including 

Page 293 of 563



29 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

dedication of any required drainage easements.  

i. Dedication to Chesterfield County, free and unrestricted, of any additional right-of-way 
(or easements) required for the improvements identified above. (T)

7. Open Space/Pedestrian Areas.  

a. Common and open space areas designated in the Design Guidelines shall include 
common spaces for use by all owners, residents, tenants, guests, and invitees of all or 
any specific portions of the Property, designed to include amenities that add high visual 
interest, such as some or all of the following, but not limited to: decorative pedestrian-
style lighting; benches; landscaped areas; plantings; bike racks; plazas; water features; 
gathering areas; multi-purpose open lawn (for use for such activities as bocce ball and 
Frisbee golf); pond overlook; native plant meadow; grilling areas; fire pit areas; outdoor 
dining areas; dog park; fitness stations; community gardens; picnic shelters; bird-
watching areas; and other pedestrian elements.  

b. Pedestrian areas such as trails, walks and paths, and the above amenities along such 
areas, shall be provided throughout the Property as generally shown in the Design 
Guidelines to provide pedestrian connectivity  throughout the entire development and 
in particular between buildings and different uses on the Property and to and from the 
Courthouse Shared Use Path, all as generally shown in the Design Guidelines.  The exact 
design, material and location of such pedestrian elements shall be approved by the 
Planning Director as part of plan approval. 

c. There shall be an internal system of sidewalks, paths and crosswalks along and between 
roads and drives providing overall pedestrian connectivity within the Property and to 
and from the Courthouse Shared Use Path.  Such hardscaped walks shall be constructed 
of various hard and decorative materials, such as, but not limited to pavement, 
concrete, stone pavers, asphalt, or stamped concrete,  in locations as generally shown in 
the Design Guidelines.  

d. The Landing, as shown in the Design Guidelines, shall be a minimum of 3 acres, serve as 
a focal point upon entry into the Property and provide a common area transition 
between the residential and commercial portions of the Property.  The Landing shall be 
connected to all portions of the Property by the various pedestrian elements described 
above.  (P)

8. Street Lights.  Decorative street lights will be provided along the Property boundary as it adjoins 
Iron Bridge Road and Courthouse Road and such lights shall be limited to 15 feet in height.  
Decorative street lights will also be provided along those internal roads designated in the Design 
Guidelines as “Road A”, “Road B” and “Road C”.   The specific light fixture and spacing shall be 
approved by the Planning Director in conjunction with plan approval.  The installation of the 
street lights may be phased as approved by the Planning Director based on the extent of the 
plan approval. (P)

Page 294 of 563



30 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

9. Stormwater.  The maximum post-development discharge rate for the 100-year storm shall be 
based on the maximum capacity of the existing facilities downstream, and shall not increase the 
recorded and/or established 100-year backwater and/or floodplain. On-site detention of the 
post-development 100-year discharge rate to below the pre-development 100-year discharge 
rate may be provided to satisfy this requirement.  Further, the Developer shall dedicate a 
permanent drainage easement for the benefit of the County for the upstream off-site drainage 
through the Property as determined at the time of plan review and approval.  Any wet 
stormwater management facility shall be designed as a visual amenity to create water features, 
which shall include pedestrian areas and fountain type aerators, unless specifically prohibited or 
restricted by law or government regulation, and as determined by Environmental Engineering.  
Further, any such wet stormwater management facility shall include features to discourage use 
of such facilities by wildlife, such as sound measures or otherwise.  (EE)

10. Public Water and Wastewater.  Public water and wastewater system shall be used. (U)

11. Utilities.  The Developer shall submit and receive approval from the Utilities Department for an 
overall utilities master plan indicating the on-site and off-site utilities improvements necessary 
to support the development prior to the submission of any schematic, tentative subdivision, 
construction, or site plan on the Property.  The Developer shall perform a hydraulic analysis of 
the county’s water and wastewater systems to verify adequate capacity exists as part of the 
overall utilities master plan.  Any capacity related improvements required to support the 
demands of this development will be reflected on the overall utilities master plan and shall be 
the responsibility of the Developer. (U)

Page 295 of 563



31 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

ATTACHMENT 2
TEXTUAL STATEMENT

Last Revised December 4, 2019

Design Guidelines.  This Textual Statement shall include the following exhibits which by this reference 
are made a part hereof:  

A. Exhibit A – Design Guidelines attached hereto as Exhibit A, entitled “COURTHOUSE 
LANDING, DESIGN GUIDELINES, CHESTERFIELD, VA”, dated November 5, 2019, and prepared by 
CiteDesign (the “Design Guidelines”).

Design Intent.  Courthouse Landing is a mixed use community to live, work, shop and recreate with a 
focus on common gathering spaces, public spaces and pedestrian connections.  The development is 
intended to provide seamless transitions to integrate the commercial areas and residential sections by 
use of connecting streets, common spaces, open areas, public spaces, and walkways as generally shown 
within the Design Guidelines.  While the particular uses are located in various specific areas of the 
Property, the overall design of the Property will include common spaces for use by all owners, residents, 
tenants, guests, and invitees of the Property, designed to include amenities that add high visual interest 
and pedestrian connections to such common spaces and all uses on the Property by use of various 
pedestrian elements.  The feel of the project will also be achieved with quality materials, finishes, design 
elements and architectural features on buildings to reflect a variety of architectural styles, buildings 
types, textures, and colors, but providing a commonality of quality material, finishes and styles as 
generally reflected in the Design Guidelines.  

CUPD.  Development of the Property shall comply with the Zoning Ordinance requirements except as 
outlined herein. 

I. General Requirements:

A. Design Guidelines Requirements.  The Property shall be designed as generally 
depicted within the Design Guidelines, provided the exact number, number, 
location and style of buildings, drive areas, parking areas, common areas, open 
spaces, pedestrian elements, and features shall be designed to achieve the goals of 
the Design Intent.  

B. Setbacks.
  

i. All structures, parking areas, drive aisles and public and private access roads 
shall (i) not have any setback requirements from interior streets or the 
exterior property lines, other than as needed to provide sufficient room for 
a pedestrian street environment (that may include on-street parking, street 
trees, sidewalks, and a landscaping strip between internal parking and any 
sidewalk) and necessary utility areas, (ii) be setback a minimum of 30 feet 
from Iron Bridge Road, (iii) be setback a minimum 30 feet from Courthouse 
Road, and (iv) for Tier 4, be a setback a minimum of 100 feet from I- 288.  

Page 296 of 563



32 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

ii. I-288.  The setback required by Section 17-70(a) for residential dwellings 
along I-288 shall be at least 100 feet.

C. Landscaping.  

i. Iron Bridge Road.  A landscape strip shall be provided along Iron Bridge 
Road planted in accordance with Zoning Ordinance requirements for Tree 
Preservation and Perimeter Landscaping C.  

ii. Courthouse Road.  A tree preservation and landscape strip shall be provided 
along Courthouse Road in accordance with Zoning Ordinance requirements 
for Tree Preservation and Perimeter Landscaping C.   

D.  Architecture.  Architectural styles within the project shall provide a variety of 
architectural features, buildings types, textures, design elements, and colors, as well 
as a commonality of quality material, finishes and styles as generally reflected by 
the Design Guidelines.    

EIFS shall consist of no more than 15% of the exposed portion of any wall of any 
building on the Property, shall not be located less than six feet from the ground 
adjoining the building, and EIFS is to be used primarily as an accent material.  

E.  Recreation Areas.  Common open spaces and recreation areas on the Property shall 
total at a minimum, at full build out, at least 10 acres, which areas shall include 
common open spaces, such as the Landing, as generally shown in the Design 
Guidelines, various pedestrian elements within and around such areas, walkways 
and sidewalks connecting the various uses, outdoor areas (hardscaped and natural), 
playgrounds, outdoor dining areas, fitness stations, seating areas (benches), bike 
racks, educational plaques, bird-watching areas and the various Recreation Areas 
within each Tier that are referenced below. 

F.  I-288 Signage. A sign shall be permitted along I-288 provided such sign shall be 
limited to a height of 20 feet and with no more than 150 square feet of sign area per 
side.

II. Tier 1 – Commercial Tier:

A. Uses.

i. All uses within the Community Business (C3) District shall be permitted, 
except for the following uses which shall be prohibited:

a. Automobile sales and rental, including consignment lots
b. Commercial kennels
c. Funeral homes 
d. Feed sales
e. Flea markets
f. Laundromat
g. Mortuary

Page 297 of 563



33 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

h. Motorcycle, Go Cart, All-Terrain Vehicle, or similar type vehicle track 
or operation

i. Greenhouse 
j. Veterinary clinic or hospital with accessory kennel for overnight 

stays

ii. Other than an office user and the self-storage use, no more than one tenant 
or user for any such permitted C-3 use may exceed 56,000 square feet.  

iii. An automobile self service station with convenience store shall be 
permitted subject to the following:  

a. No more than 1 automobile self service station shall be permitted 
on the Property and such use shall be located in Tier 1.  

b. No more than 8 fueling stations shall be permitted.  
c. Any such building for such use shall be generally compatible with 

respect to building materials and architectural style with the 
elevations shown in the Design Guidelines. 

d. The exterior portions of the wall surfaces of any such building, 
excluding windows, doors, breezeways, gables and architectural 
design features, shall consist of 70% of masonry material (brick, 
stone, or brick veneer). All columns for gas canopies shall be 
wrapped with brick or stone a minimum of 6’ in height.  

e. The canopy and gas pumps for any such use shall be located such 
that the convenience store is located between such canopy and gas 
pumps and Courthouse Road.  Any portion of such building facing 
Courthouse Road shall include windows or the appearance of 
windows and awnings as part of its architectural design.  

iv. Hotels shall be permitted subject to the following:
a. No more than one hotel shall be permitted on the Property and 

such use shall be located in Tier 1 or Tier 2.
b. Any such hotel shall include a fitness center and at least one such 

hotel shall incorporate an outdoor seating area or with an amenity 
connected to the common Recreation Areas, and at least 3 of the 
following amenities: a pool, business center, café, indoor common 
seating area, conference room, fire pit, and such other amenity 
features approved by the Planning Department.

c. The exterior portions of the wall surfaces of any such building, 
excluding windows, doors, breezeways, gables and architectural 
design features, shall consist of 70% of masonry material (brick, 
stone, or brick veneer).

d. The hotel shall not be greater than 4 stories in height.  

v. A self-storage facility shall be permitted subject to the following:

Page 298 of 563



34 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

a. No more than one self-storage facility shall be permitted on the 
Property and such use shall be generally located in Tier 1 as shown 
in the Design Guidelines.

b. The self-storage facility shall be generally compatible with respect 
to building materials and architectural style with the elevations 
shown in the Design Guidelines, with the appearance of 
fenestration and architectural articulation as shown on such 
elevations.  All buildings shall incorporate such architectural 
standards with respect to all portions of the exterior building walls 
that can be seen from any public rights-of-way, drives, pedestrian 
ways, or Recreational Areas.  

c. No sign attached to the self-storage facility may be seen from I-288.   
d. The exterior portions of the wall surfaces of any such building, 

excluding windows, doors, breezeways, gables and architectural 
design features, shall consist of 70% of masonry material (brick, 
stone, or brick veneer).  

e. Any such self-storage facility shall be climate controlled and any 
units shall be access by interior hallways.  

f. Any such building shall be limited to 3 stories in height and a 
maximum of 100,000 square feet of space.  

g. No recreational vehicle or boat storage shall be permitted. 

B.  Exterior Materials.  Unless otherwise specified herein, the exterior portions of the 
wall surfaces of any building within Tier 1 excluding windows, doors, breezeways, gables 
and architectural design features, shall consist of 50% of masonry material (brick, stone, 
or brick veneer).

C.  Recreational Areas.  Recreational Areas shall be provided within and around Tier 1, 
which shall include 4 or more of the following:  walking trails, plazas, outdoor dining 
areas, picnic shelters, multi-purpose lawns, hardscaped areas, seating areas (benches), 
and other outdoor amenity features approved by the Planning Department.       

III. Tier 2 – Office Tier

A. Uses.  Uses shall be limited to those uses permitted by right or with restrictions in 
the Corporate Office (O-2) and the Neighborhood Business (C-2) Districts.  A 
minimum of 100,000 square feet of office space in total shall be provided within Tier 
1 and Tier 2.  Such office space shall not be required prior to any other use within 
Tier 2, so long as enough area is reserved to accommodate a minimum of 100,000 
square feet of office space and accessory parking within Tier 1 or Tier 2 or a 
combination of both Tier 1 and Tier 2.  Any plan approval request for any use within 
Tier 2, shall incorporate a master plan showing the possible location of such office 
space and accessory parking and potential access thereto.     

Page 299 of 563



35 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

B. Building Height. Buildings shall be limited to 5 stories in height, not to exceed 75 
feet in height.

C. Exterior Materials.  Unless otherwise specified herein, the exterior portions of the 
wall surfaces of any building within Tier 2 excluding windows, doors, breezeways, 
gables and architectural design features, shall consist of 70% of masonry material 
(brick, stone, or brick veneer).

D. Recreational Areas.  Recreational Areas shall be provided within and around Tier 2, 
which shall include the Landing and 6 or more of the following:  walking trails, 
fitness stations, plazas, outdoor dining areas, picnic areas, picnic shelters, multi-
purpose lawns, lawn games, hardscaped areas, seating areas (benches), fire pits, 
and other outdoor amenity features approved by the Planning Department.

IV. Tier 3  – Multi-Family Residential Tier:  Development shall comply with the RMF Standards 
except as outlined herein. 

A. Uses.  Permitted uses shall be limited to uses permitted by right or with restriction 
in the Residential Multi-family (R-MF) District.  No more than 300 dwelling units 
shall be permitted in Tier 3 and no more than 15% of such units shall contain 3 
bedrooms.    

B. Development Standards.  Development of multiple family dwelling units within the 
Tier 3 portion of the Property shall comply with the R-MF Zoning Ordinance with the 
exception of Tables set forth in 19.1-121 of the County Zoning Ordinance, which 
shall be replaced with the attached Schedule 1, dated October 15, 2019.

C. Parking.  Parking within Tier 3 shall be provided at a minimum of 1.65 spaces for 
each dwelling unit.  On street marked parking along streets or drive aisles within the 
project shall be counted towards the required parking.  Garage parking spaces and 
tandem parking spaces in front of residential garages shall be counted towards the 
required parking.

D. Exterior Materials.  Unless otherwise specified herein, the exterior portions of the 
wall surfaces of any building within Tier 3, excluding windows, doors, breezeways, 
gables and architectural design features, shall consist of 50% of masonry material 
(brick, stone, or brick veneer) for all facades facing a public or private road or street.

E. Recreational Areas (Clubhouse and Amenities).  Prior to the issuance of certificates 
of occupancy for more than one hundred (100) dwelling units within Tier 3, 
amenities shall be provided for the benefit of the residents of such dwelling units, 
including, but not limited to, a clubhouse of a minimum of 5,000 square feet in size 
with a fitness center.  The clubhouse and fitness center shall be permitted to be 
contained within one of the residential buildings or within a separate building.  Prior 
to the issuance of certificates of occupancy for more than two hundred (200) 
dwelling units, interior and external amenities shall be provided on the multi-family 

Page 300 of 563



36 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

residential tract within and surrounding the residential buildings, which shall include 
at least 4 or more of the following:  exterior common gathering spaces, pool, 
sundeck, dog park, outdoor grills, fire pit, bike racks and storage, multi-purpose 
lawn, and other community amenity features approved by the Planning 
Department.  All such amenities to be provided as set forth herein shall total a 
minimum of ½ acre in area and satisfy the Recreational Area requirement.    

F. Notice.  All tenants of any dwelling units within Tier 3 shall be provided written 
notification prior to the execution of a lease that there is an airport in the proximity 
of the Property and that arrivals and departures of aircraft may, from time to time, 
potentially result in higher than average levels of noise.

G. East West Road.  The road running east and west shall be generally designed within 
Tier 3 as provided for in the Design Guidelines, including, without limitation, 
terminating at a visual focal point, such as one or more of a building, pedestrian 
plaza, traffic circle or roundabout, or water feature. 

V. Tier 4 – Townhouse and Condominium Tier: 

A. Overall Standards.  No more than 300 dwelling units may be developed within Tier 
4.   Such dwelling units shall be either townhouse dwelling units on individual lots or 
multiple-family dwelling (condominium) units.  

B. Single-Family Townhouse Standards.  Development of townhouse units within Tier 4 
shall comply with the R-TH Zoning Ordinance with the exception of Table 19.1-111 
of the County Zoning Ordinance, which shall be replaced with the attached Schedule 
2, dated October 14, 2019.  

C. Condominium Standards.  Development of condominium dwelling units within Tier 4 
shall comply with the Residential Multi-family (R-MF) District, other than as follows:

i. There shall be no minimum project size.
ii. There shall be no more than 250 condominium dwelling units located within 

Tier 4.
iii. No building setback shall be greater than 20 feet.
iv. No building shall be greater than 4 stories, with a rooftop terrace.  

D. Sound Suppression.  Any unit backing up to I-288 will be designed to have an 
average interior decibel level that does not exceed 45 DBA.  A sound engineer shall 
certify that all such units are appropriately designed so that the average interior 
decibel level shall not exceed 45 DBA.   A cross section detail, reviewed and 
approved by a certified architect or engineer as to the methodology accomplishing 
the sound transmission coefficient rating shall be provided to the Department of 
Planning during plan review for such building(s).

E. Parking.  Parking shall be provided as required by the County Ordinance, but marked 
parking along streets or drive aisles within the project shall be counted towards the 

Page 301 of 563



37 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

required parking.  Garage parking spaces and tandem parking spaces in front of 
residential garages shall be counted towards the required parking.

F. Architectural Standards and Exterior Materials.

i. To minimize visual repetition of buildings, no two adjacent townhouse units 
or condominium units shall have the same identical individual elevation 
sequence pattern across the front of the building.  All townhouse units shall 
have a front porch or stoop.  Architectural materials will vary every 40 linear 
feet to provide diversity in material.  All townhouse units and condominium 
units shall have a minimum of a 1 car garage.  

ii. All buildings shall have exposed exterior walls (above grade and exclusive of 
trim) of stone, stone veneer, brick, hardi-plank, vinyl or a combination of 
the foregoing.  Any vinyl siding shall be a minimum of .44“ thickness.  The 
exterior portions of the building wall surfaces of each building, excluding 
windows, doors, breezeways, gables and architectural design features, shall 
be of masonry material (brick, stone, or brick veneer), as follows:

1. A minimum of 30% on the front elevation measured in the 
aggregate of the building.

2. A minimum of 20% total on the side elevation measured in the 
aggregate of the building.

iii. Any buildings identified on the Concept Plan as “Landing Units” shall include 
the following:

1. Various architectural features to provide articulation, such as 
enhanced window features and doors, patios, and decks. 

2. A minimum of 40% on any rear elevation measured in the aggregate 
of such building.  

G. Recreational Areas.  Recreational Areas shall be provided within and around Tier 4, 
which shall include 4 or more of the following:  walking trails, plazas, playgrounds, 
picnic shelters, gazebo, fitness stations, seating areas (benches), nature trials, pond 
overlook, community gardens, and other outdoor amenity features approved by the 
Planning Department.

H. Notice.  All purchasers of any dwelling units within Tier 4 shall be provided written 
notification that there is an airport in the proximity of the Property and that arrivals 
and departures of aircraft may, from time to time, potentially result in higher than 
average levels of noise.

Page 302 of 563



38 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Schedule I

Page 303 of 563



39 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 304 of 563



40 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Schedule II

Page 305 of 563



41 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 306 of 563



42 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 307 of 563



20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

ATTACHMENT 3
EXHIBIT A

COURTHOUSE LANDING, DESIGN GUIDELINES
November 5, 2019

Page 308 of 563



44 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 309 of 563



45 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 310 of 563



46 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 311 of 563



47 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 312 of 563



48 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 313 of 563



49 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 314 of 563



50 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 315 of 563



51 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 316 of 563



52 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 317 of 563



53 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 318 of 563



54 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 319 of 563



55 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 320 of 563



56 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 321 of 563



57 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 322 of 563



58 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 323 of 563



59 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 324 of 563



60 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 325 of 563



61 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 326 of 563



62 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 327 of 563



63 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 328 of 563



64 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 329 of 563



65 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 330 of 563



66 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 331 of 563



67 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 332 of 563



68 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 333 of 563



69 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 334 of 563



70 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 335 of 563



71 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 336 of 563



72 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 337 of 563



73 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 338 of 563



74 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 339 of 563



75 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 340 of 563



76 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 341 of 563



77 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 342 of 563



78 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 343 of 563



79 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 344 of 563



80 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 345 of 563



81 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 346 of 563



82 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 347 of 563



83 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 348 of 563



84 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 349 of 563



85 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 350 of 563



86 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 351 of 563



87 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 352 of 563



88 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

Page 353 of 563



89 20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

ATTACHMENT 4

AIRPORT FLIGHT APPROACH MAP

Page 354 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 19SN0566 
APPLICANT: John S. Bolton 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
BERMUDA DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
16.8 Acres- 2701 Drewrys Bluff Road 

Winchester Green 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Contact: 
JOHN S. BOLTON (843-475-8094) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
 DARLA ORR (804-717-6533) 

 

REQUEST 

Rezoning from Residential (R-7) to Multi-family Residential (R-MF) with Conditional Use Planned 
Development to permit exceptions to Ordinance requirements.     
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffer conditions. 
B. Proffered conditions, Textual Statement and exhibits are located in Attachments 1 - 5.   

 

SUMMARY 

A 164-unit multi-family residential development within the Winchester Green mixed-use 
development is planned, yielding a density of 9.76 dwellings per acre (Concept Plan, Attachment 
3).  This property is located within an area identified for revitalization.  Exceptions to ordinance 
requirements are requested to accommodate the development as identified in the Textual 
Statement.  (Attachment 2)   
 

Proffered conditions offer design and architectural standards (summarized on pages 5 and 6) 
comparable in quality to that of the Winchester Green community that would enhance the 
surrounding area. 
 

Under the Board’s Road Cash Proffer Policy, no road cash proffer will be accepted in a 
revitalization area. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

APPROVAL 

STAFF 

PLANNING – APPROVAL 

• Proposal provides higher density residential development as suggested in a 
Residential Mixed Use area by the Comprehensive Plan 

• Multifamily use is compatible with, and representative of, existing 
Winchester Green development. 

• Quality design and architecture offered by the applicant provide for a  

Page 355 of 563



2  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS (Continued) 

STAFF 

• convenient, attractive and harmonious community that would enhance the 
surrounding community. 

TRANSPORTATION – APPROVAL 
Located within a revitalization area. Under the Road Cash Proffer Policy, no 
road cash proffer will be accepted. 

 
 

 

SUMMARY OF IDENTIFIED ISSUES 

Department Issue 

SCHOOLS 
 

Post 2020, the Public Facilities Plan recommends the revitalization or 
replacement of Falling Creek Middle School and for a new high school facility 
in the vicinity of Chester Road and Route 288 north of Route 10, however at 
this time, a budget has not been developed for the acquisition of land or 
construction of these school facilities as recommended in the Plan 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 356 of 563



3  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

Page 357 of 563



4  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

Comprehensive Plan – Northern Jefferson Davis Plan 
Classification: RESIDENTIAL MIXED USE 

 

The designation suggests the property is appropriate for residential use of 12 dwellings per acre or more 
with integrated community scale commercial use. 

 
 

 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 
 

 

Jefferson Davis Highway 

Drewrys Bluff Rd 

Defense General 
Supply Center 

Bensley Park 

Residential – 
Winchester Green 

Commercial 

Page 358 of 563



5  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Darla Orr (804-717-6533) orrd@chesterfield.gov 

 

Proposal  
 

Rezoning to Residential Multi-family (R-MF) is proposed to permit development of 164 multi-
family residential units on 16.8 acres, yielding a density of 9.76 units per acre.  The proposal is an 
expansion of a mixed-use community (Winchester Green) containing retail, office and multi-family 
residential uses.  Development would comply with the conceptual plan provided in Exhibit A, 
Attachment 3.  Pedestrian connections would integrate the development with the remainder of 
the Winchester Green development.     
 

A Conditional Use Planned Development is also sought relative to landscaping, setbacks, drive 
widths and parking to accommodate the development.  (Textual Statement, Attachment 2)     
 

Design   
 

High quality residential development addresses the Comprehensive Plan goals for strong and 
sustainable neighborhoods that are visually attractive, well-planned and well-maintained. 
Further, the purpose and intent of the zoning ordinance to promote the health, safety, 
convenience and general welfare of the public includes the creation of convenient, attractive 
and harmonious communities, protection against overcrowding of land, and protection of the 
natural environment.  As such, developments that promote unique, viable and long lasting 
places and enhance the community are encouraged. 
 

The following provides an overview of design requirements offered as part of this request 
(Attachments 1 and 2 – Proffered Conditions and Textual Statement): 
 

• Community Design 
o Conceptual Site Layout Plan (Exhibit A) 
o Landscaping around buildings, driveways and parking areas 
o Foundation plantings 
o Pedestrian connections internal to site and connecting to Winchester Green and 

Jefferson Davis Highway 
o Pedestrian-style lights along walkways/pedestrian areas unless illuminated by 

facility/parking lights 
o Outdoor amenities (minimum 1.6 acres) to include hardscaped areas to facilitate 

resident gatherings and 2 playground areas  
o Indoor amenities to include activity area for building resident (minimum 750 sf), as 

well as resident lounges and laundry facilities 
o HVAC screening 

 

• Building Design 
o Building elevations (Exhibit B) 
o Exterior façades (cumulative) minimum 80% brick, with remainder being 

cementitious board material 
o 1, 2 and 3-bedroom units; 20% maximum 1-bedroom units and 20% maximum 3-

bedroom units 
o Green building certified construction 
o Vapor barriers installed under each building 

Page 359 of 563



6  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

As suggested by the Comprehensive Plan goals and the Zoning Ordinance, the proffered 
conditions of this request include quality design and architectural elements that would enhance 
the surrounding community.   
 

Comprehensive Plan 
 

The request property is located within the Northern Jefferson Davis Special Area Plan which 
suggests the property is appropriate for Residential Mixed Use where an integrated mixture of 
higher density residential use of 12 units per acre or more with concentrated commercial uses 
are appropriate. 
 

Within this Plan geography there is a higher focus/strategy on revitalization which includes 
ongoing efforts to bring new life to older neighborhoods and communities through 
preservation and rehabilitation, as well as aging development replacement and new 
investments.  It is anticipated that these efforts will encourage area reinvestment and new 
developments, as suggested by the Plan.   
 

The Public Facilities Plan, an element of the Comprehensive Plan, makes recommendations 
regarding the provision of public facilities needed to serve existing and planned growth and 
includes specific facility recommendations.  Relative to school facilities, the Plan identifies that 
Chesterfield County Public Schools uses a facility’s program (functional) capacity to measure 
facility usage which accounts for the building’s physical size and classroom space (the building’s 
design capacity) plus how classroom space is utilized for educational program requirements and 
state/federal mandates.  The Plan suggests that system utilization should be assessed to 
identify facilities that are, or are projected to be, over capacity and whether this over capacity is 
for a temporary or long-term period.  The Plan suggests consideration should be given to these 
capacities as the threshold to trigger redistricting, building additions and/or new school 
development as appropriate.  
  
The applicant anticipates construction of the proposed 164 multi-family units would be 
complete for occupancy in the Summer of 2022 with full-occupancy within the following 
approximately four (4) month period.  To accommodate these units, and anticipated area 
development resulting from the heightened revitalization and reinvestment strategies in the 
area, consideration should be given to public facility and infrastructure provision and 
investment.   
 

 

COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT 
Staff Contact: Carl Schlaudt (804-318-8674) schlaudtc@chesterfield.gov 

 

The project site is located in a revitalization area, consistent with the criteria-based approach 
of Road Cash Proffer Policy Section B.5 (as amended by the Board of Supervisors on April 26, 
2017).  
 

The Department of Community Enhancement supports development in revitalization areas 
that represents a substantial improvement above current area conditions. This proposal (as 
reflected in proffers and textual statement dated 12/4/19 and current code requirements), 
represents a substantial improvement above conditions of older residential development in 
the vicinity of the project site.  The Department of Community Enhancement supports the 
proposal as proffered. 

Page 360 of 563



7  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

BUDGET & MANAGEMENT 
Staff Contact: Natalie Spillman (804-318-8767) spillmann@chesterfield.gov 

 

County finance staff is responsible for managing the finances of the County and making 
recommendations to the County Administrator regarding the allocation of available resources 
for the provision of services and capital facilities to serve the citizens of the County.  Finance 
staff will advise the County Administrator if changed economic circumstances require 
adjustments to the County’s budget or capital improvement program.   

 
 

 

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804-748-1037) adamsSt@chesterfield.gov 

 
The applicant has proffered a maximum density of 164 multi-family dwelling units (Proffered 
Condition 2). Based on those number of units and applying trip generation rates for a multi-
family (mid-rise) dwelling unit, development could generate approximately 900 average daily 
trips. Traffic generated by development of the property will be distributed to Jefferson Davis 
Highway (Route 1/301) via Drewrys Bluff Road. 
 

Route 1/301 is a major arterial with a recommended right of way width of 120 to 200 feet, as 
identified on the County’s Thoroughfare Plan. Route 1/301 is a four-lane divided road. In 2018, 
the VDOT traffic count on Route 1/301 between Chester Road and Chippenham Parkway was 
21,146 vehicles per day (Level of Service “C”). 
 

Section 19.1-231 of the County Code outlines the general requirements to meet the needs of 
the traffic generated by a proposed development, including acceptable levels of service. This 
proposed residential development would contribute to an identifiable need for transportation 
improvements. The applicant has not offered to provide any mitigating road improvements. 
 

According to the Department of Community Enhancement, the property is located within a 
revitalization area. Under the Road Cash Proffer Policy, no road cash proffer will be accepted 
for development in these areas. 

 
 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Adam Wilkerson (804-674-2384) adam.wilkerson@vdot.virginia.gov 

 
The applicant is proposing to rezone the existing 16.8 acres from R-7 to R-MF in compliance 
with the Residential Multifamily guidelines.  VDOT assumes all internal streets are to be 
privately maintained, as all publicly maintained roads must comply with the 2011 SSAR 
regulation.  Proposed commercial entrances will be subject to VDOT Access Management 
minimum spacing criteria and commercial entrance design standards.  A turn lane warrant 
analysis will be required for the proposed entrances during the site plan review process. 
 

 

 

Page 361 of 563



8  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (804-717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 

Mission 
 

The mission of Fire and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) is to protect life, property and the 
environment through a comprehensive fire and life safety program that ensures an adequate 
and timely response to emergencies.  

 

Response Times 
 

The proposed development is located in the urban response zone for which Fire & EMS has a 
goal of responding to at least 90% of the calls for service in under seven (7) minutes. Fire and 
EMS is currently unable to meet that goal.  
  

Nearby Fire/EMS Facilities 
 

The Bensley Fire Station, Company Number 3 
 

Anticipated Fire & EMS Impacts/Needs 
 

Based on an average of 0.58 calls per dwelling, it is estimated that this development will 
generate 95 annual calls for Fire/EMS services.   

 
Additional Fire and EMS Comments 
 

When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire 
protection, and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process. 
 
 

SCHOOLS 
Staff Contact: Atonja Allen (804-318-8740) atonja_allen@ccpsnet.net 

 

Mission 
 

High performing, high quality public schools contribute to the quality of life and economic 
vitality of the County. The comprehensive plan suggests a greater focus should be placed on 
linking schools with communities by providing greater access, flexible designs and locations that 
better meet the needs of the communities in which they are located.  
 

Capital Improvements 
 

The School Board FY2020 adopted Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) continues to support the 
2013 voter approved school revitalization program that will replace or renovate ten schools and 
construct one new elementary school to add capacity in the Midlothian area of the county.  The 
ten existing facilities that are part of the revitalization program are Beulah Elementary School, 
Crestwood Elementary School, Enon Elementary School, Ettrick Elementary School, Harrowgate 
Elementary School, Matoaca Elementary School, Reams Elementary School, Manchester Middle 
School, Providence Middle School, and Monacan High School.  A replacement Manchester 
Middle School is planned for construction on the existing school site, and the Beulah 
Elementary School, Enon Elementary School, Providence Middle School, and Monacan High 

Page 362 of 563



9  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

School projects are complete.  Additional school construction projects include a Matoaca 
Middle School addition on the east campus site, and the new Matoaca Elementary School will 
be constructed on the existing west campus site.  Upon completion of the east campus 
addition, the current west campus building will be demolished and Matoaca Middle School will 
operate as a single, unified campus.  Information on the CIP and School Board approved 
construction projects can be found in the financial section of the CCPS Adopted Budget for 
FY2020. 
 

Anticipated School Impacts 
 

 Elementary 
(PK – 5) 

Middle 
(6 – 8) 

High 
(9 – 12) 

Total (1) 

Anticipated Student Yield by 
School Type 

30 18 20 68 

 

Schools Currently Serving Area Bellwood  Falling Creek Meadowbrook  
 

2019-20 
School Year 

Current Enrollment 586 1,466 1,883 
Design Capacity (2) 758 1,152 1,779 
Enrollment Percent of Design 
Capacity 

77% 127% 106% 

Program Capacity (3) 706 1,111 1,887 
Enrollment Percent of Program 
Capacity 

83% 132% 100% 

Total Number of Trailers  1 22 2 
Number of Classroom Trailers 1 21 2 
Note: 
(1) Based upon the average number of students per multi-family dwelling unit for each of the school attendance zones 
where the proposal is located. Student Generation Factor (2017) is the actual total number of students by grade level 
divided by the actual total number of housing units by housing type. 
(2) Design capacity is the maximum number of students the building can accommodate based on the Virginia Department 
of Education Standards of Quality and the architectural program design of the existing building including all interior and 
exterior renovations to date and an inventory of all available space.  Design capacity does not include site-based 
initiatives and is thus not subject to frequent change and represents prototypical design capacity using VDOE standards. 
(3) Program capacity is the maximum number of students the building can accommodate based on the Virginia 
Department of Education Standards of Quality and the current school programming that may adjust the number of rooms 
used for core or grade-level classrooms in the overall building design capacity. 
 

Public Facilities Plan 
 

Post 2020, the Public Facilities Plan recommends the revitalization or replacement of 
Falling Creek Middle School and for a new high school facility in the vicinity of Chester 
Road and Route 288 north of Route 10, however at this time, a budget has not been 
developed for the acquisition of land or construction of these school facilities as 
recommended in the Plan. 
 

Additional School Comments 
 

Over time, this case combined with other tentative residential developments, infill 
developments, and approved residential zoning cases in the area may cause these 
schools to reach or exceed its capacity. 
 

Page 363 of 563



10  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

UTILITIES 

Staff Contact: Matthew Rembold (706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov)  

 
 

Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
 

Utility Type 
Currently 
Serviced 

Size of Closest Existing 
Lines 

Connection Required by County 
Code 

Water No 12” Yes 

Wastewater No 8”                             Yes 
 
 

Additional Utility Comments: 
 
The applicant requests a rezoning and CUPD to allow a residential multi-family development of 
16.81 acres with a maximum of 164 units.  The subject parcels are within the mandatory 
connection areas for county water and wastewater.  The applicant has proffered use of county 
water and wastewater to serve this development.   
 
There is an existing 12” county waterline located within the development, which may need to be 
relocated depending upon the proposed layout.  The applicant has proffered to relocate this 
facility if adversely impacted by the proposed development.  
 
There is an existing 8” county wastewater line available for connection or extension along Drewrys 
Bluff Road.   
 
All extensions of the County water and wastewater systems will be subject to formal review and 
approval of the Utilities Department.  The Utilities Department supports this case. 

Page 364 of 563



11  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

 

Page 365 of 563



12  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Ward (804-748-1028) WardR@chesterfield.gov 

 

Geography 
 

The western third of the subject properties generally drains from northeast to southwest to No 
Name Creek, then under Alcott Road and through tributaries to the James River.  The eastern 
two-thirds of the properties drains east through an adjacent property and into an existing 
storm sewer which discharges to No Name Creek.    The properties are all located within the 
James River Watershed. 
 

Surrounding Environmental Concerns 
 

The adjacent property owner to the west of the subject properties is the USA Defense General 
Supply Center (DLA).  The 640-acre DLA site is an active federal facility, which has been in 
operation as a DLA supply center since 1941.  In the 1960s and early 1970s, waste material from 
maintenance and operations were disposed onsite, which resulted in the contamination of soil, 
sediment, and groundwater.  Remedial efforts are on-going to clean up the documented 
contamination on the DLA property.   
 

Over the past year, the applicant has performed groundwater sampling and monitoring on the 
subject properties for the presence of the contaminants for which the DLA is actively 
remediating.  The sampling results showed that the concentrations of the contaminants on the 
subject properties are below the method detection limits. 
 

Environmental Features 
 

A Resource Protection Area Designation (RPAD) must be submitted to and confirmed by the 
Department of Environmental Engineering - Water Quality Section prior to the submittal of any 
site or construction plans.  In addition, wetlands shall not be impacted without approval from the 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and/or the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.   
 

Drainage 
 

A portion of the property drains to No Name Creek and through a culvert under Alcott Road, 
which experiences flooding during some storm events.  There is an alternate ingress/egress for 
residents in Rayon Park during these storm events; however, the flooding of the roadway is an 
inconvenience to the residents.  Therefore, for the portion of the development which drains 
towards No Name Creek, the 10-year post-development peak discharge rate shall not exceed 
the 10-year pre-development peak discharge rate.  The applicant has offered a proffered 
condition to address this impact.  (Proffered Condition 15) 
 

Stormwater Management 
 

The development of the subject property will be subject to the Part IIB technical criteria of the 
Virginia Stormwater Management Program Regulations for water quality and quantity.   
 
 

Page 366 of 563

mailto:WardR@chesterfield.gov
mailto:WardR@chesterfield.gov


13  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

LIBRARIES 
Staff Contact: Jennifer Stevens (804-751-4435) stevensj@chesterfield.gov  

PARKS AND RECREATION 
Staff Contact: Stuart Connock (804-751-4484) ConnockS@chesterfield.gov 

 
To date, no comments have been received.  

Page 367 of 563



14  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
11/13/18 Application submitted 

12/4/18 Revised proffered conditions submitted 

12/14/18 Application amended 

12/4/18 and 
7/30, 9/10, 
10/2, 10/3, 

10/30, 11/5, 
11/20, 11/26 
and 12/9/19 

Revised proffered conditions, Textual Statement and exhibits submitted 

 

Community Meeting 
12/2/19 Issues Discussed: 

• Environmental spill plume monitoring; spill from Defense Supply 
Center 

• Environmental studies required by Environmental Engineering 
complete; test results indicate no unacceptable levels; vapor barriers 
to be installed under buildings; buffer to be maintained between 
development and environmental easement 

• Tax credit program to build development; rents will be income based 
at a percentage of market rate  

• Each unit will have washer and dryer; no community laundry facilities 

• On-site staff will manage the property 

• HVAC and dumpster units will be screened 

• Pedestrian connection between development and New Park Drive 

• Multi-family is separated from remainder of development by the 
environmental easement; easement renewable in 2025 will likely be 
renewed 

• Better Housing Coalition owns property across Drewrys Bluff from 
dev; would be willing to dedicate to county for access to Bensley Park 

• Property is wet; there are areas of wetlands to be avoided; applicant 
will be required to ensure property drains appropriately 

• Concern with additional traffic on Drewrys Bluff Road; condition of 
road; curve near property; children crossing to park possible hazard 

• Applicant to discuss speed mitigation and crossing of Drewrys Bluff 

• Impact of under market apartments on revitalization of area; quality 
of construction and project management should set tone for market 
rate developers to build 

• Project will likely begin between March and June 2021 
 
 

Page 368 of 563



15  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

Planning Commission 
12/17/19 Citizens Comments: 

• Support affordable housing options in area, but hopeful these 
investments will generate more market rate housing development 

• Better Housing Coalition does great job with Winchester Green; they 
manage project well and have recently reinvested in existing units 

• Some concern about additional traffic on Drewrys Bluff Road 

• County should look at accepting potential donation of property from 
applicant between this development and Bensley Park; would provide 
pedestrian access to park for residents without them having to walk 
along Drewrys Bluff Road 
 

Commission Discussion: 
In response to questions from the Bermuda District Commissioner, 
staff confirmed that: the environmental studies required by 
Environmental Engineering were completed by applicant; test results 
indicate no unacceptable chemical levels; vapor barriers will be 
installed under buildings; and, buffer to be maintained between 
development and environmental easement 

 
Recommendation – APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROFFERED 
CONDITIONS IN ATTACHMENT 1 
 
Motion:  Sloan    Second:  Jones 
AYES:  Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan and Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2019, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 

Page 369 of 563



16  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

PROFFERED CONDITIONS 
(December 4, 2019) 

Note: Both the Planning Commission and staff recommend acceptance of the following proffered 
conditions, as offered by the Applicant. 

 
Better Housing Coalition (the Developer) in this zoning case, proffers that the development of 
the property consisting of four (4) parcels with 16.8 total acres (the Project Site) will be 
developed according to the following conditions.  In the event the request is denied or approved 
with conditions not agreed to by the Developer, the proffers shall immediately be null and void 
and of no further notice or effect. 
 
The application contains three (3) exhibits: 
 
Exhibit A – Conceptual Site Layout prepared by _Arnold Design Studio and dated Nov. 4, 2019 
Exhibit B – Building Elevations prepared by Arnold Design Studio and dated Oct. 3, 2019 
Exhibit C – Photos of existing building types at Winchester Green. 
 

1. Master Plan -The Textual Statement last revised on December 4, 2019 and the 

Conceptual site Layout (Exhibit A) shall be considered the Master Plan. (P) 

 
2. Number of Dwelling Units - The total number of dwelling units on the Project Site 

shall not exceed 164 multi-family units. (P) 

 
3. Unit Types - The dwelling units shall consist of no more than 20% one-bedroom units 

and no more than 20% three-bedroom units.  The remaining units shall be two-

bedroom units.  (P and BI) 

 
4. Number of Units - The maximum number of units per floor shall be 25 (three story 

building) or 35 (if it is a two story building). (P and BI) 

 
5. Architecture - The architectural style shall generally be consistent with the buildings 

in Exhibit B.  Each unit shall have a functional balcony or porch with a minimum 

depth of six (6) feet.  The new buildings shall be complimentary in style to the 

existing buildings within the Winchester Green development as shown in Exhibit C.  

(P and BI) 

 

6. Building Facades and Foundations – Exterior building facades shall be a minimum of 

eighty-five (85) percent brick with the remaining façade treatment to be 

cementitious board siding.  Building foundations shall be brick.  (P and BI) 

 

Page 370 of 563



17  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

7. Construction Standards – Buildings shall be EarthCraft Gold, NGBS Silver or 

Enterprise Green certified.  Verification of such certification shall be submitted to 

the county with the building permit application for each building. (P and BI)   

 
8. Pedestrian Design - Five foot wide sidewalks shall be constructed throughout as part 

of the development Project Site.  Sidewalks shall be constructed around all buildings.  

A paved pedestrian/bike path shall be constructed that will directly connect the 

Project Site to the Winchester Green development via Bensley Commons Boulevard 

and terminate at Jefferson Davis Highway.  The exact location, treatment, and 

design shall be determined at the time of site review. (P) 

 
9. Recreational Amenities - 

 
A. Indoor amenities - A minimum of 750 square feet of indoor activity area, open 

and easily accessible to building residents for resident activities shall be 

provided.     

B. Outdoor amenities – A minimum of 1.6 acres shall be provided for active and 

passive recreational space.  These areas shall include a hardscaped focal point 

with, at a minimum, benches designed to facilitate gatherings and two (2) 

playground areas designed to provide families with convenient access to safe 

play areas.   (P) 

 
10. Utilities - Public water and wastewater systems shall be used.  Any existing county 

water facilities adversely impacted by the proposed development shall be relocated 

by the Developer, subject to Utilities Department review and approval. (U) 

 
11. Landscaping – Landscaping, including foundation plantings and street trees, shall be 

provided around the perimeter of the building, driveways, and parking areas. 

Landscaping shall be designed to minimize the predominance of building mass and 

paved areas. Native and drought resistant plants shall be installed in parking areas.  

The exact design, number and species of plantings shall be shown on a landscaping 

plan to be approved by the Planning Department at the time of plan review. (P) 

 
12. Light Poles - Light poles on the Property shall have a maximum height of twenty (20) 

feet.  Sidewalks, walkways and other pedestrian areas not otherwise illuminated by 

light poles shall be lit by pedestrian-style lights in accordance with a lighting plan to 

be approved at the time of plan review. (P) 

 
13. HVAC Screening - Ground-level HVAC equipment shall be screened from view from 

streets and public areas within the Property in a manner approved at the time of 

plan review. (P) 

 

Page 371 of 563



18  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

14. Environmental – A vapor barrier shall be installed under the concrete foundation of 

each building. (EE and BI) 

 

15. Stormwater – Stormwater/Best Management Practice facilities shall be designed to 

retain the 2-year and 10-year post development runoff rates and release at the 2-

uyear and 10-year pre-development rate for that area that drains to the southwest 

to No Name Creek.  This may be modified at the time of plans review if a greater 

release rate has no effect on the flooding of Alcott Road, as it currently exists, to the 

extent acceptable to the Chesterfield County Environmental Engineering 

Department. (EE)  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 372 of 563



19  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 ATTACHMENT 2 

TEXTUAL STATEMENT 
(December 4, 2019) 

 
Development Standards 
 
Development of the property shall conform to the Residential Multi-family (R-MF) standards, 
except as outlined herein. 
 

I. Acreage - The project shall contain 16.8 acres. 

 
II. Parking - On-site parking shall be provided at 1.75 spaces per unit as generally depicted 

on the Conceptual Site Layout (Exhibit A). 

 

III. Drive Widths - Access drives adjacent to buildings shall be a minimum of twenty-six (26) 

feet wide.  Other drives shall be permitted to be a minimum of twenty-four (24) feet 

wide. 

 

IV. Interior Private Pavement - A 10  foot exception to the 25 foot setback requirement 

from interior private pavement, excluding parking spaces, for residential buildings. 

 

V. Parking Setback - A 10 foot exception to the requirement that all residential buildings 

be located at least 15 feet from any parking space. 

 

VI. Distance Between Buildings -The minimum distance between buildings shall be 30 feet. 

 

VII. Landscaped Buffers –  

 

A. A 100 foot tree preservation setback, inclusive of a 75 foot buffer, shall be provided 

along the western boundaries of Tax IDs 789-680-0739 and 5623.   

B. A 25 foot buffer shall be provided along the eastern boundary of the development. 

C. A 25 foot buffer inclusive of building setback shall be provided along the southern 

boundary of the development.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 373 of 563



20  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 ATTACHMENT 3 

EXHIBIT A, CONCEPTUAL SITE LAYOUT 

 

Page 374 of 563



21  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 

EXHIBIT B - BUILDING ELEVATIONS 

 

Page 375 of 563



22  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

  
 

Page 376 of 563



23  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

Page 377 of 563



24  19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

ATTACHMENT 5 

EXHIBIT C – PHOTOS OF EXISTING WINCHESTER GREEN 

 
 

Page 378 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 19SN0616 
APPLICANT: Idlewood Properties Inc. 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
CLOVER HILL DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
10 Acres – 2601 Waterford Lake Drive 

WATERFORD 
 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Agent:  
BRENNEN KEENE (804-775-1005) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
DARLA ORR (804-717-6533) 

 

REQUEST 

Rezoning from Light Industrial (I-1) to General Industrial (I-2) with Conditional Use Planned 
Development relative to uses.    
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffered conditions. 
B. Proffered conditions, Textual Statement and exhibits are located in Attachments 1 - 4. 

 

SUMMARY 

The request property includes vacant properties within the Waterford development, a mixed-use 
community originally zoned in 1986 which contains light industrial, office, commercial and multi-
family residential uses.  The applicant has provided that the existing zoning limits uses on the 
request property which has negatively affected their ability to market the property.  Rezoning to 
General Industrial (I-2) with Conditional Use Planned Development is proposed to permit some 
General Industrial (I-2) and Neighborhood Commercial (C-2) uses.  Uses permitted by right or with 
restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) District would also be permitted. 
 

Development is proposed based on the tract plan (Exhibit A) and a conceptual pedestrian 
connectivity plan (Exhibit B) is offered by the applicant to ensure pedestrian connections are 
provided between the proposed uses and remainder of the Waterford development. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

PLANNING 
COMMISSION  

APPROVAL 

STAFF 

APPROVAL 

• Proposed zoning and land uses offer employment generating uses 
suggested as appropriate by the Comprehensive Plan 

• Additional land uses provide development flexibility while maintaining 
land use compatibility within the project  

• Pedestrian connectivity assists with integration of uses into the remainder 
of the Waterford development 

 

Page 379 of 563



2  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

Page 380 of 563



3  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

Comprehensive Plan 
Classification: REGIONAL MIXED USE 

 

The designation suggests the property is appropriate for an integrated urban-style mix of  
employment-generating uses, destination commercial services and subordinate higher-density  
residential development of 20 units per acre or more. 

 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 

 

 

 

 

Charter Colony 
Pkwy 

Old Hundred Rd 

Office and light 
industrial uses 

within Waterford 

Page 381 of 563



4  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Darla Orr (804-717-6533) orrd@chesterfield.gov 

 

Zoning History 
 

Case Number Request 

86SN0117 
Approved 
8/27/1986 

• Rezoning with Conditional Use Planned Development on 243 acres, 
including the request property, to permit a mixed use development 
including residential, office, commercial, and light industrial uses (original 
Waterford zoning) 

• Use and bulk exceptions included to accommodate the planned 
development 

 

Proposal 
 

The applicant has provided that the existing zoning for the Waterford development (Case 
86SN0117) limits uses on the request property which has affected their ability to market the 
property.  Rezoning to General Industrial (I-2) with Conditional use Planned Development is 
proposed to permit some General Industrial (I-2) and Neighborhood Commercial (C-2) uses.  
Uses permitted by right or with restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) District would also be 
permitted. 
 
The applicant proposes rezoning of the request property from Light Industrial (I-1) to General 
Industrial (I-2) with Conditional Use Planned Development to permit the following uses: 
 

• Uses permitted by-right or with restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) district. 

• Locksmith, mailing service and a photography studio (Neighborhood Business (C-
2 uses) 

• Brewery and distillery manufacturing 

• Electrical machinery, equipment, and supply manufacturing 

• Metal product manufacturing, fabricated products not otherwise listed 

 
Development is proposed based on the tract plan (Exhibit A) and a conceptual pedestrian 
connectivity plan (Exhibit B) is offered by the applicant to ensure pedestrian connections are 
provided between the proposed uses and remainder of the Waterford development. 
(Attachments 3 and 4) 
 
The proposed zoning and land use offer employment generating uses suggested as appropriate 
within a Regional Mixed Use area by the Comprehensive Plan.  The additional land uses offer 
flexibility to applicant to market the property while maintaining land use compatibility within 
the development.  In addition, pedestrian connectivity assists with integration of uses into the 
remainder of the Waterford development, as suggested appropriate by the Plan.  Therefore, 
staff supports this request. 
 

 

Page 382 of 563



5  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804) 748-1037 adamsSt@chesterfield.gov 

 
The Comprehensive Plan, which includes the Thoroughfare Plan, identifies county-wide 
transportation needs that are expected to mitigate traffic impacts of future growth. The 
anticipated traffic impact of the proposal has been evaluated and it is anticipated to have a 
similar impact as existing permitted uses on the property. 
 
 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Willie Gordon (804-674-2907) willie.gordon@vdot.virginia.gov  

 
The proposed property is located along Tredegar Lake Parkway, a 35 MPH Urban Local Road.  
The applicant is proposing to rezone the property to I-2 with a CUPD to allow commercial uses.  
Proposed access to the site will be subject to VDOT Access Management policy minimum 
spacing criteria and commercial entrance design standards. A turn lane warrant analysis will be 
required for the proposed entrances during the site plan review process. 

 

FIRE SERVICE 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 
When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire 
protection, and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process. 
 
 

Nearby Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Facilities 
Fire Station The Swift Creek Fire Station, Company Number 16 

EMS Facility The Swift Creek Fire Station, Company Number 16 

 
 

 

UTILITIES 

Staff Contact: Matthew Rembold (706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 
 

Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
 

Utility Type 
Currently 
Serviced 

Size of Closest Existing 
Lines 

Connection Required by County 
Code 

Water No 8” & 12” Yes 

Wastewater No 12” & 15”                              Yes 
 
 

Additional Utility Comments: 
 
The applicant requests rezoning from I-1 with CUPD to I-2 with CUPD on 3 tracts of land. 
 

Page 383 of 563



6  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

The subject properties are located within the mandatory water and wastewater connection areas 
for new non-residential structures.  The applicant has proffered use of county water and county 
wastewater to support this development.     
 
Both county water and wastewater lines are available across the subject property and within 
Tredegar Lake Parkway for connection and extension.  The applicant has proffered a utilities 
master plan and hydraulic analysis of these systems, indicating any related capacity improvements 
necessary to support the development will be the responsibility of the developer.  (Proffered 
Condition 2) 
 
All extensions of the County water and wastewater systems will be subject to formal review and 
approval of the Utilities Department, to include dedication of easements to make the systems 
available to upstream and adjacent properties. 
 
The Utilities Department supports this case. 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Ward (804-748-1028) wardr@chesterfield.gov 

 

This request will have a minimal impact on these facilities.   

Page 384 of 563



7  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
6/13/19 Application submitted 

8/5, 8/22, 
9/24, 10/11 
and 10/14 

Revised proffered conditions, Textual Statement and exhibits submitted 

11/1/19 Application amended 

11/1 and 
12/9/19 

Revised proffered conditions and Textual Statement submitted 

 

Community Meeting 
10/8/19 Issues Discussed: 

• Existing zoning limited where industrial uses could be located; rezoning 
would permit light industrial and a few general industrial uses 

• Waterford is part of Brandermill Homeowner Association and subject to 
Brandermill covenants  

• Support flexibility in uses 

• Important quadrant for County; accessible to other areas in Metro 
Richmond area 

• Infrastructure in place to support proposal 
 

Planning Commission 
12/17/19 Citizen Comments: 

      Consider extended sidewalks along Charter Colony Parkway 
 
Commission Discussion: 
 

The Clover Hill District Commissioner noted that additional uses would offer 
flexibility needed for applicant; that two (2) adjacent property owners at 
community meeting support the proposal; and, the property is part of the 
Brandermill Community Association. 
 
Recommendation – APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROFFERED 
CONDITIONS IN ATTACHMENT 1 
 
Motion:  Freye         Second:  Jones 
AYES:  Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan and Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 385 of 563



8  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

PROFFERED CONDITIONS 
December 9, 2019 

Note: Both the Planning Commission and staff recommend acceptance of the following proffered 
conditions, as offered by the Applicant. 

 
The Developer (the “Developer”) in this zoning case, pursuant to §15.2-2298 of the Code of 
Virginia (1950 as amended) and the Zoning Ordinance of Chesterfield County, for themselves 
and their successors or assigns, proffer that the development of the Property known as 
Chesterfield County Tax Identification Number 729-691-8579 and a part of 730-690-2686 (the 
“Property”) under consideration will be developed according to the following conditions if, and 
only if, the rezoning request for rezoning to I-2, with a conditional use planned development 
(CUPD), are granted.  In the event the request is denied or approved with conditions not agreed 
to by the Developer, the proffers and conditions shall immediately be null and void and of no 
further force or effect.  If the zoning is granted, these proffers and conditions will supersede all 
proffers and conditions now existing on the Property. 

1. Master Plan.  The textual statement last revised December 9, 2019, shall be considered 
the Master Plan. (P) 

2. Utilities. 

A. The development shall be served county water and county wastewater. 

B. The Developer shall submit and receive approval from the Utilities Department 
an overall utilities master plan indicating the on-site and off-site utilities 
improvements necessary to support the development prior to the submission of 
any schematic, tentative subdivision, construction, or site plan on the property.  

C. The Developer shall perform a hydraulic analysis of the county’s water and 
wastewater systems to verify adequate capacity exists as part of the overall 
utilities master plan.  Any capacity related improvements required to support the 
demands of this development will be reflected on the overall utilities master 
plan and the responsibility of the Developer.  (U) 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 386 of 563



9  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 ATTACHMENT 2 

TEXTUAL STATEMENT 
December 9, 2019 

 
Rezone Tracts 1, 2, and 3 (the “Property”) from I-1 (CUPD) to I-2 (General Industrial) CUPD and 
[ordinance exceptions.] 

Exhibit A – A plan titled “Idlewood Properties Inc. – Tract Plan” dated October 14, 2019.  
 
Exhibit B – A plan titled “Idlewood Properties Inc. – Conceptual Pedestrian Network” dated 
October 14, 2019. 
 
 
1. General Conditions. 

A. Tracts. To accommodate orderly development, the Tracts shall be located as 
generally depicted on the Tract Plan attached as Exhibit A.  Adjustments to Tract 
boundaries or divisions of the Tracts into subtract (“Subtracts”) shall be 
permitted at the time of plan review provided the Tracts maintain their 
relationship to one another.   

B. Pedestrian Ways.  Future pedestrian ways and connections shall be provided as 
generally shown on Exhibit B and constructed to tie into the existing Waterford 
pedestrian system.  

2. Uses. 

A. Uses permitted by-right or with restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) district.   

B. The following C-2 uses. 

i. Locksmith. 

ii. Mailing services. 

iii. Photography studio.  
 

C. In addition to the uses in the I-1 district, the following additional uses shall be 
permitted provided any outside storage is screened in accordance with 19.1-53, 
Outside Storage. 

i. Brewery manufacturing.  

ii. Distillery manufacturing. 

iii. Electrical machinery, equipment, and supply manufacturing. 

iv. Metal product manufacturing, fabricated products not otherwise listed. 

D. In addition to the uses in the I-1 district, the following additional uses shall be 
permitted provided any outside storage is screened in accordance with 19.1-53, 
Outside Storage. 

i. Brewery manufacturing.  

ii. Distillery manufacturing. 

Page 387 of 563



10  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

iii. Electrical machinery, equipment, and supply manufacturing. 

iv. Metal product manufacturing, fabricated products not otherwise listed.  

 

Page 388 of 563



11  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 ATTACHMENT 3 

EXHIBIT A – TRACT PLAN 

 

Page 389 of 563



12  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 ATTACHMENT 4 

EXHIBIT B – CONCEPTUAL PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIVITY 

 

Page 390 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 19SN0616 
APPLICANT: Idlewood Properties Inc. 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
CLOVER HILL DISTRICT 

 

ADDENDUM 

 
10 Acres – 2601 Waterford Lake Drive 

WATERFORD 
 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Agent:  
BRENNEN KEENE (804-775-1005) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
DARLA ORR (804-717-6533) 

 

REQUEST 

Rezoning from Light Industrial (I-1) to General Industrial (I-2) with Conditional Use Planned 
Development relative to uses.    
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffered conditions. 
B. The Textual Statement is located in Attachment 1. 

 

SUMMARY 

The request property includes vacant properties within the Waterford development, a mixed-use 
community originally zoned in 1986 which contains light industrial, office, commercial and multi-
family residential uses.  The applicant has provided that the existing zoning limits uses on the 
request property which has negatively affected their ability to market the property.  Rezoning to 
General Industrial (I-2) with Conditional Use Planned Development is proposed to permit some 
General Industrial (I-2) and Neighborhood Commercial (C-2) uses.  Uses permitted by right or with 
restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) District would also be permitted. 
 

Development is proposed based on the tract plan (Exhibit A) and a conceptual pedestrian 
connectivity plan (Exhibit B) is offered by the applicant to ensure pedestrian connections are 
provided between the proposed uses and remainder of the Waterford development. 

 

 

ADDENDUM 

The purpose of this Addendum is to correct a typographical error in the Textual Statement.    
         

Item 2.C. of the Textual Statement dated December 9, 2019 was inadvertently duplicated when 
copied into the report from the Applicant’s document and labeled as Item 2.D. To correct the 
duplication, Item 2.D. is hereby deleted and shown as stricken in Attachment 1. 
 

The Planning Commission and staff continue to recommend approval as outlined on the following 
page. 

Page 391 of 563



2  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-ADD 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

PLANNING 
COMMISSION  

APPROVAL 

STAFF 

APPROVAL 

• Proposed zoning and land uses offer employment generating uses 
suggested as appropriate by the Comprehensive Plan 

• Additional land uses provide development flexibility while maintaining 
land use compatibility within the project  

• Pedestrian connectivity assists with integration of uses into the remainder 
of the Waterford development 

 

 

Page 392 of 563



3  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-ADD 

 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

TEXTUAL STATEMENT 
December 9, 2019 

 
Rezone Tracts 1, 2, and 3 (the “Property”) from I-1 (CUPD) to I-2 (General Industrial) CUPD and 
[ordinance exceptions.] 

Exhibit A – A plan titled “Idlewood Properties Inc. – Tract Plan” dated October 14, 2019.  
 
Exhibit B – A plan titled “Idlewood Properties Inc. – Conceptual Pedestrian Network” dated 
October 14, 2019. 
 
 
1. General Conditions. 

A. Tracts. To accommodate orderly development, the Tracts shall be located as 
generally depicted on the Tract Plan attached as Exhibit A.  Adjustments to Tract 
boundaries or divisions of the Tracts into subtract (“Subtracts”) shall be 
permitted at the time of plan review provided the Tracts maintain their 
relationship to one another.   

B. Pedestrian Ways.  Future pedestrian ways and connections shall be provided as 
generally shown on Exhibit B and constructed to tie into the existing Waterford 
pedestrian system.  

2. Uses. 

A. Uses permitted by-right or with restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) district.   

B. The following C-2 uses. 

i. Locksmith. 

ii. Mailing services. 

iii. Photography studio.  
 

C. In addition to the uses in the I-1 district, the following additional uses shall be 
permitted provided any outside storage is screened in accordance with 19.1-53, 
Outside Storage. 

i. Brewery manufacturing.  

ii. Distillery manufacturing. 

iii. Electrical machinery, equipment, and supply manufacturing. 

iv. Metal product manufacturing, fabricated products not otherwise listed. 

D. In addition to the uses in the I-1 district, the following additional uses shall be 
permitted provided any outside storage is screened in accordance with 19.1-53, 
Outside Storage. 

i. Brewery manufacturing.  

ii. Distillery manufacturing. 

Page 393 of 563



4  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-ADD 

iii. Electrical machinery, equipment, and supply manufacturing. 

iv. Metal product manufacturing, fabricated products not otherwise listed.  

 

Page 394 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 19SN0616 
APPLICANT: Idlewood Properties Inc. 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
CLOVER HILL DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
10 Acres – 2601 Waterford Lake Drive 

WATERFORD 
 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Agent:  
BRENNEN KEENE (804-775-1005) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
DARLA ORR (804-717-6533) 

 

REQUEST 

Rezoning from Light Industrial (I-1) to General Industrial (I-2) with Conditional Use Planned 
Development relative to uses.    
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffered conditions. 
B. Proffered conditions, Textual Statement and exhibits are located in Attachments 1 - 4. 

 

SUMMARY 

The request property includes vacant properties within the Waterford development, a mixed-use 
community originally zoned in 1986 which contains light industrial, office, commercial and multi-
family residential uses.  The applicant has provided that the existing zoning limits uses on the 
request property which has negatively affected their ability to market the property.  Rezoning to 
General Industrial (I-2) with Conditional Use Planned Development is proposed to permit some 
General Industrial (I-2) and Neighborhood Commercial (C-2) uses.  Uses permitted by right or with 
restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) District would also be permitted. 
 

Development is proposed based on the tract plan (Exhibit A) and a conceptual pedestrian 
connectivity plan (Exhibit B) is offered by the applicant to ensure pedestrian connections are 
provided between the proposed uses and remainder of the Waterford development. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

PLANNING 
COMMISSION  

APPROVAL 

STAFF 

APPROVAL 

• Proposed zoning and land uses offer employment generating uses 
suggested as appropriate by the Comprehensive Plan 

• Additional land uses provide development flexibility while maintaining 
land use compatibility within the project  

• Pedestrian connectivity assists with integration of uses into the remainder 
of the Waterford development 

 

Page 395 of 563



2  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

Page 396 of 563



3  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

Comprehensive Plan 
Classification: REGIONAL MIXED USE 

 

The designation suggests the property is appropriate for an integrated urban-style mix of  
employment-generating uses, destination commercial services and subordinate higher-density  
residential development of 20 units per acre or more. 

 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 

 

 

 

 

Charter Colony 
Pkwy 

Old Hundred Rd 

Office and light 
industrial uses 

within Waterford 

Page 397 of 563



4  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Darla Orr (804-717-6533) orrd@chesterfield.gov 

 

Zoning History 
 

Case Number Request 

86SN0117 
Approved 
8/27/1986 

• Rezoning with Conditional Use Planned Development on 243 acres, 
including the request property, to permit a mixed use development 
including residential, office, commercial, and light industrial uses (original 
Waterford zoning) 

• Use and bulk exceptions included to accommodate the planned 
development 

 

Proposal 
 

The applicant has provided that the existing zoning for the Waterford development (Case 
86SN0117) limits uses on the request property which has affected their ability to market the 
property.  Rezoning to General Industrial (I-2) with Conditional use Planned Development is 
proposed to permit some General Industrial (I-2) and Neighborhood Commercial (C-2) uses.  
Uses permitted by right or with restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) District would also be 
permitted. 
 
The applicant proposes rezoning of the request property from Light Industrial (I-1) to General 
Industrial (I-2) with Conditional Use Planned Development to permit the following uses: 
 

• Uses permitted by-right or with restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) district. 

• Locksmith, mailing service and a photography studio (Neighborhood Business (C-
2 uses) 

• Brewery and distillery manufacturing 

• Electrical machinery, equipment, and supply manufacturing 

• Metal product manufacturing, fabricated products not otherwise listed 

 
Development is proposed based on the tract plan (Exhibit A) and a conceptual pedestrian 
connectivity plan (Exhibit B) is offered by the applicant to ensure pedestrian connections are 
provided between the proposed uses and remainder of the Waterford development. 
(Attachments 3 and 4) 
 
The proposed zoning and land use offer employment generating uses suggested as appropriate 
within a Regional Mixed Use area by the Comprehensive Plan.  The additional land uses offer 
flexibility to applicant to market the property while maintaining land use compatibility within 
the development.  In addition, pedestrian connectivity assists with integration of uses into the 
remainder of the Waterford development, as suggested appropriate by the Plan.  Therefore, 
staff supports this request. 
 

 

Page 398 of 563



5  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804) 748-1037 adamsSt@chesterfield.gov 

 
The Comprehensive Plan, which includes the Thoroughfare Plan, identifies county-wide 
transportation needs that are expected to mitigate traffic impacts of future growth. The 
anticipated traffic impact of the proposal has been evaluated and it is anticipated to have a 
similar impact as existing permitted uses on the property. 
 
 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Willie Gordon (804-674-2907) willie.gordon@vdot.virginia.gov  

 
The proposed property is located along Tredegar Lake Parkway, a 35 MPH Urban Local Road.  
The applicant is proposing to rezone the property to I-2 with a CUPD to allow commercial uses.  
Proposed access to the site will be subject to VDOT Access Management policy minimum 
spacing criteria and commercial entrance design standards. A turn lane warrant analysis will be 
required for the proposed entrances during the site plan review process. 

 

FIRE SERVICE 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 
When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire 
protection, and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process. 
 
 

Nearby Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Facilities 
Fire Station The Swift Creek Fire Station, Company Number 16 

EMS Facility The Swift Creek Fire Station, Company Number 16 

 
 

 

UTILITIES 

Staff Contact: Matthew Rembold (706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 
 

Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
 

Utility Type 
Currently 
Serviced 

Size of Closest Existing 
Lines 

Connection Required by County 
Code 

Water No 8” & 12” Yes 

Wastewater No 12” & 15”                              Yes 
 
 

Additional Utility Comments: 
 
The applicant requests rezoning from I-1 with CUPD to I-2 with CUPD on 3 tracts of land. 
 

Page 399 of 563



6  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

The subject properties are located within the mandatory water and wastewater connection areas 
for new non-residential structures.  The applicant has proffered use of county water and county 
wastewater to support this development.     
 
Both county water and wastewater lines are available across the subject property and within 
Tredegar Lake Parkway for connection and extension.  The applicant has proffered a utilities 
master plan and hydraulic analysis of these systems, indicating any related capacity improvements 
necessary to support the development will be the responsibility of the developer.  (Proffered 
Condition 2) 
 
All extensions of the County water and wastewater systems will be subject to formal review and 
approval of the Utilities Department, to include dedication of easements to make the systems 
available to upstream and adjacent properties. 
 
The Utilities Department supports this case. 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Ward (804-748-1028) wardr@chesterfield.gov 

 

This request will have a minimal impact on these facilities.   

Page 400 of 563



7  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
6/13/19 Application submitted 

8/5, 8/22, 
9/24, 10/11 
and 10/14 

Revised proffered conditions, Textual Statement and exhibits submitted 

11/1/19 Application amended 

11/1 and 
12/9/19 

Revised proffered conditions and Textual Statement submitted 

 

Community Meeting 
10/8/19 Issues Discussed: 

• Existing zoning limited where industrial uses could be located; rezoning 
would permit light industrial and a few general industrial uses 

• Waterford is part of Brandermill Homeowner Association and subject to 
Brandermill covenants  

• Support flexibility in uses 

• Important quadrant for County; accessible to other areas in Metro 
Richmond area 

• Infrastructure in place to support proposal 
 

Planning Commission 
12/17/19 Citizen Comments: 

      Consider extended sidewalks along Charter Colony Parkway 
 
Commission Discussion: 
 

The Clover Hill District Commissioner noted that additional uses would offer 
flexibility needed for applicant; that two (2) adjacent property owners at 
community meeting support the proposal; and, the property is part of the 
Brandermill Community Association. 
 
Recommendation – APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROFFERED 
CONDITIONS IN ATTACHMENT 1 
 
Motion:  Freye         Second:  Jones 
AYES:  Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan and Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 401 of 563



8  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

PROFFERED CONDITIONS 
December 9, 2019 

Note: Both the Planning Commission and staff recommend acceptance of the following proffered 
conditions, as offered by the Applicant. 

 
The Developer (the “Developer”) in this zoning case, pursuant to §15.2-2298 of the Code of 
Virginia (1950 as amended) and the Zoning Ordinance of Chesterfield County, for themselves 
and their successors or assigns, proffer that the development of the Property known as 
Chesterfield County Tax Identification Number 729-691-8579 and a part of 730-690-2686 (the 
“Property”) under consideration will be developed according to the following conditions if, and 
only if, the rezoning request for rezoning to I-2, with a conditional use planned development 
(CUPD), are granted.  In the event the request is denied or approved with conditions not agreed 
to by the Developer, the proffers and conditions shall immediately be null and void and of no 
further force or effect.  If the zoning is granted, these proffers and conditions will supersede all 
proffers and conditions now existing on the Property. 

1. Master Plan.  The textual statement last revised December 9, 2019, shall be considered 
the Master Plan. (P) 

2. Utilities. 

A. The development shall be served county water and county wastewater. 

B. The Developer shall submit and receive approval from the Utilities Department 
an overall utilities master plan indicating the on-site and off-site utilities 
improvements necessary to support the development prior to the submission of 
any schematic, tentative subdivision, construction, or site plan on the property.  

C. The Developer shall perform a hydraulic analysis of the county’s water and 
wastewater systems to verify adequate capacity exists as part of the overall 
utilities master plan.  Any capacity related improvements required to support the 
demands of this development will be reflected on the overall utilities master 
plan and the responsibility of the Developer.  (U) 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 402 of 563



9  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 ATTACHMENT 2 

TEXTUAL STATEMENT 
December 9, 2019 

 
Rezone Tracts 1, 2, and 3 (the “Property”) from I-1 (CUPD) to I-2 (General Industrial) CUPD and 
[ordinance exceptions.] 

Exhibit A – A plan titled “Idlewood Properties Inc. – Tract Plan” dated October 14, 2019.  
 
Exhibit B – A plan titled “Idlewood Properties Inc. – Conceptual Pedestrian Network” dated 
October 14, 2019. 
 
 
1. General Conditions. 

A. Tracts. To accommodate orderly development, the Tracts shall be located as 
generally depicted on the Tract Plan attached as Exhibit A.  Adjustments to Tract 
boundaries or divisions of the Tracts into subtract (“Subtracts”) shall be 
permitted at the time of plan review provided the Tracts maintain their 
relationship to one another.   

B. Pedestrian Ways.  Future pedestrian ways and connections shall be provided as 
generally shown on Exhibit B and constructed to tie into the existing Waterford 
pedestrian system.  

2. Uses. 

A. Uses permitted by-right or with restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) district.   

B. The following C-2 uses. 

i. Locksmith. 

ii. Mailing services. 

iii. Photography studio.  
 

C. In addition to the uses in the I-1 district, the following additional uses shall be 
permitted provided any outside storage is screened in accordance with 19.1-53, 
Outside Storage. 

i. Brewery manufacturing.  

ii. Distillery manufacturing. 

iii. Electrical machinery, equipment, and supply manufacturing. 

iv. Metal product manufacturing, fabricated products not otherwise listed. 

D. In addition to the uses in the I-1 district, the following additional uses shall be 
permitted provided any outside storage is screened in accordance with 19.1-53, 
Outside Storage. 

i. Brewery manufacturing.  

ii. Distillery manufacturing. 

Page 403 of 563



10  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

iii. Electrical machinery, equipment, and supply manufacturing. 

iv. Metal product manufacturing, fabricated products not otherwise listed.  

 

Page 404 of 563



11  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 ATTACHMENT 3 

EXHIBIT A – TRACT PLAN 

 

Page 405 of 563



12  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 ATTACHMENT 4 

EXHIBIT B – CONCEPTUAL PEDESTRIAN CONNECTIVITY 

 

Page 406 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 19SN0616 
APPLICANT: Idlewood Properties Inc. 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
CLOVER HILL DISTRICT 

 

ADDENDUM 

 
10 Acres – 2601 Waterford Lake Drive 

WATERFORD 
 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Agent:  
BRENNEN KEENE (804-775-1005) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
DARLA ORR (804-717-6533) 

 

REQUEST 

Rezoning from Light Industrial (I-1) to General Industrial (I-2) with Conditional Use Planned 
Development relative to uses.    
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffered conditions. 
B. The Textual Statement is located in Attachment 1. 

 

SUMMARY 

The request property includes vacant properties within the Waterford development, a mixed-use 
community originally zoned in 1986 which contains light industrial, office, commercial and multi-
family residential uses.  The applicant has provided that the existing zoning limits uses on the 
request property which has negatively affected their ability to market the property.  Rezoning to 
General Industrial (I-2) with Conditional Use Planned Development is proposed to permit some 
General Industrial (I-2) and Neighborhood Commercial (C-2) uses.  Uses permitted by right or with 
restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) District would also be permitted. 
 

Development is proposed based on the tract plan (Exhibit A) and a conceptual pedestrian 
connectivity plan (Exhibit B) is offered by the applicant to ensure pedestrian connections are 
provided between the proposed uses and remainder of the Waterford development. 

 

 

ADDENDUM 

The purpose of this Addendum is to correct a typographical error in the Textual Statement.    
         

Item 2.C. of the Textual Statement dated December 9, 2019 was inadvertently duplicated when 
copied into the report from the Applicant’s document and labeled as Item 2.D. To correct the 
duplication, Item 2.D. is hereby deleted and shown as stricken in Attachment 1. 
 

The Planning Commission and staff continue to recommend approval as outlined on the following 
page. 

Page 407 of 563



2  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-ADD 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

PLANNING 
COMMISSION  

APPROVAL 

STAFF 

APPROVAL 

• Proposed zoning and land uses offer employment generating uses 
suggested as appropriate by the Comprehensive Plan 

• Additional land uses provide development flexibility while maintaining 
land use compatibility within the project  

• Pedestrian connectivity assists with integration of uses into the remainder 
of the Waterford development 

 

 

Page 408 of 563



3  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-ADD 

 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

TEXTUAL STATEMENT 
December 9, 2019 

 
Rezone Tracts 1, 2, and 3 (the “Property”) from I-1 (CUPD) to I-2 (General Industrial) CUPD and 
[ordinance exceptions.] 

Exhibit A – A plan titled “Idlewood Properties Inc. – Tract Plan” dated October 14, 2019.  
 
Exhibit B – A plan titled “Idlewood Properties Inc. – Conceptual Pedestrian Network” dated 
October 14, 2019. 
 
 
1. General Conditions. 

A. Tracts. To accommodate orderly development, the Tracts shall be located as 
generally depicted on the Tract Plan attached as Exhibit A.  Adjustments to Tract 
boundaries or divisions of the Tracts into subtract (“Subtracts”) shall be 
permitted at the time of plan review provided the Tracts maintain their 
relationship to one another.   

B. Pedestrian Ways.  Future pedestrian ways and connections shall be provided as 
generally shown on Exhibit B and constructed to tie into the existing Waterford 
pedestrian system.  

2. Uses. 

A. Uses permitted by-right or with restrictions in the Light Industrial (I-1) district.   

B. The following C-2 uses. 

i. Locksmith. 

ii. Mailing services. 

iii. Photography studio.  
 

C. In addition to the uses in the I-1 district, the following additional uses shall be 
permitted provided any outside storage is screened in accordance with 19.1-53, 
Outside Storage. 

i. Brewery manufacturing.  

ii. Distillery manufacturing. 

iii. Electrical machinery, equipment, and supply manufacturing. 

iv. Metal product manufacturing, fabricated products not otherwise listed. 

D. In addition to the uses in the I-1 district, the following additional uses shall be 
permitted provided any outside storage is screened in accordance with 19.1-53, 
Outside Storage. 

i. Brewery manufacturing.  

ii. Distillery manufacturing. 

Page 409 of 563



4  19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-ADD 

iii. Electrical machinery, equipment, and supply manufacturing. 

iv. Metal product manufacturing, fabricated products not otherwise listed.  

 

Page 410 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 20SN0520 
APPLICANT: Joni Chrystle Roberts 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
CLOVER HILL DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
0.2 Acre – 13304 Farm Crest Ct. 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 
Applicant’s Contact:  

JONI C. ROBERTS (804-744-9559) 
Planning Department Case Manager:  

TYLER WALTER (804-318-8893) 
 

REQUEST 
Renewal of previous case (Case 14SN0517) for a conditional use to permit a family day-care home 
in a Residential (R-7) District. 
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffer conditions. 
B. Proffered conditions are located in Attachment 1. 

 

SUMMARY 
In 2014, a conditional use (Case 14SN0517) was approved to permit the applicant to operate a 
family day care home for the keeping of up to 12 children, incidental to the dwelling. The 
applicant intends to continue operating the family day care home subject to the same conditions 
of the 2014 approval, except no time limitation. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
PLANNING 

COMMISSION 
APPROVAL 
 

STAFF 

APPROVAL 
• As conditioned, the use would be compatible with surrounding 

residential development. 
• Residential character of the area would be maintained. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 411 of 563



2  20SN0520-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

  

Page 412 of 563



3  20SN0520-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

Comprehensive Plan 
Classification: SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL I 

 

The designation suggests the property is appropriate for single-family dwellings on lots ranging between 
12,000 and 25,000 square feet. 

 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 
 

 

 
 

Millridge Pkwy. 

Farm Crest 
Court 

Single family uses – 
Planters Woods 

Subdivision 

Planters 
Wood Road 

Page 413 of 563



4  20SN0520-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Tyler Walter (804-318-8893) waltert@chesterfield.gov 

 

Proposal 
 

The Zoning Ordinance permits the keeping of a maximum of five (5) children at any one (1) time, 
exclusive of the occupants’ children and any children who reside in the home, by right in a 
residential district.  The applicant has been operating a State-licensed family day care home to 
keep up to twelve (12) children. The applicant received conditional use approval in 2014 (Case 
14SN0517) to permit the applicant to keep a maximum of twelve (12) children at any one (1) time, 
excluding the applicant’s children and any children who reside in the home. 
 
The chart below provides an overview of the proffered conditions to continue to mitigate the 
impact of the use on area properties. These conditions are the same as those approved with 
14SN0517 except no time limitation is included. This would be permitted for the applicant only. 
 

General Overview 
Requirements Details 

Non-Transferable Limited to the applicant only. 
Condition 1 

Limitation on Size  No exterior additions or alterations to existing structure 
Condition 2  

Signage None permitted 
Condition 3 

Number of Children Maximum of twelve (12) 
Condition 4 

Days/Hours of Operation Weekdays only; 6:30 a.m. until 6:00 p.m. 
Condition 5 

Outside Employees 

No more than one (1) outside employee permitted to 
work other than family member employees that live on 
the premises. 

Condition 6 
 

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804-748-1037) adamst@chesterfield.gov 

 

The Comprehensive Plan, which includes the Thoroughfare Plan, identifies county-wide 
transportation needs that are expected to mitigate traffic impacts of future growth. The 
anticipated traffic impact of the proposal has been evaluated and it is anticipated to be 
minimal. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 414 of 563



5  20SN0520-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (804-717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 

This request will have minimal impact on Fire and EMS. 
 

Nearby Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Facilities 
Fire Station The Clover Hill Fire Station, Company Number 7 
EMS Facility The Clover Hill Fire Station, Company Number 7 

 

UTILITIES 
Staff Contact: Matt Rembold (804-706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 

 

Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
 

Utility Type Currently Serviced Size of Closest 
Existing Lines 

Connection 
Required by County 

Code 
Water No 4” N/A 
Wastewater No 8” N/A 

 

Additional Utility Comments: 
 

The request to operate a family day home will not impact the Utilities Department. 
 
The Utilities Department supports this case.   
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Rochet (804-748-1028) rochetr@chesterfield.gov 

PARKS AND RECREATION 
Staff Contact: Janit Llewellyn (804-751-4482) llewellynja@chesterfield.gov 

 

This request will not impact these facilities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 415 of 563



6  20SN0520-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
08/06/2019 Application submitted 
08/06 and 

12/04/2019 
Proffered conditions submitted 

 

Planning Commission 
12/17/2019 Citizen Comments: 

Citizens spoke in favor of the request, referencing the applicant’s experience in 
child care. 
 
Recommendation – APPROVAL SUBJECT TO PROFFERED CONDITIONS IN 
ATTACHMENT 1. 
 
Motion: Freye  Second: Jones 
AYES: Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan, Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 416 of 563



7  20SN0520-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

 ATTACHMENT 1 
PROFFERED CONDITIONS 

December 4, 2019 
Note:  Both the Planning Commission and Staff recommend acceptance of the following 
proffered conditions, as offered by the applicant. 

 
1. Non-Transferable Ownership. This conditional use approval shall be granted to and for 

Howard and Joni Roberts, exclusively, and shall not be transferable or run with the land. 
(P) 
 

2. Expansion of Use. There shall be no exterior additions or alterations to the existing 
structure to accommodate this use. (P) 
 

3. Signage. There shall be no signs permitted to identify this use. (P) 
 

4. Number of Children. This conditional use approval shall be limited to providing care, 
protection and guidance to a maximum of twelve (12) children, other than the 
applicants own children, at any one time. (P) 
 

5. Fenced Outdoor Play Areas. Any outdoor play area and/or recreational equipment 
utilized by the family day-care home shall be located in the side or rear yard of the 
property. Outdoor play and/or recreational equipment areas shall have perimeter 
fencing of at least four (4) feet in height, installed around the equipment or play area. 
Equipment for outdoor play areas shall be located no closer than fifteen (15) feet to the 
side or rear property lines. (P) 
 

6. Employees. No more than one (1) employee shall be permitted to work on the premises, 
other than family member employees that live on the premises. (P) 
 

7. Hours of Operation. Hours and days of operation shall be limited to Monday through 
Friday from 7 a.m. to 6 p.m. There shall be no Saturday or Sunday operation of this use. 
(P) 

Page 417 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 20SN0521 
APPLICANT: Lisa Stinette 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
BERMUDA DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

5.4 Acres – 5913 Nena Grove Lane 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
    JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Contact:  
LISA STINETTE (760-985-0288) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
JOSH GILLESPIE (804-796-7122)  

 

REQUEST 
Conditional use to permit a temporary office trailer for use as office space by a general contractor 
in a General Industrial (I-2) District. 
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffer conditions. 
B. Conditions are located in Attachment 1. 

 

SUMMARY 
Continued use of a temporary office trailer to accommodate a general contractor’s business on the 
property is planned.  The trailer is used for general office uses.  The Zoning Ordinance limits the 
location of temporary office trailers as incidental to on-site construction activities, otherwise 
requiring conditional use approval.  As proposed, the conditional use would be limited to a period 
of four (4) years from approval in anticipation of replacement by a new building. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
PLANNING 

COMMISSION 
(12/17/19) 

APPROVAL 

STAFF 

APPROVAL 
• Facilitates use of the land for general business development consistent 

with the Comprehensive Plan.   
• As conditioned, temporary use. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 418 of 563



2                           20SN0521-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 
 

 
  

Page 419 of 563



3                           20SN0521-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 
 

 

Comprehensive Plan  
Classification: GENERAL BUSINESS 

 

The designation suggests appropriate uses as intense commercial uses which normally have outside  
display and storage areas, which could include motor vehicle related uses, contractor shops and  
storage yards, manufactured home sales, repair services or other uses serving customers’ specialized 
needs. In addition, light industrial/research and development uses would also be appropriate. 
 

 
 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 

 

 

Nena Grove Rd 

Landfill 
Agricultural 

Residential 

Page 420 of 563



4                           20SN0521-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 
 

 
 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Josh Gillespie (804-796-7122) gillespiejo@chesterfield.gov 

 
Zoning History 
 

Case Number Request 
73SN0131 
Approved 
(05/1974) 

• Conditional use to permit general business uses in an Agricultural (A) District. 
• Approved for five (5) years, expiring in May, 1979 

76SN0003 
Approved 
(02/1976) 

• Conditional use to permit a hydro-seeding and landscaping business in the 
Agricultural (A) District on 2.0 acres. 

• Approved for ten (10) years, expiring February, 1986. 

80SN0006 
Approved 
(02/1980) 

• Conditional use to expand permitted area for hydro-seeding and landscaping 
business from 2.0 to 5.3 acres 

• Structures limited to 2 buildings 
• No time limit. 

97SN0143 
Approved 
(02/1997) 

Conditional use to permit a 185-foot communications tower in an Agricultural 
(A) District on 3.2 acres 

09SN0136 
Approved 
(02/2009) 

Rezoning from the Agricultural (A) to General Industrial (I-2). 

 
 
Proposal  
 

Use of a temporary office trailer to accommodate a general contracting business operating on the 
property is proposed. The applicant recently acquired the property from a long-time landscape 
contractor.  Needing more office space than provided within the two existing buildings, the applicant 
moved a temporary office trailer to the site.  In June 2019, the owner inquired with Chesterfield 
County about further site development.  It was then recognized that the temporary office trailer did 
not comply with zoning requirements for office uses.  The Zoning Ordinance permits a temporary 
office trailer, when not used for on-site construction activity, by conditional use. 
 
The request property is located within an area planned for general business uses.   A condition would 
limit use of the temporary trailer for four (4) years to accommodate the general contracting business 
in anticipation of future on-site construction (Condition). Staff is supportive of this request. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 421 of 563



5                           20SN0521-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 
 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Rochet (804-748-1028) RochetR@chesterfield.gov 

  
Geography 
The subject property drains from west to east directly to Piney Branch.  Piney Branch is a tributary 
of Swift Creek.  The entire property is located within the Lower Swift Creek Watershed. 
 
Natural Resources 
A Resource Protection Area Designation (RPAD) must be submitted to the Department of 
Environmental Engineering – Water Quality Section prior to the submittal of any site plans.  A Water 
Quality Impact Assessment must be submitted to and approved by the Department of 
Environmental Engineering and/or the Board of Supervisors for any improvements which may 
encroach into the RPA.  In addition, wetlands shall not be impacted without approval from the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers and/or the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.   
 
Erosion and Sediment Control 
If greater than 2,500 square feet of total land disturbance will occur as a result of any proposed 
improvements and/or modifications, a land disturbance permit will be required. 
 
Stormwater Management 
If greater than 2,500 square feet will be disturbed with any proposed improvements and/or 
redevelopment, including any changes to the land cover, the project will be subject to the Part 
IIB technical criteria of the Virginia Stormwater Management Program Regulations for water 
quality and water quantity. 
 
 

FIRE SERVICE 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 
When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire 
protection, and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process. 
 

Nearby Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Facilities 
Fire Station The Chester Fire Station, Company Number 1 
EMS Facility The Chester Fire Station, Company Number 1 

 
  

Page 422 of 563



6                           20SN0521-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 
 

 
UTILITIES 

Staff Contact: Matthew Rembold (706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 
 
 

Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
 

Utility Type 
Currently 
Serviced 

Size of Closest Existing 
Lines 

Connection Required by County 
Code 

Water Yes 2” Yes 
Wastewater Yes 8” Yes 

 
 

Additional Utility Comments: 
 
The request to operate a temporary office trailer will not impact the Utilities Department. 
 
The Utilities Department supports this case.   
 
 

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804) 748-1037 adamsSt@chesterfield.gov 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Willie Gordon (804-674-2560) willie.gordon@vdot.virginia.gov 

 
 
 

This request will not impact these facilities. 
 
  

Page 423 of 563



7                           20SN0521-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 
 

 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
7/25/19 Application submitted 

 

Planning Commission 
12/17/19 Citizen Comments: 

No one spoke to this request 
 
Recommendation – APPROVAL SUBJECT TO THE CONDITION IN 
ATTACHMENT 1 
 
Motion:  Sloan     Second:  Stariha 
AYES:  Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan, Stariha 
 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:30 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 424 of 563



8                           20SN0521-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 
 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

CONDITION  

Note:   
Both the Planning Commission and staff recommend acceptance of the following proffered 
condition, as offered by the applicant.   

 
Use.  Use of the temporary office trailer shall be limited to office space associated with a general 
contractor’s business for a period not to exceed four (4) years from the date of approval.  (P) 

 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 425 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 20SN0527 
APPLICANT: Emerson Companies, LLC 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
BERMUDA DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

3.3 Acres – 10241 Centralia Station Road 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
    JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Contact:  
KERRY HUTCHERSON (760-748-3600) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
JOSH GILLESPIE (804-796-7122)  

 

REQUEST 
Rezoning from Agricultural (A) to Residential (R-12) plus a Conditional Use Planned Development 
to permit exceptions to lot width and road frontage requirements for seven (7) single-family lots. 
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffer conditions. 
B. Proffered conditions, Textual Statement, and exhibits are located in Attachments 1 - 4. 

 
SUMMARY 

Expansion of the existing Centralia Station subdivision is proposed.  Development of seven (7) 
single-family lots on 3.3 acres is planned, yielding a density of 2.12 units per acre.  The subject 
property adjoins the Centralia Station subdivision zoned Residential (R-9) and parcels in the historic 
Centralia Station community zoned Residential (R-7).  The Conditional Use Planned Development is 
requested to permit lot widths consistent with the Centralia Station subdivision lots, each a 
minimum width of seventy-five feet (75’) instead of the required ninety feet (90’) in the Residential 
R-12 District.  An exception would also allow the minimum public road frontage for Lot 3 to be 
reduced from fifty feet (50’) to thirty-five feet (35’). 
 
The applicant has proffered conditions (summarized on page 5) to provide design and architectural 
standards comparable in quality to the surrounding community.   
 
Access is proposed from Centralia Station Road.  The applicant has offered a road cash payment to 
address the development’s impact under the Board’s Road Cash Proffer policy. 
 
  

Page 426 of 563



2                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
PLANNING 

COMMISSION 
(12/17/19) 

APPROVAL 

STAFF 

PLANNING – APPROVAL 
• While the proposed density exceeds the 1.0 unit per acre suggested as 

appropriate by the Chester Plan, the proposed density is consistent with 
Centralia Station and surrounding development. 

• Quality, design and architecture offered by the applicant provide for a 
convenient, attractive and harmonious community comparable in quality 
to that of the surrounding community. 

• Bulk requirement exceptions allow consistency with the development 
pattern of the existing lots in Centralia Station subdivision. 

TRANSPORTATION– APPROVAL 
• The development’s traffic impact will be addressed by providing cash 

payments. 
 
 

SUMMARY OF IDENTIFIED ISSUES 

Department Issue 

SCHOOLS 
 

Post 2020, the Public Facilities Plan recommends a new middle school in the 
vicinity of Chester and West Hundred Roads and a new high school in the vicinity 
of Chester Road and Route 288, north of Route 10. However, at this time, a 
budget has not been developed for the acquisition of land or construction of 
these school facilities as recommended in the Plan.  

 
 
 

Page 427 of 563



3                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

 

Page 428 of 563



4                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

Comprehensive Plan – The Chester Plan  
Classification: RESIDENTIAL 1.0 UNIT/ACRE 

 

This designation suggests residential use of 1.0 unit per acre,  places  of  worship,  schools, 
parks  and  other  similar  public  and  semi-public facilities are appropriate. 

 

 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 

 
 

 
 

Centralia Rd 

Railroad 

Centralia 
Station Rd 

Rural residential/agricultural 

Single-family residential – 
historic Centralia Station 

Single-family residential 
– Hilltop Farms 

Commercial 

Chester Rd 

Single-family 
residential – Glen Oaks 

Page 429 of 563



5                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Josh Gillespie (804-796-7122) gillespiejo@chesterfield.gov 

 
Proposal  
 

Expansion of the existing Centralia Station subdivision is proposed, with seven (7) lots on 3.3 
acres, yielding a density of 2.12 units per acre (Exhibit A - Attachment 3).  Access is proposed 
from Centralia Station Road.  The subject property adjoins the Centralia Station subdivision 
(zoned Residential R-9) and parcels in the Centralia Station community (zoned Residential R-7).  
The applicant is requesting Conditional Use Planned Development (CUPD) to permit lot widths 
that are seventy-five feet (75’) to be compatible with Centralia Station lots, a reduction from the 
required ninety feet (90’) for the Residential (R-12) District. 
 
Design 
 

High quality residential development addresses the Comprehensive Plan goals for strong and 
sustainable neighborhoods that are visually attractive, well-planned and well-maintained. 
Further, the purpose and intent of the zoning ordinance to promote the health, safety, 
convenience and general welfare of the public includes the creation of convenient, attractive and 
harmonious communities, protection against overcrowding of land, and protection of the natural 
environment. As such, developments that promote unique, viable and long-lasting places and 
enhance the community are encouraged.  In this case, the extension of the Centralia Station 
subdivision is proposed on land located at the subdivision entrance.  The following provides an 
overview of design requirements offered as part of this request (Attachment 1 – Proffered 
Conditions): 
 

• Lot Design 
o Hardscaped driveways and front walks 
o Front foundation planting beds and yard trees 
o Screening of utility units (HVAC, generators, etc.) 

• Building Design 
o Compatible with Centralia Station subdivision 
o Varied elevations on same street 
o Exterior façade treatment (various materials, including vinyl - minimum 0.044-inch 

thickness) 
o Foundation, roof and porch treatments 
o Attached garages on all units 
o Front-loaded garage setbacks relative to dwelling front (Exhibit A) 
o Upgraded front- and side-loaded garage doors, with at least two (2) enhanced features 
o Minimum dwelling size 2,000 square feet 

 
As suggested by the Comprehensive Plan goals and the Zoning Ordinance, the proffered 
conditions include quality design and architectural elements that are comparable in quality to 
that of the surrounding community. 
 
  

Page 430 of 563



6                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804-748-1037) adamsSt@chesterfield.gov 

 
The applicant has proffered a maximum density of seven (7) dwelling units (Proffered Condition 
7). Based on those number of units and applying trip generation rates for a single-family dwelling 
unit, development could generate approximately 90 average daily trips. Traffic generated by 
development of the property will be distributed via Centralia Station Road to Centralia Road. 
 
Centralia Road is a major arterial with a recommended right of way width of 90 feet, as identified 
on the County’s Thoroughfare Plan. Centralia Road is a two-lane road. In 2018, the VDOT traffic 
count on Centralia Road was 9,616 vehicles per day (Level of Service “D”). 
 
Section 19.1-231 of the County Code outlines the general requirements to meet the needs of the 
traffic generated by a proposed development, including acceptable levels of service. This 
proposed residential development would contribute to an identifiable need for transportation 
improvements. The applicant has not offered to provide any mitigating road improvements. 
 
The property is within Traffic Shed 13, which encompasses the area south of Route 288, north 
and east of Route 10, and west of Chester Road. Many roads in this part of the county have little 
or no shoulders, fixed objects (trees) adjacent to the edge of the pavement and poor vertical and 
horizontal alignments. The traffic volume generated from this proposed residential development 
will contribute to an identifiable need for transportation facility improvements to these roads in 
excess of existing transportation facility capacity. Roads in this shed or which serve this shed need 
to be improved or widened to address safety and accommodate increased traffic, including the 
increased traffic from the proposed development. 
 
An applicant may choose to address the development’s impact on the county’s road 
transportation network through dedication of property, construction of road improvements, or 
a cash proffer. If an applicant elects to offer cash to address the impact on the county’s road 
transportation network, Transportation staff has calculated the average impact of a single-family 
dwelling unit on the transportation network to be $12,652; however, the Board of Supervisors 
has adopted a policy establishing that it would accept a maximum cash proffer of $9,400 per 
dwelling unit as addressing the traffic impacts of residential development, with all of the funds 
to be dedicated towards improvements to the road network.  As such, if the applicant chooses 
to address the development’s impacts on the county’s road network through payment of a cash 
proffer, $9,400 per dwelling unit for improvements to the road network would be appropriate. 
The traffic impact of the proposed development could be valued at $65,800 (7 x $9,400).  The 
applicant has proffered to pay $9,400 per dwelling unit (Proffered Condition 1). Staff supports 
the request. 
 
 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Willie Gordon (804-674-2560) willie.gordon@vdot.virginia.gov 

 
The zoning case is a local matter regarding proffered conditions of the subject property, and has 
no direct impact to state right of way. VDOT has no comments at this time. 
  

Page 431 of 563



7                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

FIRE SERVICE 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 
Mission 
 
The mission of Fire and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) is to protect life, property and the 
environment through a comprehensive fire and life safety program that ensures an adequate and 
timely response to emergencies.  

 

Response Times 
 
The proposed development is located in the urban response zone for which Fire & EMS has a goal 
of responding to at least 90% of the calls for service in under seven (7) minutes. Fire and EMS is 
currently unable to meet that goal.  
  
Nearby Fire/EMS Facilities 
 
The Centralia Fire Station, Company Number 17 
 

Anticipated Fire & EMS Impacts/Needs 
 
Based on an average of .374 calls per dwelling, it is estimated that this development will generate 
3 annual calls for Fire/EMS services.   
 

Additional Fire and EMS Comments 
 
When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire 
protection, and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process. 
 
 

SCHOOLS 
Staff Contact: Atonja Allen (804-318-8740) atonja_allen@ccpsnet.net 

 
Mission 
 
High performing, high quality public schools contribute to the quality of life and economic vitality 
of the County. The Comprehensive Plan suggests a greater focus should be placed on linking 
schools with communities by providing greater access, flexible designs and locations that better 
meet the needs of the communities in which they are located.  
 

Capital Improvements 
 
The School Board FY2020 adopted Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) continues to support the 2013 
voter approved school revitalization program that will replace or renovate ten schools and 
construct one new elementary school to add capacity in the Midlothian area of the county.  The 
ten existing facilities that are part of the revitalization program are Beulah Elementary School, 

Page 432 of 563



8                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

Crestwood Elementary School, Enon Elementary School, Ettrick Elementary School, Harrowgate 
Elementary School, Matoaca Elementary School, Reams Elementary School, Manchester Middle 
School, Providence Middle School, and Monacan High School.  A replacement Manchester Middle 
School is planned for construction on the existing school site, and the Beulah Elementary School, 
Enon Elementary School, Providence Middle School, and Monacan High School projects are 
complete.  Additional school construction projects include a Matoaca Middle School addition on 
the east campus site, and the new Matoaca Elementary School will be constructed on the existing 
west campus site.  Upon completion of the east campus addition, the current west campus 
building will be demolished and Matoaca Middle School will operate as a single, unified campus.  
Information on the CIP and School Board approved construction projects can be found in the 
financial section of the CCPS Adopted Budget for FY2020. 
 

Anticipated School Impacts 
 

 Elementary 
(PK to 5) 

Middle 
(6 to 8) 

High 
(9 to 12) 

Total (1) 

Anticipated Student Yield by 
School Type 

1 1 1 3 

 
Schools Currently Serving Area Ecoff Salem Church L.C. Bird  

 
2019-20 

School Year 

Current Enrollment 727 919 1,795 
Design Capacity (2) 974 1,216 2,454 
Enrollment Percent of Design 
Capacity 

75% 76% 73% 

Program Capacity (3) 834 993 2,311 
Enrollment Percent of Program 
Capacity 

87% 93% 78% 

Total Number of Trailers  0 5 5 
Number of Classroom Trailers 0  2 2 
Note: 
(1) Based upon the average number of students per single-family dwelling unit for each of the school attendance zones 
where the proposal is located. Student Generation Factor (2017) is the actual total number of students by grade level 
divided by the actual total number of housing units by housing type. 
(2) Design capacity is the maximum number of students the building can accommodate based on the Virginia Department of 
Education Standards of Quality and the architectural program design of the existing building including all interior and 
exterior renovations to date and an inventory of all available space.  Design capacity does not include site-based initiatives 
and is thus not subject to frequent change and represents prototypical design capacity using VDOE standards. 
(3) Program capacity is the maximum number of students the building can accommodate based on the Virginia Department 
of Education Standards of Quality and the current school programming that may adjust the number of rooms used for core 
or grade-level classrooms in the overall building design capacity. 

 
Public Facilities Plan 
 
Post 2020, the Public Facilities Plan recommends a new middle school in the vicinity of Chester 
and West Hundred Roads and a new high school in the vicinity of Chester Road and Route 288, 
north of Route 10. However, at this time, a budget has not been developed for the acquisition of 
land or construction of these school facilities as recommended in the Plan.  

Page 433 of 563



9                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

 
Additional School Comments 
 
Over time, this case combined with other tentative residential developments, infill 
developments, and approved residential zoning cases in the area may cause these schools to 
reach or exceed its capacity. 
 
 

UTILITIES 
Staff Contact: Matthew Rembold (706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 

 

Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
 

Utility Type 
Currently 
Serviced 

Size of Closest Existing 
Lines 

Connection Required by County 
Code 

Water Yes 8” Yes 
Wastewater Yes 8” Yes 

 
 

Additional Utility Comments 
 
The applicant requests rezoning approximately 3.3 acres from A to R-12 with CUPD.  The subject 
properties are located in the mandatory water and wastewater connection areas for new residential 
structures.  The applicant has indicated their intent to connect to county water and wastewater at 
time of construction. 
 
An 8” county waterline and an 8” county wastewater line are available for connection within 
Centralia Station Road.  These service connections will be the responsibility of the developer and an 
approved construction plan will be required for these improvements. 
 
The Utilities Department supports this case. 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Rochet (804-748-1028) RochetR@chesterfield.gov 

 
Geography 
 
The subject property generally drains from west to east to an existing 15-inch culvert under the 
CSX railroad and ultimately into an existing storm sewer system along Centralia Road.  The 
existing storm sewer system discharges directly to Great Branch, a tributary of Proctors Creek.  
The entire property is located within the Proctors Creek Watershed. 
 
Environmental Features 
 
A Resource Protection Area (RPA) Designation must be submitted to and confirmed by the 
Department of Environmental Engineering – Water Quality Section prior to the submittal of any 

Page 434 of 563



10                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

construction plans.  A Water Quality Impact Assessment must be submitted to and approved by the 
Department of Environmental Engineering and/or the Board of Supervisors for any improvements 
which may encroach into the RPA.   
 
Additionally, there may be areas of wetlands on the property adjacent to the existing railroad.  
Wetlands and/or streams shall not be impacted without approval from the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers and/or the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.   
 
Drainage 
 
The Conceptual Layout Plan indicates that the existing property sheet flows towards the existing 
railroad.  Offsite easements and drainage improvements may be necessary to discharge 
stormwater to an adequate conveyance system. 
 
Stormwater Management 
 
The development of the subject property will be subject to the Part IIB technical criteria of the 
Virginia Stormwater Management Program Regulations for water quality and quantity.  Any areas 
of forest/open space used for stormwater quality compliance must be outside the limits of the 
residential lots, unless otherwise approved by the Department of Environmental Engineering. 
 
 

BUDGET & MANAGEMENT 
Staff Contact: Natalie Spillman (804-318-8767) spillmann@chesterfield.gov 

 

County finance staff is responsible for managing the finances of the County and making 
recommendations to the County Administrator regarding the allocation of available resources for 
the provision of services and capital facilities to serve the citizens of the County. Finance staff will 
advise the County Administrator if changed economic circumstances require adjustments to the 
County’s budget or capital improvement program. 
 
 

 
To date, no comments have been received. 
 
  

LIBRARIES 
Staff Contact: Jennifer Stevens (804-751-4998) stevensj@chesterfield.gov 

PARKS AND RECREATION 
Staff Contact: Janit Llewellyn (804-751-4482) LlewellynJa@chesterfield.gov  

Page 435 of 563



11                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
7/25/19 Application submitted 

7/30, 8/27, 
9/25, 10/1, 
10/3, and 
12/9/19 

Revised Proffered Conditions, Textual Statement, and Exhibits submitted 

 

Planning Commission 
12/17/19 Citizen Comments: 

• Development should match the Centralia Station subdivision, join the 
HOA and have a limited number of front-loaded garages 

 
Applicant’s Comments: 

• Intent for seamless extension of the Centralia Station subdivision, with 
zoning consistent with adjoining properties 

• Lots planned to match Centralia Station subdivision lots 
• Intent to add these lots to the Centralia Station subdivision HOA 
• Building plans include garages that load from the front and side, and 

through proffers have enhanced features 
 
Commission Discussion: 
Staff responded to questions of the Commission as follows: 

• Layout for a total of eleven (11) lots with seven (7) on the subject 
property, and one (1) of the eleven (11) including land from the subject 
and from adjoining parcel 

 
Recommendation – APPROVAL AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROFFERED 
CONDITIONS IN ATTACHMENTS 1 – 4. 
 
Motion:  Sloan      Second:  Freye 
AYES:  Jones, Freye, Jones, Sloan and Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:30 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 436 of 563



12                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

 ATTACHMENT 1 
PROFERRED CONDITIONS 

December 9, 2019 
Note:   
Both the Planning Commission and staff recommend acceptance of the following proffered 
condition, as offered by the applicant.   

 
 The Applicant in this case, pursuant to Section 15.2-2298 of the Code of Virginia (1950 as 
amended) and the Zoning Ordinance of Chesterfield County, for itself and its successors or 
assigns, proffer that the property under consideration in this case (“the Property”) will be used 
according to the following proffer(s) if, and only if, the request submitted herewith is granted 
with only those conditions agreed to by the Applicant.  In the event this request is denied or 
approved with conditions not agreed to by the owners and Applicant, the proffer shall 
immediately be null and void and of no further force or effect.   
 
1. Road Cash Proffer.  The Developer/Subdivider/Assignee shall pay $9,400 per dwelling unit 

(the “Road Cash Proffer”) to the County of Chesterfield for road improvements within the 
service district for the Property.  Each payment shall be made prior to the issuance of a 
building permit for a dwelling unit unless state law modifies the timing of the payment. 
(T and B & M) 

 
2.   Architectural Design Standards.  The Property shall be developed in accordance with the 

following Architectural/Design Elements, which are considered minimum standards.  
 

 A. Style and Form:  
 
  1. Architectural Styles.  The architectural styles featured on the Property shall 

use forms and elements compatible with those in the Centralia Station 
Subdivision, located in Chesterfield County, Virginia.   

 
  2. Variation in Front Elevations.  The following restrictions are designed to 

maximize architectural variety of the houses.  
 

a. Buildings with the same front elevation may not be located adjacent 
to, directly across from, or diagonally across the street from each 
other on the same street.  

 
b. Variation in the front elevation to address the paragraph above may 

not be achieved by simply mirroring the façade but may be 
accomplished by providing at least two (2) of the following 
architectural changes: 

 
i. adding or removing a porch or covered entry or increasing or 

decreasing the length of the porch or entry 
ii. varying the location and/or style of a front facing gable(s) 

iii. alternating the location of the garage 

Page 437 of 563



13                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

iv. providing different materials and/or siding types on at least 50% 
of the elevation 

v. providing a different roof type/roof line 
 
 B. Exterior Facades. Dwelling facades shall be constructed with brick, stone, stucco, 

synthetic stucco (E.I.F.S.), or lap siding.  Where lap siding is used it shall either be 
manufactured from natural wood or cement fiber board or shall be premium 
quality vinyl siding with a minimum wall thickness of .044 inches. Synthetic Stucco 
(E.I.F.S.) siding shall be finished in a smooth, sand or level texture, and no rough 
textures are permitted.  Dutch lap vinyl siding is prohibited. 

 
 C. Foundations.  All exposed foundations shall be constructed of brick, stone, or a 

combination thereof, except that stucco or synthetic stucco (E.I.F.S.) foundations 
may be used where stucco or synthetic stucco (E.I.F.S.) is used on the remainder 
of the dwelling.   

  
 D. Roof Materials.  Roofing material shall be dimensional architectural shingles or 

standing-seam metal with a minimum 30-year warranty.  All flashing shall be 
copper or pre-finished aluminum (bronze or black).   

 
 E.  Porches and Stoops.  All front entry stoops and front porches shall be covered and 

constructed with either a continuous foundation wall or by masonry piers and 
lattice screening.  If a continuous foundation wall is used to support a front entry 
stoop or front  porch, the foundation wall shall be constructed of the same 
foundation material as is used on the remainder of the house (e.g., brick, stone, a 
combination of brick and stone, stucco, or synthetic stucco (E.I.F.S.)).  Front 
porches shall be a minimum of five (5)’ deep.  Handrails and railings shall be 
finished wood or metal railing with vertical pickets, stainless steel cables, sawn 
balusters, or better quality materials.  Pickets shall be supported on top and 
bottom rails that span between columns.  

 
 F. Fireplaces, Chimneys and Flues. 
 

1. Chimneys.  Chimneys must have masonry foundations.  Siding other than 
masonry is permitted over chimney sections at roof planes or facades above 
the foundation level.  Cantilevered chimneys are not permitted. The width and 
depth of chimneys shall be appropriately sized in proportion to the size and 
height of the dwelling unit.  For gas fireplaces, metal flues may be used on the 
roof. 

 
2. Direct Vent Fireplaces: Direct vent gas fireplace boxes that protrude beyond 

the exterior plane of the dwelling unit are not permitted on front facades or 
corner-side facades.  All the exterior materials and finishes used to enclose the 
fireplace box must match the adjacent facade. (P and BI) 

 
3. Driveways/Front Walks.   

 

Page 438 of 563



14                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

A. Private Driveways.  All private driveways serving residential uses shall be 
hardscaped (which hardscaping shall be constructed of either asphalt, brushed 
concrete, stamped concrete, exposed aggregate concrete, or decorative pavers).  
Private driveways shall not require curb and gutter. 

 
B. Front Walks.  Front walks shall be provided to the front entrance of each dwelling 

unit.  Front walks shall be hardscaped (which hardscaping shall be constructed of 
either brushed concrete, stamped concrete, exposed aggregate concrete, or 
decorative pavers).  Front walks shall be a minimum of three (3) feet wide. (P) 

 
4. Garages.   

 
 A. All units shall have, at a minimum, an attached garage.   
 
 B. Both front-loaded and corner side-loaded garages shall use an upgraded garage 

door. An upgraded garage door is any door with a minimum of two (2) 
enhanced features.  Enhanced features shall include windows, raised 
panels, decorative panels, arches, hinge straps or other architectural 
features on the exterior that enhance the entry (i.e. decorative lintels, 
shed roof overhangs, arches, columns, keystones, eyebrows, etc.).  Flat 
panel garage doors are prohibited. 

 
 C. Front-loaded garages shall be permitted to extend past the front line of the main 

dwelling provided that the architectural treatment of the garage (with 
respect to fenestration and foundation treatment) generally conforms to 
the example photo attached hereto as Exhibit A. (P and BI) 

 
5.  Landscaping and Yards.  

  
A. Front Foundation Planting Bed:  Foundation planting is required along the entire 

front façade of all units, and shall extend along all sides facing a street.  Foundation 
Planting Beds shall be a minimum of four (4) feet wide from the dwelling unit 
foundation.  Planting beds shall be defined with a trenched edge or suitable 
landscape edging material.  Planting beds shall include medium shrubs, spaced a 
maximum of four feet apart, and planting beds may include spreading 
groundcovers.  Unit corners shall be visually softened with vertical accent shrubs 
(4-5 feet in height) or small evergreen trees (6-8 feet in height) at the time of 
planting.    

    
B. Front Yard Tree: At least one (1) tree per lot shall be planted or retained.  A tree 

shall be planted or retained on both street frontages on corner lots.  The front 
yard tree shall be a large deciduous tree and have a minimum caliper of two and 
one-half (2.5) inches.  Native trees shall be permitted to have a minimum caliper 
of two (2) inches. (P) 

 

Page 439 of 563



15                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

6. Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) Units and Whole House Generators.  
Units shall initially be screened from view of public roads by landscaping or low 
maintenance material, as approved by the Planning Department. (P) 

 
7. Density.  The number of dwelling units shall not exceed seven (7). (P) 

 
8. Minimum Dwelling Unit Size.  The minimum gross floor area for each dwelling unit shall 

be 2,000 square feet. (P and BI) 
 
9. Connection to County Utilities.  The applicant or developer shall connect the Property 

to County water and sewer at time of construction. (P) 
 
10. Master Plan.  The Textual Statement last revised December 9, 2019 shall be considered 

the Master Plan. (P) 
 
  
  

Page 440 of 563



16                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

 ATTACHMENT 2 
TEXTUAL STATEMENT 

December 9, 2019 
 
1. Concept Plan.  The Property shall be designed as generally depicted on the conceptual 
layout plan dated August 27, 2019, last revised October 2, 2019, entitled, “Conceptual Layout 
Taylor Property, Bermuda Magisterial District, Chesterfield County, Virginia” prepared by Townes 
Site Engineering (referred to herein as the “Concept Plan”); provided, however the exact location 
of the lots, dwellings, streets, common areas, and other improvements may be modified provided 
that the general intent of the Concept Plan is maintained.    
 
2. Residential (R-12) District Requirements Apply Unless Otherwise Provided:  Except as 
specifically provided herein, the zoning ordinance requirements for a Residential (R-12) District 
shall apply to the Property.  
 
3. Minimum Lot Width for Lots: The minimum lot width (at building line) for each Lot shall 
be seventy-five feet (75’). 
 
4. Minimum Road Frontage: In the event that the 0.10-acre property located between Lots 
1 and 2 and Centralia Station Road cannot be acquired, the minimum public road frontage 
required for Lot 3 shall be thirty-five feet (35’). 

 
 

  

Page 441 of 563



17                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

 ATTACHMENT 3 
EXIBIT A – FRONT-LOADED GARAGE STANDARD 

September 27, 2019 
 

 
  

Page 442 of 563



18                           19SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 
 

 ATTACHMENT 4 
EXHIBIT B – CONCEPT PLAN 

October 2, 2019 
 

 

Page 443 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 20SN0546 
APPLICANT: Matthew T. Goodwin, Woodlands Real Estate, LLC and 

Ronald Milligan 
 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
MIDLOTHIAN DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.1 Acre – 1218 Koger Center Blvd 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Public Hearing:  
 JANUARY 22, 2020 

BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Agent:  
JEFFREY P. GEIGER (804-771-9557) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
 HAROLD ELLIS (804-768-7592)  

 

REQUEST 
Amendment of zoning approval (Case 06SN0155) to permit an additional vehicular entrance off 
Koger Center Blvd.   
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffer conditions. 
B. Proffered conditions, an Exhibit and approved conditions are located in Attachments 1 - 3. 

 

SUMMARY 
Development of the site for medical offices and associated parking is planned. As part of this 
development, the applicant proposes to construct a new right in-right out entrance off Koger Center 
Boulevard, with a new right turn lane.  Conditions of zoning currently limit the number of direct 
vehicular access points from Koger Center Blvd for the larger project area to two which have been 
constructed.   An amendment to the current proffered conditions is required to permit the new 
entrance.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 
PLANNING 

COMMISSION 
APPROVAL 

STAFF 
 APPROVAL 

• No adverse impact anticipated 
• Without additional entrance, no direct access to the site would be provided 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 444 of 563



2  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 445 of 563



3  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

Comprehensive Plan  
Classification: REGIONAL MIXED USE  

    
The designation suggests the property is appropriate for an integrated urban-style mix of                   
employment-generating uses, destination commercial services, and higher residential density. 
 

 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 
   

 

 

Subject 
Property 

Koger Center Blvd 

Mall Drive 
Wholesale 

Club 

Chesterfield 
Town Center 

Home 
Improvement 

Home 
Improvement 

Page 446 of 563



4  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Harold Ellis (804-768-7592) ellish@chesterfield.gov 

 

Zoning History 
 

Case Number Request 

06SN0155  
Approved 
(10/2006) 

• Rezoning of 70.1 acres to Regional Business (C-4) with Conditional Use to 
permit multi-family residential uses and Conditional Use Planned 
Development to permit exceptions to Ordinance requirements 

• Commercial and multifamily uses planned 
• Waiver to street connectivity requirements to Old Farm Road 
• Number of vehicular access points to Koger Center Blvd limited to two (2) 
• Current request represents a portion of this development 

 
 
Proposal 
 

Development of the site with a medical office building containing approximately 60,000 gross 
square feet, and associated parking is planned. As part of this development, the applicant 
proposes to construct an additional entrance off Koger Center Boulevard, limited to right-
in/right-out, with a new right turn lane.  An amendment to the current proffered conditions is 
required to permit the new entrance. 
 
Condition 8.a. of case 06SN0155 limits direct access to Koger Center Boulevard to two 
entrances, exclusive of Mall Drive.  Both access points have been constructed.  One serves as  
an access point to a wholesale shopping club to the west, and the second to a financial 
institution to the east. The applicant requests an amendment to permit the construction of an 
additional vehicular entrance from Koger Center Boulevard to serve the proposed medical 
office use. 
 

COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804) 748-1037 adamsSt@chesterfield.gov 

 
Case 06SN0155 limits access from the property onto Koger Center Boulevard to Mall Drive and 
two (2) entrances/exits (Proffered Condition 8.a.).  Those accesses have been constructed.  The 
applicant is requesting an additional access to Koger Center Boulevard.  This access would be 
limited to right-in and right-out per the condition with the construction of a separate right turn 
lane required in accordance with Proffered Condition 9.b. of Case 06SN0155.  Staff supports 
this amendment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 447 of 563



5  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Willie Gordon (804-674-2907) willie.gordon@vdot.virginia.gov  

FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
Staff Contact:  Anthony Batten (804-717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

UTILITIES 
Staff Contact: Matt Rembold (804-706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Rochet (804-748-1028) rochetr@chesterfield.gov 

 
The proposal will not impact these facilities. 
 
 

CASE HISTORY 

 
Applicant Submittals 

10/07/19 Application, proffered condition, and exhibit submitted 
 

Planning Commission 
12/17/19 Citizen Comments: 

No citizens spoke to the request. 
 
Recommendation  –  APPROVAL SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS IN 
ATTACHMENT 1. 
 
Motion: Jones   Second: Stariha 
AYES:  Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan, and Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 448 of 563



6  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 ATTACHMENT 1 
CONDITIONS 

November 22, 2019 

Note: The following conditions are recommended by both the Planning Commission and Staff. 

               
The applicant hereby proffers the following, amending Proffered Condition 8.a. of Case 
06SN0155: 

8.a. Direct vehicular access from the Property to Koger Center Boulevard shall be limited 
to Mall Drive Extended and three (3) entrances/exits. Mall Drive Extended shall align the 
existing crossover on Koger Center Boulevard that serves Mall Drive. All other direct 
entrances/exits to Koger Center Boulevard shall be limited to right-turns-in and right-
turns-out only. The exact location of these accesses shall be approved by the 
Transportation Department. (T) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 449 of 563



7  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 ATTACHMENT 2 

EXHIBIT 

           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 450 of 563



8  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 ATTACHMENT 3 

APPROVED CONDITIONS – CASE 06SN0155 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 451 of 563



9  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 452 of 563



10  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 453 of 563



11  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 454 of 563



12  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 
 

Page 455 of 563



13  20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 456 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 20SN0549 
APPLICANT: Columbia Gas of Virginia 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
MIDLOTHIAN DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
3.9 Acres – 12718 Midlothian Turnpike 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 
Applicant’s Contacts:  

TOM HOUSTON (804-748-9011) 
Planning Department Case Manager:  

TYLER WALTER (804-318-8893) 
 

REQUEST 
Conditional use to permit a utility use requiring a structure in a Residential (R-7) District.  
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owners may proffer conditions. 
B. Conditions and exhibits are located in Attachments 1-3. 

 

SUMMARY 
Relocation and replacement of an existing Point of Delivery (POD) station for natural gas 
distribution is planned. The existing POD, located on a neighboring transmission easement to the 
east, has been in operation since the late 1960’s.  According to the applicant, this facility lacks 
sufficient capacity to meet growing area demands, and size and safety concerns impact 
replacement of the POD at the exiting location.  This proposed facility at this new location would 
increase existing system capacity and facilitate serving future growth west of Route 288.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 
PLANNING 

COMMISSION 
APPROVAL 
 

STAFF 

APPROVAL 
• Accommodates growing utility service coverage needs. 
• As conditioned, minimizes visual impacts on existing and anticipated 

area development and the Midlothian Corridor. 
 
 
 
 

Page 457 of 563



2  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 
  

Page 458 of 563



3  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

Comprehensive Plan – Midlothian Community Special Area Plan 
Classification: NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE 

 
The designation suggests the property is appropriate for professional and administrative offices or  
similar uses. Typical uses could include doctor, lawyer, accountant and real estate offices. 

    

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 
 

 

 
 

Walmart 
Shopping Center 

Midlothian Tpke. 

Single-family uses 
– Millstone Creek 

subdivision 

Existing POD 
station 

Farnham Dr. 

Falling 
Creek 

Page 459 of 563



4  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Tyler Walter (804-318-8893) waltert@chesterfield.gov 

 
Proposal 
 
A utility use requiring a structure is proposed. Specifically, the relocation and replacement of a 
utility Point of Delivery (POD) facility to distribute natural gas is planned. A POD station is a 
facility that accepts natural gas from an existing pipeline and decreases the flow to move the 
gas at a safer speed onto service lines to homes and businesses. POD stations are typically 
located adjacent to existing gas lines.   
The existing POD station is located at 12700 Midlothian Turnpike, approximately 650 feet east 
of the proposed POD station, both of which are adjacent to a TransCanada gas line (Exhibit A). 
The existing station was built in 1967 as a medium pressure system and is approaching 100 
percent service capacity.  The applicant indicates that the existing site is too small to build a 
new facility to meet gas demands, and its location within the TransCanada gas line right-of-way 
and proximity to Midlothian Turnpike present safety concerns.  The proposed site, located 
outside of the TransCanada pipeline right-of-way, was determined the most feasible in 
following TransCanada regulations and boosting existing pressure and capacity.  (Exhibit A – 
Option A, Attachment 2).   
Comprehensive Plan 
 
The Comprehensive Plan indicates that this property is in the Midlothian Community Special 
Area Plan, which was adopted at the Board of Supervisors’ December 11, 2019 meeting.    The 
Special Area Plan suggests the property is appropriate for Neighborhood Office uses.  
Neighborhood office uses could include doctor, lawyer, accountant and real estate offices.  
 
The following chart provides an overview of conditions recommended by staff to assist in 
mitigating the impact of the use on area properties:  

General Overview 
Requirements Details 

Uses 
Use shall be limited to the gas point of delivery station. 

                                                                                  Condition 1  

Conceptual Plan 
Development of the property to comply with the conceptual plan. 

                                                                             Condition 2 

Fencing 
Eight (8) foot high fence along the perimeter of the POD station, with a privacy 
screen, and be a dark black, green or brown color. 

Condition 3 

Buffers 
Fifty (50) foot buffer maintained along the north property line, and a twenty-five 
(25) foot buffer shall be maintained along the west property line. 

                                                                             Condition 4 

Landscaping 
Existing vegetation maintained along Midlothian Turnpike at 2 x Landscape C. 

                                                                       Condition 5 
 

As conditioned, is anticipated that the visual impact of this facility on area uses and the corridor 
will be minimal. Staff is supportive of this request. 
 
 

Page 460 of 563



5  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (804-717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 

When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire 
protection, and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process. 
 

Nearby Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Facilities 
Fire Station The Midlothian Fire Station, Company Number 5 
EMS Facility The Forest View Volunteer Rescue Squad 

 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Willie Gordon (804-674-2907) willie.gordon@vdot.virginia.gov 

 

The applicant, Columbia Gas, is requesting a conditional use permit to construct a utility point 
of distribution facility on the subject property, currently zoned R-7.  The existing entrance to 
the property on Midlothian Turnpike will be subject to VDOT commercial entrance standards.  
The applicant may submit site trip generation data to support a lower entrance classification.  
VDOT will require the portion of the entrance within right-of-way to be paved.   
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Rochet (804-748-1028) rochetr@chesterfield.gov 

 

Geography 
 

The subject property drains from west to east directly to Falling Creek which coincides with the 
eastern property line.  The entire property is located within the Falling Creek Watershed. 
 

Natural Resources 
 

There is 100-year FEMA floodplain on the subject property along Falling Creek.  Any fill and/or 
construction with the FEMA floodplain must be approved by the Department of Environmental 
Engineering and/or FEMA prior to site plan approval.    
A Resource Protection Area Designation (RPAD) must be submitted to the Department of 
Environmental Engineering – Water Quality Section prior to the submittal of any site plans.  A 
buffer modification request for exempt activities shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Department of Environmental Engineering for any improvements which encroach into the RPA.   
 

Stormwater Management 
 
The development of the subject property will be subject to the Annual Standards and 
Specifications for Columbia Gas of Virginia, which are reviewed and enforced by the Virginia 
Department of Environmental Quality.   
 
 
 

Page 461 of 563



6  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

UTILITIES 
Staff Contact: Matt Rembold (804-706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 

 

Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
 

Utility Type Currently Serviced Size of Closest 
Existing Lines 

Connection 
Required by County 

Code 
Water No 36” N/A 
Wastewater No 33” N/A 

 

Additional Utility Comments: 
 

The subject property is located within the mandatory water and wastewater connection areas for 
new non-residential structures, however, no structures requiring water or wastewater service are 
proposed with this application, therefore the impact to the utilities department is expected to be 
minimal. 
 

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804-748-1037) adamst@chesterfield.gov 

PARKS AND RECREATION 
Staff Contact: Janit Llewellyn (804-751-4482) llewellynja@chesterfield.gov 

 

This request will not impact these facilities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 462 of 563



7  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
10/11/2019 Application submitted 

 

Community Meeting 
11/07/2019 Issues Discussed: 

• Safety of a Point of Delivery station 
• Square footage of the facility 
• Estimated truck traffic from the facility 
• Screening and lighting of the facility 
• Gas capacity, how long the facility will be in commission 
• Construction timeline 

 

Planning Commission 
12/17/2019 Citizen Comments: 

Citizens spoke to the request, expression support subject to the Point of 
Delivery Station providing for a minimum 50 foot setback from adjacent 
residential properties to the north. 
Applicant’s Comments: 
The applicant confirmed the revised drawings depicting a 50 foot setback were 
forthcoming.  
Commission Discussion: 
In response to the question regarding the 50-foot setback, staff confirmed the 
condition regarding a minimum 50-foot buffer adjacent to the residential 
property to the north (Proffered Condition 4). 
 
Recommendation – APPROVAL SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS IN ATTACHMENT 1. 
 
Motion: Jones  Second: Freye 
AYES: Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan, Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 463 of 563



8  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

CONDITIONS 

Note:  The following conditions are recommended by the Planning Commission and staff. 
 

1. Use. This Conditional Use shall be limited to the operation of a Point of Delivery (P.O.D.) 
station for natural gas distribution. (P) 
 

2. Conceptual Plan.  Development of the property shall generally conform to the 
Conceptual Plan prepared by Townes Engineering, dated July 5, 2019, and titled 
“Midlothian POD Site: Site Exhibit” (Exhibit B), with respect to the location of site 
improvements. (P) 
 

3. Fencing. A fence of a minimum of eight (8) feet in height shall be provided along the 
perimeter of the Point of Delivery station as generally shown on the Site Renderings 
(Exhibit C). If such fence is a chain link fence, a privacy screen (mesh tarp or windscreen) 
shall be provided as part of such a fence as may be approved at the time of site plan 
review. Such privacy screen shall be located on the northern, western, and southern 
sides of the fence and shall be earth tone in color, such as dark black, green or brown. 
Any portion of such fence with the privacy screen shall also be powder coated an earth 
tone color, such as dark black, green or brown. Such fence and privacy screen shall be 
maintained in good visual condition. (P) 
 

4. Buffers – Northern and Western Property Boundaries.  A fifty (50) foot buffer shall be 
provided along the northern property boundary and a twenty-five (25) foot buffer shall 
be provided along the western property boundary.  Such buffers shall comply with the 
requirements of the ZO except that these buffers shall be planted at a density of 2.0 
times Landscape C.  In addition, within the northern buffer, supplemental evergreen 
tree and shrub plantings shall be installed as determined necessary by the Planning 
Department at the time of site plan review to mitigate views of the facility from the 
north. (P) 
 

5. Landscaping – Midlothian Turnpike.  Within the setback from Midlothian Turnpike, 
existing vegetation shall be maintained and supplemented, as needed, to comply with 
the Ordinance requirements for 2.0 times Landscape C. (P) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 464 of 563



9  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

 ATTACHMENT 2 

EXHIBIT A: POINT OF DELIVERY STATION SITE SELECTION 

 

 
 
 

Page 465 of 563



10  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

 ATTACHMENT 3 

EXHIBIT B: SITE EXHIBIT 

 

 

Page 466 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 20SN0549 
APPLICANT: Columbia Gas of Virginia 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
MIDLOTHIAN DISTRICT 

 

ADDENDUM 

 
3.9 Acres – 12718 Midlothian Turnpike 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Contacts:  
TOM HOUSTON (804-748-9011) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
TYLER WALTER (804-318-8893) 

 

REQUEST 

Conditional use to permit a utility use requiring a structure in a Residential (R-7) District.  
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owners may proffer conditions. 
B. Conditions and exhibits are located in Attachments 1-3. 

 

SUMMARY 

Relocation and replacement of an existing Point of Delivery (POD) station for natural gas 
distribution is planned. The existing POD, located on a neighboring transmission easement to the 
east, has been in operation since the late 1960s.  According to the applicant, this facility lacks 
sufficient capacity to meet growing area demands, and size and safety concerns impact 
replacement of the POD at the exiting location.  This proposed facility at this new location would 
increase existing system capacity and facilitate serving future growth west of Route 288.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

APPROVAL 
 

STAFF 

APPROVAL 

• Accommodates growing utility service coverage needs. 

• As conditioned, minimizes visual impacts on existing and anticipated 
area development and the Midlothian Corridor. 

 

ADDENDUM 

The purpose of this addendum is to update Condition 2 to correct the date of Exhibit B, and the 
Case History to note receipt of this exhibit. 
 
Subsequent to the Commission’s consideration of this request, staff received a revised Exhibit B 
on December 20, 2019, which is included in the Staff Analysis.  This exhibit reflects the minimum 
setbacks of 50 feet from the northern property line and 25 feet from the western property line to 
the facility compound, consistent with buffer widths provided in Condition 4.  The Case History 
has been updated to record submittal of this amended Exhibit.  Staff continues to recommend 
approval as noted in the staff analysis. 

Page 467 of 563



2  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-ADD 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
10/11/2019 Application submitted 

12/20/2019 Revised Concept Plan submitted 
 

Community Meeting 
11/07/2019 Issues Discussed: 

• Safety of a Point of Delivery station 

• Square footage of the facility 

• Estimated truck traffic from the facility 

• Screening and lighting of the facility 

• Gas capacity, how long the facility will be in commission 

• Construction timeline 
 

Planning Commission 
12/17/2019 Citizen Comments: 

Citizens spoke to the request, expression support subject to the Point of 
Delivery Station providing for a minimum 50 foot setback from adjacent 
residential properties to the north. 
Applicant’s Comments: 
The applicant confirmed the revised drawings depicting a 50 foot setback were 
forthcoming.  
Commission Discussion: 
In response to the question regarding the 50-foot setback, staff confirmed the 
condition regarding a minimum 50-foot buffer adjacent to the residential 
property to the north (Proffered Condition 4). 
 
Recommendation – APPROVAL SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS IN ATTACHMENT 1. 
 
Motion: Jones  Second: Freye 
AYES: Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan, Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 468 of 563



3  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-ADD 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

CONDITIONS 

Note:  The following conditions are recommended by the Planning Commission and staff. 
 

1. Use. This Conditional Use shall be limited to the operation of a Point of Delivery (P.O.D.) 

station for natural gas distribution. (P) 

 

2. Conceptual Plan.  Development of the property shall generally conform to the 

Conceptual Plan prepared by Townes Engineering, dated December 20, 2019, and titled 

“Midlothian POD Site: Site Exhibit” (Exhibit B), with respect to the location of site 

improvements. (P) 

 
3. Fencing. A fence of a minimum of eight (8) feet in height shall be provided along the 

perimeter of the Point of Delivery station as generally shown on the Site Renderings 

(Exhibit C). If such fence is a chain link fence, a privacy screen (mesh tarp or windscreen) 

shall be provided as part of such a fence as may be approved at the time of site plan 

review. Such privacy screen shall be located on the northern, western, and southern 

sides of the fence and shall be earth tone in color, such as dark black, green or brown. 

Any portion of such fence with the privacy screen shall also be powder coated an earth 

tone color, such as dark black, green or brown. Such fence and privacy screen shall be 

maintained in good visual condition. (P) 
 

4. Buffers – Northern and Western Property Boundaries.  A fifty (50) foot buffer shall be 

provided along the northern property boundary and a twenty-five (25) foot buffer shall 

be provided along the western property boundary.  Such buffers shall comply with the 

requirements of the ZO except that these buffers shall be planted at a density of 2.0 

times Landscape C.  In addition, within the northern buffer, supplemental evergreen 

tree and shrub plantings shall be installed as determined necessary by the Planning 

Department at the time of site plan review to mitigate views of the facility from the 

north. (P) 
 

5. Landscaping – Midlothian Turnpike.  Within the setback from Midlothian Turnpike, 

existing vegetation shall be maintained and supplemented, as needed, to comply with 

the Ordinance requirements for 2.0 times Landscape C. (P) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 469 of 563



4  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-ADD 

 ATTACHMENT 3 

EXHIBIT B: SITE EXHIBIT 

 

 

Page 470 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 20SN0549 
APPLICANT: Columbia Gas of Virginia 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
MIDLOTHIAN DISTRICT 

 

ADDENDUM 

 
3.9 Acres – 12718 Midlothian Turnpike 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Contacts:  
TOM HOUSTON (804-748-9011) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
TYLER WALTER (804-318-8893) 

 

REQUEST 

Conditional use to permit a utility use requiring a structure in a Residential (R-7) District.  
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owners may proffer conditions. 
B. Conditions and exhibits are located in Attachments 1-3. 

 

SUMMARY 

Relocation and replacement of an existing Point of Delivery (POD) station for natural gas 
distribution is planned. The existing POD, located on a neighboring transmission easement to the 
east, has been in operation since the late 1960s.  According to the applicant, this facility lacks 
sufficient capacity to meet growing area demands, and size and safety concerns impact 
replacement of the POD at the exiting location.  This proposed facility at this new location would 
increase existing system capacity and facilitate serving future growth west of Route 288.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

APPROVAL 
 

STAFF 

APPROVAL 

• Accommodates growing utility service coverage needs. 

• As conditioned, minimizes visual impacts on existing and anticipated 
area development and the Midlothian Corridor. 

 

ADDENDUM 

The purpose of this addendum is to update Condition 2 to correct the date of Exhibit B, and the 
Case History to note receipt of this exhibit. 
 
Subsequent to the Commission’s consideration of this request, staff received a revised Exhibit B 
on December 20, 2019, which is included in the Staff Analysis.  This exhibit reflects the minimum 
setbacks of 50 feet from the northern property line and 25 feet from the western property line to 
the facility compound, consistent with buffer widths provided in Condition 4.  The Case History 
has been updated to record submittal of this amended Exhibit.  Staff continues to recommend 
approval as noted in the staff analysis. 

Page 471 of 563



2  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-ADD 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
10/11/2019 Application submitted 

12/20/2019 Revised Concept Plan submitted 
 

Community Meeting 
11/07/2019 Issues Discussed: 

• Safety of a Point of Delivery station 

• Square footage of the facility 

• Estimated truck traffic from the facility 

• Screening and lighting of the facility 

• Gas capacity, how long the facility will be in commission 

• Construction timeline 
 

Planning Commission 
12/17/2019 Citizen Comments: 

Citizens spoke to the request, expression support subject to the Point of 
Delivery Station providing for a minimum 50 foot setback from adjacent 
residential properties to the north. 
Applicant’s Comments: 
The applicant confirmed the revised drawings depicting a 50 foot setback were 
forthcoming.  
Commission Discussion: 
In response to the question regarding the 50-foot setback, staff confirmed the 
condition regarding a minimum 50-foot buffer adjacent to the residential 
property to the north (Proffered Condition 4). 
 
Recommendation – APPROVAL SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS IN ATTACHMENT 1. 
 
Motion: Jones  Second: Freye 
AYES: Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan, Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 472 of 563



3  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-ADD 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

CONDITIONS 

Note:  The following conditions are recommended by the Planning Commission and staff. 
 

1. Use. This Conditional Use shall be limited to the operation of a Point of Delivery (P.O.D.) 

station for natural gas distribution. (P) 

 

2. Conceptual Plan.  Development of the property shall generally conform to the 

Conceptual Plan prepared by Townes Engineering, dated December 20, 2019, and titled 

“Midlothian POD Site: Site Exhibit” (Exhibit B), with respect to the location of site 

improvements. (P) 

 
3. Fencing. A fence of a minimum of eight (8) feet in height shall be provided along the 

perimeter of the Point of Delivery station as generally shown on the Site Renderings 

(Exhibit C). If such fence is a chain link fence, a privacy screen (mesh tarp or windscreen) 

shall be provided as part of such a fence as may be approved at the time of site plan 

review. Such privacy screen shall be located on the northern, western, and southern 

sides of the fence and shall be earth tone in color, such as dark black, green or brown. 

Any portion of such fence with the privacy screen shall also be powder coated an earth 

tone color, such as dark black, green or brown. Such fence and privacy screen shall be 

maintained in good visual condition. (P) 
 

4. Buffers – Northern and Western Property Boundaries.  A fifty (50) foot buffer shall be 

provided along the northern property boundary and a twenty-five (25) foot buffer shall 

be provided along the western property boundary.  Such buffers shall comply with the 

requirements of the ZO except that these buffers shall be planted at a density of 2.0 

times Landscape C.  In addition, within the northern buffer, supplemental evergreen 

tree and shrub plantings shall be installed as determined necessary by the Planning 

Department at the time of site plan review to mitigate views of the facility from the 

north. (P) 
 

5. Landscaping – Midlothian Turnpike.  Within the setback from Midlothian Turnpike, 

existing vegetation shall be maintained and supplemented, as needed, to comply with 

the Ordinance requirements for 2.0 times Landscape C. (P) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 473 of 563



4  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-ADD 

 ATTACHMENT 3 

EXHIBIT B: SITE EXHIBIT 

 

 

Page 474 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 20SN0549 
APPLICANT: Columbia Gas of Virginia 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
MIDLOTHIAN DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
3.9 Acres – 12718 Midlothian Turnpike 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
              JANUARY 22, 2020 
BOS Time Remaining:  

 365 DAYS 
Applicant’s Contacts:  

TOM HOUSTON (804-748-9011) 
Planning Department Case Manager:  

TYLER WALTER (804-318-8893) 
 

REQUEST 
Conditional use to permit a utility use requiring a structure in a Residential (R-7) District.  
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owners may proffer conditions. 
B. Conditions and exhibits are located in Attachments 1-3. 

 

SUMMARY 
Relocation and replacement of an existing Point of Delivery (POD) station for natural gas 
distribution is planned. The existing POD, located on a neighboring transmission easement to the 
east, has been in operation since the late 1960’s.  According to the applicant, this facility lacks 
sufficient capacity to meet growing area demands, and size and safety concerns impact 
replacement of the POD at the exiting location.  This proposed facility at this new location would 
increase existing system capacity and facilitate serving future growth west of Route 288.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 
PLANNING 

COMMISSION 
APPROVAL 
 

STAFF 

APPROVAL 
• Accommodates growing utility service coverage needs. 
• As conditioned, minimizes visual impacts on existing and anticipated 

area development and the Midlothian Corridor. 
 
 
 
 

Page 475 of 563



2  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 
  

Page 476 of 563



3  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

Comprehensive Plan – Midlothian Community Special Area Plan 
Classification: NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE 

 
The designation suggests the property is appropriate for professional and administrative offices or  
similar uses. Typical uses could include doctor, lawyer, accountant and real estate offices. 

    

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 
 

 

 
 

Walmart 
Shopping Center 

Midlothian Tpke. 

Single-family uses 
– Millstone Creek 

subdivision 

Existing POD 
station 

Farnham Dr. 

Falling 
Creek 

Page 477 of 563



4  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Tyler Walter (804-318-8893) waltert@chesterfield.gov 

 
Proposal 
 
A utility use requiring a structure is proposed. Specifically, the relocation and replacement of a 
utility Point of Delivery (POD) facility to distribute natural gas is planned. A POD station is a 
facility that accepts natural gas from an existing pipeline and decreases the flow to move the 
gas at a safer speed onto service lines to homes and businesses. POD stations are typically 
located adjacent to existing gas lines.   
The existing POD station is located at 12700 Midlothian Turnpike, approximately 650 feet east 
of the proposed POD station, both of which are adjacent to a TransCanada gas line (Exhibit A). 
The existing station was built in 1967 as a medium pressure system and is approaching 100 
percent service capacity.  The applicant indicates that the existing site is too small to build a 
new facility to meet gas demands, and its location within the TransCanada gas line right-of-way 
and proximity to Midlothian Turnpike present safety concerns.  The proposed site, located 
outside of the TransCanada pipeline right-of-way, was determined the most feasible in 
following TransCanada regulations and boosting existing pressure and capacity.  (Exhibit A – 
Option A, Attachment 2).   
Comprehensive Plan 
 
The Comprehensive Plan indicates that this property is in the Midlothian Community Special 
Area Plan, which was adopted at the Board of Supervisors’ December 11, 2019 meeting.    The 
Special Area Plan suggests the property is appropriate for Neighborhood Office uses.  
Neighborhood office uses could include doctor, lawyer, accountant and real estate offices.  
 
The following chart provides an overview of conditions recommended by staff to assist in 
mitigating the impact of the use on area properties:  

General Overview 
Requirements Details 

Uses 
Use shall be limited to the gas point of delivery station. 

                                                                                  Condition 1  

Conceptual Plan 
Development of the property to comply with the conceptual plan. 

                                                                             Condition 2 

Fencing 
Eight (8) foot high fence along the perimeter of the POD station, with a privacy 
screen, and be a dark black, green or brown color. 

Condition 3 

Buffers 
Fifty (50) foot buffer maintained along the north property line, and a twenty-five 
(25) foot buffer shall be maintained along the west property line. 

                                                                             Condition 4 

Landscaping 
Existing vegetation maintained along Midlothian Turnpike at 2 x Landscape C. 

                                                                       Condition 5 
 

As conditioned, is anticipated that the visual impact of this facility on area uses and the corridor 
will be minimal. Staff is supportive of this request. 
 
 

Page 478 of 563



5  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (804-717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 

When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire 
protection, and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process. 
 

Nearby Fire and Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Facilities 
Fire Station The Midlothian Fire Station, Company Number 5 
EMS Facility The Forest View Volunteer Rescue Squad 

 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Willie Gordon (804-674-2907) willie.gordon@vdot.virginia.gov 

 

The applicant, Columbia Gas, is requesting a conditional use permit to construct a utility point 
of distribution facility on the subject property, currently zoned R-7.  The existing entrance to 
the property on Midlothian Turnpike will be subject to VDOT commercial entrance standards.  
The applicant may submit site trip generation data to support a lower entrance classification.  
VDOT will require the portion of the entrance within right-of-way to be paved.   
 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Rochet (804-748-1028) rochetr@chesterfield.gov 

 

Geography 
 

The subject property drains from west to east directly to Falling Creek which coincides with the 
eastern property line.  The entire property is located within the Falling Creek Watershed. 
 

Natural Resources 
 

There is 100-year FEMA floodplain on the subject property along Falling Creek.  Any fill and/or 
construction with the FEMA floodplain must be approved by the Department of Environmental 
Engineering and/or FEMA prior to site plan approval.    
A Resource Protection Area Designation (RPAD) must be submitted to the Department of 
Environmental Engineering – Water Quality Section prior to the submittal of any site plans.  A 
buffer modification request for exempt activities shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Department of Environmental Engineering for any improvements which encroach into the RPA.   
 

Stormwater Management 
 
The development of the subject property will be subject to the Annual Standards and 
Specifications for Columbia Gas of Virginia, which are reviewed and enforced by the Virginia 
Department of Environmental Quality.   
 
 
 

Page 479 of 563



6  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

UTILITIES 
Staff Contact: Matt Rembold (804-706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 

 

Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
 

Utility Type Currently Serviced Size of Closest 
Existing Lines 

Connection 
Required by County 

Code 
Water No 36” N/A 
Wastewater No 33” N/A 

 

Additional Utility Comments: 
 

The subject property is located within the mandatory water and wastewater connection areas for 
new non-residential structures, however, no structures requiring water or wastewater service are 
proposed with this application, therefore the impact to the utilities department is expected to be 
minimal. 
 

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804-748-1037) adamst@chesterfield.gov 

PARKS AND RECREATION 
Staff Contact: Janit Llewellyn (804-751-4482) llewellynja@chesterfield.gov 

 

This request will not impact these facilities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 480 of 563



7  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
10/11/2019 Application submitted 

 

Community Meeting 
11/07/2019 Issues Discussed: 

• Safety of a Point of Delivery station 
• Square footage of the facility 
• Estimated truck traffic from the facility 
• Screening and lighting of the facility 
• Gas capacity, how long the facility will be in commission 
• Construction timeline 

 

Planning Commission 
12/17/2019 Citizen Comments: 

Citizens spoke to the request, expression support subject to the Point of 
Delivery Station providing for a minimum 50 foot setback from adjacent 
residential properties to the north. 
Applicant’s Comments: 
The applicant confirmed the revised drawings depicting a 50 foot setback were 
forthcoming.  
Commission Discussion: 
In response to the question regarding the 50-foot setback, staff confirmed the 
condition regarding a minimum 50-foot buffer adjacent to the residential 
property to the north (Proffered Condition 4). 
 
Recommendation – APPROVAL SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS IN ATTACHMENT 1. 
 
Motion: Jones  Second: Freye 
AYES: Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan, Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 481 of 563



8  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

CONDITIONS 

Note:  The following conditions are recommended by the Planning Commission and staff. 
 

1. Use. This Conditional Use shall be limited to the operation of a Point of Delivery (P.O.D.) 
station for natural gas distribution. (P) 
 

2. Conceptual Plan.  Development of the property shall generally conform to the 
Conceptual Plan prepared by Townes Engineering, dated July 5, 2019, and titled 
“Midlothian POD Site: Site Exhibit” (Exhibit B), with respect to the location of site 
improvements. (P) 
 

3. Fencing. A fence of a minimum of eight (8) feet in height shall be provided along the 
perimeter of the Point of Delivery station as generally shown on the Site Renderings 
(Exhibit C). If such fence is a chain link fence, a privacy screen (mesh tarp or windscreen) 
shall be provided as part of such a fence as may be approved at the time of site plan 
review. Such privacy screen shall be located on the northern, western, and southern 
sides of the fence and shall be earth tone in color, such as dark black, green or brown. 
Any portion of such fence with the privacy screen shall also be powder coated an earth 
tone color, such as dark black, green or brown. Such fence and privacy screen shall be 
maintained in good visual condition. (P) 
 

4. Buffers – Northern and Western Property Boundaries.  A fifty (50) foot buffer shall be 
provided along the northern property boundary and a twenty-five (25) foot buffer shall 
be provided along the western property boundary.  Such buffers shall comply with the 
requirements of the ZO except that these buffers shall be planted at a density of 2.0 
times Landscape C.  In addition, within the northern buffer, supplemental evergreen 
tree and shrub plantings shall be installed as determined necessary by the Planning 
Department at the time of site plan review to mitigate views of the facility from the 
north. (P) 
 

5. Landscaping – Midlothian Turnpike.  Within the setback from Midlothian Turnpike, 
existing vegetation shall be maintained and supplemented, as needed, to comply with 
the Ordinance requirements for 2.0 times Landscape C. (P) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 482 of 563



9  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

 ATTACHMENT 2 

EXHIBIT A: POINT OF DELIVERY STATION SITE SELECTION 

 

 
 
 

Page 483 of 563



10  20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C 

 ATTACHMENT 3 

EXHIBIT B: SITE EXHIBIT 

 

 

Page 484 of 563



1  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

CASE NUMBER: 20SN0550 
APPLICANT: Chesterfield Economic Development Authority 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
MIDLOTHIAN DISTRICT 

 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 

18.2 Acres – 100 Stonebridge Plaza Avenue 
STONEBRIDGE 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Hearing:  
JANUARY 22, 2020 

BOS Time Remaining:  
              365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Agent:  
GARRETT HART (804-318-8561) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
 DARLA ORR (804-717-6533) 

 

REQUEST 

Amendment of zoning approval (Case 07SN0333) relative to maximum permitted residential 
density.  Specifically, an amendment is proposed to Textual Statement Item IV(A)(3) to increase 
residential density by 680 multi-family units.     

Notes:  A.  Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffer conditions. 
              B.  A condition and existing zoning conditions are located in Attachments 1 and 2. 
 

 

SUMMARY 

Continued development of a mixed use project (commonly known as Stonebridge) is planned.  The 
property is the former site of Cloverleaf Mall and is located within a revitalization area.  Existing 
zoning (Case 07SN0733) permits 520 residential units, 450,000 square feet of commercial/retail 
and 224,000 square feet of office use within the Stonebridge development.   The site is currently 
developed for approximately 335,000 square feet of commercial/office use and 400 multi-family 
units. 
 

In 2014, a site plan (Case 13PR0232) was approved to permit 600 multi-family units (commonly 
known as the Element at Stonebridge) on the eastern portion of the request property which 
exceeded the approved residential density of the existing zoning.  Amendment of the permitted 
density in this case is proposed to permit the 600 units approved with the 2014 site plan approval.   
 

A current development proposal would further increase the multi-family residential units 
permitted on the eastern portion of the request property by an additional 100 units to 700 units 
and would permit an additional 500 multi-family residential units, a 200-room hotel with a 15,000 
square foot conference center and 50,000 square feet of retail on the western portion of the 
request property. Amendment to Textual Statement Item IV(A)(3) of zoning approval (Case 
07SN0333) is proposed to permit these additional 680 residential units over the 520 permitted 
with the existing zoning thereby permitting an overall total of 1,200 residential units within the 
Stonebridge development.  This additional development would be required to comply with all 
other conditions of Case 07SN0333 and be comparable in design and quality to Stonebridge. 
 

The request will not alter or exceed the maximum transportation density approved with Case 
07SN0733.  Under the Road Cash Proffer Policy, no road cash proffer will be accepted as the 
property is within a revitalization area. 

 

Page 485 of 563



2  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
PLANNING 

COMMISSION 
APPROVAL 

STAFF 

PLANNING - APPROVAL 

• Allows for increased density to correct the 2014 site plan approval and 
permit the additional multi-family residential units proposed with current 
development 

• Development will maintain the quality design and architecture of the 
existing zoning that provide for a convenient, attractive and harmonious 
community that should enhance the surrounding area 

 

TRANSPORTATION - APPROVAL 
Located within a revitalization area. Under the Road Cash Proffer Policy, no road 
cash proffer will be accepted. 

 
 

 

SUMMARY OF IDENTIFIED ISSUES 

Department Issue 

SCHOOLS 

The Public Facilities Plan recommends that A.M. Davis Elementary 
School be revitalized or replaced post 2020. However, at this time a 
budget has not been developed for the acquisition of land or 
construction of this school facility as recommended in the Plan. 

Page 486 of 563



3  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

Page 487 of 563



4  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

Comprehensive Plan – THE EASTERN MIDLOTHIAN PLAN 
Classification: Regional Mixed Use  

This designation suggests the property is appropriate for a mixture of integrated office, shopping center and light 
industrial uses designed to be compatible with surrounding neighborhoods.  Where appropriate permitted 
residential uses should be high-quality, subsidiary to and integrated within projects. 

 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 

  

Midlothian 
Turnpike 

Commercial uses within 
Stonebridge and Spring 
Rock Green developments 

Chippenham Pkwy 

Multi-family residential – 
The Element at Stonebridge 

Page 488 of 563



5  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Darla Orr (804-717-6533) orrd@chesterfield.gov 

 

Zoning History 
 

Case Number Request 

07SN0733 
Approved 
4/23/2008 

• Rezoning of former Cloverleaf Mall site (83 acres) to Regional Business (C-
4) with Conditional Use to permit multi-family and townhouse uses plus 
Conditional Use Planned Development to permit Neighborhood Business 
(C-2), Residential Townhouse (RTH) plus Conditional Use Planned 
Development to permit exceptions to ordinance requirements 

• A mix use development including a minimum of 400,000 square feet of 
commercial and office uses and a maximum of 520 residential uses 
consisting of condominium and non-condominium multi-family, 
townhomes and detached single family dwellings was planned. 

 

Proposal 
 

Continued development of a mixed use project (commonly known as Stonebridge) is planned.  
Existing zoning (Case 07SN0733) permits 520 residential units, 450,000 square feet of 
commercial/retail and 224,000 square feet of office use on the 83 acres, formerly the Cloverleaf 
Mall site. The site is currently developed for approximately 335,000 square feet of 
commercial/office use and 400 multi-family units.   
 

The subject properties, an 18.2-acre portion of the overall development, are identified in the 
bold black lines on the conceptual plan approved with Case 13PS0159 in January, 2013 below:   

 

Page 489 of 563



6  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

In 2014, a site plan (Case 13PR0232) was approved to permit 600 multi-family units, exceeding 
the approved residential density, on property which included the eastern portion of the request 
property as identified below.   400 of these units have been built in Buildings A – C as shown 
below. 

  
 
  
Amendment of the permitted density in this case is proposed to permit the 80 units approved 
with the 2014 site plan over the allowed 520 units plus an additional 100 units proposed with 
the current proposal on the eastern portion of the request property.  With these additional 
units, the total number of units within the Element at Stonebridge would be 700 units and 
exceeds the density permitted with Case 07SN0330 by 180 units. 
 
On the western portion of the request property (as identified on Page 5), 500 additional multi-
family residential units, a 200-room hotel with a 15,000 square foot conference center and 
50,000 square feet of retail are proposed.  Existing zoning does not limit the square footage for 
permitted commercial uses, so no amendment is necessary for the non-residential component.   
 
Given the proposed additional 500 units on the western portion of the request property plus 
the 180 units (from the Element at Stonebridge) over the permitted 520 units, an amendment 
to Textual Statement Item IV(A)(3) of zoning approval (Case 07SN0333) is proposed to permit 
680 residential units on the request property.  With this amendment, the total overall 
residential units within the Stonebridge development would be 1,200 units.  This additional 
development would be required to comply with all other conditions of Case 07SN0333 and be 
comparable in design and quality to Stonebridge. 
 
 
 
 

Buildings A – C – 
400 multi-family 
residential units 
existing 

• 200 units approved in 
Building D with Case 
13PR0232 for a total of 
600 units – exceeding 520 
units approved with 

 Case 07SN0733 by 80 
units 

• Additional 100 units 
planned with current 
development proposal in 
Building D area 

• Total number of multi-
family units in the 
Element at Stonebridge 
would be 700 units (180 
units over the 520 units 
permitted by existing 
zoning 

  

Page 490 of 563



7  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT 
Staff Contact: Carl Schlaudt (804-318-8674) schlaudtc@chesterfield.gov 

 
 

The project site is located in a revitalization area, consistent with the criteria-based approach of 
Road Cash Proffer Policy Section B.5 (as amended by the Board of Supervisors on April 26, 
2017). The Department of Community Enhancement supports development in revitalization 
areas that represents a substantial improvement above current area conditions. This proposal 
represents a substantial improvement above conditions of older residential development in the 
vicinity of the project site. The Department of Community Enhancement supports the proposal 
as proffered. 
 
 

BUDGET & MANAGEMENT 
Staff Contact: Natalie Spillman (804-318-8767) spillmann@chesterfield.gov 

 

County finance staff is responsible for managing the finances of the County and making 
recommendations to the County Administrator regarding the allocation of available resources 
for the provision of services and capital facilities to serve the citizens of the County.  Finance 
staff will advise the County Administrator if changed economic circumstances require 
adjustments to the County’s budget or capital improvement program.   
 
 
 
 

COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804-748-1037) adamsSt@chesterfield.gov 

 

In 2008, the Board of Supervisors approved a rezoning (Case 07SN0333) on 83 acres.  Textual 
Statement IV.A.5 established a maximum density that limits development to 450,000 square 
feet of shopping center, 224,000 square feet of general office, 350 apartments, 100 
townhomes, and 70 single-family units, or equivalent traffic generation.  This condition would 
allow the Planning Commission to approve a higher density of development.  As noted in Case 
07SN033 staff report, based on the maximum density outlined, development could generate 
approximately 24,200 average daily trips (approximately 1,030 of these trips will occur in the 
morning peak hour and approximately 2,370 trips will occur in the evening peak hour).  
Currently, the approved development on the property is approximately 335,000 square feet of 
shopping center and 600 multi-family dwelling units. 
 
The applicant is requesting to amend Textual Statement IV.A.3 of Case 07SN0333 to increase 
the total number of residential dwelling units from 520 to 1,200. The request will not alter or 
exceed the maximum density established as noted above.  
 
According to the Department of Community Enhancement, the property is located within a 
revitalization area. Under the Road Cash Proffer Policy, no road cash proffer will be accepted 
for development in these areas; therefore, staff supports this request. 
 
 
 

Page 491 of 563



8  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Adam Wilkerson (804-674-2384) adam.wilkerson@vdot.virginia.gov 

 
The applicant is requesting to amend the existing zoning case 07SN0333 Textual Statement 
IV(A)(3) regarding residential unit maximum from 520 dwelling units to 1,200 dwelling units.  
Since the original approved zoning case has a set maximum trip generation, a Traffic Impact 
Analysis (TIA) as required by the Code of Virginia Chapter 527 regulation will not be required, as 
long as the overall trip generation for the site does not exceed the previously approved level.  
In the event that the development exceeds the previously established traffic threshold, then a 
full TIA report will be required.  Documentation detailing the amount of traffic to be generated 
by the proposed site shall be provided to VDOT for review to confirm the projected trip 
generation for the site. 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
Staff Contact: Anthony Batten (804-717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

 

Mission 
 

The mission of Fire and Emergency Medical Services (EMS) is to protect life, property and the 
environment through a comprehensive fire and life safety program that ensures an adequate 
and timely response to emergencies.  

 

Response Times 
 

The proposed development is located in the urban response zone for which Fire & EMS has a 
goal of responding to at least 90% of the calls for service in under seven (7) minutes. Fire and 
EMS is currently unable to meet that goal.  
  

Nearby Fire/EMS Facilities 
 

• The Buford Fire Station, Company Number 9 

• The Forest View Volunteer Rescue Squad 
 

Anticipated Fire & EMS Impacts/Needs 
 

Based on an average of .418 calls per dwelling, it is estimated that this development will 
generate 284 annual calls for Fire/EMS services.   
 

Additional Fire and EMS Comments 
 

When the property is developed, the number of hydrants, quantity of water needed for fire 
protection, and access requirements will be evaluated during the plans review process. 
 

Page 492 of 563



9  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

SCHOOLS 
Staff Contact: Atonja Allen (804-318-8740) atonja_allen@ccpsnet.net 

 

Mission 
 

High performing, high quality public schools contribute to the quality of life and economic 
vitality of the County. The comprehensive plan suggests a greater focus should be placed on 
linking schools with communities by providing greater access, flexible designs and locations that 
better meet the needs of the communities in which they are located.  
 

Capital Improvements 
 

The School Board FY2020 adopted Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) continues to support the 
2013 voter approved school revitalization program that will replace or renovate ten schools and 
construct one new elementary school to add capacity in the Midlothian area of the county.  The 
ten existing facilities that are part of the revitalization program are Beulah Elementary School, 
Crestwood Elementary School, Enon Elementary School, Ettrick Elementary School, Harrowgate 
Elementary School, Matoaca Elementary School, Reams Elementary School, Manchester Middle 
School, Providence Middle School, and Monacan High School.  A replacement Manchester 
Middle School is planned for construction on the existing school site, and the Beulah 
Elementary School, Enon Elementary School, Providence Middle School, and Monacan High 
School projects are complete.  Additional school construction projects include a Matoaca 
Middle School addition on the east campus site, and the new Matoaca Elementary School will 
be constructed on the existing west campus site.  Upon completion of the east campus 
addition, the current west campus building will be demolished and Matoaca Middle School will 
operate as a single, unified campus.  Information on the CIP and School Board approved 
construction projects can be found in the financial section of the CCPS Adopted Budget for 
FY2020. 

 
Anticipated School Impacts 
 Elementary 

(PK – 5) 

Middle  

(6 – 8)  

High  

(9 – 12) 

Total (1) 

Anticipated Student Yield by 

School Type 
67 44 47 158 

 

Schools Currently Serving Area A.M. Davis Providence James River  

 

2019-20 

School Year 

Current Enrollment 739 1,100 1,904 

Design Capacity (2) 780 1,101 2,208 

Enrollment Percent of Design 

Capacity 
95% 100% 86% 

Program Capacity (3) 727 1,152 2,164 

Enrollment Percent of Program 

Capacity 
102% 95% 88% 

Total Number of Trailers  10 0 2 

Number of Classroom Trailers 8 0 2 

Page 493 of 563



10  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

Note: 
(1) Based upon the average number of students per multi-family dwelling unit for each of the school attendance zones 

where the proposal is located. Student Generation Factor (2017) is the actual total number of students by grade level 

divided by the actual total number of housing units by housing type. 
(2) Design capacity is the maximum number of students the building can accommodate based on the Virginia Department 

of Education Standards of Quality and the architectural program design of the existing building including all interior and 

exterior renovations to date and an inventory of all available space.  Design capacity does not include site-based 

initiatives and is thus not subject to frequent change and represents prototypical design capacity using VDOE standards. 
(3) Program capacity is the maximum number of students the building can accommodate based on the Virginia 

Department of Education Standards of Quality and the current school programming that may adjust the number of rooms 

used for core or grade-level classrooms in the overall building design capacity. 
 

Public Facilities Plan 
 

The Public Facilities Plan recommends that A.M. Davis Elementary School be revitalized 
or replaced post 2020. However, at this time a budget has not been developed for the 
acquisition of land or construction of this school facility as recommended in the Plan. 
 

Additional School Comments 
 

This is an amendment to existing zoning case 07SN0333 regarding residential unit 
maximum increase from 520 dwelling units to 1,200 dwelling units. The anticipated 
student yield analysis above is based on the proposed additional 680 dwelling units. 

 
Over time, this case combined with other tentative residential developments, infill 
developments, and approved residential zoning cases in the area may cause these 
schools to reach or exceed their capacity. 
 
 

UTILITIES 

Staff Contact: Matthew Rembold (706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 
 

Existing Water and Wastewater Systems 
 

Utility Type 
Currently 
Serviced 

Size of Closest Existing 
Lines 

Connection Required by County 
Code 

Water No 8” & 12” Yes 

Wastewater No 8” & 12”                                  Yes 
 
 

Additional Utility Comments: 
 

The subject properties are located within the mandatory water and wastewater connection areas 
for new residential and non-residential structures.  The applicant has indicated the use of public 
water and wastewater previously under zoning case 07SN0333.  The receiving wastewater system 
along Pocosham Creek was designed assuming a population density of 10 person per acre for the 
entire sewer shed.  The redevelopment of the former mall into this mixed-use development 
(zoning case 07SN0333) has increased the wastewater generated to a number that exceeds the 
original wastewater system design parameters.  The request to increase the allowable number of 

Page 494 of 563



11  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

dwelling units from 520 to 1,200 within this project’s original boundary will further increase the 
demands on the wastewater collection system. 
  
Case 07SN0333 included a maximum density of 520 residential units along with 450,000 square 
foot of shopping center and 224,000 of general office.  The current developed property has 
completed approximately 400 dwelling units and less than half of the combined 674,000 square 
foot of non-residential development that was proposed in the original case. 
  
The proposed increase of 680 dwelling units and the current vision for a 200-room hotel, 
additional 50,000 square foot of retail, and a 15,000 square foot conference center are all 
competing for the remaining acreage of developable land within this project as highlighted on the 
attached map.   
 
Given the current available land acreage and existing development within the project, it appears 
that the ultimate developability of this site may be more realistically a mixture of 600 to 750 
dwelling units, a 200-room hotel, and 400,000 square foot of non-residential development.  This 
amount of development is viewed by Utilities to have a comparable impact on the county’s water 
and wastewater systems as the original 07SN0333 rezoning case.  Should the project include any 
combination of uses that generate more water and/or wastewater system demands than the 
original 07SN0333 rezoning case, the developer is advised that the Utility Department will require 
a formal hydraulic study be performed by the developer’s engineer to verify that the existing 
water and wastewater systems can adequately handle the additional demands prior to approving 
the construction plans for the development that exceeds the original zoning case’s wastewater 
flows. Any associated capacity improvements needed to serve the demands of the project will be 
the responsibility of the developer.      
 
The Utilities Department supports this case. 

Page 495 of 563



12  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

Page 496 of 563



13  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Rochet (804-748-1028) RochetR@chesterfield.gov 

 
This request will have a minimal impact on these facilities. 
 

 
 

LIBRARIES 
Staff Contact: Jennifer Stevens (804-751-4998) stevensj@chesterfield.gov 

PARKS AND RECREATION 
Staff Contact: Stuart Connock (804-751-4484) ConnockS@chesterfield.gov 

 
To date, no comments have been received. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 497 of 563

mailto:ConnockS@chesterfield.gov
mailto:ConnockS@chesterfield.gov


14  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

CASE HISTORY 

 

Applicant Submittals 
10/18/19 Application submitted 

11/15 and 
11/26/19 

Application amended 

10/10, 
10/17, and 
11/26/19 

Revisions to Textual Statement submitted 

 

 

Planning Commission 
12/17/19 Citizens Comments: 

• Support additional dwelling units; ensure integrated appropriately with 
Starview Village development proposed south and west of property 

• Consideration should be given to pedestrian connections to properties 
east including sidewalk along Midlothian Turnpike and improvements to 
Chippenham/Route 60 interchange 
 

Commission Discussion: 
In response to questions from the Bermuda District Commissioner, the 
applicant confirmed that the increased residential density proposed with 
the additional commercial square footage would be the maximum density 
permitted under the transportation density condition of the existing 
zoning. In response to the Matoaca District Commissioner, the Applicant 
stated that parking should be adequate as it would comply with parking 
standards of the existing zoning.   

 
Recommendation – APPROVAL SUBJECT TO THE CONDITION IN 
ATTACHMENT 1 
 
Motion:  Jones    Second:  Stariha 
AYES:  Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan and Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 

 

Page 498 of 563



15  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

CONDITION 
December 11, 2019 

Note: Both the Planning Commission and staff recommend imposition of the following 
condition.   

 
With the approval of this request, Textual Statement Item IV(A)(3) of Case 07SN0733 shall be 
amended as stated below.  All other conditions of Case 07SN0733 shall remain in force and 
effect. 
 

The total number of residential dwelling units on the property shall not exceed 680 
dwelling units. (P) 

 
 

Page 499 of 563



16  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 ATTACHMENT 2 

APPROVED CONDITIONS – CASE 07SN0333 

 

Page 500 of 563



17  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 
 
  

Page 501 of 563



18  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

  
 
 

Page 502 of 563



19  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

  
 

Page 503 of 563



20  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 
 

  

Page 504 of 563



21  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 505 of 563



22  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

 
 

Page 506 of 563



23  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

  
 

Page 507 of 563



24  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

  
 

Page 508 of 563



25  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 509 of 563



26  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 510 of 563



27  20SN0508-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

Page 511 of 563



Providing a FIRST CHOICE community through excellence in public service 

CASE NUMBER: 20SN0551 
APPLICANTS:  Jennifer and Michael Kielb 

 

 

CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, 
VIRGINIA 

MIDLOTHIAN DISTRICT 
 

STAFF’S ANALYSIS 
AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
0.4 Acre – 2302 Cranbeck Circle 

Board of Supervisors (BOS) Public Hearing:  
 JANUARY 22, 2020 

BOS Time Remaining:  

              365 DAYS 

Applicant’s Contact: 
MICHAEL KIELB (804-310-1510) 

Planning Department Case Manager:  
 HAROLD ELLIS (804-768-7592) 

 

REQUEST 
Conditional use planned development to permit encroachment of a deck into a rear yard buffer in a 
Residential (R-12) District.     
Notes:    

A. Conditions may be imposed or the property owner may proffer conditions. 
B. Conditions and an Exhibit are located in Attachments 1 and 2. 

 

SUMMARY 
The applicant is proposing to replace an existing deck that encroaches into a required buffer along a 
secondary roadway (Cranbeck Road).  A conditional use planned development is requested to 
replace the existing deck with a new deck in the existing location, with a smaller footprint.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

APPROVAL 

STAFF 

 APPROVAL 
• Does not impact continuity of existing buffer area due to existing deck 
• Similar requests have been approved within the area 
• Reduces overall encroachment into the buffer  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 512 of 563



2  20SN0551-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 513 of 563



3  20SN0551-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

Comprehensive Plan 
Classification: SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL II  

 

The designation suggests the property is appropriate for residential use with a maximum of 2.0 – 4.0 
dwellings per acre.  

  

 
 

Surrounding Land Uses and Development 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

W. Huguenot Rd 

Cranbeck Rd 

Cranbeck Cir 

Single-family uses- 
Cranbrook 

Grace Brethren Church 

Page 514 of 563



4  20SN0551-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

PLANNING 
Staff Contact: Harold Ellis (804-768-7592) ellish@chesterfield.gov 

 
Zoning History 
 

Case Number Request 

84SN0015 
Approved 
(3/1984) 

• Subdivision consisting of 34 single-family lots.   
• Requirement for 50-foot buffer along Cranbeck Road. 
• Buffer recorded with subdivision plat noted to remain in a natural state 
• Per ordinance, uses permitted within a buffer would not include buildings 

 
Proposal 
 

The applicant is proposing to replace an existing deck, within a buffer. Attachment 2 of this 
report provides images of the existing deck and proposed elevations of the replacement deck.  
The subject property is located within the Cranbrook subdivision, recorded in 1984 (see 
subdivision plat excerpt at bottom of page).  At the time of approval, the plat established a 50-
foot buffer along the rear property boundary abutting Cranbeck Road.  The area within this 
buffer was to remain in a natural undisturbed state.  The buffer was recorded within the 
boundaries of privately owned lots and not within common or open space.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 515 of 563



5  20SN0551-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

Buffer Exception 
 

In August 2019, the applicant contacted the Planning Department relative to replacement of an 
existing deck within the rear buffer.  Both the existing and proposed replacement decks 
encroach approximately 6-feet into the 50-foot buffer which abuts Cranbeck Road.  Given that 
buildings are not permitted within buffers, relief to permit the encroachment is requested 
through a Conditional Use Planned Development.  The existing deck is approximately 300 
square feet and the new deck is approximately 275 square feet.  This results in an 
approximately 25 square foot reduction in encroachment into the buffer. 
 
Cranbeck Road is classified as a secondary roadway, and a privacy fence extends along the 
subdivision’s entire frontage. The fence, in combination with the existing vegetation, assists in 
buffering the residential use from the roadway. 
  
Staff is supportive of the proposal.  Encroachment of the existing deck does not reduce the 
effectiveness of the buffer, or adversely impact the buffer and the separation of residential lots 
and the abutting roadway.  Further, the new deck as proposed, will result in a smaller footprint 
than the existing deck, reducing the overall encroachment into the buffer.   
  
Staff believes the conditions listed in Attachment 1 and summarized in the chart below assist in 
ensuring additional changes are not made to the new deck, and existing screening is 
maintained.   
 

General Overview 
Requirements Details 

Use and location Deck is constructed as depicted in Exhibit A 
Condition 1 

Fence 6-foot privacy fence located along rear property boundary                                  
Condition 2 

 
 
 

COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Steve Adams (804) 748-1037 adamsSt@chesterfield.gov  

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Staff Contact: Willie Gordon (804-674-2907) willie.gordon@vdot.virginia.gov  

FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 
Staff Contact:  Anthony Batten (804-717-6167) battena@chesterfield.gov 

UTILITIES 
Staff Contact: Matt Rembold (804-706-7616) remboldm@chesterfield.gov 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING 
Staff Contact: Rebeccah Ward (804-748-1028) wardr@chesterfield.gov 

 

The proposal will not impact these facilities. 

Page 516 of 563



6  20SN0551-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

CASE HISTORY 

 
Applicant Submittals 

10/07/19 Application submitted 
 

Planning Commission 
12/17/19 Citizen Comments: 

No citizens spoke to the request. 
 
Recommendation  –  APPROVAL SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS IN 
ATTACHMENT 1. 
 
Motion: Jones   Second: Freye 
AYES: Jackson, Freye, Jones, Sloan, and Stariha 

The Board of Supervisors on Wednesday, January 22, 2020, beginning at 6:00 p.m., will 
consider this request. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 517 of 563



7  20SN0551-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

CONDITIONS 

Note: The following conditions are recommended by both the Planning Commission and Staff. 

 
1. Use and Location.  The proposed deck, as depicted on Exhibit A, shall be permitted to be 

constructed within the 50-foot buffer.  No additional structures or improvements shall 
be permitted within the buffer.  (P) 
 

2. Fence. The existing privacy fence shall be maintained in a location generally adjacent to 
the rear property boundary to reduce the visibility of the deck from Cranbeck Road. (P) 
 

Page 518 of 563



8  20SN0551-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT 

 
 ATTACHMENT 2 

EXHIBIT A 
November 20, 2019 

 
            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 519 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 17.A.
 

Subject:
To Consider the Exercise of Eminent Domain for the Acquisition of Permanent Sewer Easements, a Water 
Easement, and Temporary Construction Easements for the Johnson Creek Force Main Project
 
Board Action Requested:
Authorize the County Attorney to proceed with eminent domain for the acquisition of permanent sewer 
easements, a water easement, and temporary construction easements for the Johnson Creek Force Main Project, 
including the filing of certificates so construction may begin prior to eminent domain proceedings.
 
Summary of Information:
Staff has made bonafide but ineffective efforts to acquire permanent sewer easements, a water easement, and 
temporary construction easements for the Johnson Creek Force Main Project. Offers have been made for 
easements across the following properties: 2127 Burgess Road, Joshua C. Smith; $2,790.00; 2106, 2108, 2112, 
2124, 2130, 2134, 2138 Burgess Road, John B. and Rebecca S. Bishop,$3,290.00; 2050 Burgess Road, Melissa 
D. Walker, $450.00; 2501 Bermuda Hundred Road & 13911 Enon Church Road, Enon, LLC, $2,900.00; 1901 
Bermuda Hundred Road, Richmond Memorial Parks, Inc., $680.00; 1524 Irvenway Lane, James R. and Phyllis 
B. Carpenter, $120.00; 1601 Bermuda Hundred Road, G. Dallas Coons Estate, $2,025.00; 2400 E. Hundred 
Road, Josephine K. Nye, et al, heirs of H. M. Frazier, $1,675.00.  These offers have not been accepted.  Staff 
will continue to negotiate with these owners in an effort to reach an agreement.

Approval recommended.

District: Bermuda
 
Attachments:
1. Johnson Creek FM Condemnations
2. Johnson Creek Plats 1-14
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 520 of 563



Page 521 of 563



¹º

Æc

G

BURGESS RD

BERMUDA HUNDRED RD

COLE ST

RIVERMONT RD

FOREST GLENN DR

N CT

GIMBEL DR
SIR PEYTON DR

HUBERT LN

CORNWALL LN

PE
RK

IN
SO

N DR

BOLLING

S HACKBERRY

RD

CT

ALBERTA CT

BARBERRY LN

AUSTIN RD

ENON
CH

UR
CH

RD

 VALLEY

IRVENWAY LN

 DR

 WALNUT DR

 DR

 HEATHER

 STONE

 MAYFAIR

 TERMINAL

STARPINE LN

COBBS SPRUCE AVE

JEFFERSON AVE

TRANOR AVE

BE RMU
DA

AV
E

CENTRALAVE

FL
OR

EN
CE

AV
E

 AVE

STATE AVE

FO
RE

ST
GL

EN
N CIR

AV E

EXIT 15
 N 

EN
ON

 C
HU

RC
H R

D

 DR

 PKWYGOLDEN

GARDE N C IR

HACKBERRY RD
RIVER HAVEN AVE

 CT

RIV
ER

HAVEN
 BLVD

AV
E

: 1 inch = 917 feet [ SnowD 01/06/2020 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
PUBLIC HEARING:  Consider the Exercise of Eminent Domain
for the Acquisition of Permanent Sewer and Water Easements

and Temporary Construction Easements for the 
Johnson Creek Force Main Project

2127 Burgess Rd2106, 2108, 2112, 2124, 2130, 2134, 2138 Burgess Rd

2050 Burgess Rd

2501 Bermuda Hundred Rd
3911 Enon Church Rd

1901 Bermuda Hundred Rd
1524 Irvenway Ln

1601 Bermuda Hundred Rd

 2400 E. Hundred Road

Page 522 of 563



Page 523 of 563



Page 524 of 563



Page 525 of 563



Page 526 of 563



Page 527 of 563



Page 528 of 563



Page 529 of 563



Page 530 of 563



Page 531 of 563



Page 532 of 563



Page 533 of 563



Page 534 of 563



Page 535 of 563



Page 536 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 17.B.
 

Subject:
To Consider the Conveyance of County Property at 2900 Bermuda Hundred Road to the Economic 
Development Authority of the County of Chesterfield
 
Board Action Requested:
Approve the conveyance of approximately 2.2 acres of county property at 2900 Bermuda Hundred Road to the 
Economic Development Authority of the County of Chesterfield and authorize the Chairman of the Board and 
County Administrator to execute the deed.
 
Summary of Information:
In an effort to improve the development potential of the industrial site located on Bermuda Hundred Road, the 
EDA is requesting ownership of a 2.2 acre parcel of county property. Staff recommends approval of the 
conveyance of this property subject to dedication of right of way for a replacement access to the Brown and 
Williamson conservation area. A public hearing is required to convey county property.
 
Approval is recommended.
 
District:  Bermuda
 
Attachments:
1. co to eda sketch
2. CO to EDA Plat
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 537 of 563



DISCOVERY DR

 BERMUDA HUNDRED RD

: 1 inch = 500 feet [ dutyj 01/09/2020 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
PUBLIC HEARING: To Consider the Conveyance 

of County Property at 2900 Bermuda Hundred Road
to the Economic Development Authority of the County 

of Chesterfield

Allied Rd

Conveyance of 2.2 Acres +/-

Page 538 of 563



Page 539 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 17.C.
 

Subject:
To Consider the Exercise of Eminent Domain for the Acquisition of a Permanent Water Easement for the 
Cowan Road Waterline Improvements Project
 
Board Action Requested:
Authorize the County Attorney to proceed with eminent domain for the acquisition of a permanent water 
easement for the Cowan Road Waterline Improvements Project including the filing of a certificate so 
construction may begin prior to eminent domain proceedings.
 
Summary of Information:
Staff has reached an agreement for the acquisition of a permanent water easement across the property at 8025 
Stiles Road; however, it is necessary to proceed with eminent domain due to the inability to obtain consent 
from the owners' lender.

Approval is recommended.

DISTRICT: Midlothian

 
Attachments:
1. Vic Map - Cowan Rd Improvements Parrish
2. Plat
 
Preparer: John Harmon, Real Property Manager
  
Approved By:

Page 540 of 563



CO
WAN

RD
SYKES RD

STILES CT

STILES RD

BUFO RD SQUARE

WHITWORTH RD

HOLLY GROVE LN: 1 inch = 167 feet [ SnowD 01/07/2020 ]

VICINITY SKETCH
Consider the Exercise of Eminent Domain for the Acquisition of
a Permanent Water Easement for the Cowan Road Waterline

Improvements Project

8025 Stiles Road

Page 541 of 563



Page 542 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 17.D.
 

Subject:
To Consider Code Amendment Relative to Upper Swift Creek Tree Preservation 
 
Board Action Requested:
Following a public hearing adopt attached code amendment.
 
Summary of Information:
The Planning Commission following a public hearing on November 19,2019 by unanimous vote approved the 
attached amendment. The proposed amendment would make changes to the standards related to the mandatory 
tree canopy preservation in the Upper Swift Creek Watershed (USCW).  The changes affect where and how 
such canopy is provided as well as the percentages of how much is required 

In part this amendment addresses concerns related to current methods of canopy preservation within the 
developments and provides standards that help enhance and ensure the continued benefits of tree canopy in the 
water quality of the watershed. This amendment would provide that the required canopy be provided in 
designated areas located within open space, easements (street trees) or specified tree conservation areas if 
offsite.  To offset potential impact of changes the amendment would permit, under certain conditions, lot size 
reduction of up to twenty percent for lots backing to designated canopy preservation areas or Resource 
Protection Areas located in open space. In addition, the amendment would require the use of street trees and 
permit such trees to count towards required canopy. 

The authority for tree canopy preservation requirements reside in the state code and our ordinance must comply 
with its standards. Last year the state code was amended to provide preservation requirements for cemeteries 
and other changes related to planting standards. As part of this amendment the state code changes are addressed 
as well as existing canopy preservation provisions that the zoning ordinance did not include relative to sites 
zoned for commercial or industrial and residential developments of 20 units per acre or more. 
 
Attachments:
1. Chapter 19.1 PH CBPA Tree Preservation Ordinance Amendments BOS no wm
 
Preparer: Andrew Gillies, Director of Planning
  

Page 543 of 563



Approved By:

Page 544 of 563



 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE COUNTY OF CHESTERFIELD, 

1997, AS AMENDED, BY AMENDING AND REENACTING SECTIONS 19.1-61, 19.1-66, 19.1-71, 

19.1-76, 19.1-81, 19.1-92, 19.1-97, 19.1-246, 19.1-247, 19.1-249, 19.1-250, 19.1-252, 19.1-306 & 

 19.1-545 OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE RELATIVE TO UPPER SWIFT CREEK TREE 

PRESERVATION  

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Supervisors of Chesterfield County: 

 

(1) That Sections 19.1-61, 19.1-66, 19.1-71, 19.1-76, 19.1-81, 19.1-92, 19.1-97, 19.1-246, 19.1-247, 

19.1-249, 19.1-250, 19.1-252, 19.1-306 & 19.1-545 of the Code of the County of Chesterfield, 1997, as 

amended, are amended and re-enacted, to read as follows: 

 

Chapter 19.1 

 

ZONING 

 

 

 

OOO 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 545 of 563



 

 

 

 

 

Sec. 19.1-61.  Required Conditions R-88 District. 

 

In addition to the other requirements of this chapter, the 

conditions specified in this section shall be met in an R-88 

District. 

 

A. Lot and Building Standards. 

  Table 19.1-61.A. Required Conditions R-88 District 

A.  Lot Standards 

1. Lot area and width   

a. Area (square feet)  88,000[1][2] 

            b. Width (feet)  

1) Fronting on major arterial 300 

2) Fronting on other road  150 

2. Lot coverage (maximum %) 20 

B. Road Frontage for lots intended for dwelling purposes 

(feet) 

1. Family subdivision lot  15 

2. Other lots[3]   

a. Permanent cul-de-sac 30 

b. Radius of a loop street  30 

c. Other roads[4] 50 

C.  Principal Building Setbacks (feet)[5] 

1. Front yard[6]  

a. Non cul-de-sac 75 

b. Permanent cul-de-sac  25 

2. Interior side yard  40 

3. Corner side yard   

a. Through lot, lot back to back 

with another corner lot, or lot 

backing to open space or 

common area[7] 

40 

b. Other lot  75 

4. Rear yard   

a. Non through lot 50 

b. Through lot  75 

D. Principal Building Heights (maximum)[8] 

1. Midlothian Core and  

Chester Corridor East Special 

Design Districts 

Lesser of 2.5 

stories or 30 feet   

   Notes for Table 19.1-61.A. 

 

  [1]  For lots not having direct 

access onto a major arterial 

road, lot area may be reduced to 

65,340 square feet or 43,560 

square feet with use of public 

water and wastewater. If lot 

area is reduced, the maximum 

number of lots permitted shall 

be based upon the calculation 

as shown in Figure 19.1-61.A. 

 

  [2]  Subject to the provisions of 

Chapter 12 relative to use of 

private onsite water and 

wastewater facilities, the area of 

a lot which shares a common 

boundary with a buffer, or 

bikeway or tree canopy 

preservation area may be 

reduced in accordance with Sec. 

19.1-306. 

 

  [3] For flag lots, road frontage may 

be reduced to 30 feet. 

 

  [4]  Frontage on the terminus of a 

stub street does not meet the 

requirements for road frontage 

unless through the preliminary 

plat review process it is 

determined that extension of 

the stub street is not needed to 

serve future development. 

 

  [5]  Setbacks may be impacted by 

Buffer, Setbacks --Generally, 

Permitted Yard Encroachments 

for Principal Buildings, 

Floodplain, Chesapeake Bay or 

Upper Swift Creek Watershed 

regulations. 

 

  [6]  Minimum setbacks shall be 

increased where necessary to 

obtain the required lot width at 

the front building line. 

 

  [7] Open space or common area 

shall be a minimum of 15 feet 

wide for the entire length of the 

rear property line. 

 

  [8]  Height limits are subject to 

Article IV, Division 2. 

Page 546 of 563



 

 

 

 

 

 

OOO   

2. Other  
Lesser of 3 stories 

or 40 feet 

E. Accessory Building Requirements 
Subject to Section 

19.1-304 

Page 547 of 563



 

 

Sec. 19.1-66.  Required Conditions R-40 District. 

In addition to the other requirements of this chapter, the conditions specified in this section shall be 

met in an R-40 District. 

 

A. Lot and Building Standards. 

 

Table 19.1-66. A. Required Conditions R-40 District 

A.  Lot Standards 

1. Lot area and width   

a. Area (square feet)  40,000[1][2] 

b. Width (feet) 150 

2. Lot coverage (maximum %) 20 

B. Road Frontage for lots intended for dwelling purposes 

(feet)[3] 

1. Family subdivision lot  15 

2. Other lots  

a. Permanent cul-de-sac 30 

b. Radius of a loop street  30 

c. Other roads[4] 50 

C. Principal Building Setbacks (feet)[5] 

1. Front yard[6]   

a. Non cul-de-sac 60 

b.  Permanent cul-de-sac  25 

2. Interior side yard  20 

3. Corner side yard   

a. Lots recorded on, or after, 4/1/1974  

1) Through lot, lot back to back 

with another corner lot, or lot 

backing to open space or 

common area[7]  

30 

2) Other lot  55 

b. Lots recorded prior to 4/1/1974 30 

4. Rear yard   

a. Non through lot 50 

b. Through lot  60 

D. Principal Building Heights (maximum)[8] 

1. Midlothian Core and  

Chester Corridor East Special 

Design Districts 

Lesser of 2.5 

stories or 30 feet   

2. Other  
Lesser of 3 stories 

or 40 feet 

E.  Accessory Building Requirements 
Subject to Section 

19.1-304 

OOO 

      Notes for Table 19.1-66.A. 
 

  [1] Lot area requirements may 

be impacted by the 

availability of public 

utilities.  Refer to Chapter 

12. 

 

  [2] The area of a lot which 

shares a common 

boundary with a buffer,  or 

bikeway or tree canopy 

preservation area may be 

reduced in accordance with 

Sec. 19.1-306. 

 

  [3] For flag lots, road frontage 

may be reduced to 30 feet. 

 

  [4] Frontage on the terminus 

of a stub street does not 

meet the requirements for 

road frontage unless 

through the preliminary 

plat review process it is 

determined that extension 

of the stub street is not 

needed to serve future 

development. 

 

  [5] Setbacks may be impacted 

by Buffer, Setbacks --

Generally, Permitted Yard 

Encroachments for 

Principal Buildings, 

Floodplain, Chesapeake 

Bay or Upper Swift Creek 

Watershed regulations. 

 

  [6] Minimum setbacks shall 

be increased where 

necessary to obtain the 

required lot width at the 

front building line.  

 

  [7] Open space or common 

area shall be a minimum of 

15 feet wide for the entire 

length of the rear property 

line. 

 

  [8] Height limits are subject to 

Article IV, Division 2. 

Page 548 of 563



 

 

 

Sec. 19.1-71.  Required Conditions R-25 District. 

In addition to the other requirements of this chapter, the 

conditions specified in this section shall be met in an R-25 

District. 

 

A. Lot and Building Standards. 

 

Table 19.1-71.A. Required Conditions R-25 District 

A. Lot Standards 

1. Lot area and width   

a. Area (square feet)  25,000[1][2] 

b. Width (feet) 120 

2. Lot coverage (maximum %) 25 

B. Road Frontage for lots intended for dwelling purposes 

(feet)[3]  

1. Family subdivision lot  15 

2. Other lots  

a. Permanent cul-de-sac 30 

b. Radius of a loop street  30 

c. Other roads[4] 50 

C. Principal Building Setbacks (feet)[5] 

1. Front yard[6] 

a. Non cul-de-sac 50 

b. Permanent cul-de-sac  25 

2. Interior side yard  15 

3. Corner side yard   

a. Through lot, back to back with 

another corner lot, or lot backing to 

open space or common area[7] 

25 

b. Other lot 45 

4. Rear yard   

a. Non through lot 40 

b. Through lot  50 

D. Principal Building Heights (maximum)[8] 

1. Midlothian Core and Chester 

Corridor East Special Design 

Districts 

Lesser of 2.5 

stories or 30 feet 

2. Other  
Lesser of 3 stories 

or 40 feet 

E. Accessory Building Requirements 
Subject to Section 

19.1-304 

 

OOO 

Notes for Table 19.1-71.A. 
 

[1] Lot area requirements may 

be impacted by the 

availability of public 

utilities.  Refer to Chapter 

12. 

 

[2]  The area of a lot which 

shares a common boundary 

with a buffer, or bikeway or 

tree canopy preservation 

area may be reduced in 

accordance with Sec. 19.1-

306. 

 

[3] For flag lots, road frontage 

may be reduced to 30 feet. 

 

[4] Frontage on the terminus of 

a stub street does not meet 

the requirements for road 

frontage unless through the 

preliminary plat review 

process it is determined that 

extension of the stub street 

is not needed to serve 

future development. 

 

[5]  Setbacks may be impacted 

by Buffer, Setbacks --

Generally, Permitted Yard 

Encroachments for 

Principal Buildings, 

Floodplain, Chesapeake 

Bay or Upper Swift Creek 

Watershed regulations. 

 

[6]  Minimum setbacks shall be 

increased where necessary 

to obtain the required lot 

width at the front building 

line.  

 

[7]  Open space or common 

area shall be a minimum of 

15 feet wide for the entire 

length of the rear property 

line. 

 

[8] Height limits are subject to 

Article IV, Division 2. 

Page 549 of 563



 

 

Sec. 19.1-76.  Required Conditions R-15 District.  

 

In addition to the other requirements of this chapter, the conditions specified in this section shall be 

met in an R-15 District. 

 

A. Lot and Building Standards. 

Table 19.1-76.A.  Required Conditions R-15 District 

A. Lot Standards 

1. Lot area and width   

a. Area (square feet)  15,000[1][2] 

b. Width (feet) 100 

2. Lot coverage (maximum %) 30 

B. Road Frontage for lots intended for dwelling purposes 

(feet)[3] 

1. Family subdivision lot  15 

2. Other lots  

a. Permanent cul-de-sac 30 

b. Radius of a loop street  30 

c. Other roads[4] 50 

C. Principal Building Setbacks (feet)[5] 

1. Front yard[6]  

a. Non cul-de-sac 40 

b. Permanent cul-de-sac  25 

2. Interior side yard   

a. Lots recorded after 12/11/1945 15 

b. Lots recorded on, or prior to, 12/11/1945 10 

3. Corner side yard   

a. Lots recorded on, or after,  4/1/1974  

1) Through lot, lot back to back with 

another corner lot, or lot backing to 

open space or common area[7] 

20 

2) Other lot  35 

b. Lots recorded prior to 4/1/1974 20 

4. Rear yard   

a. Non through lot 25 

b. Through lot 40 

D. Principal Building Heights (maximum)[8] 

1. Midlothian Core and Chester 

Corridor East Special Design 

Districts 

Lesser of 2.5 stories 

or 30 feet   

2.   

3. Other  
Lesser of 3 stories 

or 40 feet 

E. Accessory Building Requirements 
Subject to Section 

19.1-304 

Notes for Table 19.1-76.A. 

 

[1] Lot area requirements 

may be impacted by the 

availability of public 

utilities.  Refer to 

Chapter12. 

 

[2] The area of a lot which 

shares a common 

boundary with a buffer, 

or bikeway or tree canopy 

preservation area may be 

reduced in accordance 

with Sec. 19.1-306. 

 

[3] For flag lots, road 

frontage may be reduced 

to 30 feet. 

 

[4] Frontage on the terminus 

of a stub street does not 

meet the requirements for 

road frontage unless 

through the preliminary 

plat review process it is 

determined that extension 

of the stub street is not 

needed to serve future 

development. 

 

[5]  Setbacks may be 

impacted by Buffer, 

Setbacks --Generally, 

Permitted Yard 

Encroachments for 

Principal Buildings, 

Floodplain, Chesapeake 

Bay or Upper Swift 

Creek Watershed 

regulations. 

 

[6]  Minimum setbacks shall 

be increased where 

necessary to obtain the 

required lot width at the 

front building line.  

 

[7] Open space or common 

area shall be a minimum 

of 15 feet wide for the 

entire length of the rear 

property line. 

 

[8]  Height limits are subject 

to Article IV, Division 2. 

Page 550 of 563



 

 

OOO 

Sec. 19.1-81.  Required Conditions R-12 District. 

 

In addition to the other requirements of this chapter, the conditions specified in this section shall be 

met in an R-12 District. 

 

A. Lot and Building Standards. 

 

Table 19.1-81.A. Required Conditions R-12 District 

A. Lot Standards 

1. Lot area and width  

a. Area (square feet)  12,000[1][2] 

b. Width (feet) 90 

2. Lot coverage (maximum %) 30 

B. Road Frontage for lots intended for dwelling purposes 

(feet)[3]  

1. Family subdivision lot  15 

2. Other lots  

a. Permanent cul-de-sac 30 

b. Radius of a loop street  30 

c. Other roads[4] 50 

C. Principal Building Setbacks (feet)[5] 

1. Front yard[6]  

a. Non cul-de-sac 35 

b. Permanent cul-de-sac  25 

2. Interior side yard  10 

3. Corner side yard   

a. Through lot, lot back to back with 

another corner lot, or lot backing to 

open space or common area[7] 

20 

b. Other lot  30 

4. Rear yard   

a. Non through lot 25 

b. Through lot  30 

D. Principal Building Heights (maximum)[8] 

1. Midlothian Core and Chester 

Corridor East Special Design 

Districts 

Lesser of 2.5 

stories or 30 feet   

2. Other  
Lesser of 3 stories 

or 40 feet 

E. Accessory Building Requirements 
Subject to Section 

19.1-304 

 

 

 

Notes for Table 19.1-81.A. 
 

[1] Lot area requirements may be 

impacted by the availability of 

public utilities.  Refer to 

Chapter 12.  

 

[2] The area of a lot which shares 

a common boundary with a 

buffer, or bikeway or tree 

canopy preservation area may 

be reduced in accordance with 

Sec. 19.1-306. 

 

[3] For flag lots, road frontage 

may be reduced to 30 feet. 

 

[4] Frontage on the terminus of a 

stub street does not meet the 

requirements for road frontage 

unless through the preliminary 

plat review process it is 

determined that extension of 

the stub street is not needed to 

serve future development. 

 

[5] Setbacks may be impacted by 

Buffer, Setbacks --Generally, 

Permitted Yard 

Encroachments for Principal 

Buildings, Floodplain, 

Chesapeake Bay or Upper 

Swift Creek Watershed 

regulations. 

 

[6] Minimum setbacks shall be 

increased where necessary to 

obtain the required lot width at 

the front building line.  

 

[7] Open space or common area 

shall be a minimum of 15 feet 

wide for the entire length of 

the rear property line. 

 

[8] Height limits are subject to 

Article IV, Division 2. 

Page 551 of 563



 

 

OOO 
 

 

Sec. 19.1-92.  Required Conditions R-9 District. 

 

In addition to the other requirements of this chapter, the conditions specified in this section shall be 

met in an R-9 District. 

 

A.  Lot and Building Standards.   

 

Table. 19.1-92.A. Required Conditions R-9 District 

A. Lot Standards 

1. Lot area and width  

a. Area (square feet)  9,000[1][2] 

b. Width (feet) 75 

2. Lot coverage (maximum %) 30 

B. Road Frontage for lots intended for dwelling purposes 

(feet)[3] 

1. Family subdivision lot  15 

2. Other lots  

a. Permanent cul-de-sac 30 

b. Radius of a loop street  30 

c. Other roads[4] 50 

C. Principal Building Setbacks (feet)[5] 

1. Front yard[6]  

a. Non cul-de-sac 30 

b. Permanent cul-de-sac  25 

2. Interior side yard  7.5 

3. Corner side yard   

a. Through lot, lot back to back with 

another corner lot, or lot backing to 

open space or common area[7] 

15 

b. Other lot  25 

4. Rear yard   

a. Non through lot 25 

b. Through lot  30 

D. Principal Building Heights (maximum)[8] 

1. Midlothian Core and Chester 

Corridor East Special Design 

Districts 

Lesser of 2.5 stories 

or 30 feet   

2. Other  
Lesser of 3 stories 

or 40 feet 

E. Accessory Building Requirements 
Subject to Section 

19.1-304 

Notes for Table 19.1-92.A. 
 

[1] Lot area requirements may be 

impacted by the availability of 

public utilities.  Refer to 

Chapter 12.  

 

[2]  The area of a lot which shares a 

common boundary with a 

buffer, or bikeway or tree 

canopy preservation area may 

be reduced in accordance with 

Sec. 19.1-306. 

 

[3] For flag lots, road frontage may 

be reduced to 30 feet. 

 

[4]  Frontage on the terminus of a 

stub street does not meet the 

requirements for road frontage 

unless through the preliminary 

plat review process it is 

determined that extension of the 

stub street is not needed to serve 

future development. 

 

[5]  Setbacks may be impacted by 

Buffer, Setbacks --Generally, 

Permitted Yard Encroachments 

for Principal Buildings, 

Floodplain, Chesapeake Bay or 

Upper Swift Creek Watershed 

regulations. 

 

[6] Minimum setbacks shall be 

increased where necessary to 

obtain the required lot width at 

the front building line.  

 

[7] Open space or common area 

shall be a minimum of 15 feet 

wide for the entire length of the 

rear property line. 

 

[8]  Height limits are subject to 

Article IV, Division 2. 

Page 552 of 563



 

 

Sec. 19.1-97.  Required Conditions R-7 District. 

 

In addition to the other requirements of this chapter, the conditions specified in this section shall be 

met in an R-7 District. 

 

A. Lot and Building Standards. 

Table 19.1-97.A. Required Conditions R-7 District 

A. Lot Standards 

1. Lot area and width for lots recorded prior to 1/1/1989 which received tentative plat 

approval prior to 11/13/1985 and such plat has been properly renewed. 

a. Area (square feet)  7,000[1] 

b. Width (feet) 50 

2. Lot area and width for lots where tentative approval is received on or after 11/13/1985 

a. Area (square feet)  9,000[1][2] 

b. Width (feet)  75 

3. Lot coverage (maximum %) 30 

B. Road Frontage for lots intended for dwelling purposes (feet)[3] 

1. Family subdivision lot  15 

2. Other lots  

a. Permanent cul-de-sac 30 

b. Radius of a loop street  30 

c. Other roads[4] 50 

C. Principal Building Setbacks (feet)[5] 

1. Front yard except for Ettrick Special Design District[6][7] 

a. Non cul-de-sac 30 

b. Permanent cul-de-sac  25 

2. Interior side yard   

a. Lots recorded after 12/11/1945 7.5 

b. Lots recorded on, or prior to, 12/11/1945 5 

3. Corner side yard   

a. Lots recorded on, or after, 4/1/1974  

1) Through lot, lot back to back with another corner lot, or lot 

backing to open space or common area[8] 
15 

2) Other lot 25 

b. Lots recorded prior to 4/1/1974 15 

4. Rear yard   

a. Non through lot 25 

b. Through lot[9] 30 

D. Principal Building Heights (maximum)[10] 

1. Midlothian Core and Chester Corridor East Special 

Design Districts 
Lesser of 2.5 stories or 30 feet   

2. Other Lesser of 3 stories or 40 feet 

E. Accessory Building Requirements Subject to Section 19.1-304 

Page 553 of 563



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

Notes for Table 19.1-97.A. 

[1] Lot area requirements may be impacted by the availability of public utilities.  

Refer to Chapter12.  

[2] The area of a lot which shares a common boundary with a buffer, or bikeway or 

tree canopy preservation area may be reduced in accordance with Sec. 19.1-306. 

[3] For flag lots, road frontage may be reduced to 30 feet. 

[4] Frontage on the terminus of a stub street does not meet the requirements for road 

frontage unless through the preliminary plat review process it is determined that 

extension of the stub street is not needed to serve future development. 

[5] Setbacks may be impacted by Buffer, Setbacks--Generally, Permitted Yard 

Encroachments for Principal Buildings, Floodplain, Chesapeake Bay or Upper 

Swift Creek Watershed regulations. 

[6] For lots located in Ettrick Special Design District: 

• Between contiguous developed lots, front yard setback may be reduced to the 

least front yard setback of any principal building on any adjacent lot; or 

• For other developed lots, front yard setback may be reduced to the front yard 

setback of any principal building on the same side of the street and within 200 

feet of the lot.   

[7] Minimum setbacks shall be increased where necessary to obtain the required lot 

width at the front building line. 

[8] Open space or common area shall be a minimum of 15 feet wide for the entire 

length of the rear property line. 

[9] For lots located in Ettrick Special Design District:  

• Between contiguous developed lots, through yard setback may be reduced to 

the least through  yard setback of any principal building on any adjacent lot; 

or 

• For other developed lots, through yard setback may be reduced to the through 

yard setback of any principal building on the same side of the street and within 

200 feet of the lot.  

[10] Height limits are subject to Article IV, Division 2.  

Page 554 of 563



 

 

OOO 

Sec. 19.1-246.  Landscape Plan Requirements. 

 

Landscape plans shall be submitted to comply with the requirements of this chapter. The director of 

planning may allow the phasing of landscape installation at the time of plan review.  

OOO 

 

B. Detailed Landscape Plan. Unless otherwise provided, upon completion of grading or 

construction activity, if it is determined that  the quality of remaining trees, slopes, drainage or 

other issues have impacted the landscaping as shown on the conceptual plan, Aa detailed plan shall 

be submitted for approval prior to the release of a temporary occupancy permit or recordation of a 

subdivision final plat. Detailed landscape plans shall be drawn to scale and show the following 

information:   

 

o1. information as required on a conceptual plan; 

o2. plant species and sizes for each plant type; and  

o3. details, notes and plan specific requirements.  

 

C. Upper Swift Creek Tree Canopy Plans.  Within the Upper Swift Creek Watershed, where a 

minimum tree canopy is required, the following shall be submitted:  

 

1. Master Tree Canopy Plan.  Preliminary subdivision plats and any development having 

multiple phases or sections shall include a tree canopy master plan for review and approval 

with initial submittal.  The tree canopy master plan shall serve as a guide to be followed for 

each site and construction plan, and shall be updated during the development of the overall 

project. In conjunction with initial subdivision plat submission, a tree canopy master plan shall 

be submitted to the planning department for approval for the overall development. The plan 

shall serve as a guide for the preparation of the required detailed plans. Any revisions to the 

plan during the development shall be submitted to the planning department for approval. The 

plan shall graphically delineate areas to be set aside to satisfy tree canopy requirements and 

the means by which such requirements will be satisfied. For subdivision plats which received 

approval prior to December 11, 2013 and which required compliance with tree canopy 

requirements for each subdivision section, then, upon submission of a tree canopy master plan, 

the director of planning may grant approval to comply with tree canopy requirements on an 

overall subdivision basis.  

 

2. Detailed Tree Canopy Plan. In conjunction with each site plan and subdivision construction 

plan submission, a detailed tree canopy plan shall be submitted to the planning department for 

approval for that subdivision section. Upon completion of grading or construction activity, if 

it is determined that the quality of remaining trees, slopes, drainage or other issues have 

impacted the tree canopy requirements as shown on the detailed plan, a revised detailed plan 

shall be submitted for approval prior to the recordation of a subdivision final plat or release of 

temporary occupancy permit. Such plans shall be prepared in accordance with the requirements 

for detailed landscape plans per 19.1-246.B.. 

Page 555 of 563



 

 

Sec. 19.1-247.  Tree Preservation. 

A. Setbacks along Roads and Buffers.  

1. Preservation. Existing trees and shrubs within required setbacks along roads and buffers shall 

be retained to provide continuity, improve buffering, and minimize new landscaping that 

requires watering.  At time of plan review, removal of existing healthy vegetation may be 

approved to accommodate vehicular access or utilities that run generally perpendicular through 

the setback or buffer, or as necessary to accommodate healthy vegetative growth.  

 

2. Credits for Preservation. Healthy existing vegetation may be credited toward landscaping 

requirements provided it is reasonably distributed throughout the setback, buffer or other 

required landscape area.  

  

3. Root Protection Zone during Construction. Land disturbance other than for access or 

utilities shall be allowed in setbacks along roads provided that such disturbance is no closer to 

the tree than the root protection zone.  The root protection zone is a one foot radius around the 

tree for each inch of trunk diameter measured 4.5 feet above grade.  However, under no 

circumstances shall the root protection zone extend beyond the road setback limits.   

 

4. Upper Swift Creek Watershed Tree Canopy.   Tree preservation shall be required in 

compliance with Sec. 19.1-545 wWithin the Upper Swift Creek Watershed., the following 

requirements address the preservation, planting and replacement of trees destroyed or damaged 

during single family lot subdivision development or redevelopment, excluding townhouse 

development:  

 

a. Tree Canopy Requirements. The following tree canopy shall be achieved at 20 years of 

maturity:   

 

• Subdivisions with densities of 10 units or less per acre shall have a tree canopy of 20 

percent of the acreage; and 

 

• Subdivisions with densities between 10 and 20 units per acre shall have a tree canopy 

of 15 percent of the acreage.  

 

For the purposes of calculating the acreage, areas in ponds, non-wooded wetlands, reserved 

or dedicated school sites, playing fields and other non-wooded recreation areas, or other 

similar areas or facilities shall be subtracted from the overall subdivision acreage.  

 

The minimum size standards for new trees shall be in accordance with Table 19.1-250.D. 

The canopy area of trees shall be determined based upon the Chesterfield County Plant 

Materials List. Canopy credit for trees not included on the list may be granted based on 

credible published documentation. Preserved trees and wooded areas may be credited 

toward the canopy requirements if the trees meet standards of desirability and life-year 

expectancy, as determined by the planning department.   

 

Page 556 of 563



 

 

b. Exceptions. Upon written request by the developer, the planning department may approve 

reasonable exceptions to the Upper Swift Creek Canopy requirements to allow for the 

reasonable development of areas devoid of healthy or suitable woody materials, 

preservation of wetlands, or when the strict application would result in unnecessary or 

unreasonable hardship to the developer.  In such instances, the planning department may 

allow a portion of a development’s tree canopy requirement to be satisfied by a tree canopy 

bank, or by off-site planting or replacement of trees, all of which shall be located within 

the Upper Swift Creek Watershed. 

 

OOO 

Sec. 19.1-249.  Maintenance Requirements.  

OOO 

B. Water Supply for Sites Requiring Site Plan Approval. Except as specified herein, a readily 

available water supply shall be provided for required landscaped areas. The exceptions are as 

follows: 

•1. In I-1 2 and I-3 Districts, a readily available water supply shall only be required in the setback 

along roads which accommodate or are intended to accommodate through traffic;  

•2. Landscaped areas in stormwater management or BMP facilities; 

•3. Landscaped areas planted with drought tolerant plants listed in the Chesterfield County Plant 

Materials List; or 

•4. Properties that provide a continuous maintenance, watering, and replacement program for plant 

materials with a reputable landscape maintenance company for a minimum of 3 years.  

C. Landscape Replacement. 

1. With the exception of trees required to meet the canopy requirements within the Upper Swift 

Creek Watershed, required landscaping which is removed, becomes unhealthy or dies, or  is  

pollarded shall be replaced during the next planting season. 

2. Required trees or shrubs which are removed from within required setbacks from roads or 

buffers without written approval from the planning department shall be replaced at a ratio of 2 

trees or shrubs for each tree or shrub removed, or other treatment as may be approved by the 

planning department. 

3. Within the Upper Swift Creek Watershed, trees required to meet the canopy requirements and 

located in open space maintained by a homeowners' association, in a perpetual conservation 

easement, or on individual lots on which a certificate of occupancy has not been issued which 

are removed without written approval from the planning department, become unhealthy or die, 

or are pollarded shall be replaced unless the planning department determines that the 

replacement is unnecessary to meet the tree canopy requirements. 

OOO 

Page 557 of 563



 

 

Sec. 19.1-250.  Landscape Design, Installation, Quality and Size Standards.  

 

OOO 

C. Quality.  At time of planting, required landscaping shall be alive and in a healthy condition. Plant 

materials shall conform to the standards of the most recent edition of the American Standard for 

Nursery Stock, published by the American Nursery and Landscape AssociationAmericanHort. 

Native species shall be those outlined on the Chesterfield County Plant Materials List. Within the 

Upper Swift Creek Watershed, the planting of trees to meet tree canopy requirements shall be in 

accordance with either the standardized landscape specifications jointly adopted by the Virginia 

Nursery and Landscape Association, the Virginia Society of Landscape Designers and the Virginia 

Chapter of the American Society of Landscape Architects, or the road and bridge specifications of 

the Virginia Department of Transportation.   

OOO 

Sec. 19.1-252. Street Tree Requirements.  

 

 

A. Tree Wells. Tree wells in a sidewalk along a road or drive shall have a minimum area of 75 square 

feet by 3 feet deep and contain an uncompacted soil mix favorable for healthy tree growth. If 

approved at time of plan review, a portion of the area may be located underneath the sidewalk. The 

area shall have a sub-drain tied to the storm sewer system. For properties requiring site plan 

approval, the tree wells shall be irrigated. 

 

B. Street Trees Required.  Street trees shall be required as follows: 

 

1. As specified in this chapter;  

 

2. R-TH and MH-3 subdivisions; 
 

3. Upper Swift Creek Watershed, single-family residential subdivision receiving preliminary plat 

approval after {date of adoption}; and 
 

4. Upper Swift Creek Watershed, single-family residential subdivision where lots did not receive 

preliminary plat approval but received construction plan approval after {date of adoption}.   

 

C. Street Trees. in R-TH and MH-3 subdivisions, Unless otherwise specified in this chapter street 

trees shall comply with the following requirements: 

 

1. Sstreet trees shall be installed on along both sides of roads and any driveways private pavement 

serving multiple units excluding alleys;.   

2. Unless otherwise provided in this chapter, or as  required permitted during plan review, street 

trees shall be large deciduous trees spaced generally a maximum of 40 feet on center; however, 

if large deciduous trees will conflict with overhead utility lines, small deciduous trees spaced 

a maximum ofgenerally 40 feet on center shall be installed;.  

3. Trees shall either be installed within the right-of-way, or a maximum of 5 feet outside of the 

right-of-way.  In a subdivision, if the trees are planted outside of the right-of-way, they shall 

be located in an easement granted to the homeowners’ association;.  

Page 558 of 563



 

 

4. Tree species shall be those species designated for use as a street tree in the Chesterfield County 

Plant Materials Listsuitable for growing in the county’s vegetative zone and be drought 

tolerant;. and 

B.5. Within the Upper Swift Creek Watershed eligible street trees installed within tree wells 

may be credited towards tree canopy requirements under 19.1-545 if designated through plan 

review. 

 

OOO 

 

Sec. 19.1-306. Lot Area Reduction in R Districts for Bikeways, and Buffers, and Tree Canopy 

Preservation.  
 

In R Districts required lot area may be reduced in accordance with this section.  In no case shall 

the lot area reductions provided in this section be combined so as to have a lot area reduction of 

more than 20 percent.   

 

1. Bikeways and Buffers. In R Districts, the required lot area may be reduced by 20 percent 

when the lot shares a common boundary with one of the following:  

 

•a. a bikeway required by Sec. 19.1-208. constructed in conjunction with the development of 

the affected lot, and right-of-way in excess of the ultimate right-of-way is dedicated free 

and unrestricted, to and for Chesterfield County, to accommodate the facility; 

 

•b.  a bikeway required by Sec. 19.1-208. constructed in conjunction with the development of 

the affected lot, and land is dedicated fee simple, to and for Chesterfield County, to 

accommodate the facility; or 

 

•c. a buffer required by Sec. 19.1-263.B.1 and the buffer is located in common area.  

 

The length of the common boundary shall be at least the minimum lot width required for the 

district. Lot lines shall not be arbitrarily manipulated, as determined by the planning 

department, to obtain the required minimum lot width at the common boundary. In an R-88 

District, the minimum lot area for the district shall be based upon requirements of Table 19.1-

61.A. Note 1. 
 

2.  Upper Swift Creek Tree Canopy Preservation.  In R districts within the Upper Swift Creek 

Watershed, the required lot area may be reduced by 20 percent when the lot shares a common 

boundary with one of the following: 

 

a. designated tree canopy preservation area located in a continuous unbroken open space 

having a minimum of 30 feet in width and 0.5 acres in area that excludes wetlands, 

resource protection areas or stormwater infrastructure.  The preservation area shall not 

include easements provided that easements less than 20 feet in width which run generally 

perpendicular through the preservation area may be permitted at time of plan review; or 

 

Page 559 of 563



 

 

b. designated tree canopy preservation area located in continuous unbroken open space which 

includes primarily Resource Protection Area. 

 

Tree canopy preservation or replacement areas utilized for lot area credit shall be designated 

on the record plat and be in accordance with provisions Sec.19.1-545.  The length of the 

common boundary shall be at least 50 contiguous feet. Lot lines shall not be arbitrarily 

manipulated, as determined by the planning department, to obtain the required minimum width 

at the common boundary. In an R-88 District, the minimum lot area for the district shall be 

based upon requirements of Table 19.1-61.A. Note 1. In no case shall number of lots in 

subdivision exceed the permitted density as determined by the comprehensive plan or 

condition of zoning approval. 

OOO 

Sec. 19.1-545.   Tree Planting, Replacement and Preservation.  

 

The purpose of this section is to promulgate regulations for the planting and replacement of trees destroyed 

or damaged during the development or redevelopment process for single-family residential projects, 

pursuant to Sec. 15.2-961 of the Code of Virginia, and to provide forincluding the preservation of trees 

during within development in appropriate instances. 

A. General standards. 
 

1.  All trees to be planted shall meet the specifications of the AmericanHort Nursery and Landscape 

Association. 

 

2. The planting of trees shall be done in accordance with either the standardized landscape 

specifications jointly adopted by the Virginia Nursery and Landscape Association, the Virginia 

Society of Landscape Designers and the Virginia Chapter of the American Society of Landscape 

Architects, or the road and bridge specifications of the Virginia Department of Transportation.  

The county shall maintain current copies of these specifications available to the public. 

 

3. The minimum size standards for trees shall be in accordance with Sec. 19.1-250. 

 

4. The canopy area of planted trees shall be in accordance with the Chesterfield County Plant 

Materials List as maintained by the planning department. Canopy credit for trees not included 

on the Chesterfield County Plant Materials List may be approved by the planning department 

based on credible published documentation. Preserved trees and wooded areas may be credited 

toward the canopy requirements if the trees meet standards of desirability and life-year 

expectancy, as determined by the planning department in compliance with this section.   

B.   Canopy requirements. 
 

1.  Site and Construction plans. All site plans and construction plans for subdivision plats shall 

include detailed landscape plans prepared in accordance with Sec. 19.1-246 to provide for the 

preservation, planting and replacement of trees on site to the extent that, at maturity of twenty 

(20) years, the minimum tree canopy shall be as follows: 

a. 10 percent tree canopy for any cemetery;  

Page 560 of 563



 

 

 

b. 10 percent tree canopy for sites zoned for commercial or industrial; 

 

c. 10 percent tree canopy for sites zoned for residential, with densities 20 units or more per 

acre;  

•d. 15 percent tree canopy for sites zoned single family for residential, with densities between 

more than 10 but less than and 20 units per acre; and 

 

•e. 20 percent tree canopy for sites zoned single family  for residential, with densities of 10 

units or less per acre. 

 

Upon written request, the director of planning may grant approval for any residential project 

to comply with tree canopy requirements of this section on an overall project basis. Compliance 

on an overall basis will require review and approval of a tree canopy master plan in accordance 

with Sec. 19.1-545.B.2. 

Except for street trees, in lot subdivisions tree canopy utilized to meet this section shall be 

located in recorded open space, common area or buffers required per 19.1-263.B.1. 

 

2.  Tree Ccanopy Landscape Plansmaster plan. Landscape plans for tree canopy shall be 

submitted in accordance with 19.1-246.C.After December 11, 2013, preliminary subdivision 

plats and final plats for which a preliminary plat was not submitted shall include a tree canopy 

master plan for review and approval.  The tree canopy master plan shall serve as a guide to be 

followed for each construction plan, and shall be updated during the development of the overall 

residential project. Any revision must be submitted for review and approval by the director of 

planning. The plan shall show in graphic format all areas set aside to satisfy tree canopy 

requirements and the means by which such requirements will be satisfied. 

 

3. Exclusions. For the purpose of calculating the area of a site for tree canopy coverage 

requirements, the following areas shall be excluded: 

oa. ponds and non-wooded wetlands; 

ob. properties reserved or dedicated for school sites, playing fields and other non-wooded 

recreation areas, and other facilities and areas of a similar nature; and 

oc. portions of a site which contain existing structures that are not the subject of a pending 

application. 

 

4. Credits for Preservation of Existing Trees.  Existing trees which are to be preserved may be 

included in the calculation of the canopy requirements, and may include wooded preserves, if 

the site or construction plans identify such trees, trees are located within designated 

preservation areas and the trees are determined by the director of planning to be healthy, viable 

for canopy provision and long term preservation.meet standards of desirability and life-year 

expectancy as established by the director of planning. 

 

5.  Designated Tree Canopy Preservation Areas.  Areas which are to be preserved or replanted 

to meet the requirements of this section shall be designated on site plan and final record plat.  

Page 561 of 563



 

 

A note shall be provided which states “Removal of trees within designated tree canopy 

preservation areas shall not be permitted without approval from the director of planning.” 

C. Exceptions to requirements. Upon written request of the developer, the director of planning may 

approve reasonable exceptions to, or deviations from, the requirements of this section in order to 

allow for the reasonable development of farmland or other areas devoid of healthy or suitable 

woody materials, for the preservation of wetlands, or when the strict application of requirements 

would result in unnecessary or unreasonable hardship to the developer.  In such instances, the 

director of planning may approve satisfaction of a portion of a development’s tree canopy 

requirement through use of a tree canopy bank or off-site planting or replacement of trees provided 

that the canopy thereby substituted is located within the Upper Swift Creek Watershed. 

D. Enforcement. Penalties for violations of the requirements of this section shall be the same as those 

applicable to other violations of this chapter as set forth in Sec. 19.1-6.  Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, this section shall apply only to tree canopy areas that have been included in open space 

maintained by a homeowners' association, are subject to a perpetual conservation easement, or are 

included on individual lots which have not received a certificate of occupancy. 

 

OOO 

 

That this ordinance shall become effective immediately after adoption. 

 
1928:115976.1 

 

Page 562 of 563



CHESTERFIELD COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

AGENDA
 

   

Meeting Date: January 22, 2020  Item Number: 20.A.
 

Subject:
Adjournment and Notice of Next Scheduled Meeting of the Board of Supervisors
 
Board Action Requested:

 
Summary of Information:
Motion of adjournment and notice of the Board of Supervisors meeting to be held on February 19, 2020 at 1:00 
p.m. in Room 502 of the Administration Building. 
 
Attachments:
None
 
Preparer: Sara Hall, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors
  
Approved By:

Page 563 of 563


	 2:00 p.m. Work Session (Audio & Presentations) - Administration Building, Room 502
	1. Approval of Minutes
	2. Requests to Postpone Agenda Items and Additions, Deletions or Changes in the Order of Presentation
	3. Work Sessions
	A. Every Day Excellence - Juvenile Probation
	B. General Assembly Update
	Agenda Item

	C. Real Estate Housing Market and Regional Housing Fr
	Agenda Item
	Housing Update Presentation

	D. Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) Updat
	Agenda Item
	VDOT Presentation Chesterfield BOS
	SHV_Chesterfield

	E. Environmental Stewardship Website
	Agenda Item
	3E - ESWP Presentation - Jan. 21, 2020

	F. FY2021 Budget Process
	Agenda Item
	FY21 Budget Kick Off 012220

	G. Update on Public Utilities Construction Contracts
	Agenda Item
	Utilities Update on Construction Contracts BOS Work Session 012220


	4. Reports
	A. District Improvement Funds (DIF) Monthly Report
	Agenda Item
	12220 DIF report


	5. Fifteen-Minute Citizen Comment Period on Unscheduled Matters
	6. Closed Session
	A. Closed Session 1) Pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(
	Agenda Item


	7. Recess for Dinner
	 6:00 p.m. Evening Session - Public Meeting Room
	8. Invocation
	9. Pledge of Allegiance
	10. County Administration Update
	11. Board Member Reports
	12. Resolutions and Special Recognitions
	A. Recognizing Boy Scouts Upon Attaining the Rank of
	Agenda Item
	Resolution - Eagle Scouts

	B. Recognizing Miss Kenley Teller for her Athletic Ac
	Agenda Item
	Kenley Scout Teller Resolution


	13. New Business
	A. Appointments
	1. PlanRVA (Formerly Richmond Regional Planning Distr
	Agenda Item

	2. Capital Region Airport Commission
	Agenda Item

	3. Community Services Board
	Agenda Item

	4. Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission
	Agenda Item


	B. Consent Items
	1. Adoption of Resolutions
	a. Resolution Recognizing Ms. Tamara J. Vest, Chester
	Agenda Item
	Ms. Tamara J. Vest Retirement Resolution

	b. Resolution Recognizing Ms. Kelly Gregg, Emergency
	Agenda Item
	Kelly Gregg Resolution

	c. Resolution Recognizing Corporal Joseph D. DeVivo,
	Agenda Item
	Resolution - Corporal Joseph D. DeVivo, II

	d. Resolution Supporting Construction of the Commonwe
	Agenda Item
	Resolution 


	2. Real Property Requests
	a. Acceptance of Parcels of Land
	1. Along Lucks Lane from The Grove at Lucks Lane, LLC
	Agenda Item
	Grove at Lucks dedication
	Grove at Lucks Plat

	2. Adjacent to Manchester Middle School/Fire Station
	Agenda Item
	Turner convey sketch
	Turner convey

	3. Along Jefferson Davis Highway from John Allen Reas
	Agenda Item
	john reason
	reason rw plat

	4. Along Interstate 95 from Sina18, LLC
	Agenda Item
	sina18sketch
	sina18 plat

	5. Along Courthouse Road and Newbys Bridge Road from
	Agenda Item
	banner christian rw
	Banner rwPlat-1
	banner rw plat 3
	banner rw plat 2

	6. Along Center Pointe Parkway from RP2B, LLC
	Agenda Item
	RP2b ded
	RP2B Plat-1

	7. Adjacent to Charter Colony Parkway from Commonweal
	Agenda Item
	commonwealth found dedication
	Comm Fund Plat-1


	b. Conveyance of Easements
	1. Conveyance of an Easement to Columbia Gas of Virgi
	Agenda Item
	Columbia Gas Chester Arts Center
	Chester Arts Center Columbia Gas


	c. Requests to Quitclaim
	1. Request to Quitclaim a Portion of a Variable Width
	Agenda Item
	woodlands sketch
	Woodlands Plat-1


	d. Requests for Permission
	1. To Install a Private Water Service Within a Privat
	Agenda Item
	banner christ water exc
	2019-11-13 Banner Christian WATERLINE EASEMENT



	3. Central Virginia All Hazards Incident Management T
	Agenda Item
	1462632311_CVAHIMT-Agency-to-Agency-Addendum
	1462632121_CVAHIMT-Agency-to-Agency-MOU

	4. Authorize the Receipt and Appropriation of Grant F
	Agenda Item
	Chesterfield NG-911 Funding Award Letter

	5. Allocate Funds for the Purchase of a Special Purpo
	Agenda Item

	6. Authorization for 5G Air LLC to Enter Into a Lease
	Agenda Item

	7. Award of Contract for Correctional Nursing Service
	Agenda Item

	8. Award of Construction Contract for County Project
	Agenda Item

	9. Award of Construction Contract for County Project
	Agenda Item
	Project Map for Johnson Creek Pipework

	10. Award of Construction Contract for County Project
	Agenda Item

	11. Award of Construction Contract for County Project
	Agenda Item

	12. Appropriation of Funds and Authorization to Award
	Agenda Item
	Map - Otterdale Road and Old Hundred Road Roundabout - Authorization to Award
	Budget - Otterdale Road and Old Hundred Road Roundabout - Authorization to Award

	13. Authorize the Receipt and Appropriation of 2019 St
	Agenda Item

	14. Acceptance of State Roads
	Agenda Item
	2020-01-22 Bermuda - Battery Brooke Parkway Extension
	2020-01-22 Bermuda - Glebe Point Estates Section 2
	2020-01-22 Clover Hill and Midlothain - The Townes At Notting Place Section 1
	2020-01-22 Matoaca - Baileys Grove Section C
	2020-01-22 Matoaca - Bayhill Pointe Section 22
	2020-01-22 Matoaca - Whittington Forest Section 1
	2020-01-22 Matoaca - Wynwood at Foxcreek Section 2
	2020-01-22 Matoaca - Wynwood at Foxcreek Section 13

	15. Set Public Hearing on Code Amendment Relating to M
	Agenda Item
	Ordinance Amendment 19.1-5

	16. Approval to Terminate the Lease with the Economic
	Agenda Item
	Lease Termination Agreement - Stonebridge_78143065_1



	14. Fifteen-Minute Citizen Comment Period on Unscheduled Matters
	15. Deferred Items
	A. 19SN0628 - Dean L. Hawkins, LA
	19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT-C
	19SN0628-2020JAN20-BOS-RPT


	16. Requests for Manufactured Home Permits and Rezoning Placed on the Consent Agenda to be Heard in the Following Order
	A. 19SN0597: SRBF, L.L.C. (project commonly known as
	19SN0597-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C

	B. 20SN0526: 29:11 Chesterfield, LLC (project commonl
	Agenda Item
	20SN0526-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

	C. 19SN0566:  John S. Bolton (project commonly known
	19SN0566-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C

	D. 19SN0616: Idlewood Properties Inc (project commonl
	19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C
	19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C
	19SN0616-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-ADD

	E. 20SN0520: Joni Chrystle Roberts, Clover Hill Distr
	20SN0520-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C

	F. 20SN0521: Lisa Stinnette, Bermuda District
	20SN0521-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT

	G. 20SN0527: Emerson Companies, LLC, Bermuda District
	20SN0527-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C

	H. 20SN0546: Matthew T. Goodwin, Woodlands Real Estat
	20SN0546-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C

	I. 20SN0549: Columbia Gas of Virginia, Midlothian Dis
	20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C
	20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-ADD
	20SN0549-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C

	J. 20SN0550: Chesterfield Economic Development Author
	20SN0550-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C

	K. 20SN0551: Jennifer Kielb, Midlothian District
	20SN0551-2020JAN22-BOS-RPT-C


	17. Public Hearings
	A. To Consider the Exercise of Eminent Domain for the
	Agenda Item
	Johnson Creek FM Condemnations
	Johnson Creek Plats 1-14

	B. To Consider the Conveyance of County Property at 2
	Agenda Item
	co to eda sketch
	CO to EDA Plat

	C. To Consider the Exercise of Eminent Domain for the
	Agenda Item
	Vic Map - Cowan Rd Improvements Parrish
	Plat

	D. To Consider Code Amendment Relative to Upper Swift
	Agenda Item
	Chapter 19.1 PH CBPA Tree Preservation Ordinance Amendments BOS no wm


	18. Remaining Manufactured Home Permits and Zoning Requests
	19. Fifteen-Minute Citizen Comment Period on Unscheduled Matters
	20. Adjournment
	A. Adjournment and Notice of Next Scheduled Meeting o
	Agenda Item



